

RECEIVED:

MASONIC LODGE HISTORIES, VOLUME I MASONIC LODGE HISTORIES, VOLUME II

DATE:

Marty Perry For: National Register Coordinator

Kentucky Heritage Council



Education and Humanities Cabinet

KENTUCKY HERITAGE COUNCIL

The State Historic Preservation Office

David L. Morgan
Executive Director
and SHPO

Brereton C. Jones Governor Sherry K. Jelsma Cabinet Secretary

May 26, 1993

Joe Conway, Grand Secretary Grand F & AM Lodge of Kentucky Masonic Home, KY 40041

Dear Secretary Conway and F & AM Officers:

On the recommendation of Mr. Conway, I'm requesting information from your archives. Mr. Conway indicated in our phone conversation today that Kentucky's lodges submitted histories of their organizations to you; those histories were compiled but not published. I have asked Mr. Conway for you to consider at the June 11 Officers' Meeting the Heritage Council's request to photocopy that information. Those documents will increase our knowledge of your important group's history. The information will be restricted according to your wishes and will not be used to prevent the owners from making changes to their building as they see fit. By having individual histories of the lodge, we will be better able to recognize their most important features, in turn, becoming better prepared to aid a community that wants to preserve their own structure.

Currently, I am working with Danny Coffey and the Jamestown lodge to place their building on the National Register of Historic Places. That job requires me to write both a history of the Jamestown lodge and an overview of Masonic history in the area. In doing both, the role that the Jamestown F & AM lodge plays in the history of area Masonic and fraternal organizations will be better understood. I intend to use the overview authored by Dr. Guthrie to write my own overview, but the individual lodge histories may help me to fill in parts of the larger story that he was simply unable to treat.

The Heritage Council would be pleased to have the opportunity to photocopy those individual lodge histories for addition to our theme files. Your group's large membership and outstanding lodge buildings testify to the significance has held in Kentucky's past and present. I look forward to your reply. Thank you for your consideration.

Practice forms de-

Marty Perry

National Register Coordinator

300 Washington Street Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 Telephone (502) 564-7005 FAX (502) 564-5820

Printed on recycled paper

LAW OFFICES

WARE AND WARE FIRST NATIONAL BANK BUILDING

ORIE S, WARE COVINGTON, KENTUCKY
ELMER P, WARE
WILLIAM O, WARE

TELEPHONE HEMLOCK 0255

ELMER P. WARE
WILLIAM O. WARE
JAMES C. WARE
FRANK GOFTON WARE

September 27th, 1950.

Mr. A.E. Orton, Grand Secretary, Grand Lodge of Masons, Louisville, Kentucky.

Dear Al:

In the analytical index of lodges chartered, on Page 268 of the present Constitution, I find Mayo Lodge No. 198 was chartered August 28th, 1850, and under remarks, it says "moved to California, Kentucky, 1890." I am in my office and do not have available Capt. Grant's "100 Years of Kentucky Masonry", which may show something about the history of this lodge. I have the Proceedings from 1871 to date, but all my Proceedings, except recent years, are also at home.

I would like, if you will take the time to look at the Proceedings of 1850, to see if there is anything that would indicate where this lodge was meeting when it was organized, and after whom it was named. Any information that you can find on the history of Mayo Lodge will be appreciated.

Charles B. Truesdell, member of the fraternity, has been asked to get up something about the history of the lodge when they celebrate their 100th anniversary in the next few weeks, and I thought you might be able to give me something, which I could pass along to Mr. Truesdell relative to the history.

Sincerely and fraternally,

Orie S. Ware

Ceptember 23, 1950

Hon. Fie f. Ware, First dational and Maileing, Covargion, mentucky

Dear Orie:

Your letter of the 27th. at hand this morning.

"Also, the work and by-laws of Layo hodge ..., and find the same correct. They recommend that a Charter be granted that a charter be granted that and style of Layo Lodge No. 198, to be held at sealment, County of Campbell, and Stae of Nentecky; and that James Accrone be the first Harter, J.M. Wellyneaux, first Conior Narden and Cibem Simonson, first Junior arden thereof."

The rester in the 1950 Proceedings follow:

Mayo Jodge Ho. 198 Stated meetings, the Saturday of, or preceding the full meen in each north.

OF ICAPS

James Scorene, Haster
James H. Sollyneaux, J. J.
T. Loung, Secretary
James H. Toung, Breas.
Charles Hid, F.D.
H.J. Heall, J.D.
D. Carny, F. & S.

Haster Lasons: -J. L. Stton, Im. Jemings, L. Boagle, Cibson Flaonson. Untered Approntices: -... Jorin, Thomas Bakes.

injocted: - Homes A. Cor, about 36 years of age, dark complexion, 5 ft. 3 or 9 inches tall, occopation, tavers keeper.

Expelled: -I.J. Forker, Junior harden of said lodge; about 34 years old, light hair, blue eyes, and rather heavy buildt, and goes to California on the 20th of July, 1850. For gross unmasonic conduct-fraud.

Initiations:-2

Lodges dited to Appear This Consion (1890)

layo Lodge to. 198. Cont).T. Smith, Cocretary (August 14) orrepresented 1888, 1889; Duos owing for 1888 and 13/89. Amount 92.00

Lodgen G. D. Condittee, report.

We have examined the Grand easter's dispensation where to those lodges whose charters were expected through error or ir equipality: (25 lodges listed) including to. 108, and recommend that their charters be returned to them and they be permitted to continue work as though their cherters had not been interfered with.

C PEC PIPARC BORITION

In the matter of the Location, being inconvenient and remote to many of its mombors, which is now hampily removed by a change in location, in accordance with the law, ask that this trand Longe remit a small amount in duos. On recom end the remission.

> J. Hogarsranch comultitee

C.C. James W. Coundary sistory roads ac follows:

" ayo sodgo was organized August 28, 1950, by Co. Nayo of Resport, Mentucky "aster of Newsort Lodge. The first meeting place was upstairs over James Young's Flore, at Belmont, by. James Mourone was the First "apter, Pr. Jumes Tollyneaux was first "enter marden, and Gibson cimons. Janior Surden.

The lodge has now moved from belmont to seech Grove, about 1856, where they built a hall over the school house, mesting regular once a month the til 1832, there were no more mostings until Fovember 28, 1865, when how onlick returned from the war, he won't to the hall and found all of the records had been destroyed. A.C.Dicken then berroved money, paid the Crand Lodge lax, and called together had been and eter haniel and started the lodge gain. r. Maken was afterwards made an honorary monbor for bla services.

On February 27, 1890, the lodge was moved to California, contacky, where the ladge has a nice hall and a membership of sixty members at present." (He first gives L.C.Dick and afterwards Dickon)

Ora this is all I can find and I think will help you some in your correct for information on Mayo Lodge No. 198.

With all good wishes, I am,

Fraternally thine,

BOWLING GREEN LODGE NO. 73 BOWLING GREEN, WARREN COUNTY, KENTUCKY

Bowling Green Lodge No. 73, was instituted June 6, 1821, under a dispensation issued by Henry Clay, Grand Master, dated at Lexington, Kentucky, 26th day of May, 1821. Daniel Bradford, Grand Secretary, Abram Larsh, First Master, Francis Johnson, Senior Warden, John W. Powell, Junior Warden, and Past Master, John Breathitt, Samuel Curd, and Fred Weller, opened a lodge in the Past Master's Degree, and Past Master, Abram Larsh was installed Master of the said Bowling Green Lodge. By-laws were adopted at the second meeting, held June 8th, and Samuel S. Brooking, Jona Hobson, James T. Morehead, and William P. Neill were the first petitions received.

The Lodge received a charter August 26, 1822, signed by John McKinney, Jr., Grand Master, Daniel Bradford, Grand Secretary. The Lodge continued to grow and made Masons and dispensed Masonic charity till the time of the Morgan excitement.

On June 24, 1834, Bowling Green Lodge No. 73 surrendered its charter to the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, and on March 10, 1847 a new lodge was instituted under a dispensation issued by William D. Allen, Grand Master, Philip Swigert, Grand Secretary, dated at Lexington, Kentucky, February 12, 1847; Asher W. Graham, first Master, William V. Loving, Senior Warden, and Warner L. Underwood, Junior Warden, when the by-laws of the late of the late Bowling Green Lodge No. 73, formerly under charter be for the present adopted as the by-laws for this Lodge. Six petitions were presented at the first meeting. The Grand Lodge of Kentucky on September 2, 1847, adopted the following resolution: Resolved, That the charter of Bowling Green Lodge No. 73 be restored to this lodge. Sometime about 1853, Dinwiddie Lodge No. 269 was

instituted in Bowling Green. Charter issued in September, 1853. John B. Grider, First Master. This lodge became defunct in 1863. John C. Gerard Lodge No. 527 instituted in Bowling Green under dispensation December 28, 1871. Chartered October 24, 1872. This lodge surrendered its charter and consolidated with Bowling Green No. 73 in 1882.

Bowling Green Lodge No. 73 erected a monument to Past Master, Asher W.

Graham at a cost of eight hundred dollars. Bowling Green Lodge has furnished one

Grand Master, Frank C. Gerard in 1895-1896, and thus has Bowling Green Lodge No.

73 continued to dispense Masonic Light and charity for nearly one hundred years.

PRESENT LODGE OFFICERS. GRAND

J. N. Saunders. E. W. Weathers. W. C. Black. H. S. McElroy. John H. Leathers. Dave Jackson. Stephen B. Lander. T. W. Pennington. Luther Johnson. James R. Rogers. Aaron A. Sharp. Charles A. Gipe.

Grand Master (60). Deputy Grand Master(71), Grand Senior Warden(187). Grand Junior Warden(87). Grand Treasurer (376). Grand Secretary(144). Grand Chaplain(57), Grand Senior Deacon(60). Grand Junior Deacon (796). Grand Marshall (246). Grand Sword Bearer (454). Stanley P. Stephenson, Grand Pursuivant(184), Grand Tyler (266).

Stanford, Ky. Elkton, Ky. Barbourville, Ky. Lebanon, Ky. Louisville, Ky. Louisville, Ky. Bloomfield, Ky. Stanford, Ky. Buckhorn, Ky. Little Rock. Ky. Foxtown, Ky. Hustonville, Ky. Louisville, Ky.

PAST GRAND MASTERS.

1800-Sept.	John Hawkins, President,	(3)
1800-0ct.	James Morrison, Chairman	(1)
1800-1	William Murray,	4.
1801-2	James Morrison,	1.
1802-3	James Morrison,	1.
1803-4	John Jordan, Jr.,	1.
1804-5	George M. Bibb,	1.
1805-6	George M. Bibb,	1.
1806-7	George M. Bibb,	1.
1807-8	George M. Bibb,	1.
1808-9	John Allen,	4.
1809-10	John Allen,	4.
1810-11	John Allen,	4.
1811-12	Joseph H. Daviess,	1.
1812-13	Anthony Butler,	17.
1813-14	Anthony Butler,	17.
1814-15	James Moore,	5.
1815-16	Daniel Bradford,	1.
1816-17	Wm. H. Richardson,	20.
1817-18	Wm. H. Richardson,	20.
1818-19	Thomas Bodley,	ı.
1819-20	Samuel H. Woodson,	1.
1820-21	Henry Clay,	1.
1821-22	John McKinney, Jr.,	41.
1822-23	David G. Cowan	90

1823-24	Asa K. Lewis,	20.
1824-25	John Speed Smith,	25.
1825-26	Thomas H. Bradford,	14.
1826-27	Samuel Daviess,	53.
1827-28	Daniel Breck,	25.
1828-29	Robert Johnston,	4.
1829-30	William M. Southgate,	64.
1830-31	John M. McCalla,	1.
1831-32	Levi Tyler (51) now,	8.
1832-33	John Payne,	80.
1833-34	Abraham Jonas,	85.
1834-35	Richard Apperson,	23.
1835-36	Willis Stewart(51) now,	8.
1836-37	Wm. Brown, Jr.,	14.
1837-38	James Rice, Jr., (51) now	8.
1838-39	Derrick Warner,	1.
1839-40	George Breckinridge,	101.
1840-41	Abner Cunningham,	86.
1841-42	Thomas C. Orear,	22,
1842-43	Henry Wingate,	4.
1843-44	Leander M. Cox,	60.
1844-45	Bryan R. Young,	7 6.
1845-46	Wm. Holloway,	25.
1846-47	Wm. B. Allen,	54.
1847-48	James H. Deviess,	14.
1848-49	Charles Tilden(106) now,	8.
1849-50	John D. McClure.	128.
1850-51	J. M. S. McCorkle.	1.50. E/I
	-	

1851-52	Charles G. Wintersmith,	76.
1852-53	Thomas Ware,	18.
1853-54	Thomas Todd.	5.
1854-55	Marcus M. Tyler,	121.
1855-56	David T. Monsarrat,	51.
1856 -57	T. N. Wise.	109.
1857-58	Philip Swigert,	4.
1858-59	Rob Morris,	200.
1859-60	Harvey T. Wilson,	112.
1860- 61	Lewis Landrum,	104.
1861-62	Hiram Bassett,	342.
1862-63	John B. Huston,	22.
1863-64	Thomas Sadler, (16) now,	2.
1864-65	James D. Landrum,	302.
1865-66	Mirax J. Williams,	216.
1866-67	Isaac T. Martin,	18.
1867-68	Elisha S. Fitch,	112.
1868-69	Elisha S. Fitch,	112.
1869-70	Charles Eginton,	20.
1870-71	Charles Eginton,	20.
1871-72	Edward B. Jones,	127.
1872-73	Edward W. Turner,	25.
1873-74	Thomas J. Pickett,	449.
1874-75	Henry Bostwick,	345.
1875-76	John H. Leathers,	376.
1876-77	R. M. Farleigh,	37.
1977-78	C. H. Johnson,	9.
1878-79	Thomas S. Pettit,	130.

1879-80	Jake Rice,	195.
1880-81	W. LaRue Thomas,	28.
1881-82	Wm. H. Weffert,	281.
1882-83	G. D. Buckner.	1.
1883-84	Howard R. French,	23.
1884-85	John G. Örndorff,	17.
1885-86	Bernard G. Witt,	9.
1886-87	James W. Hopper,	87.
1687-88	J. Soule Smith,	1.
1888-89	James D. Black,	187.
1889-90	Wm. W. Clark,	37.
1890-91	Charles H. Fisk,	345 .
1891-92	James A. McKenzie,	416.
1892-93	J. Speed Smith,	25.
1893-94	James W. Staton,	154.
1894-95	Henry H. Holeman,	14.,
1895-96	Frank C. Gerard,	73.
1896-97	Robert F. Peak,	158.
1897-98	Reginald H. Thompson,	8.
1898-99	James E. Wilhelm,	449.
1899-00	John A. Ramsey,	55.
1900-01	William C. McChord,	50.
1901-02	Harry Bailey,	18.
1902-03	John W. Landrum,	679.
1903-04	Owen D. Thomas,	87.
1904-05	Roland H. C. Rhea,	66.
1905-06	James Garnett,	96.
1906-07	Samuel K. Veach,	65.

1907-08	Henry P. Barret,	9.
1908-09	Virgil P. Smith,	111,
1909-10	John H. Cowles,	400⊋
1910-11	Robert R. Burnam,	25.
1911-12	Dave Jackson,	144.
1912-13	Joe H. Ewalt,	716.
1913-14	Orie S. Ware,	109.
1914-15	George B. Winslow,	134.
1915-16	T. J. Adams,	400.

FOREWORD.

Wednesday, October 22nd., 1913, the following resolution was offered by J. N. Saunders (60) from the floor of The Grand Lodge of Kentucky F. & A. M., and adopted.

This Grand Lodge having been in existence since October 16, 1800, and no concerted systematic effort having ever been made to preserve the history of the subordinate lodges of this Grand Jurisdiction, and the time having now come when much interesting and valuable Masonic history in Kentucky will be forever lost unless carefully gathered and permanently recorded; therefore,

appoint a committee of three, which shall, in the most effective and expeditious way, gather the facts of interest relating to each of the active and defunct lodges of Kentucky and present same in typewritten manuscript to this Grand Lodge at its next meeting. The completed manuscript to be the property of this Grand Lodge, and the committee gathering and recording the history to serve without compensation, but the actual expense incurred to be paid out of the Grand Lodge treasury, as the work progresses, when itemized expense accounts signed by a majority of the committee, have been presented to the Most Worshipful Grand Master, approved by him, and his written direction made to the Grand Secretary to draw his warrant upon the Grand Treasurer for the payment of the same.

The Grand Master named the following committee to collect and report the history called for in the resolution, to-wit:

J. N. Saunders (60).

W. C. McChord (50).

George B. Winslow (134).

And this committee now makes this its finel report.

.

٠.

THE GRAND LODGE OF KENTUCKY.

The first Masonic Lodge instituted west of the Allegheny mountains was Lexington Lodge No. 25, under charter from the Grand Lodge of Virginia, in the year 1778. On September 8th, 1800, representatives from Lexington (now) No. 1, Paris No. 2, George town No. 3, Hiram No. 4, of Frankfort, and Solomon U. D., of Shelbyville, met in the town of Lexington and prepared an address to the Grand Lodge of Virginia, asking permission to organize a Grand Lodge. The petition having been granted, on October 16th, in the same year, the Grand Lodge of Kentucky was organized and Bro. William Murray was elected the first Grand Master.

MASONIC WIDOWS & ORPHANS HOME & INFIRMARY.

By John H. Leathers, Past Grand Master.

On Tuesday, October 19, 1869, the opening day of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, the corner stone of the Masonic Widows & Orphans Home The morning opened with a fine, was laid with imposing ceremonies. cold, penetrating, drizzling rain. A procession was formed at the old Masonic Temple, Fourth & Jefferson Streets at Eleven o'clock. The Grand Lodge and all the local Masonic bodies, having made elaborate preparations were not to be frightened off by the weather. It was a large and most imposing procession. About noon the drizzle turned into a heavy wet snow and by the time the head of the column reached the Home there were several inches of snow and slush to wade through, but the ardor of the Masonic Brotherhood could not be dampened, for a great event in masonic his tory was to take place, and there the craft remained in the blinding snowstorm through all the ceremonies which were fully carried out and listened to an eloquent and lengthy address by Past Grand Master Fitch.

Thus the cornerstone of this great Masonic fabric was laid, so to speak, in tears that burst forth in a glorious sunshine later, and its stands today, not only as the pioneer of the greatest of Masonic charities in the world, but to the honor and the glory of Kentucky Masons. The spirit manifested by the craft on that day has been intensified as time passed on and the example that day furnished by the Masons of Kentucky has been emulated by most of the States of the Union and has blessed thousands of homeless and

friendless children and bereaved and helpless widows. It has verified the saying that "They who sow in tears shall reap in joy".

Many of the craft are still living who may chance to read this brief sketch and will think, as I do, of that gloomy and forbidding day of long ago which has brought such a rich harvest in glorious days that have come since.

The Masonic Widows & Orphans Home and Infirmary is the pioneer organization of its kind in the world. It may be of interest to the present generation of masons to know the origin of the Masonic Home.

It had been the custom from time immemorial among masons up to the time of the founding of the Masonic Home in Kentucky, for the lodges in their individual capacity, so to speak, to dispense their own charity among their brethern, to relieve the sick and destitute and to care for the widows and the orphans as calls might be made upon them. It was not intended originally that the Masonic Widows & Orphans Home and Infirmary should be used as a home for widows and orphans but mainly as an "Infirmary" for members of the Masonic Order who needed such an institution and, from personal knowledge and the best information I have been able to obtain, which I think may be relied upon as absolutely accurate, our Home originated as follows not with standing much difference of opinion has prevailed on this point:

Right after the close of the Civil War there were many soldiers from both armies who returned home. Many of them crippled, many of them suffering from diseases contracted in the army and many of

them incapacitated from doing any kind of work and in many instances without any one to care for them. The Government at that time had not commenced giving pensions to its soldiers. A certain Union soldier, whose name I will withhold and whom I knew personally, suffered both from wounds and disease. Major M, returned home here to Louisville. He was a lawyer by profession but was wholly unable to undertake the practice of his profession to any extent and earned a scant livelyhood.

The Surgeon of his regiment was Dr. Ed. Richardson, well known to many of the older masons, an old bachelor and a devoted mason and a member of Antiquity Lodge No. 113, of Louisville. Major M. who was an Irishman by birth had been reared in the Roman Catholic faith but when he grew to manhood he strayed away from the faith of his fathers and joined the masons and was a member of Mt. Moriah Lodge of this city. When his health became so impaired that he had to be sent to an Infirmary or hospital, arrangements were made by the loage and Dr. Richardson to place him in St. Joseph's Infirmary, which was then the only private hospital in Louisville of any note. He remained there under the care of the Sisters for nearly a year during which time Dr. Richardson attended him faithfully and, of course, without any charge and Mt. Moriah Lodge paid his drug bills and his care at the Infirmary.

When it became known to Major M. that he could not live and was told that he must soon pass away, the faith of his early child-hood came back to him and he asked to see a Priest. The Priest refused to have anything to do with him or to administer to him the dying Sacrament unless he renounced on his death-bed the Masonic

Order, which he did. And, after all the care that had been given him and expense incurred by his lodge, the lodge did not have the poor privilege of even extending his funeral which was forbidden. Dr. Richardson, who was a man of a high sense of justice and high tempered as well, "raised the roof off the house" so to speak, and practically swore by the "Eternal" that the masons should have a place thereafter to take their own sick, free from Catholic domination and, so far as I know, he is entitled to the first suggestions of a "Masonic Infirmary".

This incident of Major M, created quite a stir among the masonic fraternity of Louisville as well as throughout the State and their Co-operation was readily secured. A meeting was called at the old Masonic Temple which then stood at Fourth & Green where the Paul Jones Building now stands, and was attended by such men as T. L. Jefferson, the first President of the Home, Chas. Tilden, President of the Bank of Louisville, C. Henry Finck, Past Master of Willis Stewart Lodge, one of the biggest-hearted men that ever lived in Louisville, William Kendrick, father of the present Kendrick boys, jewelers, John L. Wheat, that Noble old Roman who is still on the board after a faithful service of fifty years, Wm. H. Meffert, a life long service of sacrifice and devotion and is still on the board, Dr. Chas. E. Dunn who recently passed to his reward after a life full of good deeds, Jacob F. Weller, C. K. Caron, Geo. Gaulbert, Judge Wm. B. Hoke, Wm. Ryan, and a long list of other worthies, only a few of whom remain to this day with us. Hemry Finck in his enthusiasm jumped up in the meeting and subscribed

a thousand dollars to start the project. The meeting was an enthusiastic one and the papers next day had a full account of it. An organization was effected and a charter was obtained as soon as possible under the name of the "Masonic Widows & Orphans Home and Infirmary of Kentucky."

The masonic women of Louisville became enthused and that grand and most noble of Kentucky women at the time, Mrs. Susan Preston Hepburn, a sister of General William Preston, was elected President of the Women's Auxilliary Society and through her efforts and the band of noble women under her, the first Eight thousand dollars that went into the corner stone was raised, -- But more of this in another article some time in the future.

After some time had elapsed and a further investigation as well as further deliberation concerning the matter, the craft throughout the State favored much more the erection of a Home for the widows and orphans rather than an Infirmary feature. The claim was made and justly so to a great extent that the Infirmary would be used mainly, if not altogether, by the lodges of the City of Louisville, that but few of the sick of the craft throughout the State could very well avail themselves of its privileges, whereas a home to care for the distressed widows and the helpless orphans of our brotherhood more strongly appealed to their hearts as well as their judgment and, as a consequence for the time being at least, the Infirmary project was abandoned to take up what was considered the more pressing need of the widows and the orphans.

From this beginning, which I believe sets forth accurately the

origin of the Masonic Home, has grown the magnificent establishment Kentucky Masons can boast this day and its influence has pervaded the entire Masonic World. There are but few States now that have not followed the noble example set by Kentucky and no Masonic jurisdiction is now considered complete or up to date without its Institution for the care of its distressed widows and helpless orphans. All honor to those noble men who laid the foundation of this splendid structure and all honor to their worthy sons who this day respond to its support so magnificently. Worthy sons of noble Sires and there need be no fear for the future of this splendid charity.

The plan to establish a Masonic Widows and Orphans' Home and Infirmary in Kentucky was received with great interest and enthusiasm by the craft, not only in the city of Louisville, where it was to be built, but throughout the State, and especially among the Masonic women of Louisville, whose hands and hearts were ready to do what they could to promote this great enterprise, and to their enthusiasm and unflagging devotion and sacrifice perhaps more is due than to anything else the success of the great undertaking. Like the women of all ages, when they become interested in snything that is worthy of their efforts, their ardor could not be dampened, their zeal could not be diminished nor their labors discouraged as long as they had for their "war cry" the "widow and the orphan".

And so, after many days of anxiety and labor and sacrifice and toil, as has been already announced in the first article of these papers, the cornerstone was laid on the 24th., day of October, 1869,

in the midst of a terrific midwinter snowstorm, but above the wintry wind that blew so fiercely that day could be heard the sound of the gavel and the trowel when the Grand Master proclaimed that the work was "well done".

On the 20th., of October, 1870, the north wing of the building being completed, was formally dedicated on that day. The first child admitted into the home was Minnie Williams, a bright, sweet little girl and a ward of Falls City Lodge No. 376, of Louisville. She was admitted on the 23rd., day of May, 1871, and from that time on numbers of children were received from all over the State until within a short time the capacity of the north wing was fully tested.

In the summer of 1875, while the work was pregressing rapidly to completion, suddenly on the evening of the second day of June a terrific storm came up and the entire center of the main building, including the towers, was blown to the ground. It would seem certainly that there must be a special Providence to watch over the widow and the orphan. The children were all playing in the yard when this storm came up, under the very shadow of the building which fell and not a single one of them was burt.

aging as it was at the time and which nearly crushed the hopes and the heart or its projectors, really in the end turned out to be a bhessing. Like the great fire in Chicago which destroyed that city, and it seemed at the time never to rise again, arose rapidly with greater splendor than ever before, and so the same thing happened concerning the Home.

A great mass meeting was immediately held in Masonic Temple and

the citizens of Louis ville, regardless of creed, packed the theater to its fullest capacity, so great was the sympathy and interest aroused in the community by the terrible disaster that had overtaken Many eloquent addresses were made and a large amount the Home. of money was raised for the rebuilding of the Home. One notable incident of the occasion I recall was a short speech made by the Rev. Dr. Stuart Robinson, one of the most distinguished Presbyterian preachers of America. The doctor never belonged to any secret society, but he lived not far from the Masonic Home and was deeply I remember a characteristic sentence which he interested in it. used in his address. He said: "I don't know anything about you Dark Lantern fellows. but when I get up every morning that Home stares me in the face and there must be some good in you", and then he made a very hardsome subscription.

This costly incident gave new zeal and new life to the Masonic craft, and they arose as one man to see that every brick and every stone be replaced stronger and better than ever, and in a short period of time the Home was rebuilt and completed, and on the 23rd, of October, 1878, it was dedicated with the most imposing ceremonies that ever occurred in the hisotry of Kentucky Masons.

It would be difficult for the Masons of Kentucky of this present generation to realize the struggles and the sacrifices that our brethern of forty years ago had to endure to establish and maintain the Home. Those still living who passed through that period look back now with profound satisfaction that they were permitted to take part in the work that has distinguished Kentucky Masonry

throughout the world and that has afforded through all the intervening years a magnificent Home were eighteen hundred widows and orphans of our distressed brethren of this jurisdiction have been tenderly cared for.

There are many interesting incidents that might be given here to show something of the spirit and the zeal that animated both One event worth relating the Masonic men and women of that period. was an old-time fair given by the Masonic women of Louisville in the Masonic Temple under the able leadership of that noble woman, Mrs. Susan Preston Hepburn, for whom Hepburn Lodge No. 576, located in Martinsburg, Elliott county, is named, and which is one of the very few instances in history where a Masonic lodge was ever named. This fair lasted for a week and the net proceeds for a woman. realized something over \$4,000. All the lodges of the city had booths with all kinds of things for sale, and one specially noteworthy incident was a gift by Brother William Kendrick (the father of the present Kendrick boys, jewelers), of a handsome set of silver jewels worth perhaps about \$50. These jewels were voted for at 25 cents a vote to be given the most popular lodge. netted about \$800 and were won by Louisville Lodge No. 400.

The second great occasion worth referring to here is that the Masonic fraternity from time immemorial had been in the habit of observing St. John's Day, June 24, of each year. These occasions were usually more of a social nature, where the brethren throughout the State of various lodges and communities would gather together and have a picnic, good music, sometimes oratory and generally wind

up with a dance for the young folks. There was no particular aim or object except as a proper observance of the day as a Masonic feast day. But the idea was conceived that Louisville Masons could turn the day into some profit to the Home, and so in 1872 permission was obtained from the duPonts to use Central Park, as it is now known, which at that time was a private park and owned and kept by the duPonts as their private residence. All the lodges in the city participated. Elaborate preparations had been made lasting through several months for this great occasion, and when the day came, an ideal June day, it was estimated that 25,000 people visited the park on that occasion and the net proceeds amounted to \$16,000.

Many who participated on that occasion worked day and night for weeks ahead, many of them at a sacrifice of their business affairs, but the results more than compensated them for the time and labor and sacrifice that had been given, and since that time no St. John's Day has ever passed without its being celebrated in some signal way to raise funds for the Home.

In reminiscences written commercing the early history of the Home, describing in some degree, at least, the interest and enthusiasm of the Craft regarding the Home and something of the trials and tribulations and sacrifices that were endured during the early days of its existence, a fitting recognition should be given to Brother Thomas T. Shreve, one of the most prominent as well as wealthy citizens of Louisville, and a Mason who, after the project had been well considered and the charter obtained, generously donated four acres of ground on which the Home now stands, a magnificent

present at the time, but about tenfold more valuable today, after the lapse of nearly fifty years.

The Board of Directors of the Home with great wisdom and foresight, bought shortly afterward an additional five acres adjoining it, and this nine acres of ground now belonging to the Home, beautifully located, is extremely valuable.

The gift of this four acres of land by Brother Shreve was, of course, a great stimulus to the enterprise and cheered the hearts of the Masonic brotherhood, and it meant to them the success of their great undertaking. Probably no organization was ever formed in the State of Kentucky, certainly not in the city of Louisville, that commanded the services of a more magnificent body of men than composed the Home Board and others of the succeeding generations as it is today. They were men of ability, character and standing, giving their time freely and lovingly without any reward except that which comes from laboring in a noble cause. These men could not be paid to do this work. They could only be induced to give it as a labor of love and of sacrifice for the poor and distressed who needed the fostering care of our Home, and for that reason none but the highest grade men were asked to serve.

I will be pardoned for repeating in this article some of the names that composed the original Board, most of whom have passed to their reward, but two of them remaining, noble men, who for nearly fifty years have given of their time and labor and best thought to promote the welfare and prosperity of that institution, which any money consideration could not induce them to give. And I

planning for this beloved object.

The great picnic at Central Park, which has been referred to in a former reminiscence, and which yielded \$16,000 net profit, illustrated to the Craft what could be done by organization, and by all pulling together in the same cause. So, on another St. John's day arrangements were made to outdo any celebration that had ever come before, or probably any that might come after, in the interest of the Home, and a three days' program was arranged, and was one of the greatest events that up to that time had ever occurred in the city of Louisville.

Several acres of land were rented adjoining Central Park which were made into a magnificent drill ground. A seating capacity was erected around the grounds, with canvass covering over the top, something on the order of a great auditorium or circus arrangement, which would seat 20,000 people. The plan of the celebration was arranged as follows:

On the first day, June 22nd, was devoted to what might be called a lodge picnic in Central Park in the forence, ample refreshments and dinner to be served to the multitude that attended. In the afternoon a great game of baseball was arranged between the noted Chicago club of that day, and a very high-grade local club called the "Olympics", in which the famous Pete Browning participated. A tremendous crowd of people attended this ball game, and while, of course, the Chicagos won, as we expected them to do, yet a Louis-ville fan remarked after the game was over, "Well, they know they had a fight, anyhow."

The second day was devoted to competitive drills between companies

composing the Louisville Legion, which was then a strong organization here, and a number of companies in very fine shape, contested for the honors. This was followed by exhibition drills by the local Commandaries, Louisville No. 1 and DeMolay No. 12. This day, like the first, was an ideal day in June, and a tremendous crowd witnessed these drills.

The third day, June 24th, the main day, was the greatest event of its kind ever witnessed in Louisville. Competitive drills between the crack military companies of the South participated . and the cash prizes were large enough to induce them to come. Among the famous companies that took part in these drills were the Crescent City Rifles, of New Orleans; Mobile Rifles, of Mobile, Ala: Montgomery Greys and Montgomery Blues, of Montgomery, Ala: the Porter Rifles. of Nashville, Tenn.: the Gate City Guards of Atlanta. Ga .: the Houston Rifles, of Houston, Texas; the Quapaw Guards, of Little Rock, Ark., and the old famous Chickasaw Guards of Memphis. Tenn., and our own magnificent company, the Louisville City Guards, under Capt. Harry Grinstead, with five United States army officers as judges. While the writer is not able to recall from memory how these prizes were awarded, he believes the first prize was awarded the Crescent City Rifles. of New Orleans.

No such drills had ever been witnessed in this country. These companies at that time stood without any equal except among them-selves in the United States, and the immense crowds that witnessed these drills was a revelation to the people of Louisville. Yet, notwithstanding the magnificence and the success of these three

days' entertainment, the financial result did not equal the big sixteen-thousand-dollar day. The cost of preparation of the grounds, the liberal prizes given to the military companies, the bringing of the Chicago baseball club to Louisville and other heavy expenses cut so largely into the receipts that the net gains were not quite up to what had been hoped and expected, but, of course, at the same time yielded a very handsome net sum for the Home. But it had the effect of keeping alive the ardor of the Masonic brotherhood of Louisville, and to feel the magnificent support the people of Louisville were giving to this great institution under their care.

The writer, if he may be allowed to make a reference to himself, had had some military training and was an enthusiast on that subject, and at that time Major of the Louisville Legion, in all his experience before and since has never witnessed anything to compare with the splendor of the drills these magnificent Southern companies put up in Louisville on that noted day.

Notwithstanding the final results of that great celebration and other St. John's Day celebrations, and the enthusiasm of Louisville Masons, which was shared in largely by the general public for the Home, the management realized that the real problem to be solved was some permanent and fixed income for the support of the Home, which could be depended upon and sufficiently large to care for the increasing numbers that were daily seeking admission.

At the meeting of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky in October, 1875, a plan was submitted and an amendment to the Constitution of the Grand Lodge was offered, known as the "Bord Proposition", which proposed to issue a reasonable amount of bonds to complete the Home

and to provide for the support, at least in part, of the immates.

It was proposed in this amendment to increase the dues of subordinate lodges fifty cents for each member of the lodge, and the Grand Lodge to guarantee the final payment of the bonds.

It was submitted to the lodges to vote upon, but was defeated by the following vote: in favor of the amendment, 174; against the amendment, 195; lodges not voting either way, 126. A majority of the lodges having refused to concur in the amendment, it was declared defeated.

It seemed that a crisis in the history of the Home had been reached, and the hearts and hopes of the friends of the institution were well nigh crushed. The bleak, unadorned and tenantless walls cried out in the hour of its distress, but the wail of the widow and the helpless orphan from all parts of our Commonwealth cried even louder, and was the strongest appeal that could be made to every true Masonic heart, and the founders and projectors of the enterprise would not give up in despair, but really seemed strengthened in their resolution that, come what may, no matter at what cost or at what sacrifice, under the guidance of a Divine Providence. as they believed, this splendid charity should not fail. resolved that, unfinished, it should not be a shame or a reproach. The men whose noble and generous impulses had planted this great work resolved that it should be completed and stand as an imperishable monument to Masonic benevolence and charity, and a blessing to the thousands of homeless children who, by an afflicting Providence, might be compelled to seek its fostering care.

Though dismayed and discouraged for a time at the defeat or the amendment proposed to the Constitution, as has been stated, the friends of the Home in the Grand Lodge did not give up, and after much thought and deliberation and conference with the strongest men of the Grand Lodge who favored the Home, another amendment to the Constitution was prepared, proposing to levy an assessment of \$1 upon each Mason in Kentucky for a period of five years. The emendment was authorized by the Grand Lodge to be submitted to a vote of the subordinate lodges, which vote was ordered to be taken on St. John's Day, December 27, 1876, with a further provision that lodges which did not vote or refused to vote should be counted in the affirmative.

During the interim the friends of the Home, as well as those who opposed the amendment, were active. The meeting of the Grand Lodge in October, 1877, when this amendment was to be acted upon by the Grand Lodge, was the most memorable session of that Grand Many of the lodges had Body in all of its 113 years of history. instructed their representatives how to vote on the amendment; many in favor of it and many against it, while a large number of representatives came from their lodges without instructions and suthorized to vote as their judgment at the time might be deemed to be While the vote was being taken in the Grand Lodge wisest and best. and the call of the lodges proceeded, there was intense excitement Some men for and that almost demoralized that dignified body. against the amendment left their seats and crowded the aisles and openly electioneered for or against the amendment as their preference moved them, and the Grand Master's gavel, at least for once in the history of the Grand Lodge, seemed to lose its power and obedience. And thus the call of lodges proceeded. The friends of the Home, buoyed up and confident, and its enemies, as we had to call them, seemingly equally confident, anxiously waited, and when the voting was finally concluded and the amendment declared to be adopted, nothing could quiet the jubilant friends of the Home, whose hopes and prayers were so splendidly answered.

Many thrilling incidents occurred during this call of the lodges.

Many representatives took advantage in answering for their lodges

to make an explanation of their vote "aye" or "nay", as the case

might be. One notable incident I can not refrain from giving here.

A representative of one of the mountain lodges, a tall, over six-foot

mountaineer, dark complexion, piercing black eyes and long black

hair, sprinkled with a little silver gray, who was known to be an

ardent friend of the Home, when his lodge was called to vote he

arose, towering nearly up to the ceiling, as it looked, and said:

"Most Worshipful Grand Master, Lodge No. _____ votes aye. Most Worship
ful Grand Master, I represent a people that are poor, but we favor

this Home for our widows and orphans. At best we live on fat meat

and cornbread, but rather than have this Home fail, me and my friends

would rather knock off the fat meat and live on cornbread."

This magnificent utterance, delivered with pathos in a trembling voice, after a moment or two you could have heard a pin drop in the audience, and it looked as though the next eight or ten votes no representative had the nerve to vote anything but "aye". After

the Grand Lodge adjourned I said to this brother:

"My brother, you this day made the greatest speech that was ever made in the Grand Lodge on any occasion, for I think you helped save the Home".

Well, the amendment carried, out the end had not been reached. The Home had many dark and gloomy days yet to pass through. At this time the affiliated Masons of Kentucky numbered 21,000. A prejudice had been raised against the Home on the trumped-up and unfounded charge that it was a "Louis ville Institution", and that the Grand Lodge was seeking to force upon the Craft throughout the State a tax against their will to support a Louisville institution, and in consequence quite a large number of lodges surrendered their charter, and between three and four thousand Masons demitted from the order during the year, the result in 1878 showing that during the Masonic year the strength of the Craft had diminished in membership down to about 17,000. In the meantime the management of the Home, under its magnificent Board of Directors, went on courageously and quietly in the even tenor of their way, sheltering the destitute widow and orphan from all parts of the State, and soon the ungenerous charge that the Home was a local institution died of its own accord. And little by little at first, this splendid charity became the pride of all the Masons of Kentucky, and so on no man could be found who did not want to be counted among its friends and champions.

How the sacred object of the Home has been carried out in the years that have passed since, Masons of today of Kentucky, look

around you! From low water mark in 1878 of 17,000 Masons, today more than 42,000 good men and true lovers of the Home, who are proud of its splendid achievements.

In these reminiscences I have tried to give something of the early his tory and ups and downs and vicissitudes of the Masonic Widows and Orphans' Home, believing that the Masons of the present generation would find these sketches both interesting and helpful, and perhaps give them information which many of them will be glad to have, and which had not been known to them heretofore. And if they have served that purpose the writer is more than repaid for any time and thought that has been given to their preparation. I am now concluding this series of reminiscences by giving one of the most interesting incidents that ever occurred in the history of the Home.

During the early days of the Home, after it had been well established and became known throughout the Masonic world generally, the greatest American tragedian, Mr. Edwin Booth, was playing an engagement here in Louisville at the old Louisville Theater on the corner of Fourth and Green streets, where the Courier Journal building stands. Mr. Booth was a Mason, and he had heard of the Masonic Widows and Orphans' Home of Kentucky as a pioneer institution of its kind in the world. A prominent and wealthy and distinguished Mason of Louisville tendered Mr. Booth a breakfast, to which a number of friends had been invited to meet Mr. Booth, the writer being honored with an invitation to be one of them. The Home was incidentally talked about, and Mr. Booth expressed a desire to visit

it if he could be allowed to do so. The board was only too well pleased to accord this privilege and pleasure to Mr. Booth, and, in company with most of the board, he visited the institution one afternoon.

There were then in the Home about 125 children. They were all in their Sunday clothes and made to look sweet and pretty for this Mr. Booth was introduced to them by Mr. T. L. Jefferson, who was at that time President of the board, and, very much to the disappointment of the children, Mr. Booth did not undertake to recite anything, as they thought he might, but after the children had finished their program, songs and recitations, which seemed to interest and please him very much, he arose in a modest and quiet way and thanked them for the entertainment and congratulated them on the excellence of their efforts, and told them that he would never forget his visit to the Masonic Home of Kentucky; that what he had seen was an inspiration to him, and that he was prouder than ever before of belonging to the great order that founded and supported an institution for the care of the distressed widow and helpless orphan of our deceased brethren.

The whole ceremony was brief and simple, but one never to be forgotten, and the writer looks back upon it as one of those being present at the time and having the honor and the pleasure of meeting Mr. Booth personally, in a way, one of the bright spots in his memory; and for long days afterward, among the children who were old enough to understand the compliment of his visit, it furnished a theme for talk as well as encouragement to the Board of Directors to continue their efforts in the notile cause in which they were enlisted.

THE OLD MASONS' HOME OF KENTUCKY SHEEBYVILLE.

At the October 1894 session of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, F.& A. M., Past Grand Master J. Speed Smith, of Richmond, Ky., offered the following resolution, which was adopted;

"WHEREAS, The one hundredth anniversary of the establishment of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky - the first west of the Alleghenies - will occur in 1900; and

RESOLVED, That the Grand Master appoint a committee of five who shall formulate and present to the Grand Lodge, at its next session, for its approval, a plan for the proper celebration of our Masonic centennial."

The Committee appointed by the Grand Master consisted of J. Speed Smith, James E. Wilhelm, Isaac P. Gould, Samuel W. Hager, Philip E. Kemp, and James W. Station.

The real object of the resolution for the appointment of this committee, as was explained at the time by the maker of the resoulution, was to inaugurate a plan and create an organization to build and endow a home for the aged, indigent Masons of Kentucky. At the next session of the Grand Lodge this committee reported that it had obtained pledges for \$12,636.75 toward the necessary fund. With this report before it the Grand Lodge appointed J. Speed Smith to solicit subscriptions for the proposed home and to collect the same.

The Home is incorporated, and to insure the supervision of its affairs by the Masonic Grand Bodies the ex officio directors

warden, Grand Junior Warden, Grand Treasurer and Grand Secretary of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, the Grand High Priest and Deputy Grand High Priest of the Grand Chapter, and the Grand Commander of the Grand Commandery, Knights Templar. The Grand Lodge owning a majority of the life memberships, names the other directors.

This Home is Speed Smith's monument, and of him his loving and life long friend - Past Grand Master Robert C. Burnam, says:

"John Speed Smith, Jr., probably the most distinguished Mason who ever presided over Richmond Lodge No. 25, was born at the country home of his parents, "Castle Union", in Madison County, August 23, He was descended on both sides from the best stock fur-1845. nished Kentucky from the older States. His father, after whom he was mamed, had served both as Master of his Lodge and as Grand Master of the State. His career is fully given in one of the earlier sketches of this volume. His mother was the daughter of General Green Clay, whose name is familiar to all students of Kentucky history. Educated in the schools of his County and at Transylvania University with youths like unto himself he was always one of the most attractive of men. In his early life he followed agricultural pursuits. He inherited the home of his parents, "Castle Union", and here with his wife, who was Miss Mary Barrett, the old-fashioned welcome greeted all who came. The memory of such homes will ever live in the recollection of

those who were fortunate enough to have enjoyed their hospitality. Later Captain Smith(acquiring his title by reason of his service. in the State militia) removed to Richmond for the purpose of educating his children. He was for a while associated with the Madison National Bank, afterwards he was in the service of both his Country and State. He was representative from his County in the Kentucky Legislature, serving with credit to himself and his people. He was also clerk of that body during the trying session when the famous Hunter-Blackburn contest was on. His public life. however, was not that which endears his memory to his friends and the craft, but his attractive personality and the work accomplished for the craft by him. His Masonic record taken from the back of an apron worn by him is as follows: Made a Master Mason in Richmond Lodge No. 25 September 10, 1866; made a Royal Arch Mason in Richmond Chapter No. 16 May 10, 1867; created a Templar in Richmond Commandery No. 19 June 18, 1881: elected Master of Richmond Lodge No. 25 December, 1886; elected High Priest of Richmond Chapter No. 16 September 20,1887: elected Eminent Commander of Richmond Commandery April 17, 1892; elected Grand Master of Kentucky Free and Accepted Masons October 17, 1892: elected Grand High Priest of Grand Chapter October 17, 1899; elected Grand Prelate of Grand Commandery of Kentucky May 18, 1899; made Grand Lodge Agent of "The Centennial Fund" October 18, 1894; made a Noble of Kosair Temple, A. A. O. M. S., November 26, 1893; elected president of the "Masonic Veterans of Kentucky" October 17, 1898. This is the story in brief of his Masonic career. He was for years one of

the most prominent and influential members of the various Grand His coursel was ever wise and conservative. More to him than to all others is due the beautiful Temple, where from week to week the various branches of the Order meet in our city. the charity on which his fame rests is "The Old Masons' Home" located at Shelbyville. He it was who introduced the resolution establishing it, and although in failing health he traveled over the State seeming pledges amounting to \$50,000 for the purchasing of grounds and the erection of suitable buildings. Today its sheltering walls protect many aged and infirm who have almost finished life's journey. When they shall have crossed the river. others will take their places. Both the Grand Chapter and Grand Lodge of Kentucky have provided for the care of the immates of this home by a per capita assessment on the craft. Unfortunately Captain Smith did not live to see this monument to his work and worth completed, but like Hirem of old, died leaving his design to other hands to finish.

Death takes us by surprise and stays our hurrying feet; The great design unfinished lies, Our lives are incomplete. But in the dark unknown Perfect their circles seem, Even as a bridge's arch of stone Is rounded in the streems.

He was once truly characterized "The St. John" of Richmond Commandery because he was the most beloved of all. He died February 1, 1900, in his fifty-fifth year and was buried with Templar honors, the officers of the Grand Commandery officiating. His grave is marked by a plain granite rock, and those who knew him

"will soon have passed away, but the influence of his example and the work performed by him for the craft will surely endure for generations."

Past Grand Master Howard Royal French, a member of 1st. Sterling Lodge, on September 11, 1917, died at his home in Mt. Sterling, Ky. He was born August 15, 1847, in Frince Milliam County, Virginia, and was a graduate of the Columbian Law School at Washington City.

During a long and useful life he filled stations of honor and trust under both the Federal and State governments; he was Captain in the Second Aentucky State Guard; for more than twenty years prominently connected with the banks of his home town, and closely identified with the educational interests of his county; he was Jenior Warden of the Protestant Episcopal Church. In Mt. Sterling Louge he was always the arbiter called upon to settle questions of Masonic law and propriety. In 1883 he was made Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, F. & ... M., and his administration was characterized by learning, gentleness am firmness. He was for years, and at the time of his death, President of the Old Masons' Home. In 1882 he was Grand Migh Friest, and was Grand Secretary of the Orand Chapter when the end came.

Howard French did well whatever he was called upon to do; he was a courtly Christian gentleman, a true Mason, a faithful friend, a courageous patriot. He died as he had expressed the wish to die - while in full possession of his mental and physical faculties, quickly and at home. God arswers the prayers of the

righteous. To him death was but

"That Golden Mey

That opes the Palace of Aternity"

The fureral honors so justly his due were lovingly paid him by his associate Past Jrana Masters, by the officers of the Grand Lodge and by a large concourse of Masons from all parts of Mentucky, who on September 14, with bowed heads, with heavy hearts and with loving hands, placed his lifeless body gently in the lap of Mother Earth.

EDUCATIONAL WORK OF THE GRAND LODGE.

The first effort on the part of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky to provide for the education and support of the destitute children of Masonic fathers was in 1840, when upon motion of John McCalla, of Lexington Lodge No. 1, a committee was appointed to make application to the next Legislature of Kentucky for a charter, incorporating the Grand Lodge of Kentucky with power to hold property sufficient for an orphan asylum and school, in addition to its Grand Lodge.

This committee - composed of John McCalla, Lexington No. 1;

E. A. Turpin, Tadmor No. 108; W. S. Pilcher, Clark No. 51; Wm.

Brown, Jr., Mt. Vernon No. 14 (afterward Grand Master), and L. M.

Cox, Lincoln No. 60 (afterward Grand Master) - was charged with

ascertaining the expediency and wisdom of establishing and endowing

at the expense of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, aided by donations

from individuals and subordinate lodges, a seminary of learning,

where the orphans of Masons should be reared and educated, and

taught to practice healthy labor in agriculture and mechanic arts,

in addition to a mathematical and English education. The site

to contain not less than 200 acres, with buildings suitable for

the accommodation of not exceeding 100 boys and 50 girls, but

capable of being enlarged as circumstances might require.

This committee, at the session of 1841, reported the securement of the charter, and the Grand Lodge directed the committee to submit to and inquire of the subordine te lodges whether or not they were in favor of the adoption of any general system of education by the Grand Lodge, the plan preferred by them, and the financial support they were willing to give. The committee was like-

wise directed to ascertain the number of children eligible to such aid. In 1842 the committee was granted further time. In 1843 the Grand Lodge restricted the proposed school to the destitute children and orphans of Masons, and accessible only to boys over twelve years of age.

In 1844 the committee reported that a site at Greensburg, Ky., had been offered, the property being a tract of 300 acres of land, of tolerable fertility, a healthy location, and upon it a brick building, 85 by 40 feet, two exteries high. That the property could be had for \$3,500, \$500 of which the Greensburg Lodge would provide.

Owensboro and Springfield each expressed deep interest in the enterprise, and suggested eligible sites, but made no pledge for any assistance. The lodge and chapter at Richmond pledged \$150 a year for three years to the proposed institution, and through the activity of the lodges at Louisville the trustees of Funk Seminary, at LaGrange, Oldham county, Ky., offered the Grand Lodge their plant consisting of two town lots, a new seminary building, and an endowment fund of \$6,000, upon condition the Grand Lodge should establish and maintain thereon an efficient school to which the boys of Oldham county might be sent as pay pupils.

November 7, 1844, the Masonic College of Kentucky was opened at LaGrange under the guidance of competent instructors, with suitable equipment in books, maps and school supplies, with a fund of \$10,855 for its support, and with 127 pupils enrolled.

In 1845 the Grand Lodge, as an endowment fund, pledged the sum

of \$600 a year for the period of twenty years. At the annual communication of the Grand Lodge in 1846 it was reported that the school had prospered beyond the expectations of its most sanguine friends. The student body numbered 203, coming from twenty counties in Kentucky, from nine different States in the Union, and from two foreign countries. Two brick buildings had been added, a cupulo had been put upon the college building, extensive philosophical and chemical apparatus had been acquired, and the running expenses of the institution had been met. The students were placed to board in private families instead of being gathered into a dormitory. The faculty consisted of a professor of intellectual and moral philosophy and of political economy, a professor of mathematics and natural science, a professor of modern languages and literature, an adjunct professor of mathematics and preparatory department, and an adjunct professor of ancient languages and preparatory department.

At the end of the third year many of the subordinate lodges being unable to pay the funds subscribed by them to the endowment, were released therefrom, which greatly straitened the college in its finances, and the trustees submitted to the Grand Lodge the propriety of taking steps to avert the consequences likely to result from the withdrawal of their scholarships on the part of the subordinate lodges. The Grand Lodge recommended to all the lodges the propriety of making such annual donations as they felt willing and able. Grand Master Charles Tilden, in his annual address in 1849, recommended that every Mason in Kentucky voluntarily contribute 50 cents a year to the fund, by which means the success of the

college would be assured, and without which aid the college, though yielding abundant cause of congratulation for its remarkable success, would not be able financially to sustain itself.

In 1850 the prevalence of cholers hampered the prosperity of the institution and interfered with its proper management. During that year the student roll showed 72 names, 20 of whom were beneficiaries, the whole number of beneficiaries from the beginning being 41.

In 1851 the Grand Lodge directed the trustees to employ one teacher, and only one, who should take the fees from the pupils in attendance as his salary and the salaries of such assistants as he might employ, and the trustees were instructed to cancel the bonds of the subordinate lodges and of individuals who had subscribed for scholarships, and a committee was appointed to employ counsel learned in the law to investigate and report to them the connection of the Grand Lodge with LaGrange University and Funk Seminary, and the legal liability growing out of the semmection, with full power of the Grand Lodge to liquidate the debts incurred by the university and the seminary.

In September, 1852, the trustees, expressing the wish to keep up a school in Funk Seminary, which would accord with the design of the testator, William M. Funk, and the undertaking of the Grand Lodge, with as little expense as possible, rented the buildings and equipment, but on April:14, 1853, the lesses was released from his contract and the institution continued by the trustees, which action upon their part was, at the next session of the Grand Lodge, approved.

The school at LaGrange being restricted to boys, the Grand Lodge in 1852 authorized the Grand Master to select the orphan daughter of some worthy deceased brother and send her for one year to the Kentucky Female Orphan School at Midway, but the Grand Master, at the communication of 1853, reported that after some difficulty he had found a girl of suitable age eligible to the charity, but her mother had been unwilling to be separated from her daughter, and the proffered help was declined.

In 1856 the Committee on Education reported to the Grand Lodge that a very large number of indigent children, mostly orphans of deceased Masons, were receiving a liberal education in many of the best schools at the direction and at the expense of the subordinate lodges.

In 1857 the trus tees of the Masonic College at LaGrange made repairs to the property amounting to \$972.51, liquidated every demand outstanding, and leased the property to Dr. O. L. Leonard, of Louisville, at a nominal rent, for the conduct of a school for both boys and girls, am which in September of that year opened with forty students and prospects of success, but after two years the school had run down, the property fallen into disrepair, and the Grand Lodge committee placed it in charge of Rev. John Trimble, expended \$300 in repairs, but withdrew the Grand Lodge from any connection with the conduct of the school.

In 1860 the Grand Lodge was offered and accepted the privilege of entering in the Kentucky School of Medicine at Louisville, free of charge for tuition, the sons of Masons who had not sufficient money to pay the tuition.

In 1861 the Committee on Education reported they had made further and permanent repairs on the college buildings and supplied the necessary furniture, which would be paid for by the sale of lots near LaGrange belonging to the Grand Lodge, but expressed the fear that "without some relief the troubles in which our country is involved will force a suspension of the exercises in the university".

Through the sad influence of the Civil War the school was for a term closed, but opened in 1862 under the guidance of Past Master Rob Morris, and in 1863 the subordinate lodges of the State were called upon for done tions to make repairs and provide the necessary apparatus for giving instructions. The soldiers had destroyed the fences, midnight prowlers had broken open the doors and carried away everything that was loose, but the school was again opened and put in charge of Rev. D. W. Graves, with competent assistants, who built the school up to 90 pupils, but gave up the effort, and was succeeded by Henry C. Hodges, who in turn gave it up to W. C. Jones.

In 1869 the Grand Lodge appointed a committee to act with the trustees of the college to "examine fully the affairs of the college property, and devise some means to sell, give or put it into some shape or other, whereby this Grand Lodge may be either relieved of its burden and oversight, or caused to rejoice in its prosperity." The matter having assumed simply a legal form for the protection of the Grand Lodge in its acquisition of the property under the provision of the Funk will, Grand Master Charles Eginton, as attorney for the Grand Lodge, in 1871 made a final settlement of the whole matter, and the Masonic College at

LaGrange passed into his tory.

On January 1, 1872, the Masonic Home school was opened, which from that day until the present time has continued with unabated success.

On October 20, 1915, upon motion of Past Grand Master James Garnett, the Grand Lodge appropriated the income of \$15,000 per year and the additional sum of \$1,000 per year for ten years for paying the expense of securing additional higher and vocational education and training for the boys and girls who have graduated from the Home, and the carrying out of the provision was intrusted to a committee of five, headed by Past Grand Master Garnett, who conceived the idea, and who, with his associates, will open new and wider fields of learning and of usefulness to the little ones whose nurture and whose training has been intrusted to the big warm heart of Kentucky Masonry.

LEXINGTON LODGE NO. 1

LEXINGTON, FAYETTE CO., Ky.

Lexington Lodge, No. 1 was chartered by the Grand Lodge of Virginia November 17, 1788, as Lexington Lodge No. 25.

At that time Lexington was but eight years old and Kentucky part of the "Wilderness" from which the pioneers were to carve out sovereign states.

The first three officers named in the charter, were Richard Clough Anderson, John Fowler and Green Clay, from Louisville, Richmond and Lexington respectively and prominent in all public affairs.

The original charter is still in possession of Lexington Lodge, reads,

"To all and every to whose knowledge these presents shall come Greeting: Whereas it hath been duly represented that in the district of Kentucky in the Commonwealth of Virginia there reside a number of the brethren of the Society of free Masons whose situation is too remote from any regular lodge to attend the meetings thereof, and who, desirous of being congregated into a Regular Lodge and it appearing to be for the good and interest of masonry that the said Brethren should be encouraged and enabled to proceed and work in a Lawful Lodge.

Know ye that we, Edmund Randolph Esq. Grand Master of the Ancient and Honorable society of free Masons within the Commonwealth aforesaid by the advice and consent of the Grand Lodge of Virginia

Do hereby constitute and appoint the worshipful Brethren Richard Clough Anderson, John Fowler and Green Clay together with all such other Brethren as may be admitted to associate with them to be a just, lawful and regular lodge of Free Masons by the name, title and designation of the Lexington Lodge No. 25, hereby appointing and ordaining all regular lodges to hold, respect and acknowledge them as such granting to the Brethren aforesaid full power and authority to Convene in a Regular Lodge to enter and receive Apprentices, pass Fellowcrafts and Raise Master Masons agreeably to the Book of Constitution, the Laws of the Grand Lodge of Virginia and the known and established rules of Ancient Masonry and no otherwise.

Also to chuse and elect a Master Wardens and other officers annually at such time or times as to them shall seem meet and convenient and exact from their members such composition as they shall judge necessary for the relief of their Brethren in Distress, the support of their Lodge and contribution towards the Grand Charity, to record in their books this present Charter, and their whole acts and proceedings from time to time as they occur, all which they are holden and engaged to observe and the Brethren aforesaid are hereby engaged not to desert their said Lodge thus constituted nor form themselves into separate meetings without the consent of their Master and Wardens for the time being and the Brethren aforesaid by authority hereof doth acknowledge and recognize the Gram Lodge and Gram Master of Virginia as their superior, and shall obey all institutions as they may have receive

or hereafter shall receive from them and Lastly may be enjoined to correspond with the Grand Lodge and to attend the meetings thereof by their Masters and Wardens or their proxies being Master Masons and members of their said Lodge.

Given under the Seal of the Grand Lodge at Richmond the 17th day of November A. L. 1788, and signed by our Senior Grand Warden in the absence of the Grand Master.

Alex Montgomery D. G. M. Wm Waddell G. Secy.

The petition of the Kentucky Masons was presented by Gen. Green Clay, who, with Capt. Fowler, or Revolutionary fame, were representatives that year to the Virginia Assembly that voted on the Federal Constitution, while Col. Richard Clough Anderson was at the same time a member of the Danville Convention that was attempting to secure statehood for Kentucky.

The Charter members are not all known, as prior to 1822, all the minute books and other lodge records of No. 1 have been destroyed by fire or the ravages of war. Only two returns were ever made to the Virginia Grand Lodge, those of 1794 and 1799. Miscellaneous documents prior to 1800 give some additional information, but it must always be an unsettled question as to the entire membership for the first half dozen or more years.

The Grand Lodge of Kentucky was formed in Lexington October 16, 1800. The acts of this first Convention, presided over by Jno. Hawkins of Georgetown 46, were confirmed by Virginia Dec. 11,1800. In the meanwhile a second convention was held and Grand Lodge

officers formally elected Oct. 16-17, William Murray at that time a resident of Frankfort, and affiliated with Hiram Lodge, being chosen first Grand Master and Alexander MeGregor his deputy.

The Seal of Lexington Lodge retained as the Grand Lodge Seal until a new one could be chosen. The Grand Lodge headquarters remained in Lexington until 1858 when they were removed to Louisville. The first "Grand Lodge Hall", was no other than the log cabin Masonic Hall in which Lexington Lodge met on the north east corner of Walnut and Short streets and which had been presented in fee to the Trustees of the lodge by William Murray in 1795 when he moved to Frankfort. This hall had just been enlarged and improved the previous year and the occasion celebrated by a great Masonic jollification.

June 1, 1824 the corner stone of the Grand Lodge Hall was laid on Main street. Matthew Kennedy, a member of the lodge, was its architect and it was finished and dedicated October 26, 1826.

Scarcely ten years elapsed, before the structure was burned to the ground and the next year, 1837, Lexington Eodge tendered her lot for a building site. She had lost her original Kentucky charter and many valuable records in the fire and was determined to do all in her power to aid in rebuilding. This time the offer, conditioned upon Lexington Lodge retaining quarters in the Temple free of charge, was accepted. The cornerstone was laid July 3, 1840. In the meanwhile the Grand Lodge usually met in Lexington Lodge Hall. The Trustees of Lexington Lodge conveyed their Walnut strest lot to the Grand Lodge through Grand Master Geo. Breckin-ridge, for a period of 100 years lease conditioned as above

mentioned. The following year Sept. 1 the new Temple was dedicated.

In May 1825, General LaFayette for whom the county was named, paid a visit to Lexington and the Masons took him in charge, having many fetes in his honor, it is still one of the noted local historic items of interest. Lexington Lodge still preserves a sash LaFayette is said to have worn.

The lodge met for the last time in Walnut Street Grand Hall
June 17, 1887, moving to Odd Fellows Hall on Main Street and
thence on March 22, 1888, to the Lancaster building where it
celebrated its centennial the following Nov. 17. In 1894 the
quarters were moved to the Skillman building on Short street near
Broadway but in 1902 returned to the Lancaster building.

November 17, 1913, The Grand Master laid the corner stone of the new Masonic temple which was dedicated December 29th, 1916. The new temple represents an expenditure of \$40,000, and is one of the best equipped in the State.

In 1915 Lexington Lodge reported 369 active members and upon her rolls of membership are to be found many men of distinction not only in Masonry, but in all the walks of life which are inviting to men of culture, of courage, of capacity, among them are to be mentioned:

Felix Grundy who represented Washington County in the Convention which formed the second constitution for Kentucky, member of Kentucky Legislature; Judge of Kentucky Court of Appeals; leader of the bar at Nashville, Tenn.; Representative in Congress; United States Senator; Attorney General of United States under President

pr. Basil Duke educated in the medical college of Baltimore, moved to Lexington and became a most eminent physician, married a daughter of Col. Thomas Marshall. A man of great intellect and of a benevolent character which endeared him to the people.

Dr. Lewis Marshall, President of Transylvania University and of Washington-Lee University.

Edmund Bullock, Speaker of Mentucky House of Representatives 1796-97-98.

Jesse Bledsoe, member of Kentucky Legislature and of Kentucky Senate. Secretary of State under Gov. Scott, member of United States Senate, Judge of Fayette Circuit Court, professor of law in Transylvania University, and a man of great forensic ability.

Benjamin Graves, represented Fayette County a number of years in the Legislature. Among the first to enter the volunteer service in the War of 1812, was made a Major in Col. Lewis' Regiment, proved a gallant officer and was killed in the battle of the river Raisin.

John McKinney, the first school teacher ever in Fayette County, was one of the members of the convention that formed the first constitution of Kentucky, and was a member of the first Legislature of Kentucky. He was known as Wild Cat McKinney, the sobriquet being gained by reason of his fight with a wild cat in 1783 in which with his maked hands he choked the beast to death.

Nathaniel Hart. The law student of his brother-in-law Henry Clay. Commanded the Lexington Light Infantry in the War of 1812. At the battle of Raisin January 22, 1813, commanded his Company and received a wound and taken prisoner. Upon his

recovery started from Raisin on horseback for his home but proceeded only a short distance when killed by the Indians. For him Hart County, Kentucky, was named.

Major William T. Barry, a Major of Kentucky troops in Mar of 1812. Represented Fayette County in State Senate 1817-21.Lieut-Tovernor 1820-1824. A member of President Jackson's Cabinet as Post Master General. In 1835 appointed by the President as Minister to Spain. A great lawyer and Chief Justice of Court of Appeals at time of Old Court and New Court controversy. He being of the New Court.

Chas. A. Wickliffe, a member of the Kentucky Legislature and Speaker of the House. An aid to Gen. Caldwell and did valuable service at the battle of the Thames. Was ten years a member of Congress. Elected Lieut-Governor in 1836 and upon the death of Governor Clark became Governor Oct. 5, 1839. Post Master General under President Tyler. In 1845 sent by President Polk on a secret mission to Texas. A member of the convention that wrote the third constitution of Kentucky.

Rev. Dr. Robert J. Breckinridge who was Grand Senior Warden in 1828-29 and who was one of the most distinguished scholars and theologians of America. He had much to do with making possible the public school system of Kentucky. Was a man of wide influence in the politics of the State and Nation and largely responsible for keeping the State of Kentucky from joining the Confederate Secession. A pulpit crator of great force and on the hustings the inferior of few men on this continent.

Capt. Levi Todd, no less distinguished as an Indian fighter,

than his brothers Capt. Robert and Col. John Todd. He was at the Battle of Blue Lick and assisted in the attack on Chillecothe. As a member of the Danville Conventions, Trustee of, Lexington and County Clerk, his was a very active and useful life to the community.

Daniel Bradford, who held every office in the gift of the craft and was official printer to the Grand Lodge for many years. Many civil offices fell to his share also but he was perhaps best known as editor of his father's celebrated "Gazette", the first newspaper west of the Alleghenies. He was Grand Master 1815-16.

Dr. James Overton, one of the promoters of the "Society for the Promotion of Useful Knowledge and aid to General Winchester in War of 1812."

Hugh Logan, a member of the first court ever held in Kentucky which was for Lincoln County and organized at Harrodsburg January 16. 1781.

Gideon Shryock, the celebrated architect of the old state capitol at Frankfort, Morrison Chapel at Lexington and the old Louis ville Courthouse.

Henry Clay, born in Hanover County, Virginia, April 12, 1777, the son of a Baptist Minister. In 1797 he moved to Lexington, Ky. In 1799 his opposition to the Alien & Sedition Law won him the title of "The Great Commoner". In 1803 he represented Fayette County in the State Legislature. In 1806 he successfully defended Aaron Burr. In the same year was elected to fill a vacancy in the U.S. Senate. In 1807 again represented Fayette County in State Legislature and was chosen Speaker of the House. In 1808

fought a duel with Humphrey Marshall. In 1809 elected to fill a vacancy in U. S. Senate. From 1811 to 1825, with the exception of 2 years voluntary retirement, was a member of the U. S. Congress and each time its presiding officer. In 1821 prepared and secured the passage of the Missouri Compromise Bill. Refused a seat in the cabinet of President Monroe. In 1824 defeated for the Presidency of the United States by John Quincy Adams, who called him to his cabinet as Secretary of State. In 1831 elected to United States Senate. In 1832 defeated for the Presidency by Andrew Jackson by reason of the Anti-Masonic issue. In 1836 re-elected to United States Senate. In 1844 an unsuccessful candidate for President against James K. Polk. In 1848 returned to United States Senate. On June 29, 1852 died in Washington City the most beloved man in the public life of America.

Col. Richard Clough Anderson, in charge of the military forces at Louisville and Surveyor of the Kentucky District in 1798. He was a personal friend of Washington. Anderson county bears his name.?

Green Clay, young Virginia surveyor and afterward famous as a General in the War of 1812. He helped frame the Kentucky Constitution of 1799 and was Speaker of the Kentucky House. Clay county was named for him.

Capt. John Fowler, a Revolutionary soldier and promiment citizen of Lexington, being always for emost in every progressive activity.

Alexander McGregor, first Deputy Grand Master of Kentucky, one of the organizers of the "Lexington Emigration Society", and a member of the Danville convention.

Gen. Thos. Bodley, an old Indian campaigner and the first Circuit Clerk of Fayette, a position he held for a quarter of a century, one of the commissioners appointed by Gov. Garrard to restore the court records destroyed by the Court House fire January 31, 1803.

William Murray, the first Grand Master, was then active in Frankfort Masonry but had formerly been a member of Lexington Lodge and its Master in 1893. He was one of the foremost lawyers of his day and the second Attorney General of Kentucky.

Judge George M. Bibb, Grand Master. He was influential in political circles also, being Chief Justice of Kentucky, 1809, and again in 1827; U. S. Senator, 1811-14 and 1829-35; Chanceller of Louisville Chancery Court, which he resigned to become Secretary of the Treasury under Tyler. He then settled in the District of Columbia and was afterward Assistant Attorney General of the United States. He died April 14, 1859.

William Bobb was one of the early jailers of Fayette County, and Thomas Wallace a merchant.

Dr. Benjamin W. Dudley, noted in medical circles of the country as one of the foremost pioneers along certain lines of practice. He taught at Transylvania and his biography is given in "Pioneer Lithotomists of Kentucky", by Dr. A. H. Barkley, and in the Filson Publication on the Medical Faculty of Transylvania. Dr. Dudley once fought a singular duel with a medical colleague and brother Mason and after wounding him, saved his life. His opponent, Dr. W. H. Richardson, who had scarcely more than retired as Grand Master of Kentucky, was, curiously enough, not an original principal in the

controversy, but a second. Some students of the medical college, in search of material to dissect, dug up the body of an Irishman, buried in the Baptist graveyard. They were caught red handed but upon being tried it was found that they could only be fined one cent for trespass and taking away so much earth, as a dead body, in law, could not be considered private property.

Dr. Dudley defended his students while Dr. Drake was severe in his condemnation. This led to an intemperate exchange of words between the two, and Dr. Dudley, being insulted, challenged Drake to a duel after the custom of those days. Drake refused to fight, and his best friend, Dr. Richardson, formerly of Georgetown, was so humiliated he insisted on fighting in Drake's place.

For this duel both parties were suspended by the Grand Lodge.

Henry Clay, after/Grand Master, brought about a reconciliation
and they were reinstated.

Col. Joseph Hamilton Daviess, for whom Daviess county was named, was the first western lawyer to appear before the Supreme Court of the United States, which he did in buckskin hunting costumes. He was an Indian fighter and noted lawyer, but is best remembered as one of the heroes of the War of 1812. He fell at at the battle of Tippecanoe while Grand Master of Kentucky, 1811. The following year Daviess Lodge No. 22, the second in Lexington, was organized in honor of his memory.

Robert Toad, one of the three commissioners that located the State Capitol at Frankfort and one of the two Senators from Fayette County in the first Senate of Kentucky in 1792, for a number of years Judge of the Circuit Court and the holder of

ton branch of the Bank of Kentucky from its establishment until his death, July 16, 1849. He was one of the commission appointed by Governor Garrard in 1803, to restore the burned county records.

John Jordan, Jr., Grand Master in 1803, the third Post Master of Lexington under appointment from President Jackson, and died in office, September 9, 1813.

James Morrison, Grand Master 1801-2. Quarter-master General in army of the Revolutionary War. President of the Convention that formed the Grand Lodge in 1800 and member of Kentucky Legislature in 1797.

Samuel McDowell, who acted as president of nearly all the conventions seeking the separation from Virginia, and Judge of the District Court.

John Brown, first United States Senator from Kentucky.

James Brown, first Secretary of State of Kentucky.

Daniel Weisiger, helped to lay off the city of Frankfort, Ky.; one of the commission to contract for and superintend the building of the fourth State House in Kentucky, and a member of the first directorate of the Bank of Kentucky.

advocate at the bar had but few equals in the State. A member of the convention in 1799 that formed the constitution of Kentucky. Secretary of State of Kentucky and member of Congress. A Judge of the Kentucky Court of Appeals and a member of the United States Senate, appointed by the President Commissioner to adjust the claims of citizens of the United States against Mexico. First

President of Kentucky Historical Society.

John J. Crittenden, Chief Justice of Kentucky Court of Appeals; United States Senator; Secretary of Treasury Department and Assistant Attorney General of the United States.

Phillip Swigert, one of the Commissioners to determine plan and to build the eighth State House of Kentucky. Twenty-one years Grand Secretary of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky.

Dr. James Overton, member of Faculty of Transylvania University and Aide to General Winchester in the War of 1812.

himself as one of the Old Court leaders in cooperation with John J. Crittenden and in antagonism to John Rowan, Geo. M. Bibb, and Wm. T. Barry, all five of whom were men of national reputation and members of this Lodge.

James Trotter, one of the Commissioners appointed by Gov. Garrard to reclaim the burnt county records of Fayette County.

Samuel H. Woodson, Grand Master of Grand Lodge of Kentucky, and member of U. S. Congress.

John M. McCalla, Grand Master Grand Lodge of Kentucky; General in United States Army in War of 1812 and after the war United States Marshall for Kentucky.

Dr. Joseph Livingston Maxwell, served in the Mexican and Civil Wars as Surgeon with rank of Major.

Derrick Warner, Grand Master.

Dr. Wm. S. Chipley, professor of Medicine in Transylvania University, and in 1855 placed in charge of the Asylum for the insane.

- w. C. r. Breckinridge, the silver tongued orator of the South; member of the United States Congress; a man of the widest diversity of learning and culture. As orator, editor and lawyer, a man of national reputation.
- J. Soule Smith, Grand Master in 1887; as a newspaper writer under the non de plume Falcon he had a wide reputation for charming style; a man of ripe scholarship and a great Masonic ritualist.

Lexington Lodge has furnished the following Grand Masters of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky:

James Morrison.

John Jordan, Jr.

George M. Bibb.

Joseph H. Daviess.

Daniel Bradford.

Thomas Bodley.

Samuel H. Woodson.

Henry Clay.

John M. McCalla.

Derrick Warner.

- G. D. Buckmer.
- J. Soule Smith.

William Holloway elected Grand Master while a member of Richmind Lodge No. 25, was in later life an affiliate of this Lodge.

Of the present active membership G. Allison Holland and Guy T. Johnson take prominent stand in the councils of the Grand Lodge and do service upon its important committees.

MILITARY ROLL OF LOTOR OF LIGHT NO. 1.

Col. Junes Horrison Tourison Transplyania University, and for Jon Horrison Chapel is rated, pasyed in Teachevolutionary war, he was Master in 1794.

Pajos Plos. Hove, when of nevolutionary fame, Pastor 1798-6, Ben. Pros. Bod by, Nautor 1798, served to Maynes Indian Campaign. Captain Nevi Podd, Master 1881, was the hero of the hatthe

Objusting heri Todd, Master 1861, sub the hero of the Butthe of Blue Micke.

Sol. Jos. Hamilton Duries, laster 1810, was killed at the Buttle of Tippecance, bur of 1812, while Grand Juster of Hentucky. Caputain M. G. C. Hart was killed in War 1812.

General Am. Henry dought at the Battle of the Thomas Mar 1812. Gen. Am. Rogen served in Mar 1812.

Dajor Joseph kivingston Danuell was Surgeon in both Periosn and Civil wars.

Ten. John Foore Recalla, distinguished bingelf in the Mer of lolls on the Feather than Cafayetto violited Reminaton and was ententiated by Cerington Rodge Fo. 1, May 10, 1888.

Coptain John Peat, served through Memidan Jan and Mas Hoster, 1880, haping the countrations of the Most will by Jest of Alleganies.

Sol. Um. Lolles, State, Cliver Burry Metro, Sold L. Noll, and Lr. Soseph J. Chinn served in the lower mag.

The divil car elaimed way, when Tucher ass against ion and Greater against ion and

Jen. Roger J. Panson, Jen. J. C. Dreckinvidge, Jen. John Hunt, Longun, Col. J. C. Breckinvidge, Jm. Brane served Lith Forrest, J. J. Lebeter with Brechlaridge and James J. Duff with Ashby, while Dr. Carrett Lavis Backner, served the Union as burgeon of the Tavy, he was Druge Haster in 1868, Jr. H. J. Budley was Lungeon of 2nd., Kantucky Inflatory.

And not what the place elected of the and true have makently executed the ablancie to envelope one over passent the molitie.

and the domest of one of the first milkion the enem are incoming to doth the court blocks around Importation and The solutions about the court function, who collected mest of levisorton solve around the court function of the form of the true of the court solve around the court of the collected solve around the court of the collected solve around the co

Lagor Moger .. Jones, End., Lerbusky Infamory, New 188th., Walte C. James Brickery, Newvill as Instructor of Automatic Ridle on Staff of Cajor Aemendic commending the lith., Division.

Dujor Thompson 3. Slort, 1st., Limbtohy land try, no. 139th., United that a infuntry, in damps of amunicion train Soth,, Division.

Copisin S. A. Lost b. J., Repullar Party Control Depulment.
Captain Prederick W. Staples, commanding Company C 2nd.,
Louis Captain Row 160th., United Stable Table W.

Captein I. J. Enghes Durr, communities So. S inc., Newbooks,

Coptain Four R. Dausdill, White Couldness segmine and these Medical antillery, no. 1. There will are all constitute.

Lione. Lucling a labitum write . That a lack to a coope,

Dient. Lewrence). Mujmon, debb ., Indubry Maddon I amy. Diens. Rec. I. Amsh. Estima 12. One degratur Lawy.

Lieut. N. J. Frinchosé, Tritel átligne ogskar komp.

wieut. W. E. Willerson, Wattonel Ermy.

Lient. Chis. C. Jurr, Britis abotes hebical Reserve Corps.

U. R. U. Sm. Baluvin Respess, Fort Denfinin Rurvison.

C. A. D. John Dunk Drimes, " " " " "

O. R. C. Raymoné a. Scherer. " " "

O. A. O. Jeff. C. Jones, The Hard

O. A. O. Stunton winsey Torbey, " " "

Trivate R. Mard Covely, Michel Artillery Madional Lamy.

Lieut. John as Foll, United States Signal Corps.

Drivete R. J. Granneghen, Co. B., Lordnehg Signal Compe Sett., Sivision that the States was p.

Do such of "Paso wouldn't Doago has prosented a policional very identification oug to be form throughout the surface with the name of such suggested Torson and this insertiation on the newword aide, "In ouce of need notify werings on wedge all famington, ap., P. J. L.", with this is a Teago to welking eard adminished to the form acquain throughout the globe, which is printed in diglish, Tuench, Ibelian and sermon, who began such as the subject of the paid to the coage for the their services, here only a form heigh approximate the form to the coage for the Carcalon of their services, here of a few approximates

٠.

PARIS NO. 2.

PARIS BOURBON COUNTY, KY.

Paris Lodge No. 35 on the Virginia Register was one of the five lodges which organized the Grand Lodge of Kentucky in 1800. The two Grand Deacons were both mamed from this lodge. Thomas Hughes, Grand Senior Deacon and Nathaniel Williams, Grand Junior Deacon. At the convention of the Grand Lodge in February, 1801, Thomas Hughes, the Grand Senior Deacon was not present and at the October meeting naither of these deacons was present nor any representative from the Lodge. At the meeting in April, 1802, the following resolution was passed:

"It appearing that irregularities have been committed by the Paris Lodge No. 2, and there being no representatives at this time from that lodge, and that it was not represented at the last Grand Annual Communication, Ordered, That the said lodge, by its representatives, do appear here at the next Grand Annual Communication, and show cause why their charter should not be returned." At the October meeting 1802, the charter was returned, and Paris No. 2 was stricken from the roll of lodges.

August 31, 1809, Paris Union Lodge No. 16, at Paris, Ky., was granted charter, but this lodge became defunct August 30, 1836, its charter was restored August 26, 1839.

In 1863 Thomas Sadler, of this lodge, was elected Grand Master. He was born in Millersburg, Ky., April 21, 1813. He married Miss Mary E. Andrews, November 4, 1844, but no children were born to them. He was a hotel clerk in Paris in 1830. After his marriage

he became an auctioneer in Bourbon County. In 1867 he resided in Louisville, Ky., as a real estate agent and contractor. In 1870 he became a Minister in the "Second Advant Church" and died in that faith February 9, 1884, while on a health seeking visit to Florida; his remains were brought to Louisville and buried in Cave Hill Cemetery with Masonic honors.

October 19, 1871, the name and number of the lodge were changed to that of Paris No. 2 by which designation it is still known.

The lodge in 1916 reported 227 members.

GEORGETOWN LODGE NO. 3, GEORGETOWN, SCOTT Co., KY.

November 29, 1896, Georgetown Lodge No. 46 at Georgetown, Ky., was established by the Grand Lodge of Virginia.

September 8, 1800, Lexington Lodge No. 25, Lexington, Ky., Paris Lodge No. 35, Paris, Ky., Georgetown Lodge No. 46, Hiram Lodge No. 57, Frankfort, Ky., and Abraham Lodge U. D., Shelbyville, Ky., by their representatives met at Mason's Hall in the town of Lexington, Ky., elected John Hawkins of Georgetown Lodge No. 46 Chairman of the convention and passed the resolutions addressed to the Grand Lodge of Virginia which resulted in the establishment, agreeable to Masonic Constitution, of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, which was approved by the Grand Lodge of Virginia.

On October 16th, and 17th, 1800, in Lexington, Ky., was opened the first Grand Lodge of Kentucky, under which jurisdiction Georgetown Lodge No. 25 of the Grand Lodge of Virginia became Georgetown Lodge No. 3 of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky of which Cary L. Clarke of Georgetown Lodge No. 3 was elected the first Grand Junior Warden.

At the fifth semi annual communication of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, held at Lexington October 12-14, 1802, Georgetown Lodge was not represented. At the seventh semi annual communication of the Grand Lodge, October 11-13, 1803, the Lodge was cited to appear and answer charges of irregularity preferred against it, and at the Grand Lodge meeting in March 1804, the Lodge had its charter withdrawn by the Grand Lodge of Kentucky.

and the second of the second o

HIRAM LODGE NO. 4, FRANKFORT, FRANKLIN Co., KY.

The his tory of Hiram Lodge, No. 4, is almost co-extensive with that of the city itself, having its origin in a Military Lodge which had its Masonic home here some ten years before the birth of the present century, of which Nicholas Lafon, a Captain in the United States Army was Master. When this lodge passed away application was made to the Grand Lodge of Virginia for authority to organize a lodge to be permanently located in this city, and on the 17th of December, 1798, a dispensation was granted for that purpose by the Deputy Grand Master of that jurisdiction. On the 11th day of December, 1799, this new organization was granted a charter under the name of Frankfort Hiram, and numbered 57 on the roll of the Virginia Lodge.

In the convention which met at Lexington on the 8th of September, 1800, for the purpose of taking the preliminary steps towards the formation of a Grand Lodge, Hiram Lodge was represented by six delegates (nearly one-half the convention), and on the 17th of October, of the same year, was one of the five lodges which formed the Grand Lodge of Kentucky and gave to that body its first Grand Master - Most Worshipful Brother William Murray.

The first Master of the lodge, when organized under the Virginia dispensation, was Daniel Weisiger.

This lodge has firmished the Grand Lodge with five Grand Masters, several Grand Wardens, a Grand Secretary, a Grand Treasurer, numerous Grand Deacons, Grand Marshal, and Grand Senior Deacon.

William Murray, who was unanimously elected the first Grand Master, was Attorney-General of the State, and a bachelor. He was chairmen of the committee appointed by the Lexington Convention to draft an address to the Grand Lodge of Virginia, detailing the necessity for the formation of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, and drafted the first rules and regulations of the Grand Lodge. He died in 1805.

Col. John Allen was the next Grand Master who was a member of this lodge. He served from 1808 to 1811. When the war of 1812 broke out he recruited a regiment of Kentucky riflemen, went forth to fight the British and Indians, and was killed at the battle of the River Raisin.

Robert Johnston was Grand Master in 1828-9. The records of this lodge show that he was an active, zealous member, but removed to one of the Southern States shortly after the expiration of his term as Grand Master, where he died.

Henry Wingate was Grand Master in 1842-4, and no man left a more honorable record or impressed his individuality more deeply upon the history of the craft than he. For fourteen years he was Master of this lodge, and was always punctual in his attendance upon its meetings. Even when not filling the Master's chair he was always ready to assist in the work, and the records show that he generally presided in the East when the sublime degree was conferred.

Philip Swigert was the last Grand Master who was a member of this lodge. He served in 1857-8, having previously served the

Grand Lodge as Grand Secretary twenty-one years - was elected in 1833 and resigned in 1854. Upon retiring from this latter office the Grand Lodge ordered that a hard-some Grand Secretary's jewel of gold be prepared and presented to him. It was afterwards stolen from the mails, the knowledge of which coming to the Grand Lodge he was presented with a gold watch in its stead.

Col. A. G. Hodges, another zealous member of this lodge, was Grand Treasurer for more than thirty years, and served the State as Public Printer nearly as long.

This old lodge has numbered among its members in the past some of the most distinguished men of the State - ministers, judges, lawyers, and soldiers, - and its influence for good upon the community has ever been felt. In the earlier years of its history it was the custom of the fraternity to celebrate St. John's Day by inviting some minister to deliver a sermon, or some distinguished speaker to deliver a lecture, which the lodge would attend in a body, finishing the day with a supper at the old Weisiger House, which stood where the Capitol Hotel now stands. Among the ministers who preached upon these occasions were Bishop H. H. Kamanaugh, Rev. Silas Noel and Rev. John L. Waller, D. D., and Col. Richard M. Johnson was one of those who delivered an address. This brother was perhaps the most distinguished member of this lodge, having been elected to the office and served as Vice-President of the United States. He gained a worl-wide reputation by reason of the fact that while leading his regiment during the battle of the Thames he is said to have met and killed the celebrated Indian chief. Tecumseh. In so doing it seems that he slew a brother,

for there is a legend in this lodge, handed down to us from our distinguished brother, Henry Wingate, to the effect that after the battle of the River Raisin Indians were going over the field toma-hawking the wounded Americans, when one poor fellow, too badly hurt to get away, seeing an Indian approach, involuntarily made a sign which the Indian recognized, dropped his tomahawk, picked up the soldier and bore him to a place of safety. The soldier was nursed back to life in a British hospital, returned home after the war and later on joined the Masonic fraternity. Upon receiving the Master's degree he realized what had saved his life when so many of his comrades were cruelly butchered. That Indian was Tecumseh, who was made a Mason in a Military Lodge attached to the British army.

Among the prominent men who have held membership in this lodge may be mentioned Judge John Rowen and George M. Bibb, two of the most learned judges of the Court of Appeals in their day; Amos Kendall, Postmaster-General of the United States under President Van Buren, 1835-40; Hon. Thomas B. Monroe, Junge of the United States District Court for Kentucky.

There have been seasons in its his tory when the interest upon the part of the brotherhood has flagged to such an extent as to allow it to sleep for as many as eight years at a time, but there have always been found zealous workmen, skilled in Masonic art, who were ready to arouse her from her slumber and set the craft to labor again. Among these may be mentioned Bros. Wingate, Swigert, Hodges, A. C. Keenon and Walter Franklin. Upon the latter brother the mantle of Bro. Wingate fell when the years began to weigh

heavily upon him. Mr. Franklin first became Master in 1858, and served the lodge during the years 1859,1860,1861,1863-4-5-6,1873, 1889 and 1890. Upon retiring from office on the 27th of December, 1866, he was presented a handsome silver service by the brethren, Mr. Thos. E. Bræmlette, then Governor of the State delivering the presentation address.

During the life of this old lodge there have been two divisions in its membership, am rival lodges have been established in this city. In 1817 a portion of her members withdrew and established Industry Lodge, No. 42. It lived only until August, 1821, when it surrendered its charter, am its number remains vacant to this day. About 1872 trouble came up again, which would not down, and finally resulted in some fifteen or twenty brethren taking their demits and forming Esoteric Lodge No. 532. It continued to work until January, 1891, when it was consolidated with this lodge, and from that day Masonry, which had been languishing in this community, took on new life, and all of its branches have been blessed with prosperity.

Whether from the want of a hall in which to hold its meetings or the fierce anti-Masonic war which sprang up all over the country about this time, in 1832 the lodge ceased work and directed its representatives in the Grand Lodge - Bros Philip Swigert and A. G. Hodges -to surrender its charter, which they failed to do, but the lodge never met again until 1840, when a meeting was held at the courthouse and a re-organization effected.

The Lodge is now in handsome quarters with an enthusiastic membership, is doing fine work and takes exceedingly high standing

SOLOMON'S LODGE NO. 5 AT SHELBYVILLE, SHELBY COUNTY. KY.

This Lodge and Lexington Lodge No. 1 are the only Lodges of the original five that constituted the Grand Lodge of Kentucky in 1800, which have been continuously at wonk since that date. The following, dated July 10th. 1800, appears on the records of the Grand Lodge of Virginia. "A dispensation was issued and signed by the R. W. Deputy Grand Master, to authorize the opening of a lodge in Shelbyville in the State of Kentucky, appointing Simon Adems Master, James Wardlew Senior Warden and William J. Tunst all Junior Warden, the brethren in the petition, and having made choice of a name already appropriated, a blank space was left in the Dispensation for them to fill up with a name unappropriated The Grand Secretary of Virginia says, From advices subsequently received it appears that the saidloge is called Abraham Lodge". was working at Shelbyville under the above Dispensation at the assemblage of the Convention of September 8th, 1800, but was allowed to have representation the rein; and at the first session of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, October 16, 1800, was recognized as Solomon's Lodge #5.

In accordance with resolutions adopted October 17th, 1800 the five Lodges constituting the Grand Lodge of Kentucky delivered to the Grand Lodge the Charters &c., under which they had been working, and as the Grand Lodge had no seal or parchment or vellum proper for making out the Charters, they received temporary Charters, which were to be returned at the next stated meeting of the Grand

Lodge and other Charters executed in due form to be then given in lieu of them.

Lodges Nos. 1, 2, 3, and 4 paid Five Pounds each for their Charters and No. 5 paid Ten Pounds for its Charter.

The Charters in due form were not issued until October 12th.1803, and had a certificate added to them signed by the Grand Master, Deputy Grand Master and Grand Secretary and under the Seal of the Grand Lodge, that they were true transcripts of the original Charter which were filed with the archives of the Grand Lodge.

The History of Freemasonry in Kentucky, published in 1859, by Rob Morris, says No. 4 has the only one of these 1803 transcripts of the original Charter, this is a mistake as No. 5 also has one and also has a transcript of the 1803 transcript dated August 27th. 1821.

The Transcript of 1803 is slightly mutilated or as the 1821 transcript says "met with a casualty".

The Lodge met at the residences of Robert Moore and James Craig and afterwards rented quarters above a store kept on Main Street by a man named Hughes.

On July 14. 1802 there were over fifty members enrolled, and the idea of purchasing a lot and building a Lodge Room began to be agitated, William J. Tunstall, John Allen, Isaac Watkins and James Wardlaw were appointed a committee to draft a plan for the building and submit a calculation as to probable cost of same and to make inquiry as to where a suitable lot could be obtained.

On March 8th. 1802 John McGaughey was initiated and within five

days he had taken the three degrees, he was made a Master Mason the 13th. day of that month.

He was an enthusiastic Mason from the start, the records show that the whole membership was entertained at his house on several occasions, and when the committee reported that they were having trouble in securing a lot on which to build a Lodge Room, he went before the Lodge and proposed to give them a lot 40X224 on Washington Street between Sixth and Seventh Streets. His offer was accepted, and he and his wife transferred the lot by deed now of record dated September 1st. 1804, in the Shelby County Clerk's Office.

The plans of the building as recommended by the Committee were as follows: The building was to be of brick with stone foundation and 23X35 from out to out, the first story eleven feet in the clear and the second ten feet in the clear, there were to be chimneys at each end and two out doors and the nine windows were each to have twenty four lights, the walls of the first story were to be dighteen inches and the walls of the upper story were to be thirteen inches thick.

Abraham Owen, Wingfield Bullock, John Bradshaw, Obediah Clark, James Moore and John McGaughey were appointed a committee to solicit subscriptions.

The money was obtained and the contract for the building was let to John H. Bullock who agreed to complete it for \$1499.00 and Wingfield Bullock and James Craig became his sureties for the faithful compliance with his contract.

The records show that the building was received December 5th,

1805, and on the evening of that day the first meeting was held in the new building and dedicatory services were conducted by James Moore, although the records say "the building was not quite completed".

The upper story was used as a Lodge Room and the lower story rented for a school.

The Lodge owned this property until 1836.

The Lodge, in consideration of the faithful services of Henry Burnett, who had been Tyler for many years, gave him this house and lot as per deed of record August 26, 1836.

In July 1839 Bros. William Cardwell, William Kinkade and E.N. Woolfork bought of G. W. Dashiel, a house and lot on the South West corner of Public Square and Fifth Street and on September 10th. 1839 William Cardwell bought the one third interest of E. N. Woolfork, this lot was part of lot No. 41 on the plat of the town. The County records show that this property was sold to the Rev. G. W. Dashiel an Episcopalian minister in 1833 and was at that time occupied as a church.

From the will of William Cardwell we find that in 1839 the Lodge built a second story on this property, the Lodge is thought to have moved from Washington Street to this property some time previous to 1836 as in that year it gave the Washington Street house and lot to Henry Burnett, just when and why the Lodge left Washington Street is not known as the record books for several years at that period are missing.

On February 14th. 1846 this Lodge bought the one third interest of William Kinkade for \$210.00

The will of William Cardwell was probated at the September Term 1849 of the Shelby County Court, in it he gives the Lodge the right to use the second story free of cost as long as it is a Lodge, if the Lodge ceased to exist the part built by them should revert to the owners of the lot or the Lodge could buy his two thirds interest in the property for \$420.00, or said property should be vested in such Trustees as the Lodge should appoint to be held by them as long as Solomon's Lodge should exist and work, and in case said Lodge should cease to exist then for the property to pass under the control of the Trustees of Town of Shelbyville to be rented out by them and after paying taxes and all necessary repairs the balance was to be appropriated annually to the education of indigent children of Shelbyville giving preference to orphan children of Master Masons, if the Lodge should decide not to accept any of these terms, his Executor should rent the property and apply net proceeds to the education of indigent children of Master Masons, so long as his Executor may think proper and then sell at the best price he can secure and convey the same to the purchaser.

The Lodge did not accept any of these terms, and on December 12th. 1859 J. M. Owen the Executor sent a communication to the Lodge in regard to the property. May the 15th, 1860, Brother Jerman Baker by instruction of the Lodge bought from Executor of William Cardwell the two thirds interest for \$400.00 and May 18th, 1861, Baker and wife deeded it to the Master, Wardens, and Brethren of Solomon's Lodge No. 5 for \$425.00, this property has been the Home of Solomon's Lodge No. 5 continuously for more than seventy

five years, the present building was built in 1884 for \$2875.00 and is the third built by the Lodge on this lot.

Solomon's Mark Master Lodge No. 5 was working from June 25th, 1802 to October 8th, 1816 as per minute book in possession of this Lodge.

Solomon's Royal Arch Chapter was working in 1804, 1805 and 1806. In 1806 the members became doubtful as to their anthority to work and suspended meetings as per minute book now in possession of Lodge. In 1816 Shelbyville Royal Arch Chapter #2, was anthorized.

At the meeting of the Grand Lodge, October 1801, this Lodge petitioned for leave to initiate John Pope an applicant who had lost his right arm, and the Grand Lodge granted the request. He demitted from number 5 in 1804. John Pope was one of the Presidential Electors for Kentucky 1801, Represented Shelby County in the Legislature 1802, was United States Senator from Kentucky in 1807 to 1813, appointed Governor Territory of Arkansas by President Jackson 1829 to 1835, was Grand Orator of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky 1816.

Solomon's Lodge No. 5 sent up two copies of its By-laws to the Grand Lodge in March 1804, the first notice of the existence of By-laws as yet made.

The ibllowing Brothers were prominent in Masonry in Kentacky: Simon Adams was the representative of Abraham's Lodge held under dispensation at Shelbyville in the Convention September 8th, 1800, which organized the Grand Lodge. He was one of the Committee of Five appointed to draft an Address to the Grand Lodge of Virginia, detailing the necessity of separation. He was present as Master

of Abraham Lodge at the Preparatory Lodge October 16th, 1800, and was elected the same day Senior Grand Warden of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky.

He was Chairman of a Committee of three, appointed to draft a Circular Letter to the Grand Lodge of the United States, detailing the causes which led to the separation, and the document was probably from his pen.

He appeared in his seat as Senior Grand Warden at the Sessions of February and October 1801, and represented Solomon's Lodge No. 5 as Master; was re-elected Senior Grand Warden October 1801 in which capacity, and as Master of No. 5 he was present at the Sessions of April and October 1802; opened the Grand Lodge as Grand Master pro tem in April 1803, and as Senior Grand Warden 1803. This year he was on the roll of No. 5 as Past Master.

The Grand Lodge instructed him to visit Lodges Nos. 5,6, and 8 to inspect their workings and make report next session to the Grand Lodge. No. 5 reports him from 1804 to 1808 as a Past Master. In 1810 Simon Adams is reported by No. 5 dead, with this explanatory note, "It is here to be noted that Bro. Simon Adams, who was the first Master of this Lodge but for some time having withdrawn, is dead. The Lodge had considered him as an Honorary Member, with the privilege of attending the Lodge when he could make it convenient, in token of our remembrance for the important services he rendered this Lodge, and his devotion to the Institution. We therefore begliberty of making this Communication to the Grand Lodge.

James Moore: - Mr. Moore first appears on the records of the

Grand Lodge October 1803 as one of the Two Representatives of Solomon's Lodge \$5\$, he was elected Junior Grand Warden 1803, Senior Grand Warden 1806, Deputy Grand Master 1813, Grand Master 1814. In 1806 James Moore, Cary L. Clark and John Simpson were appointed a Committee to compile a book of Constitutions adapted to Mantucky. James Moore and Cary L. Clark compiled this book adopted by the Grand Lodge March 1808 and Five Hundred Copies ordered printed. This was the first book of a Masonic Character ever published in the West. On the rolls of No. 5 he appears in 1802 as a private member, in April 1803 as Junior Warden, October 1803 Senior Warden, 1804 and 1806 Master; 1807 Treasurer. His history is a part of the early history of Masonry in this Jurisdiction. He died March 9th. 1825 and was buried at Shelbyville with Masonic Rites.

Lodge U. D., at the preparatory Lodge October 15th. 1800, in the same capacity he appeared at the February Session of 1801, in the roll of membership of Solomon's Lodge #5 for 1803 he was recorded as Master; in 1804 as Past Master. He demitted from this Lodge December 14th. 1805.

John Bradshaw: - Was probably a charter member of this Lodge. He was Grand Junior Deacen 1803, Master of Solomon's Lodge 1805 and filled many offices in the Lodge. In 1793 he bought the first lot sold in the town of Shelbyville for Two Pounds and Twelve Shillings, and the property now owned and used by Solomon's Lodge is a part of that lot. He died in 1842.

Abraham Owen: - Served as Grand Senier Warden in March 1805, was

Master of Solomon's Lodge in 1808, was appointed by Governor Isaac Shelby, August 9th, 1792 one of the Four first Justices of the Peace of Shelby County, was appointed November 6th, 1792 one of the Four Trustees to lay out the town of Shelbyville. He was killed at the Battle of Tippecance November 7th, 1811, while serving as volunteer side as Colonel on the staff of Governor Harrison.

John Simpson: - Was a member of this Lodge in 1800, was Deputy Grand Master 1808, 1809 and 1810, was Grand Master in 1811; Master of Solomon's Lodge No. 5 in 1803 and 1807; represented Shelby County in the Legislature 1806 to 1811; member of Congress in 1812, when the President called on Kentucky for 5500 men to assist in the war between the United States and Great Britian. He organized and was Captain of a Company raised in Shelby County which joined Colonel John Allen's regiment of Kentucky troops. He was killed at the battle of the river Raisin, January 22nd, 1813. Simpson County, Kentucky and Simpsonville, a town on the L. & N.Railroad between Shelbyville and Louisville which was incorporated in 1816, were named for Captain John Simpson.

John Allen: - Was a prominent member of this Lodge in 1800; February 13th, 1804, he demitted from No. 5 and joined No. 4. He was Deputy Grand Master in 1807, Grand Master 1808, 1809 and 1810. In 1796 he was one of the Commissioners to have the Shelby County Court House built. He was a member of the Kentucky House of Repwas elected to resentatives in 1800; Kentucky State Senate 1810 to 1814, was Colonel of the Eentucky Regiment in the War of 1812, was killed at the bat the of River Raisin, January 22nd, 1813.

Wingfield Bullock: - Was an enthusiastic member of this Lodge

in 1801, was Master of Solomon's Lodge in 1809, Member of Kentucky Senate 1812 to 1814; Member of Congress 1820 to 1821, died October 13th, 1821.

James M. Bullock: This gentlemen, as so on as he attained his majority united himself with the Masonic Fraternity, following the the example of his father, who lived and died a member of the Order. He so on became distinguished among the craft, his merits attracted the attention of the Order and he was elevated to some of the most distinguished trusts, among which were that of Grand Orator in 1832, Grand Senior Warden in 1834, Deputy Grand Master in 1835 and held many offices in Solomon's Lodge, represented Shelby County in the Legislature 1831 to 1836.

William Cardwell: - Grand Treasurer in 1840, 1841, 1842, 1843 and 1844. He held many offices in Solomon's Lodge No. 5. Died in 1849.

George W. Johnson: - Who was afterwards City Judge of Louisville and Judge of the same Circuit was a prominent member of No. 5.

Thomas Todd: - Born in Lincoln County, Kentucky, December 1st, 1820; initiated in Solomon's Lodge No. 5, March 11th, 1842, filled every office in the gift of the Lodge except Secretary and Treasurer, was elected Master in June 1846; was elected and served fifteen terms sime, the last term being in 1905; attended Grand Lodge in 1846 and attended every meeting of Grand Lodge until his death. Was appointed Grand Marshal in 1846, was elected Grand Master and served a term as such in 1853, and served on all the various committees of the Grand Lodge. He was a member of the Committee appointed by the Grand Lodge of Kentucky to represent

it at the Centennial Ceremonies that were held at the tomb of George Washington at Mt. Vermon Virginia, December 14th, 1899. and was present at said Ceremony, in which almost all the Grami Lodges of the United States of America and many Grand Lodges of other parts of the world, together with thomsands of Brethren. participated. Was made a Royal Arch Mason in Shelbyville Royal Arch Chapter #2 in May 1846 and filled all the various offices in the Chapter; was elected High Priest in 1858, and served as such many times, at tended Grand Chapter in 1846 and was present at every session until his death; was elected Grand High Priest in 1859 and served the term, was appointed High Priest of the Grand Council in 1858, filled nearly all the offices, and was elected Grand President in 1866, and was re-elected at every meeting up to 1905, and at that meeting was elected for life; was made a Royal and Select Master in a Council at Frankfort, Ky., in 1849. filled many offices in Grand Council and was elected Grand Master 1871 am 1872 was dubbed a Knight Templar in Frankfort, Ky., Commandery in 1849 and filled many offices, including Generalissimo. He at tended Grand Encampments of United States of America in Lexington in 1853, in Chicago, Ill., in 1880, and in Louisville. Ky., 1901. Died April 29th, 1909.

This Lodge has papers and Record Books from 1801 to the present time with the exception of two short periods, it has the original copy of the By-laws signed by the members adopted July 1815, and also a copy of the By-laws signed and adopted in December 1823.

This Lodge has furnished many of ficers to the Grand Lodge, Viz:
G.M. 1814 and 1853, D.G.M. 1808, 1809, 1810, 1812, 1813, 1816, 1835,

1852, G.R.S.W. 1800, 1801, 1802, 1806, 1807, 1815, 1834, 1851, G.R.J.W. 1803, 1806, 1850, Grand Orator, 1816 and 1832. Grand Tr. 1840, 1841, 1842, 1843, and 1844. Grand J. D. 1803.

July 10th, 1900 Solomon's Lodge celebrated its Centennial Anniversary at the Shelby County Fair Grounds, the Commanderies from Louisville, Ky., the children from the Masonic W. & O. Home and many visiting Brethren from all over the State were present.

The Lodge now has a membership numbering 169, is in a prosperous condition and is steadily growing.

WASHINGTON LODGE No. 6,

BAIRDSTOWN, NELSON CO., Ky.

February 10, 1801, an application for a charter, accompanied by the requisite certificates from Lexington Lodge No. 1, was made by sundry brethren at Bairdstown and its vicinity, and in answer to this petition the first Masonic Lodge ever established by the Grand Lodge of Kentucky was provided for by the following resolution: "Resolved. That a charter do is sue establishing a lodge at Bairdstown, in the county of Nelson, by the name and designation of the Washington Lodge No. 6, appointing David McClelland, Master; John Crozier, Senior Warden; and Thomas Speed, Junior Warden."

No further record of this Lodge is found and no further mention made of it in the proceedings or the Grand Lodge until April 4, 1803, in the list of Representatives present is given the name of Thomas Speed, Washington Lodge, held under dispensation at Bairds—town, and Thomas Speed is recorded as having on that day made return to the Grand Lodge of the dispensation granted to Washington Lodge. On April 5, 1803, the records of the Grand Lodge show—"Brother Speed, from Washington Lodge, having represented that the committee of said Lodge, appointed to make out communication to this Grand Lodge, were prevented by necessary absence from making out their communications, Resolved: That the list of officers made out and signed by Brother Speed from the minutes of his lodge be received.

Whereas: The dispensation issued on the 9th, day of December 1802, by the Most Works ipful James Morrison, Grand Master, for the tempo-

rary establishment of a lodge at Bairdstown, in Nelson County, by the name of Washington Lodge No. appointing Thomas Speed Master, Daniel L. Morrison Senior Warden; and James Cox Junior Warden, the said dispensation being now returned, and application being now made by Brother Speed for a charter:

Resolved that a charter do issue accordingly and that that lodge be distinguished and known by the name of Washington Lodge No. 6, and that the said charter do is sue without any other fee than the fee of the Secretary for making out the same. It appearing to this lodge that a charter bath heretofore is sued and been paid for, but owing to certain circumstances not under the control of the brethren maked therein, it was not acted on.

The voters of Washington Lodge at the April meeting 1803 of the Grand Lodge were as follows:-

Thomas Speed. Master.

Daniel L. Morrison, Senior Warden.

James Cox, Junior Warden.

MASTER MASONS.

Adam Guthrie, Benjamin Helm, Daniel Jennings, Robert King, David McClelland, Thomas Roberts.

ENTERED APPRENTICES.

Felix Grandy,

Robert Wickliffe.

Felix Grandy, born Berkley Co., Va., September 11, 1777, brought in early life to Washington Co., Ky., educated at Bardstown, began the practice of law at Springfield 1799, represented Washington County in the convention which framed the second constitution of

Kentucky; a member of the State Legislature from Washington and later from Nelson County. December 10, 1806, commissioned a Judge of the Court of Appeals of Kentucky and before he was 30 years old made Chief Justice of the Court. A congressman from Nashville, Tenn., 1811-1814. United States Senator 1829-38. Attorney General of the United States under President Van Buren, resigned that position in 1840, and was again elected to the United States Senate but died December 12, 1840, before taking his seat.

Robert Wickliffe, who was the other Entered Apprentice reported, represented Fayette County in the State Legislature 1819-24 and State Senate 1825-33. During the Old Court and New Court controversies he distinguished himself in cooperation with John J. Crittenden, Ben Mills, George Robertson and Ben Hardin, and in opposition to such adversaries as John Rowen, George M. Bibb and Wm. T. Barry.

Gen. Mathew Walton, a Virginian by birth, a soldier of the Revolution who distinguished himself for gallantry at the battle of Kings Mt.

Soon after the surrender at Yorktown he moved to what was then Nelson County, Ky., settling three miles West of Springfield in what became Washington County in June 1792.

He was a member of the Danville convention in May 1785 looking to a separation of Kentucky from Virginia, and a member of the two like conventions held in August 1785 and 1787. He was a delegate to the Virginia House of Burgesses for 1789 and 1790. He was a delegate from Nelson County in the Danville convention which

framed the first constitution of Kentucky. He served from Nelson County in the Kentucky House of Representatives in 1792, and from Washington County in 1795 and 1808. In 1800-1803 he was a member of the State Senate. From 1803 to 1807 a member of Congress. In 1809 a presidential elector for James Madison. He owned one hundred and sixty thousand acres of land in Nelson and Washington counties. The dwelling house he built for himself three miles West of Springfield is said to have been the first of any pretension to elegance erected on Kentucky soil. He gave the land upon which the public baildings of Washington County were erected. He gave the right of way for the first two miles to every turnpike radiating from Springfield. He gave the land upon which the Springfield cemetery is located. Noted for high breeding, gallant deportment, generous liberality, a soldier of fame, a man of varied political career, a Mason who moved upon the square, honored and loved by all who knew him, he was on January 18, 1819 called to that Celestial Lodge on High.

At the meeting of the Grand Lodge in March 1806, Washington Lodge not being represented and having had no representative in the two preceeding Grand Lodges was cited to show cause why its charter should not be arrested, and on October 7, 1806, having paid no attention to the citation its charter was declared forfeited and its property subject to the order of the Grand Lodge.

DUVAL LODGE NO. 6, BARDSTOWN NELSON CO., KY.

AND EARLY BARDSTOWN MASONIC LODGES.

The history of Masonry, or rather of Masonic Lodges, at Bardstown presents a checkered career of success and failure. But, thanks to the Supreme Master, Duval Lodge is now so firmly established with a membership of one hundred and forty that nothing but gross mismanagement will ever impair its growth and usefulness.

On February 10th, 1801, a charter was granted to Washington Lodge No. 6 at Bairdstown in the County of Nelson, with David McClelland, John Crozier, S. W. and Thomas Speed, J. W. This charter, however, was never used. On December 9, 1802, a dispensation was is sued "for the temporary establishment of a lodge at Bairdstown in Nelson County, Ky., the name of Washington Lodge No. ____, appointing Thomas Speed Master, Daniel L. Morrison Senior Warden and James Cox Junior Warden. At the meeting of the Grand Lodge, held at Lexington, Ky., April 5, 1803, it was ordered "that a charter do is sue and that the lodge be distinguished and known as Washington Lodge No. 6, and that said charter issue without any other fee than the fee of the Secretary for making out same. It appearing to this Lodge that a charter hath heretofore is sued and been paid for, but owing to certain circumstances not under the control of the brethren mamed therein, it was not acted on."

At this meeting of the Grand Lodge, Washington Lodge reported a membership of eleven members; nine Master Masons and two Entered Apprentices. These were Felix Grandy and Robert Wickliffe. In April, 1804, Washington Lodge reported a membership of thirty-one.

In September, 1804, Washington Lodge reported a membership of twenty-nine, twenty-five of whom were Master Masons. The Grand Lodge at this session had a membership of 182 Master Masons.

Washington Lodge was represented at the session of the Grand Lodge on March 18 to 20th, 1806, yet strange to say it is recited in the proceedings that "Washington Lodge not having been represented for two successive meetings, a committee was appointed to ascertain the cause and determine whether its charter should be arrested." And at the session of the Grand Lodge held October 6th and 7th, 1806, an order was entered that: "No response having been made to the summons of last session, Washington Lodge No. 6 was dissolved and stricken from the list of lodges of Kentucky. At the session of the Grand Lodge held August 26th and 27th, 1807, Thomas Speed was appointed and empowered to settle the affairs of Washington Lodge No. 6. This was the end of the first Lodge at Bardstown.

slept at Bardstown. But on June 27th, 1816, the Grand Master,
Daniel Bradford, granted a dispensation for a lodge of Masons at
Bardstown with John Rowan as W. M., Thomas Speed, S. W. and Wm. P.
Duval—three mames well known in his tory. The first as Judge.
Congressman and United States Senator; the last as Territorial
Governor of Florida and made famous by Washington Irving under the
mame of Rahph Ringwood. This new lodge prospered, and in due time
was granted a charter as Bardstown Lodge No. 38. This Lodge,
however, was strucken from the rolls of the Grand Lodge Sept., 1.
1821. Among its members were Adam and Edmund Gutten, James Guthrie

and Charles A. Wickliffe.

This Lodge was followed by a charter to Duval Lodge No. 99, granted August 30th, 1836, which was a prosperous Lodge until a new lodge was founded under the name of "Major Barbour Lodge". The population was not sufficient to sustain the two lodges and both died. (See Duvall Lodge No. 99)

HARMONY LODGE NO. 7, NATCHEZ, MISS.

October 1801, upon the petition of Seth Lewis, James Ferrall, Archibald Lewis, James Hoggett, John Hardemar, David Latimore and William Mitchell, living at Natchez, Mississippi Territory, a charter was granted for the establishment of Harmony Lodge No. 7, at Natchez, naming Seth Lewis as Master, James Ferrall, Senior Warden, Archibald Lewis, Junior Warden. The first report made by this Lodge to the Grand Lodge of Kentucky was in March 1805, when it reported a membership of 34 Master Masons, 3 Fellow Crafts and 11 Entered Apprentices. It was first represented in the Grand Lodge, August 26-28, 1807, again in August 1808. In August 1814, the Lodge surrendered its charter and property to the Grand Lodge, which was accepted.

ABRAHAM LODGE NO. 8, LOUISVILLE, JEFFERSON CO., KY.

Abraham Lodge No. 8, now of Louisville, Ky., was established Under Dispensation at Middleton, in this county, December 21,1801, by James Morrison, first Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, organized October 16, of the preceding year. The officers named in the dispensation were, James Taylor, Master; Philip Barbour, Senior Warden, Samuel N. Luckett, Junior Warden. The lodge, although not yet chartered, was admitted to representation in the Grand Lodge in April, 1802, and was then chartered as No. 8. The seven lodges that outranked it were Lexington No. 1, Paris No. 2, Georgetown No. 3, Hiram No. 4, at Frankfort; Solomon's No. 5, Shelbyville; Washington No. 6, Harmony No. 7, Natchez, Miss. Of these, No. 2 became defunct in 1802, No. 3 in 1804, No. 6 in 1807, and No. 7 in 1814; so there are only three lodges now existing in the Mississippi Valley that are older than Abraham.

April, 1803, the Grand Lodge decided that it would be conducive to the benefit of Masonry to remove this ledge to Louisville. It has remained here ever since. There were 30 members on the rolls.

In 1803 the membership had increased to 34. Among them were the prominent mames of Worden Pope, Robert A. New and others. In 1804 Abraham Lodge recommended the establishment of Jerusalem Lodge No. 9, at Henderson. In 1806 the membership was 47. In 1807 G. W. Johnson, afterward Grand Master of Indiana, was a member of No. 8. The mames of Floyd, Bullitt, Bullock, Ormsby.

Evans, Breckinridge, Thruston, and others of prominent families, appear on its rolls. In 1816, Mann Butler, Historian of Kentucky, was a member. In 1820 the membership was 48, but in 1826 only 28. Several other lodges now existed in Jefferson County. the Morgan excitement was at its height, and Masonry in Kentucky . was languishing. In 1833 this evil influence had not abated. Wm. Kendrick, Wm. Kaye, and other well known Masons were members of Abraham. In 1838 an attempt was made to dissolve No. 8, but failed. In 1839, 47 members were on its rolls. Ten initiations were reported. The name of Dr. T. S. Bell appears among them. In 1840 there were 39 members; in 1842, 34; in 1843, 39, among them J. V. McBurnie, long a zealous brother. In 1846 Thomas J. Welby was a member, also Rev. Guerdon Gates, Ben A. Floyd, E. M. Pingree, and others long prominent as Masons. In 1847 there were 49 members; in 1848, 46, imcluding John Bull, A. C. Harig, J. C. Robinson, etc. In 1852 the membership was 100.

Thus we see that for a period exceeding eighty years the members of No. 8, through all vicissitudes of time, the rivalries of other lodges, the opposition of anti-masomry, and other causes, have remained faithful to their trust. Their meetings have been continued in all the seasons, neither the rigors of winter nor the heat of summer having closed their work. Three generations of their membership have been gathered to their fathers in the various burying grounds around this city, and no lodge is so familiar to the citizens of Louisville as that of Abraham, as they march slowly through the streets, bearing to the last resting place the forms of those they loved. In the dispensations of charity,

Abraham Lodge has ever been comspicuous, and though the amount of its benefactions to distressed brethren, their widows and orphans, is not published to the world, yet the record in heaven is made up, and the Grand Master there assuredly preserves it in eternal memory. Discipline has ever been maintained, not with the sternness of the criminal law, but with full justice tempered with mercy. May the history of another eighty years but confirm this noble record, and the annals of Abraham Lodge No. 8 extend into many centuries yet to come.

The question of consolidation had often been brought before Abraham No. 8 by various Masonic bodies of Louisville. Consolidation had been discussed in all its various forms. No definite conclusion could be arrived at as to how two or more lodges could consolidate, as there existed no law of consolidation in this jurisdiction.

Abraham No. 8 had always been ready and willing to consolidate with any of her sister lodges upon honorable terms. This feeling was well known by the other bodies, and the Grand Lodge, at its last convocation, passed proper laws by which consolidation could be made. Abraham No. 8 was notified by Clarke No. 51, Mt. Moriah No. 106, and Antiquity No. 113 that they were now ready and prepared to enter into negotiations for consolidation, under the recent law passed by the Grand Lodge. The proper committees were appointed by each of the four lodges to meet and confer. Proper resolutions were duly offered in each of the four lodges, which were to get the sense of the members on consolidation. Each lodge voted unanimously for consolidation, giving their committees full

power to arrange all preliminary questions, which was promptly done, they agreeing that the name of "Abraham" should be recommended to the Grand Master for the consolidated lodge, the Grand Lodge having given the consolidated lodge the number of the oldest of those consolidating.

R. H. Hoskins, as a committee of one, was appointed to take all the papers, visit the Grand Master, James W. Hopper, at Lebanon, Ky., who after a thorough examination of these documents, issued his proclamation as Grand Master of Masons in the State of Kentucky, dated December 14, 1886, (which proclamation can be found with the record), ordering Abraham No. 8, Clarke No. 51, Mt. Moriah No. 106, and the Ledge of Antiquity No. 113, bodies of Free and Accepted Masons under his jurisdiction, to assemble at the Masonic Temple, Louisville, Ky., Monday, December 27, 1886, at 8 o'clock F. M., as the time and place of the meeting for the purpose of consolidation. "The name given shall be Abraham Lodge No. 8, the latter being the registered number of the oldest of said lodges".

In accordance with the order of the Grand Master, the four lodges named convened as ordered, there being a large attendance of the brethren of the same. This meeting was held at the chapter room, Masonic Temple.

Abraham No. 8 was opened in due and ancient form, at 8 o'clock P. M., in the third degree, Past Master R. H. Hoskins occupying the East. He announced that, acting under the proclamation of the Grand Master, issued in conformity with the law enacted by the Grand Lodge at its last convocation, the four lodges, Nos. 8, 51, 106, and 113, had been convered for the purpose of carrying into

effect the articles of consolidation.

The proclamation of the Grand Master was then read.

The W. M. announced that the first business in order was the election of officers for the ensuing year for the consolidated lodge, and the first officer to be elected was that of Master. He impressed upon the members of the four lodges the great importance of selecting the best material they had to preside over this new lodge. He hoped that no selfish motive or sectional feeling would have any impression whatever in this election; that the future success of the lodge depended entirely upon the officers who were called upon to manage its affairs; that from the four lodges could, with proper care, be elected as good a set of officers as there was in the State, and that each member, in casting his vote, should do so without fear or favor - his only object being Masonic ability in the one whom he votes for.

The election resulted as bllows:

Wm. McAfee, late of Antimity, Worksipful Master.

J. B. Fishback, late of Clarke, Senior Warden.

Wm. C. Garland, late of Mt. Moriah, Junior Warden.

R. H. Hoskins, late of Abraham, Treasurer.

George E. Rawson, late of Antiquity, Secretary.

A. Robertson, late of Antiquity, Steward and Tyler.

Ermest Macpherson, P. M. of Mt. Moriah, Senior Deacon.

Wm. M. Eggleston, late of Clarke, Junior Deacon.

After the election of officers, Fast Grand Master John H. Leathers, being a proxy of the Grand Master, was them introduced and received with Grand Masonic Honors, when the W. M. resigned to him

the jewel.

Mr. Leathers then proceeded to install the various officers who had been elected and gave them their proper charges.

He then proclaimed the lodge - Abraham No. 8 - properly at work.

JERUSALEM LODGE NO. 9 HENDERSON, HENDERSON Co., KY.

When Jerusalem Looge was organized, September 19, 1804, there could not have been living in the town of Henderson, more than twenty-five or thirty men of legal age, and yet we find, from the report to Grand Lodge, made in September, 1805, the Lodge had a membership enrolled of twenty-three, and if these had all been residents of the town, nearly every citizen must have been a Mason, and fully 10 percent of the men in the county were members of the Lodge.

George M. Bibb, a judge of the Court of Appeals; a member of the United States Senate and Secretary of the Treasury under President Tyler, was the Grand Master whose signature is attached to the charter is sued this Lodge.

At the Grand Annual Communication of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky at Lexington on September 19th, 1804, appears this simple minute:
"The communications from Abraham's Lodge, No. 8, being accompanied

by a letter recommending the establishment of a lodge in the town of Henderson; Resolved, as the opinion of this Committee, that it would be expedient for the Grand Lodge to is sue a charter directed to Innes B. Brent, Master; John Posey, Senior Warden, and Nathan D. Anderson, Junior Warden, to hold a lodge etc., under the name of Jerusalem Lodge, No. 9.

The charter of this Lodge is dated September 19th, 1804, and, as stated, is signed by George M. Bibb, Grand Master and attested by Daniel Bradford, Grand Secretary.

It is said, that of the charters issued before 1809, this is the only one that is still perfectly legible. It may not prove uninteresting to some of those who have not seen this ancient and interesting document, to read its quaint and curious composition. For that reason it is inserted here:

George M. Bibb, Grand Master.

To all to whom these presents shall come, Greeting:

Whe reas it hath been duly represented that in the Town of Henderson, in the County of Henderson, there reside a number of Brethren, Free Masons, who are desirous of associating together agreeably to the Constitution of ancient Masonry. And it appearing to be for the increase and promotion of the Royal and Noble Art, necessary, that said said Brethren should be encouraged, and properly enabled to proceed and work as heretofore they have been (authorized?) Now know Ye that I, George M. Bibb, Grand Master of the Most Ancient and Honorable Society of Free and Accepted Masons, in the Commonwealth of Kentucky, and the Masonic jurisdiction the reunto belonging, by and with the consent and approbation

of the Grand Lodge, test if ied by the Rules and Regulations of the said Grand Lodge, do he reby constitute and appoint the Worshipful Brother Innis B. Brent Master: John Posey, Senior Warden, and Nathan D. Anderson, Junior Warden, to gether with all the other Brethren as are now, or may at any time hereafter become members; a just, true, regular and warranted lodge of Free and Accepted Masons, according to the Old Constitution, by the name, title and designation of Jerusalem Lodge Number Nine. And further, do he reby appoint and ordain all regular lodges to hold, acknowledge and respect them as such: hereby granting and committing to them and their successors, full power and authority to assemble and convene as a regular lodge, and to enter, receive and make apprentices, pass fellowcrafts and raise Master Masons, according to the known and established customs and practices of Ancient Masonry and not otherwise. And, also, to elect and choose Masters, Wardens and other officers annually at such time or times, as to them shall seem most proper. And, also to exact from their members such contribution as they shall judge necessary for the support of their lodge, the relief of their Brethren in distress and contribution toward the Grand Charity fund agreeably to the Constitution of Maso mry and the laws of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky. Recommending to the Brethren aforesaid to reverence and obey their superiors in all things lawful and honest as becomes the honour and passing of Masons, and to record in their Lodge Book this present charter. with their own private regulations and by-laws, and their whole acts and proceedings from time to time, as they occur, and by no means to desert their said Lodge, hereby constituted, or form

them into separate meetings without the consent and approbation of their Master and Wardens, for the time being. All which by the acceptance hereof they are holden and (engaged?) to observe, and the Brethren aforesaid by accepting hereof acknowledge and recognize the Grand Master and Grand Lodge of Kentucky as their superior and shall pay due regard to all such instructions and recommendations as they have, or shall receive from them. And they are also hereby instructed to correspond with the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, and to attend the meetings thereof by their proxy or deputies, authorized under the signature of the Secretary and the seal of their Lodge. And for the more effectual preservation of these presents, the same are hereby appointed to be recorded in the records of the Grand Lodge.

Done in Grand Lodge at Lexington, under our hands and the seal of our Grand Lodge, this nineteenth day of September, Anno Lucis 5804, Anno Domini 1804.

(Signed)

George M. Bibb, Grand Master.

Attest:

Dan'l Bradford, Grand Secretary.

To put into effect the action of Grand Lodge and to set the new lodge to work, the Grand Master on the 9th of October, 1804, issued the following authority to Dan'l Bradford and Jone than Taylor to install the officers and make due returns to him:

"In the name of the Holy Craft:

I, George M. Bibb, Grami Master of the Most Ancient and Honorable Society of Free and Accepted Masons for the Commonwealth of

Kentucky _______ by these presents do command and authorize

them, together with such other true and worthy Past Masters, as can be assembled, to install the officers named in a Charter issued for Jerusalem Lodge, No. 9, to be holden at Hendersonville. And make due returns to me.

Given under my hand and the seal of the Grand Lodge, and attested by our Grand Secretary, this ninth day of October, 1804.

(Signed)

George M. Bibb.

Attested:

Dan'l Bradford, Grand Secretary."

Acting under this suthority, Daniel Bradford, coming all the way from Lexington to Henderson on horseback, on October 24th, 1804, with the assistance of the brethren named below, formally organized the Lodge and installed the officers named in the charter as follows: Innis B. Brent, formerly of Lexington, No. 1, as Master; John Posey, formerly of Hiram Lodge, No. 4, Senior Warden, and Nathan D. Anderson, formerly of Abraham Lodge, No. 8, Junior Warder, william Featherstone was appointed Secretary and Philip Barbour, formerly of Abraham Lodge, No. 8, Treasurer, and they were duly installed. James Wardlaw, a visiting brother, from Solomon's Lodge, No. 5, was appointed, and served, as Tyler pro tem.

In addition to the above named there were present the following visiting brethren, namely: Joseph Ficklin, Solomon Lodge, No. 5; James Murray, Abraham's Lodge, No. 8, and Hutchings G. Barton, Hiram Lodge, No. 24, North Carolina. From the above it will be seen that the charter members of the lodge were:

Innis B. Brent, Master.

John Posey, Senior Warden.

Nathan D. Anderson, Junior Warden.

William Featherstone, Secretary.

Philip Barbour. Tre asurer.

Only five - a small beginning for such great results.

The first business transacted by the lodge was to order to record in full the charter and a thority to Dan'l Bradford to install the officers. Ambrose Barbour, who afterwards served the lodge as Master, had the honor to receive the first degree conferred in the new lodge. His petition was received and balloted on at that first meeting, and, as the record says, he was then and thereupon initiated according to ancient form.

Jerusalem Lodge, No. 9, chartered September 19th, 1804, is still at work under its original charter, and at the same place. It is true, that on August 31st, 1835, this minute appears in the proceedings of Grand Lodge: "No 9 was stricken from the list for three years' delinquency", and no reports appear to have been made from 1831 to 1842. Yet the charter was all these years in the possession of the lodge, for there was in existence, until a few years past, a number of letters and old papers indicating a correspondence between Grand Secretary Philip Swigert and Col. Edmund Hopkins, indicating very plainly that the charter was in the possession of Colonel Hopkins, and that, without any further action by Grand Lodge, the lodge met on November 28th, 1842. (The of ficers at this meeting were Colonel Edmund Hopkins, W. M.; J. D. Anderson, S. W.; and William Soaper, J. W.) From this there has been no interruption of its working.

Of the original first nine lodges,

No. 1 received a new charter.

No. 2 sur rendered its charter.

No. 3 charter was arrested.

No. 4 consolidated with 532, using charter of No. 4.

No. 5 still holds emiginal charter.

No. 6 charter arrested.

No. 7 charter surrendered.

No. 8 moved to Louisville, afterwards consolidated with Clark, No. 51. Mt. Moriah, No. 106 and Antiquity, No. 113.

No. 9 is still at work at its first home, with its original charter, and is the same lodge that it was one hundred and ten years ago; and is the fifth lodge in age on the rolls of the Grana Lodge of Kentucky. It might reasonably be called the fourth, or even the third, for only Nos. 1 and 5 are at work at the place of their birth and as originally organized.

The charter members of Jerusalem Lodge, No. 9, were Innis B.

Brent, John Pesey, Nathan D. Anderson, Wm. Featherstone and Philip

Barbour; and Ambrose Barbour was the first candidate upon whom it

conferred degrees. The first report to Grand Lodge was under

date of September 5th, 1805, and the members of the lodge, in addition to those mentioned above, were Master Masons: Adam Rankin,

John Holloway, Horatic D. Gwatkin, George Holloway, James Murray,

M. W. Fisher, Christopher Tompkins, Daniel Ashby and James Logan.

Fellowcrafts: Samuel Hopkins and James Bell. Entered Apprentices:

Wyatt H. Ingram, James Graham, Thomas H. Herndon, Benj. Talbott,

Ilia Metcalf, Gec. Ashby and Uriah Blue. This addition of eighteen

members in its first year indicates a very rapid growth for the new lodge, especially when we consider the fact that there could not, at that time, have been more than two hundred men in the county and probably not more than twenty or twenty-five in the town. (At an election, held in 1819, only twenty-one votes were cast.) The next year does not seem to have been very prosperous, so far as growth was comerned, for we find the additions to the membership to have been only four. In 1813 the lodge initiated twelve, passed six and raised five, and yet the membership was only twenty-The next year was a good one, ten were initiated, five pasaed, five raised and the membership sixty-one. From this time until about 1830, the lodge seems to have had a steady and prosperous growth. After the meeting of December 27th, 1834, at which E. H. Hopkins was elected Master; J. D. Anderson, S. W., and Wm. Scaper, J. W., no me et ing was held until November 28th, 1842. At the meeting held on this date, there were present E. H. Hopkins, Master: John D. Anderson, S. W.; Wm. Scaper, J. W.; W. F. Thompson, Tr: A. G. Saunders, Secretary pro tem: J. W. Williams, S. D. pro tem: B. W. Winston, J. D. pro tem; Jacob B. Hopkins, Tyler, Messrs. Owen Glass, late of No. 9, James B. Newland, of St. David's Lodge. No. 52, Edinburg, Scotland; Moses Morgan, Late of No. 9; Herry B. Dance, of Lodge No. 2. Texas: P. B. Matthews of St. Joseph's Lodge. The following brethren petitioned for membership at No. 108. this me eting: Newlands, Glass, Wirston, Matthews, Oberdorfer, Morgan. Dance and Saumers.

Jerusalem Lodge, No. 9, the oldest organization of any kind in the community, has continued for an hundred and ten years a

blessing and a benediction, not only to her own members, but to every citizen of her place of habitation.

If the histories of all of those who have been prominent in Masonry in Herderson, through these long years, had been written and could be told, how very interesting it would be especially to the descendants of these brethren of the early days. Some things have been left on the records of the courts, and in tradition, which indicate their usefulness and the esteem in which they were held by their contemporaries.

Innis B. Brent, the first Master of Jerusalem Lodge, No. 9, was the ancestor of a number of prominent people. So far as we know, he never held any civil of fice. He died in 1806.

John Posey, first Senior Warden and second Master of the lodge, was connected with Gen. Thomas Posey, progenitor of the large Posey family so numerous today in this county. The only civil office held by him was Justice of the Peace in 1804.5.6.7.8. and 9.

Of Nathan D. Amerson, the first Junior Warden, nothing is known.

William Deatherstone was the first Secretary and afterwards, in 1806, was Junior Warden. The first Circuit Court in Henderson was opened on the first day of April 1805, and he was one of the five attorneys admitted to practice in the court. He was on that day appointed Commonwealth's Attorney for the County. Profanity seems to have been one of the prevailing sins at that time. At the April term of Circuit Court, in 1806, the record shows that he was indicted for profane swearing, and he, with the presiding judge, Broadwax and several others, among whom was Joel Lambert, the father of one and grand uncle of two Past Masters of Jerusalem

Lodge, were fired five shillings each for the offense. He was said to have been a man of broad and liberal culture and a fine lawyer.

Philip Barbour was the first Treasurer, and was Master of the lodge in 1806. He was very prominent in all affairs connected with the interests of the town and county in that early day in In 1809 he was largely commercial, social and official matters. interested in the manufacture of salt in Illinois and is supposed to have made quite an amount of money in the manufacture and sale of this very necessary article of commerce. He did not, however, confine himself to trade, for in 1813 the records show that he entered into a contract with commissioners appointed by the County Court for that purpose, to build a new court house for the county. This was the first court house built am owned by the county. the courts, heretofore, having been held in an old school house in the woods, on what is now the northwest corner of Main and Second streets, the present site of the handsome banking office of The Union Bank & Trust Co.

This new court house was built of brick and cost the sum of \$5,140.00. James Bell and Gen'l Samuel Hopkins, two brother Masons, were his bondsmen on the contract. He was a Justice of the Peace from 1810 to 1817.

Dr. Adam Rankin was the second Senior Warden and was elected to that office in 1805, and, by virtue of his office, represented his lodge in Grand Lodge, meeting in Lexington that year. He rode horseback to Lexington and on his return rendered a bill for his actual expenses, covering meals for himself and horse,

amounting to \$37.50. This bill is dated Sept. 5th, 1805, the day that he probably started, as Grand Lodge did not meet that year until Sept., 17th, on which day the records show that he served the lodge as Junior Warden pro-tem. He afterwards served the lodge as Treasurer, and in 1810 was Master. From the fact that he made the long trip from Herderson to Lexington on horseback, through a wild and unset thed country, to attend Grand Lodge, he must have been an earnest and useful member of the lodge.

Dr. Rankin went to Henderson in 1800 and was the second physician to locate there. He seems to have at one entered upon the discharge of his duties as a citizen, for at the February term of the County Court, in 1800, was one of a committee to examine the first "goal" built in the county, reporting adversely to paying Jora than Anthony the contract price, \$339.00, because of its faulty construction. This was the first public building erected in Henderson. Dr. Rankin was not a lawyer, yet we find him recorded as one of three judges presiding over the first Circuit Court of the county held in April 1805, he having, in 1802, been appointed with John Holloway, another member of Jerusalem Lodge, a Justice of the Court of Quarter Sessions. Dr. Rankin was the first President of the Board of Trustees of The Henderson Academy. Wyatt Ingram, also a member of Jerusalem Lodge, was a member of this Board.

Dr. Rankin am his descendants have, from the time he located in Henderson, been a powerful factor in all of the social, business and official life, not only of this county, but of all Western Kentucky. It seems that he was married three times, and by each

of these wives he raised families who have been, and are now, prominent in all of the activities of this community. Among his many descendents now living may be mentioned: the family of J. Ed. Rankin, C. W. Rankin, the family of Adam Rankin, who died some years ago, Mrs. Paul J. Marrs, James E. Rankin, John H. and Jas. R. Barret, Henry P. Barret, Past Master of Jerusalem Lodge and Past Grand Master, is a great grandson. Surely this good brother's name will not be forgotten in this lodge and community.

John Holloway was the second Secretary of Jerusalem Lodge,
No. 9; served in this capacity in 1805, 1806 and 1814. He was a
soldier in the Continental Army; was a Justice of the Court of
Quarter Sessions in Henderson County in 1802. Dr. Adam Rankin
was an associate Justice of this Court at the same time. Both
were men of the highest intelligence and of the best moral character and exerted a great power and influence for virtue and morality
in the community. John Holloway was sheriff of the county in
1823 and '24 and was a Justice of the Peace from 1816 until 1823.

Henry P. Barrett, Past Master of this lodge, is a great grandson of John Holloway, as well as of Adam Rankin. It seems that he comes by his love for, and devotion to, Masonry through an honest heredity, as two of his great grandfathers were among the pioneers of the order in Henderson.

John Holloway's posterity is today represented by many of our best people, among whom are the Stites and Elam families, Starling and Irving Thompson, and many others. Richard Stites, another Past Master, and Wm. H., Samuel and Hambleton Stites, members of Jerusalem Lodge, are great grandsons.

Ambrose Barbour, the first person to receive the degree of Masonry in Jerusalem Lodge, was elected Treasurer of the lodge in 1805; was Senior Warden in 1806, and was elected Master in September, 1806. Ambrose Barbour has left a large and more permanent record, in his own handwriting, of his connection with public affairs of the town and county, then any other member of the lodge. having held the office of County and Circuit Clerk from 1803 to 1822, inclusive; and many of the facts in this brief story are gathered from the records written by him in the long ago, in a clear and legible hand writing on the records of the County Clerk's office. These records, though somewhat dimmed by age, and the passage of many years, are easily read, and plainly indicate the care ful and me thodical habits of the man who, so long ago, kept the records, so important now, and upon which the title of most of our homes depends. He was one of the Commissioners appointed to build the court house in 1813.

Ambrose Barbour was paymaster of the Forty-First Regiment Kentucky State Militia from 1813 to 1822.

George Holloway was the first Junior Descon, elected 1805. He continued a member of the lodge until 1813, when he demitted. It seems that, by profession, he was a surveyor and probably in the employ of the Richard Henderson Company, for we find that about the year 1810 Gen'l Samuel Hopkins directed him to survey and set apart to the County for public purposes, two acres, to be taken off of the public square. He made the survey as directed, and the space so set apart includes the site of the present Court House. He was a prominent business man and intimately identified with many

of the business interests of the town. The character of the "department stores" of that day may be inferred from the fact that it was said that he kept a general provision store, including whisky and millinery.

The Henderson Post Office was established in 1801 and, on October the 1st of that year, George Holloway was appointed the Post Master of Henderson; but did not hold the office long, for he was succeeded in June, 1802, by John Husbands.

Horatio D. Gwatkin, the first Senior Deacon, was a soldier in the Continental Army and fought all through the war for American Independence. He died, without leaving children, in 1825.

Meredith W. Fisher was probably one of the first Masons made in Jerusalem Lodge. In 1805 he was Tyler, and some years after, was elected Master.

Daniel Ashby, one of the first members of Jerusalem Lodge, was a faithful member of the lodge for many years, but never held a Masonic office.

The first County Court of Henderson County was organized on the fourth day of June, 1799, and Daniel Ashby was one of the "Gentlemen Justices of the Peace and County Court," taking part in the organization, having been appointed by the Governor. Gen'l Samuel Hopkins, another member of Jerusalem Lodge, was also a member of this first court in this county. Ashby continued to hold the office of Justice of the Peace until 1803. He was one of the original settlers of the town of Henderson, and probably located there about the year 1774. He was sheriff of the County in 1803 and 1804.

Very little can be found as to the early history of James Logan, ames Murray, Christopher Tompkins, Ilai Metcalf and George Ashby, except that Ohris. Tompkins was one of the first attorneys authorized to practice law at the organization of the first Circuit Court of the County in April, 1805.

Gen'l Samuel Hopkins, while one of the first to be initiated into Masorry in Jerusalem Lodge, No. 9, seems to have taken no prominent part in the order, having held no office in the lodge. But he seems to have made up for this by the number of civil and military positions held by him. He was the active agent of The Richard Henderson Company in Kentucky. He was an officer in the Continental Army and bore a conspicuous part in the battles of Princeton, Trenton, Monmouth, Brandywine and Germantown, and was severely wounded at the last named battle. He was captured by the British at the battle of Charloston, in 1780. He went to Henderson in 1797 as the agent of the Richard Handerson Company. He was prominent in the military operations of the time against the Indians in Kentucky and the Territories of Indians and Illinois. His home was at the old Spring Garden Place, about two miles from henderson on the Owensboro Road, where he died in 1819.

General Hopkins was the first representative from Henderson County in the Kentucky Legislature, and continued to represent the County for several terms. In 1813 and again in 1815 he represented the District in the National Congress. In the War of 1812 he was commissioned a Major General by President Madison, who was his second cousin. He was the presiding Justice of the first Circuit Court in the County and resigned this position in 1801.

James Bell became a member of the lodge in 1804 or 1805. In 1806 he was elected Junior Warden. For many years, to the time of his death, he continued a useful and honored member of the lodge.

He was, with General Hopkins, the surety on the bond of Philip Barbour on his contract to build the first County Court House, and was one of the first five attorneys authorized to practice law in the Henderson Circuit Court when organized in April 1805. He was one of the Justices of the Peace from 1807 to 1813. He lived to be ninety six years old.

Wyatt H. Ingram, made a Mason in the Jorusalem Lodge No. 9, probably in 1804, was appointed Junior Deacon in 1806; was Senior Warden in 1813. Wyatt H. Ingram was one of the trustees of the town of Henderson to whom John J. Audubon made application in 1821 for a lease for ninety five years on the property now occupied by Clark's factory, for the purpose of erecting a steam saw mill. A portion or this building is still staming in a good state of preservation, probably the eldest building in the city.

In 1816 he was one of the incorporators of the first bank established in Henderson, under the name of the Bank of Henderson. They erected, what was then a very handsome brick office, upon the present site of the Baldauf building on Main street.

Wyatt Ingram and Payette Pesey in 1914 erected a tobacco wars-house about on the present site of A. S. Winstead's store house, and in 1815 they handled 684 hogsbeads of tobacco. Ingram was one of the first trustees of the Henderson Academy appointed in 1813.

James Graham, one of the members of Jerusalam Lodge in the first

year of its existence, was a man of good standing and character. He owned a farm about two miles from town, on the Owensboro road, and it was for him that the hill, just beyond the Jewish cemetery, called Graham's Hill, was named. Past Muster John C. Worshem is a direct descendant of the family of Grahams.

Thomas H. Hermion was a member of the Lodge in 1805, but demitted in 1806. In 1819 he was elected one of the four trustees of the twon. There were ten candidates and only twenty one voters.

Urish Blue was made a Mason in 1805. In 1806 he was Tyler of Jerusalem Lodge. He was a member of the lodge for many years. People, yet liwing, tell of his reputation as a great and successful bear hunter. In 1807 he was sheriff of the County and served for two years.

Benjamin Talbott was initiated in 1805, and afterwards passed and reised in Jerusalem Ledge. His connection with the Ledge continued through a long and useful life. He was a farmer and owned large bodies of land on and above Green River in this County.

He must have been a great favorite and an honest and capable judge, for he held the office of Gentleman Justice of the Peace of Henderson County from 1805 to 1829, a period of twenty five years, and was high Sheriff of the County in 1829 and 1830.

This Lodge has given to the Grand Lodge of Kentucky three of its Grand Masters, viz: C. H. Johnson, 1877-8; B. C. Witt, 1885-6, and Henry P. Barrett, 1907-8, who in 1915 was appointed by the Governor as Chairman of the Kentucky Fire Insurance Companies draft a proper law for the regulation of Fire Insurance Companies doing business in Kentucky.

UNITY LODGE NO. 10 MILLERSBURG, BOURBON CO., KY.

September 18, 1805, Charter is saed to Unity Lodge No. 10, at Millersburg, Ky.

At the Grand Lodge meeting in August, 1812, this Lodge was cited to show cause at the next meeting for arrears in Grand Lodge dues for two successive years, and disregarding the summons, its Charter was declared for feited September 1, 1814.

ST. John'S LODGE NO.11 FLEMINGSBURG, FLEMING Co., KY.

St. John's Lodge at Flemingsburg, Ky., was chartered, September 18, 1805. Charter surremered August, 1823. John D. Stockton, who represented the Lodge at the communication of the Grand Lodge in 1806, represented Fleming County in the State Legislature in 1812. 1813. 1814. 1818.

PHILANTHROPIC LODGE NO. 12
DAVIDSON CO.. MERO DISTRICT TENN.

Chartered September 18, 1805. Jurisdiction claimed by Nerth Carolina. In 1812 The Grand Lodge of Kentucky yielded to the claims of North Carolina and No. 12 has since that time not appeared upon the roll of Kentucky Lodges.

CINCINNATI LODGE NO. 13 CINCINNATI, OHIO.

Cincinnati Lodge, Cincinnati, Ohio, was chartered March 19, 1806. This Lodge having taken an active part in securing the organization of the Grand Lodge of Ohio was in September, 1809, demitted from the Grand Lodge of Kentucky to the newly organized Grand Lodge of Ohio.

MT. VERNON LODGE NO. 14
GEORGETOWN, SCOTT COUNTY, KY.

Organized August 27, 1807. The first Master of the Lodge was Carey L. Clarke, who was Grand Junior Warden in 1800.

In 1825-26 Thomas H. Bradford of this Lodge was Grand Master; 1836-7 William Brown, Jr., was Grand Master; 1847-48 James H. Daviess was Grand Master.

VINCENNES LODGE NO. 15 VINCENNES, INDIANA.

Chartered October 31, 1809. Upon the organization of the Grand Lodge of Indiana, January 12, 1818, it became Vincennes Lodge No. 1 upon the roster of the Grand Lodge of Indiana.

PARIS UNION LODGE NO. 16
PARIS, BOURBON CO., XY.

The old Lodge No. 2 at Paris, Ky., having forfeited its charter October 1802, Paris Union Lodge No. 16 was chartered August 31,1809.

It forfeited its charter August 1836, was re-instated August 1839. In 1871 its name was changed by the Grand Lodge to Paris Lodge No. 2.

RUSSELLVILLE LODGE NO. 17 RUSSELLVILLE, LOGAN COUNTY, KENTUCKY.

Russellvile Lodge is situate in Logan County, which was one of the first seven counties organized immediately after Kentucky was admitted into the union of States in 1792. It was named for Gen. Benjamin Logan and embraced most all of the State lying South of Green River. Russellville was laid off and settled in 1795 but not incorporated until 1810, it was named for Gen. William Russell, an officer of the Revolutionary war, and the original owner of the land on which the town was located.

Russell ville Lodge was set to work January 14, 1809, under a dispensation from the Grand Lodge of Kentucky with the following membership:

Chris. Compkins.

Henry C. Gist.

John G. Hiter.

James Hunter.

Geo. M. Bibb.

James Hunter.

James H. Davidson.

Joseph Fickler.

The Grand Lodge granted a charter August 28, 1809, and appointed George M. Bibb Master. Joseph Hamilton, Senior Warden. Thomas N.

Gist. Junior Warden.

In 1817 a scheme was put on foot to build a Masonic lodge with a lottery, which was duly authorized by the State Legislature. The lot was purchased from the town and the Lodge erected the building. It was situated on the South-west corner of Summer and Cedar Streets.

In 1833 it was sold to T. Becker and afterwards was bought for a school house, known as Russellville Academy, then sold to the Rev. David Morton, who sold it to the Russellville School District, and in 1908 the building was term down and a graded school building erected on the spot.

In September 1831, the Lodge became defunct until 1845, when the charter was granted under which the lodge is working at this date.

The man of prominence who have belonged to this Lodge are,
Judge George M. Bibb, John Breathitt, and John J. Crittenden. These
men were all active Masons, holding various offices at the beginning and a number of years after the organization of the Lodge.

George M. Bibb, born October 30, 1776, in Prince Edward County, Virginia, educated at Hampden-Sidney and at William & Mary Colleges. He studied law with that distinguished lawyer Richard Venable, or Virginia. He was appointed by Governor Greenup one of the Judges of the Court of Appeals, January 31, 1808, and by Governor Scott made Chief Justice in 1809 but resigned in 1810. In 1827 he was by Governor Desha appointed Chief Justice for the second time. He was twice elected to the United States Senate. During the War of 1812 he distinguished himself for the talent, vigor and zeal with which he supported the Administration of Fresident

Madison. He was Secretary of the Treasury in the Cabinet of
President Tyler. From 1845 until his death in 1859, at 83 years
of age, he served as Assistant to the Attorney General of the
United States. He was four times elected Grand Master of The
Grand Lodge of Kentucky but was at the time a member of Lexington
Lodge No. 1.

John J. Crittenden, born in Woodford County, Kentucky, September 10, 1786. Educated at Washington Academy, Virginia, and at the college of William & Mary. Studied law with George M. Bibb and located in Russellville, Ky. In 1811 elected to represent Logan County in the State Legislature, which office he held six consecutive times. In 1817 was elected Speaker of the House and in the same year elected to the United States Senate, being the youngest member of the body, but proclaimed as one of its foremost orators, as a fit colleague of Henry Clay, and was at once ranked among the ablest states men of the Nation. He was Attorney General of the United States in the Cabinet of President Harrison - upon the death of President resigned and was elected to United States Senate to fill the vacancy of Henry Clay. Was elected Governor of Kentucky in 1848. Appointed a member of President Filemore's Cabinet in 1850, sent to United States Senate 1853 to 1861. In 1861 sent to lower House of Congress and was a member at the time of his death, July 25, 1863.

John Breathitt, - studied law with Judge Caleb Wallace, a member of Lincoln Lodge No. 60. Elected to State Legislature in 1810; made Lieutenant Governor in 1828 and became Governor by election in 1832. Distinguished himself in the advocacy of the

election of General Jackson to the Fresidency in 1828 and in 1832. He died in the Governor's Mansion, February 21, 1834. He was buried in the family burying ground near Russellville.

Among other men of prominence was Judge James H. Bowden, Judge of the Superior Court of Kentucky, was Commissioner of Common Schools in Logan County in 1870. Served in the Legislature in 1875-76, and served two terms as a judge of the Superior Court from 1882-1890, and died in Russellville, Kentucky, March 6,1906.

Hon. Albert G. Rhea was quite a distinguished lawyer and hoted for his power and eloquence as a speaker. He was leader of the Russellville bar for many years. He was a representative in the Legislature of Aentucky in 1846 and 1848 and was in the State Senate in 1859-63. Died in Russellville, Kentucky, November 25, 1884.

Marmaduke B. Morton joined the Lodge in 1823, and filled the various of fices. He was county court clerk for a number of years and afterwards became eashier of the Southern Bank of Kentucky and after its liquidation was Cashier of N. Long & Company Bankers, and held that position until a few years before his death. It was this bank that the James gang robbed, but he was at his dinner at the time of the robbery. The bank was robbed and the robbers gone before he knew it. He died in Russellville, Aentucky, on March 16, 1887, at the ripe old age of 91 years.

Dr. J. B. Peyton who was accidentally killed by a gas explosion in the Banking house of N. Long & Company in 1870. He was for years Master and Secretary of the Lodge. He was a gentleman of the "Old School" always perfect in manners and in dress and so

highly esteemed by the Lodge that it had his portrait painted, which now hangs in the Lodge room.

Carter H. Harrison, was Master of the Lodge a number of times and a man of high honor and integrity. He was an honorary member of the lodge at the time of his death, which occurred October 28, 1913.

Anthony Butler was Grand Master in 1812 and 14. He represented this County in the Legislature in 1818-19. Was quite a prominent citizen in the County and dealt largely in lands. He served as United States Minister to Mexico under appointment from the President.

John G. Orndorff was born in Logan County, October 13, 1838, and was educated in the common schools and Bethel College. He went into the mercantile business in which he continued until 1878, when he was elected Clerk of the Logan County Court and served as such over sixteen years. In 1895 he had everything transcribed pertaining to real estate in Logan County in a condensed form and from this established an abstract effice, in which he can be found at this date attending to the duties pertaining to it. He was made a Master Mason in Adairville Lodge No. 236 in 1860, he was Master of that Lodge in 1873 and after moving to Russellville was Master of the Lodge in 1878 and re-elected. Was elected Grand . S. W. from the floor of the Grand Lodge in 1882; D.G.M. in 1863; Grand Master in 1884.

Dies at he a fine days me the year strong of the form

ST. ANDREWS LODGE NO. 18 CYNTHIANA. HARRISON CO., KY.

Dispensation granted August 30, 1810. Chartered August 29, 1811, became defunct August 27, 1834, restored August 28, 1838.

Old Charter defaced and new one granted October 23, 1902. In 1852-53, Thomas Ware of this Lodge was Grand Master; 1866-7 Isaac T. Martin was Grand Master; 1901-2 Harry Bailey was Grand Master. In 1915 this Lodge fell under the dominion of a coterie who attempted to wage war upon Catholicism and who arrogated to themselves the right to impugn the motives of The Grand Lodge. The Charter was arrested, but under promise of retraction restored by The Grand Lodge of 1915.

WASHINGTON LODGE NO. 19
WASHINGTON, MASON CO., KY.

Chartered August 29, 1811. In August 1824, the Charter was declared forfeit by reason of neglect. September 2, 1847 re-in-stated, became defunct in 1860.

WINCHESTER LODGE NO. 20 WINCHESTER, CLARKE CO., KY.

Dispensation granted August 1811. Chartered August 27, 1812.

The first Master of the Lodge was Asa K. Lewis, who became Grand Master in 1823. Wm. H. Richardson of this Lodge was Grand Master 1816-17 and 1817-18. Chas. Eginton in 1869-70 and 1870-71.

September 2, 1835, the Lodge became defunct but the Charter was restored August 1837.

March 26, 1908, the lodge building, furniture and charter were destroyed by fire and on October 21, 1908 a new charter granted. Among the distinguished men of this lodge:

Wm. H. Richardson, who served two successive terms as Grand Master 1816-17 and 1817-18, and Chas. Eginton who served two terms in the same station 1869-70, 1870-71.

Asa Kentucky Lewis was born in Fayette County, Jenuary 3,1781, and was educated at Transylvania University and Princeton, where he had his law degree. He practiced law for a while in Mt. Sterling, and then moved to Clark County; for several years he was judge of the County Court, but later retired to his large farm about six miles North of Winchester. His remarkable ability caused many offices to seek the man, but he refused all honor or that sort.

Asa K. Lewis won great praise for his bravery and excellent service in the War of 1812. His courage was marked at Dudley's defeat; he also took active part in the bat the of Lake Brie, being stationed, with other kentucky riflemen, in the tops of Perry's ships. It is said that his company carried on their shoulders through the forests from Clarke County to Lake Brie the enormous cables used by Perry's fleet, which were made of Clark County hemp in the rope-walk of David Stone Dodge. Major Lewis brought back to Mentucky as a memente of the battle a British cutlass which he gave to the lodge at Winchester; it is now in the Masonic clubrooms and is an interesting relic, although the leather and wooden hilt were destroyed when the old lodge room burned in 1908.

The charter of Windhester Lodge, given in August, 1812, names Asa K. Lewis as Master, and in the first report of the lodge to the Grand Lodge (in 1813) he is mentioned as Past Master. He figures prominently in mearly all the proceedings of the Grand Lodge from this time until his death. At the Grand Lodge annual communication of August, 1819, he was made Junior Grand Warden, the first step taken by most state officers; afterwards he was, so to speak, in the line of succession and certain to be promoted. In the records of 1821 he is mentioned as "Asa K. Lewis, J. G. W. and S. G. W. P. T."; in 1822 he became Deputy Grand Master; and he was elacted Grand Master of the State August 27, 1823.

Hon. Samuel Hanson. The charter of Winchester Lodge, given in 1812, names Samuel Harson as Junior Warden, and the first returns sent to the Grand Lodge show that he was Master then (1813). He was an eminent Clark Courty lawyer who was born in Maryland, and had unusual educational advantages in Washington City, where he spent his youth. He acquired a superior scholastic and legal education, and in his boyhood days gave premise of the marked ability and capacity for service which so endeared him to Kentuckians. His extraordinary talents gained for him many friends of note in Washington, among them Henry Clay. Whon Mr. Clay returned to Kentucky in 1808, at the end of the congressional session, he was accompanied by his friend Samuel Harson. After a brief residence in other parts of the State, Mr. Hanson located in Clark County, where for nearly half a century he was one of its most esteemed and prominent citizons.

Samuel Hanson was well known all over Kentucky as a jurist, and statesmen of great worth; he was always a consistent Whig, and several times represented his county in both branches of the legislature. He was at one time Speaker of the State Senate, and many records of the Kentucky Legislature give evidence of the genius and conservatism which characterized his political life and exerted a powerful influence upon the policy of Kentucky in one of the stormiest and most threatening periods of her history.

Governor James Clark, elected Circuit Judge in the early twenties, when Kentucky was seeking some way of relief from her serious financial condition. The State was divided into two antagonistic parties, the Relief and Anti-Relief forces: the former advocated drastic laws granting stay of execution upon all judgments in order to allow creditors to recuperate, and the other party opposed The Legislature favored the Relief party, and passed the the m. two years' replevin act after chartering the Bank of the Commonwealth, which was not required to redeem its paper in specie. The question of the power of the Legislature to do this was brought bofore the judges of the State: Judge Clark was first to hold these laws unconstitutional, and brought down a relentless storm of criticism upon himself, as the Relief forces were strong in numbers and He was burnt in effigy all over the State, but no amount of opposition shook his conviction of the truth; nor did he waver when brought before the Legislature to hear resolutions requiring the governor to remove him from office. But he was not cleared in the minds of the people when the resolution failed to receive the necessary two thirds vote, or even when the Court of Appeals sustained his decision. The court was attached, a new one organized, and the factions were resolved into the New and Old Court parties; the strife was exceeding bitter for some time, but the Relief, or New Court party was generally successful. But the inevitable calm came with a change in the sent iment of the people, the obnoxious laws were repealed, and the conservative element was again in power. The greatest evidence of the change was the election of Judge Clark as Governor in 1836.

At the expiration of his term Governor Clark returned to his ceautiful home on the outskirts of Winchester; he is buried in a lonely spot in a field back of the home, and for many years the unhonored grave aroused the curiosity only of strolling boys and dogs, while few people knew that under that neglected mound were the remains of an upright, honest man, and an excellent governor. All movements to erect a suitable monument have sunk into oblivion, and the isolated grave is still unmarked.

Major John Martin, first sheriff of the county. He was a native of Albemarle County, Virginia, where he was for some years deputy sheriff. When the Revolution broke out he volunteered in a company and was made First Sergeant. He was soon promoted to a captaincy and was complimented on his exemplary bravery and discretion during a threatened epidemic of small-pox emong his men. Captain Martin, with two hundred men, was at Charlottesville when the British attacked under Carleton, but was unable to make any resistance because the legislature in session there refused to let out the public arms. For his bravery at the siege of York Capt.

Martin was raised to the rank of Major. After peace was made with

England he brought his family to Kentucky, settling first in what is now Jessamine County, where he lived four years. In 1778 he moved to Clark County, where he spent the remainder of his life. As a Major in the Kentucky militia he was engaged in several Indian wars, and saw service in Ohio under General Arthur St. Clair during the fateful expedition against the Indians in 1791; however, he was not engaged in the disastrous battle of November 4, having been detailed to bring on four hundred men rendezvoused at Fort Hamilton.

Major Martin then returned to his Clark County farm and soon took up the duties of Sheriff, being the first elected in the county; he was for many years one of the judges of the Court of Juarter Sessions; in 1798 he resigned his office and retired to private life on his farm. He lived until 1837, and in the records of Clark County are many documents showing him to have been a large property owner and influential citizen.

James Daniel was a quartermaster in Colonel John Donaldson's regiment, Kentucky mounted militia, during the Thames campaign in the War of 1812.

Robert Taliaferro moved from his home in Caroline County, Virginia, to Clark County, where he began to practice medicine; he later moved to Paris and was Master of the lodge there. In the war of 1812 he served as surgeon in Donaldson's regiment; he died of cholera while bravely and fearlessly attending his patients in an epidemic which terrorized all others.

Abner Cunningham, Grand Master 1840.

Riland Dillard was born in the Rappahannock region of Virginia, and received a legal education. With this great advantage and

his natural talents he gave promise of becoming an excellent if not a famous lawyer. On emigrating to Lexington, Ky., he left the bar for the pulpit, and become one of the greatest orators of the Baptist church in America.

MADISON LODGE NO. 21 HUNTSVILLE, MISS.

Madison Lodge, No. 21, at Huntsville in the Mississippi Territory, was chartered August 28, 1812, with Lewis Winston Master, Thomas Fearn, S. W., John J. Winston, Junior Warden. In 1819 it participated in the organization of the Grand Lodge of Alabama and became a member of that Grand Jurisdiction.

DAVIESS LODGE NO. 22 LEXINGTON, KY.

This lodge was never under dispensation. August 29, 1812, a charter was granted under petition from members of Lexington Lodge No. 1 because, as stated, its membership had grown too large, (its membership was 77).

David Castleman was named as the first Master. In 1813 John Pope represented it in the Grand Lodge. Pope was one of the most distinguished statesmen of Kentucky. He was born in Prince William County, Virginia, in 1770. He settled in Shelby County and represented that constituency in the Kentucky Legislature of 1802, then moved to Lexington and in 1806 represented Fayette County in the Legislature as a colleague of Henry Clay. He was United States

Senator from Kentucky in 1807-1813. He later moved to Springfield, Ky., and in 1816, was appeinted Secretary of State by Governor Gabriel Slaughter. He was, by President Jankson, made Governor of Arkansas which office he held six years, 1829-1835, retiring to his home at Springfield, Ky., he was sent to Congress for six years, 1837-43. At Springfield he married the widow of General Mathew Walton, a distinguished soldier of the Revolution, who was his reighbor, but not his friend. In the cemetery at Springfield upon the same lot lie Walton and Pope and between them the woman who was wife to both, and the monument which lifts itself for at the head of Pope's grave has/a foundation base the stone that once marked Walton's grave.

To this lodge belonged the elder Joseph Cabell Breckinridge, Speaker of the Lentucky Legislature, and who the same year was Grand Orator of the Grand Lodge of Kantucky, an office provided for under the constitution of that time.

In 1845 this lodge was blended with Nelson, No. 107, styled Daviess & Nelson Lodge No. 22, but in 1852 the former name restored. The lodge became defunct in 1886.

MONTGOMERY LODGE NO. 23
MT. STERLING, MONTGOMERY CO., KY.

Dispensation granted August 1812, chartered August 26, 1813. In 1834-35 Richard Apperson was Grand Master. In 1878 the Lodge surrendered its charter. October 25, of the same year, charter was restored. In 1883-84, Howard R. French was the Grand Master. He is now and has for years been the efficient President of the

Board of Directors of the Old Masons Home and one of the most belowed members of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky. March 29, 1903, the Lodge room and charter were destroyed by fire. October 21, 1903, a new charter granted which was destroyed by fire January 26, 1905. A new charter granted October 18, 1905.

This Lodge has for years wielded large influence in the deliberations of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, at the present time walter O. Hopper, a Past Master of the Lodge, is Chairman of one of the important standing committees of the Grand Lodge.

ALLEN LODGE NO. 24 GLASGOW, BARREN CO., KY.

The fact that a Masonic lodge has had existence for approximately one hundred years, claims for it the serious consideration of every thoughtful person, and entitles it to more than a passing notice.

On the 26th day of August, 1813, the Grami Master of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, Free and Accepted Masons, signed the charter which authorized the existence of Allen Lodge No. 24 located at Glasgow, in Barren County, Kentucky. This lodge had requested a charter September 1, 1808 which was withheld for further information respecting the qualification of the petitioners. In the Grand Lodge Report for 1813 is published the return of Washington Lodge, held under dispensation at Glasgow, Barren County, Kentucky, showing Christopher Tempkins, Master, William Edmonds, S. W., Charles Harry, J. W., D. M. Kelton, William Gray, Daniel Culp, Joseph Winlock,

William Douglass, Master Masons. The published official Report of the Grand Lodge proceedings does not show when this dispensation was granted.

In this age of rapid progress and easy travel, it is scarcely possible for one to realize the difficulties encounts red by those who first heard the sound of the gevel in this lodge. The organization of Kentucky as a State is not more than twenty years older that this charter of Allen Lodge, and the organization of Barren County is only a decade older than this charter. At that time the territory immediately surrounding Glasgow was a dense forest with here and there cans brakes and wild vines. The country north of Glasgow, even as far as Green riven was barren of timber and except a few isolated places was not inhabited and of course not cultivated, while for many miles on the south the country was a wilderness sparsely settled, where the trail of the Indian was still found and the wild beast yet made his lair. At the time this charter came to Allen Lodge there existed only two lodges in all of Mentucky south of Muldroughs Hill. The nearest lodge to Glasgow at that time was the one then located at Russellville, Sentucky, and looking nor thwerd the nearest was on the banks of the Ohio river one hum red miles away.

It was perfectly natural, and at the same time for tura to that from its inception Allen Lodge could call to its support the patronage of the best element of citizenship of the town and surrounding country. Its first master and wardens were of that splendid type of manhood who contended with the problems of this frontier period and contributed so much to the history of that time.

It would not be insperopriate in this connection to mention personally some of those sturdy men who life's work was connected with this lodge during the earliest years of its existence, because through their efforts in applying the principles of Masonry is due largely the success of this lodge, the work it has done and the good effects which have come to this community.

The first Master Christopher Thompkins, was master of Allen Lodge for five years during its early history. He was born in Virginia and educated in wentucky. Studied law in the office of John Breckinnidge, at Lexington, Kentucky. Prior to 1813 and for many years after that time, he was Judge of the Circuit Courts in this Judicial District. Before this time he was a resident of Muhlenberg County, and, at the ego of twenty four years, represented that county in the Legislature of Aentucky. After many years service as Judge he resigned that office, and was elected and served for a number of years as the representative of his district in the Congress of the United States. After his service in Congress he became the candidate of the party with which he affiliated for the office of Governor. He was an able lawyer, and during the latter years of his life he devoted his time to the delivery of a series of lectures during each year on the elementary principles am practice of the law for the banefit of the young men of that time who aspired to become members of the legal profession. way he esteblished a law school of more than local reputation. The results of this work manifested itself in the very ablo bar that afterwards existed in his own county and in southern Kentucky. Judge Tompkins died in Glasgow, Kentucky, in the year 1858, at the

age of eighty years.

On the roster of this lodge during its early history appear the mass of Judge Joseph R. Underwood, Judge Thomas B. Monroe, Judge Ben Monroe, General Joseph H. Lewis, Colonel James P. Bates and Judge William Sampson, whose lives were so intimately associated with the history of Kentucky. Many of the members of this lodge in the first years of its existence served their country with credit in the legislative councils of the state and nation. Our Court of Last Resort has had as its Judges at least three who were members of this lodge.

It was but natural that this lodge should be an active factor in the town for the betterment of mankind. It existed at a time when charity by lodges was more extensively dispensed than now, perhaps the conditions existing at that early period made this more necessary. Organized charity is doing a great work now, but nothing more important or more necessary than the work done by this lodge during the first fifty years of its existence.

More than sixty years ago, about the year 1850. Allen Lodge determined as part of its work to aid the educational efforts in this part of Kentucky, which had not made the progress and advancement that we now see. At that time our commons chools were in the ir infancy and state aid for educational purposes had come only to a limited extent compared with the efforts we see in this direction now. In that year this lodge erected necessary buildings, obtained a charter and equipped a high grade school for the education of young ladies, which proved to be/successful and flourishing institution and continued to be for nearly thirty years under the

direct patronage am comtrol of Allen Lodge, affording an opportunity for education in this community and the surrounding country. During that period the lodge itself expended considerable sums of money, at times as much as three hundred dollars a single session, for the gratuitous education of indigent orphan girls.

It is not known to what extent, if at all, this character of work has been done by other lodges; however this effort was eminently successful, and may we say a great work, when we consider the time and circumstances.

After the Civil War State aid was bestowed more liberally in behalf of education, other schools were established in this field. The necessity that had once existed ceased to exist and this school maintained so successfully by Allen Lodge for more than a quarter of a century, came naturally to its end. The buildings were sold and the proceeds invested in a new home for the lodge, more conveniently located.

Although the buildings where this school once flourished have passed to decay, and will soom be gone entirely, this lodge may proudly refer to this part of its history. A generation has passed and gone since this school ceased to exist, and indeed few remain who can remember its existace, yet we are persuaded that the evidences of the good it has done will remain long after the memory of Allen Lodge Female College shall cease. But even now will be found scattered throughout the State of Kentucky, and many other States, a number of noble women who, in recalling their school days may point to the spot where stood Allen Lodge Female College and with pleasure remember their Alma Mater.

Briefly we have given a sketch of this part of the work of Allen Lodge realizing that it demands a more detailed account and a more lengthy notice than the purposes of this paper will permit, but will say that if the fraternity here had no other history it would be entitled to look with pride to its connection with this school.

From the time it was chartered until now, this lodge has had a continuous existence, excepting a short period from 1834 to 1841. It has been continuously at work, adjusting itself at all times to the changes that have come during this long period.

When the Grand Lodge of Kentracky in its wis dom and benevolence determined to establish and locate at Louisville that splendid charity, the Masonic Widows and Orphans' Home, no lodge in this Grand Jurisdiction responded more cherrfully than Allen Lodge. Without a dissenting voice at any time upon the part of any member, it has given always its hearty support to every domand made in aid of this great institution; notwithstanding the fact that this lodge has never found it necessary to ask that one of its wards be committed to the care of this home. Its support in the same way has always been extended to the Old Masons' Home at Shelbyville, Kentucky.

About ten years ago Allen Lodge purchased a large three story brick building located on Green street in the city of Glasgow. Its archives and other property had been carefully presevred from the beginning of its existence as a lodge. These were removed to its new home and there remained until the twenty first day of January, 1906, when all of its property, including its original

charter and records were destroyed by fire; a loss that can never be repaired and one that the lodge feels more keenly as time passes. An old Mason and former member of this lodge truly said in commenting upon the value of the records destroyed, 'the loss of its records was not only a loss to the lodge but a loss to Barren County itself, because these records indirectly contained more of its history perhaps than could be had from any other single source.

After this loss the lodge mover ceased in its activity. A hall was at once rented and a dispensation from the Grand Master came immediately, authorizing the lodge to continue work. At the next session of the Grand Lodge its charter was renewed. The lodge at once began the erection of a new three story brick building on the site of the old hall, which in a few months was completed and duly dedicated and the lodge now continues its work, in perfect harmony, with a membership of 189, more than one hundred years after its charter was granted.

On the 15th day of October, 1913, under a dispensation from the Grand Master, Allen Lodge met to commomorate its one hundredth anniversary. After meeting at the lodge rooms Allen Lodge, with a number of visitors from other lodges formed in procession and under an escort from Glasgow Commandery No. 35 Knights Templar, marched to the Court House and in the presence of an immense audience rendered its anniversary program.

Upon this occasion Judge George W. Bohannon, President of the County Judges Association, made one of the speeches, in the course of which he marrated many interesting happenings connected with the history of the lodge which the Chairman of this Historical Committee heard, and, in the course of the day, found to be unknown to most of the members of Allen Lodge itself. It was this speech and this discovery which prompted him to offer to the Grand Lodge in October following the resolution which called for the compilation of this historical report.

RICHMOND LODGE NO. 25
RICHMOND, MADISON CO., KY.

By R. R. Burnam, Past Grand Master.

When Rishmond received its dispensation to open and work under the Grand Lodge of Kantacky in 1812, the State of Kentacky was but 20 years old *** the City of Richmond fourteen. The Indian had ceased to be a factor in Kentucky, Tennessee and Ohio, but they still roamed in the vast territory south of us in large numbers, and were still a terror to the pioneers in those sections. Elk and Bear still abounded in the Appalachian mountains in abundance, while deer were pentiful within the confines of our own County. Many Revolutionary soldiers still lived in Madison, while large numbers of pioneers who had conflicts with the sawages, were still recounting their adventures to their children and grandchildren. I note these facts to show how alose from a standpoint of years the beginning of our Lodge was to pione er days. Richmond was a village of less than three hundred inhabitants, but the character of her citizenship was very high. Her lawyers, physicians and merchants ranked equal to any in Kentucky. Strange to say there was not a church in Richmond, and a very few church members. latter were onnected with church organizations in the County, where

there were a number. From these facts, one can readily believe that the source of good fellowship, in such a community, were very meager. They enjoyed the few pioneer pleasures, the refere, nothing was more in tural than that the leading citizens should desire a Masonic Lodge established in their midst * * * which contributes so much to social and fraternal relations among men, and which had been a part of Freedom's birthright for all ages.

The following resolution appears on the minutes of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky August 27th, 1812. Resolved that a dispensation be issued for a lodge to be held in the town of Richmond, in the County of Madison, to be known by the name of Richmond Lodge, and that Anthony W. Rollins be the muster: Thomas C. Howard, Senior Warden, and David C. Irvine, Junior Warden. These three with six others constituted the membership of the Lodge U. D. The mames of the other six were: James Parrish, Moses C. Ashby, Richard Holder, Thomas Hanson, David Blackwell, and George C. Patrick. is not known where these brethren received their degrees (this I hope to develop in the future). Dr. A. W. Rollins received his degrees in Winchester Lodge No. 20, during the year 1811, and as he was the one chosen Master, it is fair to presume that he was the moving spirit. Dr. Rollins was born in 1776 in Westmorel and County Pennsylvania. He was sprung from Scotch-Irish stock; his father, Henry Rollins, having be en born in Tyrone County Ireland, emigrating to America in time to participate in the Revolution. He too was a master masen, and a fact worthy of note is that the demit given him by his Lodge just before sailing for America in 1768, is still extant, and preserved in his family Bible. Dr. Rollins was educated

at Washington College, Pennsylvania, and came to Kentucky about 1800, studied medicine with Dr. Warfield, at Lexington, Ky. He afterward returned to Philadelphia completing his course at the Jefferson Medical School, where he had as one of his preceptors the femous Dr. B. Rush, one of the signers of the Declaration of Independence. Dr. Rollins married Miss Rodes, daughter of Capt. Robert Rodes, and continued to live in Madison County until 1882, when he moved to Boone County, Missouri; there he died in 1846, honored by all who knew him. Could it have been the demit of his Revolutionary father induced him to become a Mason, and help establish our Lodge?

The Senior Warden, Thomas C. Howard, who become the first Master after the charter was granted, was by birth a Virginian. He lived for a time at Mt. Sterling, but came to Richmond during the first decade of the last century. He continued to live here until his death in 18. He was a successful merchant, a generous friend, and a true Mason.

David C. Irvine was also born in Virginia, being the son of Christopher Irvine, who with his brother William Irvine, came to Kentucky as pioneers. The latter was desperately wounded at Estill defeat in 1981. David C. Irvine was known as Judge Irvine, deriving his title as a member of the quarter sessions of our County Court; a position of trust and honor held by him many years; he resigned the same in 1809. He was also an officer "Paymaster" in the seventh regiment of the State Militia, and served with same in the War of 1812. A young man, Judge Irvine too was a splendid type of the Scotch-Irish stock, stern, reserved, and

brave. He was a worthy companion for his two friends, Rollins and Howard. He died in 1820, and is buried on what is now known as the Scott place, about one mile from Richmond, the 35th year of his life.

With three such menss of ficers in a new lodge it is by no means surprising that when snother year rolled away, and the time came for granting of a permanent charter. Richmond Lodge U. D. could show an increase of eleven names: -among whom were John Speed Smith, later a Grand Master: Charles S. Todd: Joseph Lees: Sannel Stone; and Richard Centry - all of whom became in after years prominent in the of fairs of our county and State. With such a record, the Grand Lodge passed unanimously the resolution granting the charter, one hundred years ago today, designating Thomas C. Howard as Master, D. C. Irvine, Senior Warden, and David Blackwell, Junior Warden. The next day, August 27, 1813, Thomas C. Howerd was irstalled Master of Richmond Lodge No. 25, in the Grand Lodge by the Grand Muster. Thus the history of this movement begins. It is a source of great regret that the minute book containing the records of the first thirty-five years of Richmond Lodge has been lost, and as all those who belonged to that period have passed away, all we can gather is from the record sent to the Grand Lodge, of rames and dates. The Lodge continued to grow systematically and shows a steady increase yearly until 1824. The administration of Daniel Breck, later a Grand Master, in 1820 was the largest year up to that time, when mineteen names were added to rester. At this time the most prominent names in our community appear on the roster. such mames as:-Letcher, White, Broaddus, Miller, Talbott, Harris,

Breck, Aribble, Dejarnette, Turner, Woods, Reeves, Rodes, Lawrence, Daniel and Irvine.

It is not known where the Lodge met for many years. After the organization of the first Presbyteriam Church in 1827, and the erection of a house of worship, the Lodge met in the second story of that church for many years. This old building was two stories; church was held in the first story, and the Lodge, and a school taught by John H. Brown, were held in the second story. This shows both the intimate connection between the church and Lodge, as well as the high characters of its membership. It may be noted also that Robert Caldwell in giving a lot to Richmond for school purposes (now where the Caldwell High School stands) gave the Masons the right to build on a part of it; a privilege that was never exercised.

The next year 1820-21 brings out a curious historic fact, Namely: that these ancient brethren did not dwell together in peace. Quite a number demitted. Why, we will never know, but this fact remains that in August 1821, for good and sufficient reasons, the Grand Lodge granted a charter to another Lodge to be held in Richmond and to be known as Irvine Lodge No. 69. The first Master was John Tribble, James Dejarnette, Senior Warden and David Irvine, Junior Warden. This Lodge was named in honor of Col. William Irvine, the distinguished pioneer and seldier. It would be difficult to find a Lodge in a small village with so distinguished and patriotic a line of officers, all three had been in service in both the War of 1812 and with the Indians. Capt. Dejarnette was known to the day of his death as "old Fort Meige", by reason of his distinguished service at that battle or seige. Both Irvine and

Tribble were equally as prominent. In this connection it is not inappropriate to marrate that General Tribble was a member of the Mt. Nebo Baptist Church, and a Clerk of that body for years, while acting as such the membership, a few years later, demanded that he demit from his Masonic Lodge, as it was "Not Scriptural". This he declined to do, they then gave him the alternative; he must either demit from his Lodge or from the church. He promptly resigned as clerk, a position he had held for many years, and took his letter from the Church. In later life he connected himself with the followers of Mr. Campbell, and remained faithful to the end of hif life to both his Church and his Lodge.

Nothing could have been more unfortume to than the establishment of this second Lodge at this time for the cause of Mesonry. Almost immediately the ill of fects began to be felt. During the adminiatration of Wm. Rodes as Master, 1822-24, eleven names were added This was due largely to the personality of Col. to the moster. Rodes, which was both striking and attractive, and also to the fact that it was during this period that we furnished the Grand Lodge with out first Grand Master, in the person of Col. John Speed Smith. In 1825 the Lodge failed to make returns to the Grand Lodge...........During the year 1827 five new names appeared on the roll, and this was during the year in which Daniel Brock served as Grand Master. In 1828 three names were added , in 1829 one name was added, and in 1830 four names were added. No further reports were made to the Grand Lodge and in 1834 our charter was arrested for this reason. Whether it was ever taken entirely away. I do not know, but the work ceased entirely until 1839. is a sufficient fact that the charter of Irvine Lodge No. 69 was

declared forfeited the same year 1834 by the Grand Lodge, and it was never renewed. No doubt two troubles caused the surrender of these charters. First, the rivalry or jealousy existing between the two lodges in so small a town. Second, it was during the latter part of the third decade of the 19th century that the strong anti-Masonic spirit swept over our country. It was organized into a political party which nominated a candidate for the Presidency. So strong was this sentiment that even Mr. Clay who had been Grand Master of our Grand Lodge in 1820, demitted from his Lodge at Lexington. He wanted to be President. I have no question but that the action of the church with reference to Gen. Tribble, narrated above, was the product of the same spirit. But as all such movements - founded on ignorance and prejudice, are short-lived, so this one was. An order founded on the honor, morality, truth and benevolence with such antiquity can never be overthrown by any sporadic movement of prejudice or ignorance. In 1839 William Jones was granted the right as Master to reorganize the Lodge. He was a man of splendid social qualities, and through his influence almost immediately the roster began to grow. He was materially assisted in his work by a representative of the Grand Lodge who ceme over from Woodford County.

During the next decade such names as:-J. H. Shackelford,
Samuel Wherrit, Howard Williams, William Holloway, Thomas Goodloe,
Curtis F. Burnam, Richard Runyon, James Lawrence, David S. Goodloe,
Robert Little, John H. Brown, E. D. Stockton, Curtis Field, Jr.,
A. B. Lyman, and other names composing our very best citizens were
added to the roll. In 1850 the number reported to the Grand Lodge

as members, was forty-eight. In 1845 Col. William Helloway was elected Grand Master of the Grand Lodge, our third. He was in every way a worthy successor to his distinguished predecessors; a prince in his appearance and manners, a noble man, and a true Mason.

Then like a rivulet, pent up for a time, the obstructions having been removed, it began and continued to flow smoothly and beautifully. What is pleasing about the study of the old minutes, as well as the membership, is to note the care with which the ballots were cast. Its membership was comprised of the very best and most representative families, and frequently the record says, "The ballot was not fair".

The year 1849 was the year of cholers, and the records show not only many deeds of charity by members, but also records the loss, by that scourge, of a number of members. Among the most distinguished were J. F. Busby and John Lawrence, Jr., In 1860 the roster shows a membership of seventy-three. During the decade from 1850 to 1860, those pears in which Thompson Burnam, Jr., served as Master, showed the greatest gain. This most worthy brother's fame as a wise and accomplished Freemason has survived long after most of his associates have passed eway. During this decade Green Clay Smith was made a Mason (he afterwards became a National figure). Edward W. Turner was mother, he acquired more than local fame, and became a Grand Master. The minutes thow a number of interesting imidents, namely a disagnement with the of ficers of the shurch, where the lodge was held, about repairs, cost of same, and how much the Lodge should pay. A collection

was taken up in answer to a national request amounting to \$10.50, to build a monument to George Washington; a receipt was received for it, and ordered filed carefully away. It would prove interesting now; the monument was never built. (3rd) A request was received from the Lodge at LaGrange, Ky., asking qo-operation in building a school; Robert Morris, no doubt, the originator.

4th. A resolution was introduced as follows:- Resolved-"That during work smoking is prohibited, and the brethren are strictly prohibited, spitting tobacco on the stove." This resolution I followed to the end and strange to relate it was voted down. They declined to have their rights interferred with.

The year 1660 to 1861 was a very prosperous year, showing that eleven candidates were initiated; of these two survive. W. I. Crutcher, who is with us today, and is our oldest member, and Judge Charles H. Breck, who never advanced be youd the E. A. degree. From 1861-65 no returns were made to the Grand Lodge. W. S. Harris was Master in 1861-1862, R. H. Johnson in 1863-1864. It is natural that in Prose perilous days that this should have been true, and it was true of many other Lodges in the State. A large number of the brethren had joined either the Southern or the Union army, and were in the field fighting with their respective stde. interest in the great issue at stake over-shadowed everything else, while waiting and watching for news from the battlefields, excluded vital interest in the Lodge. With the return of peace, and home-coming, a new interest was taken in the old Lodge. Almost at once it began to work. A careful reading of the minutes fail to reveal that the bitterness engendered by the Civil War was ever

carried into the sacred precinct of the Lodgeroom. From December 1869 to December 1871 Thompson Burnam, a Federal soldier, was again Master, while Ambrose J. Dudley, a Confederate, was Senior Warden. During this Administration James B. McCreary was made a Mason......These facts show "how beautifulit is for brethren to dwell together in peace- It is like the precious ointment that ran down the beard over Aaron's beard, down to the skirts of his garments".

In 1870 the number reported to the Grand Lodge was eighty. A great many names had been stricken from the rolls, but many new ones had been added. The terms as Master of Ed. W. Turner, W. L. Crutcher and Thompson Burnsm, Jr., were the most successful. Nor should the name of G. Samuel Roberts be forgotten by whom J. Speed Smith, Jr., was made a Mason.

The decade from 1870 to 1880, was for some reason an unpresperone one; the membership declining from eighty(80) in 1870 to sixty
(60). This was really due, I think, to a clearing up of the rolls,
and the dropping out of a large number, where names had been retained. During this decade the Home at Louisvills was established,
and I am rejoiced to record that every vote ever cast by a representative of Richmond Lodge was in aid of that noble enterprise.
Edward W. Turner, as Grand Master in 1875-1874, urged in his address
the tax of one dellar per annum for five years, on each member,
to pay the debt that had accumulated in building the Home, and our
Lodge subscribed for two life memberships. It is almost time to
take two more.

The services to the Lodge for a number of years of Albert H. Sherly, who was Master for two terms, were of great value. He

moved into our community from Glasgow, and was the boniface at the Garnet House. An attractive personality and enthusiastic Mason. His work in the various degrees is that used almost identically today by our own Lodge. He became while a member here the Grand Junior Warden, and rose step by step to the position of Deputy Grand Master; while serving as such he left the State, much to the regret of his friends, who thought that he would have added to his fame as Grand Master. It was to him that the writer owes more for his Masonic enthusiasm than all others. He passed away many years ago.

There is little to recount from 1890 to the present not familiar to you all. We sold the property over the Southern Bank, and acquired our present quarters, which are beautiful and commodious, and best of all are owned by the three members of the order, and is practically without debt. In 1892 John Speed Smith, Jr., became the Grand Master, he being the fifth. It is but just to say of him that he has left his name more deeply carved on our hearts than any of his predecessors, by reason of the fact to him, more largely than to all others, the old Masons Home at Shelbyville was established. He passed away in 1900, being at the time, Grand High Priest of the Grand Chapter, and in line of the Grand Commandery. He could truly say: "Exegi monumentum perennius aeri."

Our Lodge has given the Grand Lodge six Grand Masters, one Deputy Grand Master, and we might claim another, Lawson Shearer, whose picture hangs on our walls, and who was basely assassinated at the close of the war. Two Grand High Priests, and two deputies. To the Commandery-Two Grand Commanders, and a Grand Treasurer...... In 1890 the membership was Seventy-two(72), in 1900 one hundred and two(102). In 1913 one mundred and twenty six(126).

This is a brief skeleton of our story, and what a story it is when we think of it. In the light of the advance made during the past one hundred years; a period covering almost the history of our ration, and just as greatness has come in every line to the Nation, so it has to our Order. Lodge rooms like churches dot almost every community, and continue to be a source of fellowship, charity and patriotism. May the lessons of self-denial, truth and vision come to us today, and then we will reflect the credit due to those noble men who one hundred years ago with faith in God....... the only confession denanded of our members.....established and started Richmond Lodge Number Twenty-five:

September 19, 1904, the Masonic Temple, one of the largest buildings in Richmond, located on Main street, in the most populuous part of the town, collapsed. The store room below was occupied by a diothing company, the second floor being occupied by the diub rooms and dance hall, and the third story by the lodge rooms of Richmond Lodge, No.25, was completely precised causing a loss of \$10,000.00. The life size oil painting of Past Grand Master J. Speed Smith, Jr., which hung upon the walls, was dostroyed, but in 1917, upon motion of the Grand Master, the directors of the Old Mason's Home presented Richmond Lodge with a copy of the oil portrait that hangs in the main hall of the Home.

Among the present active memberships of this lodge is one of kentucky's most distinguished sons - James Bennett McCreary,

Lieutenant Colonel of the House of Representatives of Kentucky. Six twice Speaker of the House of Representatives of Kentucky. Six times elected to the Congress of the United States from the Eighth Kentucky District. Twice Covernor of Remtucky and a member of the United States Senste, and under Act of Congress appointed by the President and served as a delegate to the Inter-National Monitory Conference held at Brussels, in Belgium, in 1892 - in which conference he held distinguished rank.

This Lodge has given the following Grand Hasters to The Grand Lodge of Mentucky:

John Speed Smith, 1824-25.

Daniel Breck, 1827-28.

William Holloway, 1845-46.

Edward W. Turner, 1872-73.

J. Speed Smith, Jr., 1892-93.

Robert R. Burnam. 1910-11.

MAYSVILLE LODGE NO. 26
MAYSVILLE, MASON CO., KY.

Char to red August 31, 1814.

Samuel January, Master.

William Porter, S. W.

Enis Duman, J. W.

This Lodge maintained its existence until August, 1830, when it surrendered its charter. In 1883, by order of The Grand Lodge, its books and papers were delivered up by the Grand Secretary to Lodge No. 52 at that place.

COLUMBIA LODGE VO. 27
COLUMBIA. ADAIR COUNTY, KY.

Chartered November 21, 1814. Charter forfeited August 27, 1834.

FRANKLIN LODGE NO. 28
DANVILLE, BOYLE COUNTY, Ky.

Dispensation granted prior to November 1814, the official printed records of the Grand Lodge do not disclose the date, chartered November 21, 1814. George C. Cowan the first Master, Michael G. Younce, Senior Warden. The Junior Warden was James G. Birney, the first "Liberty" candidate for President of the United States, and whose cardidacy accomplished the defeat of Henry Clay and the election of James K. Polk. He was elected Grand Junior Warden in 1817.

In 1822 Pavid G. Cozan, of this Lodge, was elected Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky.

In September 1835, this Lodge became defunct, but the charter was restored in 1850. Fountains T. Fox being named as the first Master. Fox represented Pulaski County, at one time, in the State Legislature and was later elected Judge of the Circuit Court in the Boyle, Lincoln, Pulaski &c District. In 1886 he became a Mason of fifty years stending.

Franklin Lodge No. 28 again became defunct October 29, 1864.
October 24, 1867 a charter was granted to Franklin Lodge U. D., as No. 28 to be located at Danville, Ky., and the charter named T. J. Dillehay to be first Master, Scott McGroty, Senior Warden, W. A. Hopkins, Junior Warden.

One of the members of this Lodge was George G. Vest, who later distinguished himself as Congressman and as United States Senator

from Missouri.

In 1869 W. Larue Thomas was made a Mason in this Lodge - he became the Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky in 1880. In 1914 his dead body was brought from his home on the Pacific Coast to be buried with funeral grand honors by the Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, in the came tery at Danville, where lay the comrades of his earlier life.

Another member of this Lodge was R. D. Logan, a captain in John E. Morgan's Brigade of the Confederate Army. He was a quiet, unobtrusive country gentleman, a bachelor of open handed hospitality, brave, honest and true. A monument to his memory mounted with a life like statue of himself has been erected in the burial park on Main Street of the town, and with it grouped the monument of the great physician and surgeon Ephriam McDowell, and that of the distinguished educator, preacher and theologian, David Rice.

In 1871 the Lodge was strengthed by having consolidated with it Daniel Lodge, No. 396, which had been chartered in 1864.

Franklin Lodge owns and occupies handsome and commodious quarters - its membership is made up of one of the most attractive bodies of men to be found in Central Kentucky. In Masonic zeal, and in the acrrect and attractive rendition of the work and the conference of the degrees of Ancient Craft Masonry, this Lodge has no superior in Kentucky - and this excellence is due to the untiring labor, the unquenchable interest, to the Masonic scholarship, and the sweet, attractive personality of one man, and that man is Benry G. Sandifer.

Henry G. Sandifer was born at Lamester, Ky., September 2,1846.

In early life he moved to Danville, and became connected with the Boyle National Bank in 1864, which connection he sustaimed until his death. October 12, 1912.

He was initiated into Mesorry, in Franklin Lodge, October 5, 1867. Elected Grand Mester of the Grand Council in 1875. Grand High Priest in 1888. Eminent Grand Commander in 1904.

As banker and business man he was always identified with the progressive element of the community, and regarded, in all matters, as one of its safest advisors. He was a devoted Christian, loved and respected by all who knew him. Giving offense to none, he had the courage of his convictions and no one ever doubted how and where he stood. Game, gentle, generous was he; in his daily life as clean as we would have our sisters be.

He loved the fields, the woods, the streams, with rod and gun an expert, and in the camp, no matter whose tent was empty, his was always full. He lived close to nature, and dying, his summons was an instant call and his deathbed the grassy banks of a rippling river. He was one of Nature's noblemen, and he died as he would have wished, in her lap.

Kentucky, in the past twenty-five years, mover produced a more striking political figure than the late Judge Charles R. McDowell, of Danville, a member of this ledge, whose reputation as a raconteur and wit extended beyond the confines of the State. Judge McDowell was a born diplomat, and it was an account of this and his other attributes that he was once selected by the Governor of Kentucky and sent to the State of Virginia on a ticklish diplomatic mission as Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary.

There had been some trouble in a border county and the sovereignty of Kentucky, it was alleged, had been grossly violated by officers of a contiguous border county of Virginia. The situation had gone from had to worse when it was resolved by the Aentucky of ficers to put the matter before the Virginia suthorities, and the choice fell on Judge McDowell as the one best suited by nature and attainments to represent Kentucky.

Judge McDowell went to Richmond and met the Governor and the other State officials of the Old Dominion, who were delighted with his charming personality and his fund of good stories and the way he told them. Judge McDowell took his time about letting the Virginia Governor know his business there, but when he did he had little trouble winning over the Governor and satisfactorily adjusting the two uble between the two Commonwealths.

Warren Larme Thomas, Grand Master, 1880-01, was a member of this Lodge. He was born at Elizabethtown, Ky., January 25, 1845. He was the son of Joseph H. and Amanda Larue Thomas. When he was quite young his parents moved to Danville, Ky., where he was later graduated from Center College with high honors, and since which time he has led an active, successful, upright business life.

For quite a number of years he resided at Hussellville, Ky., and thereafter moved to Pittsburg, Pa., where he seen took rank as one of the leading business men of that city, being the President and active manager of a large insurance company.

He was one of the most eminent Masons in the United States, perhaps no other Mason in the United States was ever honored by being elected as the presiding officer of so many Grand Bodies

and it is certain that none ever filled so many offices with such distinction and credit as he. The principal ones of these offices were as follows:

Grand Master of Grand Lodge of Kentucky, Free and Accepted Masons.

Grand High Priest of the Grand Chapter of Kentucky, Royal Arch

Masons.

Grand Master of the Grand Council of Kentucky, Royal and Select Masters.

Grand Commander of Grand Commandery of Kentucky, Knights Templar.

Grand Master of the Grand Encampment of Knights Templar of
the United States of America.

He died at Tuoson, Arizona, November 24, 1914, and on Monday, November 30, 1914, at the Baptist church in Danville, Ky., a very impressive funeral service was held by Ryan Commandery, No. 17, Knights Templar.

A large number of the present and past Grand Officers of the Grand Commandery of Kentucky were present and among the visitors was E. M. McLean (Pittsburg, Pa.) Past Commander.

The body was then escorted to the Danville cemetery where it was returned to the dust from whence it came, after appropriate service by the Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, Free and Accepted Masons, assisted by Past Grand Master Wm. H. Meffert, and Grand Senior Warden James N. Saunders, together with the brethren of Franklin Lodge, No. 28, F. & A. M. and the Sir Knights of Ryan Commundery.

MADISON LODGE NO. 29 MADISON, INDIANA.

Chartered August 31, 1815. Upon the organization of the Grand Lodge of Indiana, January 12, 1818, it became No. 4 under that Grand Jurisdiction, it was afterward given the number 2.

Alexander A. Meek, who was named as the first Master of the Lodge under its Kentucky charter, became the Grand Master of the Grand Loage of Indiana.

BURKSVILLE LODGE NO. ZO BURKSVILLE, CUMBERLAND CO., KY.

This lodge was chartered in 1815 and became defunct in 1823.

SIMPSON LODGE NO. 31 NEWCASTLE, HENRY CO., KY.

Simpson Lodge No. 31, was charted in August 1815, destroyed by fire in 1837, and surrendered its charter August 28, 1838.

ST. PAULS LODGE NO. 32 MIDDLETOWN, JEFFERSON CO., KY.

Chartered August 1815. In August 1819, the charter was withdrawn from this Lodge for its refusal to honor a requisition of the Grand Lodge, but was restored to it December 1, 1819. In 1823 the Lodge surrendered its charter.

HARMONY LODGE NO. 33

Harmony Lodge No. 7 having in 1814 become defunct, the members of that Lodge petitioned and received a charter in August, 1816, for the establishment of Harmony Lodge No. 33.

Upon the establishment of the Grand Lodge of Mississippi, August 25, 1818, it became No. 1 of that Grand Jurisdiction.

LAWRENCE LODGE NO. 34 SHAWNEETOWN, ILL.

Granted dispensation September 1815. Chartered August, 1816, dropped from the Grand Lodge rolls in 1824. In 1825 recognized by the Grand Lodge of Illinois.

MURRAY LODGE NO. 35 LEXINGTON, FAYETTE CO., KY.

Chartered August 26, 1816. Joseph C. Breckinridge being the first Master. Became defunct August 25, 1828.

BLAZING STAR LODGE NO. 36 CHARLESTOWN, INDIANA.

Chartered August 1816. Upon the organization of the Grand Lodge of Indiana, January 12, 1818, it became No. 3 under that Grand Jurisdiction.

HOPKINSVILLE LODGE NO. 37 HOPKINSVILLE. CHRISTIAN CO., KY.

Chartered August 28, 1816, and became defunct August 1834.

New charter greated September 2, 1840. 1876-77 R. M. Farleigh of this Lodge was Grand Master.

BARDSTOWN LODGE NO. 38
BARDSTOWN, NELSON CO., KY.

Chartered August 28, 1816, became defunct September 1, 1831.

POTOSI LODGE NO. 39
POTOSI. MO.

Chartered August, 1816, dropped in 1819, afterwards became No. 130 on Missouri Register.

AMITY LODGE NO. 40 MILLERSBURG, BOURBON CO., KY.

Prior to September 17, 1605, a Masonic Lodge was organized at Millersburg, Bourbon Co., Ky., and September 17th, 1805 was chartered under the name of Unity Lodge No. 10 with George W. Culp W.M., Hubbard Williams S. W., and David Hopkins, J. W. Unity Lodge No.10 failing to comply with some ruling of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, possibly on account of the disturbed condition of the country at that time, for feited its charter September 2nd, 1814. Three years later a Masonic Lodge was again organized at Millersburg and was

chartered August 27th, 1817, by the Grand Lodge of Kentucky at Masons Hall in Lexington, Ky., with John Willett, D. G. M., and R. T. Todd, Grand Sec'y, P. T., under the name of Amity Lodge No. 40 with John H. Sanders W.M., William Bowles, S. W. and Allen Trigg, J. W.

Prior to Saptember 26th, 1897, the home of Masonry in Millersburg was situated at the corner of Fifth and Vimont streets on the sight now owned and occupied by Mr. C. W. Corrington. The building first occupied by the order was a rude log structure built in the early part of the century and later destroyed by fire. This building was replaced by a two story frame structure which was used jointly by the City of Millersburg and the Masonic order, the City occupying the first floor as a City Hall, and the Masonic order occupying the second floor as lodge rooms. This building was also used as a school building until the establishment of the public school system. Later litigation developed between the City of Millersburg and Amity Lodge No. 40 over the ownership of this building and the matter was fought out in the Circuit Court and decided in favor of the Masonic order. This primitive building, although never an ornament to the little City in which it stood, was destined to become one of the Historic Masonic buildings of Kentucky, in as much as for many years within its walls the illustrious Hiram Bassett, peer of all Kentucky Masons was wont to wield the gavel as W. M. P. T., and to exemplify and bend down to the craft, work to this day known all ever the State as the "Hiram Bassett Work". Thile unable to claim him as a member of our Lodge, Hiram Bassett was closer associated with Amity Lodge No. 40 than with any other

subordinate ladge in the State. For many years prior to his death he was a regular attendent at its regular meetings and it was in this unpretentious building that Masons gathered from all parts of the State to pay the last tribute of respect to their illustrations dead when all that remained of Hiram Bassett was laid to rest, November 11th, 1890, by the of ficers of the Grand Lodge, Grand Chapter and Grand Commandery of Kentucky. A life sized portunit together with his Knights Templar sword which has dubbed and created so many Knights in this and other sections of the State, adorn the walls of the lodge mean to day.

September 25th, 1897. Amity Lodge No. 40, suffered mother disastrous fire when this historic building was burned with practically all of its contents, the original charter, records and jewels of the lodge being smong the few articles saved. Again homeless, and practically penniless, that fraternal spirit of brotherly love and friendship was exemplified by the Odd Fellows who extended the Loage a temporary abiding place. For a time the life of the Mesonio Lodge at Milloroburg seemed to hang in the balances, but only for a brief period. Unduented by this second calamity a few of the most energetic and patrictic members of the order set about to re-establish a permanent home. A proposition having been received from Mr. C. W. Sorring ton to buy the sight of the old building and it having be en learned that a desirable location could be secured on Main Street, a deal was soon consumated in which Mr. C. W. Corrington became the owner of the site which had for almost a century sheltered Masonry, and the Masonic order became the owner of the two story brick building on Main street. This building

which is the present home of Masoury in Millersburg, is a substantial two story brick and is occupied as a store room on the first floor with lodge rooms above. Entrance to the lodge rooms is gained by a wide hall fronting on Main street, with commodius stair leading to lodge rooms above. In the rear of this hall which contains the stair is a long marrow room with kitchen in extreme rear which is indispensible as a banquet hall.

This Lodge has never directly had a charge in the Masonic Widows and Orphans Home although it was through its agency that three children residing in this jurisdiction at the time of the death of a father were taken and cared for by the Home.

A disastrous fire obliterated the Millersburg Female College builing in 1907, Amity Lodge No. 40, subscribed two hundred and fifty dollars in cash and fifty dollars toward furnishing a room in the new building and helped insure the continuance of the college.

LANDMARK LODGE NO. 41
VERSAILLES, WOODFORD CO., KY.

Chartered August 27, 1817. In 1821-22 John McKinney, Jr., of this Lodge was Grand Master.

INDUSTRY LODGE NO. 42 FRANKFORT, KY.

Chartered August 27, 1817, became defunct August 30, 1821.

MELOHISEDEK LODGE NO. 43 SALEM, INDIANA.

Chartered August 1817. Upon the formation of the Grand Lodge of Indiana on January 13, 1818, it became No. 5 upon the Register of Indiana.

LAWRENCEBURG LODGE NO. 44 LAWRENCEBURG, INDIANA.

Chartered August 1817, upon the formation of the Grand Lodge of Indiana, on January 13, 1818, it became No. 4 upon the Indiana Register.

PISGAH LODGE NO. 45 CORYDON, INDIANA.

Chartered August 1817. Upon the organization of the Grand Lodge of Indiana, January 12, 1818, it became subject to that Grand Jurisdiction.

FELICIANA LODGE NO. 46 ST. FRANCISVILLE, LA.

Chartered August 27, 1817. In 1834 this Lodge became Feliciana Lodge No. 31 under the Grand Lodge of Louisiana.

August 27, 1917, the Lodge odebrated its centennial anniversary by the seating of a Memorial Tablet in the lodge room, immediately followed by a memorial service at the Grace Episcopal Church, the corner stone of which was laid by the Lodge August 27,1827.

The church and the lodge united in a magnificent banquet as the closing feature of this double celebration.

FORTITUDE LODGE NO. 47
LAGRANGE, OLDHAM CO., KY.

The history of Fortitude Lodge No. 47 began with the granting of a charter to a number of Masons at Transylvania, Jefferson County, Kentucky, on September 1, 1818, by the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, which was signed by Thos. Bodley, D. G. M., and R. S. Todd, Secretary.

From the date of its Charter the records of the Lodge are silent until November 12, 1825, when Robert Warner Lewis was elected Master and Gabriel H. Barbour, Secretary. Nothing of importance transpired until 1844, except that the following Masters were elected:

J. S. Crutchfield, Jan. 14, 1826; Dec. 27, 1828, June 24,1831; 1832.

William Adams, Jure 23, 1827.

Willis Oglesby, Dec. 27, 1827, June 24, 1829; Dec. 27, 1829; 1832.

R. W. Lewis, Jan. 24, 1828.

After 1832 the Lodge was imactive until September 7, 1844, when a meeting of the Lodge was held presided over by Past Masters(the officers present being H. Wingate, W.H., P. Swigert, S. W., Willis Stewart, J. W., and John Payne Secretary), under the following authority as shown by the minutes of the meeting: "P. Swigert, Grand Secretary, informed the brethren that the Grand Lodge had authorized the resuscitation of Fortitude Lodge No. 47 and its removal to

LaGrange, and that Francis Taylor had been appointed Master,

J. S. Crutchfield, S. W., Hugh Rodman, J. W., and Henry Wingate,

to install the Master".

Since said date the Lodge has always been active, but the records of the Lodge have been lost from 1875 to 1895.

The following is a list of the Masters of Fortitude Lodge No. 47 as shown by the records, since 1843:

Hugh Rodman, Dec. 27, 1844.

Robert Mallory, Dec. 26, 1845.

A. M. Gazlay. June 27, 1846.

William C. Price. Dec. 28, 1846

Wm. D. Mitchell, Jure 24, 1847;1848; June 23, 1849.

N. Lane. Dec. 27, 1847.

J. G. Gibson, Dec. 27, 1849.

J. H. Wheeler. June 22, 1850.

E. Whitesides, Dec. 22, 1850.

G. Keightley, June 24, 1851.

J. J. Wellman. Dec. 27, 1851.

Brent Hopkins, 1852, 1853, 1854, 1855, 1856, 1857, 1859.

J. W. Clay ton. Dec. 27, 1853, Dec. 27, 1866; 1870,1872.

W. C. Mahan, Dec. 27, 1888.

(ROBERT MORRIS, Dec. 27, 1860, Dec. 27, 1871.)

John A. Dougherty, 1861.

Wm. M. Talbot. Dec. 27, 1662.

Robert Mason. Dec. 28, 1863.

H. K. Litt, Dec. 27, 1864; 1865.

N. S. Bennett, Dec. 27, 1867.

William Fotts, Dec. 29, 1868; Dec. 27, 1869.

Martin H. Coons, Ded. 27, 1873.

William Manby, Dec. 26, 1974.

J. R. Adams. 1897, 1897, 1901.

J. T. Bampson, 1896.

J. C. Tade, 1898.

J. R. Guthrie, 1899.

S. E. DeHaven, 1900.

J. W. Yagor, 1902.

Wm. J. Manby, 1903. 1904, 1906.

James S. Morris, 1908.

Robert T. Crowe. 1909.

J. Ballard Clark. 1910.

6. B. Moody, 1911.

S. D. Clore, 1912.

g. A. Sampson, 1913.

Fortitude Lodge No. 47 held all of its mestings during the Civil War except on the following dates for the reasons herein shown: Sept. 1862: The distracted condition of the country prevented a meeting of the soige. W. C. Mahan, Sec."

"Oct., 1862: The condition of the country still preventing a meeting of the Lodge. W. C. Mahan, Sec." "Nov. 1862: No meeting of the Lodge on account of difficulties in the country. W. C. Mahan, Sec".

For many years Fortitude Lodge No. 47 held its meetings in the old school building at LaGrange which was formarly the Masonic College, after which, about twenty years ago, it purchased the old Baptist Church in LaGrange which it used up to September, 1910, when the Lodge built a handsome Masonic Temple in LaGrange which it now owns and occupies.

The furniture of the Lodge has been camed by the Lodge beyond the memory of its oldest member and it is massive and beautiful. The Bible of the Lodge is an immense and a unique book, and contains the genealogy of the DALLAS family. Many years ago it was presented to the Lodge by ROBERT MORRIS who is said to have received it after the Civil War from a Union Army of ficer who had obtained it somewhere in the South when he was with Sherman on his march to the sea. Many people have visited Fortitude Lodge from many parts of the country of see this Bible and many offers have been made for its purchase, but the Lodge holds it priceless.

At the present time Fortifule Lodge No. 47 has about 160 members, is in a strong finencial condition, and prides itself upon its strict adherence to the ritual as taught us by ROBERT MORRIS, who is chiefest among the many illustrices Masons Fortifule Lodge No. 47 has been proud to have for its members.

The priginal charter of the Lodge dated in 1818 is in a perfect state of preservation and is carofully guarded by the Lodge as its greatest and most valuable possession.

For titude Lodge was made famous by having as one of its members "Rob" Morris whose name and famous are known to the Masons of three continents.

He was born at Oxford, Mass., July 31, 1818, and moved to Oxford, Miss., about 1845, where he was Principal of Sylvan Academy. He was married at the age of 23, Made a Mason in Oxford, Miss., in 1846,

exalted to the Royal Arch at Lexington, Ky., in 1848, passed the Circle as Royal and select Master at Natchez, Miss., in 1850, dubbed a Knight Templar the same year at Jackson, Miss., Sublime Prince of the Royal Secret degree of the Kentucky Sovereign Consistory, "filled all the positions from Grand Junior Warden to Grand Master from 1855 to 1858, have been upon most of its prominent committees, and am a life member as Past Grand Master; at various times I represented Antiquity Lodge No. ---, Model Lodge No. 200, Crotona Lodge No. 339 and perhaps others at the meetings of the Grand Lodge". The quoted words are in the handwriting of Morris as part of his testimony in a deposition given in 1872 in a suit against the Grand Lodge of Kentucky by the Trustees of Funk Seminary.

He was Master of Fortitude Lodge No. 47 from December, 27th, 1860 to September 3, 1861, when he was demitted but the cause of the demit is not stated in the minutes. He again became a member of the Lodge and was Master from December, 1871 to December, 1872.

While the records show that many mesters failed to sign the minutes, no meeting was ever presided over by Morris without his signing the records.

He was an extensive traveler both in Europe and America and twice went to the Holy Land in the search for Masonic light. He received 142 degrees of regular orders while searching out the foundation trestle-board and workmen of the order. He organized and opened the first lodge of Masone in the Holy Land and was the first Master of King Solomon Lodge in Jerusalem. He was initiated into the rites and ceremonies of Masonry as practiced by the Araba.

He was the origina tor and founder of the Order of the Eastern Star. In Jackson, Miss., in 1849-50 he invited a neighbor Mason and his wife to join him and his wife and in his own parlor communicated the degree. They were the first to hear the words, see the signs, feel the grips, and sing the songs of the Eastern Star.

On December 17, 1884, in the city of New York, he was crowned "Poet Laureste of Freemssonry", by a large conclave of the dignitaries of Masomy from all over our country and from foreign shores.

Robert Morris was a voluminous composer and wrote a large number of works on Masonry. He edited the "Kentucky Freemason" in 1853, the American Freemason in 1853 to 1858, the "Voice of Masonry" 1857-59, "Light in Masonry, in 1873; beside contributing to almost every Masonic paper published in his time. He drafted the constitution of the Grand Encampment in 1856 and that of the Grand Lodge in 1860.

Having passed through the chairs of Blue Lodge, Chapter, Council, Commandery, Grand Consistory and Grand Lodge, and having spent the strength, thought and wisdom of his early manhood in a close study of the rituals, codes and forms of the art of Masorry, he very justly deserved the title of "the brightest Masor of his day".

He was a church and Sunday-school man and wrote many songs for both, one "Galilee" known and sung throughout America. His most noted poem is the "Level and the Square".

He passed to his reward at his home in LaGrange, Ky., August 31, 1888, having reached his three score and ten years by one month.

His funeral, conducted by Blue Lodge and Commandery, was the

said Funk.

most imposing and impressive that the city ever saw, the interment had with honors worthy of his distinguished fame and the exalted positions he had occupied. Fast Grand Master, Hiram Bassett, as proxy of Grand Master Smith, conducted the ceremonies. An imposing granite shaft marks his grave, the gift of the Craft at large.

The Grand Loog e of Kentucky is perhaps the only one that ever went into the business of running a school.

By act of the Legislature February 22, 1842, Funk Seminary was incorporated agreeable to the provisions of the will of William Funk.

Buildings were put up, apparatus secured and the school started. However, in 1846, an amendment to the charter was made by the Legislature, in which it was recited that the Funk trustees had made an agreement with the Grand Locge to convey to the Lodge all the property of every kind on condition that the Lodge would conduct a school at LaGrange according to the provisions of the will of

The trustees of the Funk Seminary did so transfer the property and the Grand Lodge started to conduct the school. Beside the college proper, the Grand Lodge got by the transfer some two hundred screen of land adjacent to the town of LaGrange. It was provided in the deed to the Grand Lodge that should it fail to keep the school as required them all the property was to revert to the trustees.

The Grand Lodge failed to conduct the school or any school for several years and a suit was instituted to get possession of the property before conveyed. On final determination of this suit in 1872.

a judgment was had against the Grand Lodge requiring it to transfer all the property to the then trustees of the Funk Seminary, with about three thousand dollars.

Just why the Grand Lodge ever undertook this scheme does not appear in the records of the suit in the Oldham Circuit Court.

The old Masonic College building was used as the LaGrange Public School until 1911, when it was destroyed by fire.

NO. 48.

No charter of this number even issued.

NO. 49.

No charter of this number ever is are a.

SPRINGFIELD LODGE NO. 50 .
SPRINGFIELD, WASHINGTON CO., KY.
WRITTEN BY F. B. NG.

Springfield Lodge No. 50, located at Springfield, Kentucky, in point of continuance and unbroken existence, is one of the class lodges under the jurisdiction of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, having been anthorized to work under a charter granted by the Grand Lodge at its 26th Communication, September 1, 1818, at Lexington, Ky. The only Lodges in Kentucky older than this Lodge are Lexington No. 1, Hiram No. 4, Solomon's No. 5, Abraham No. 8, Mt. Vernon No. 14, Lmity No. 40, Landmark No. 41. The original

charter, written on parchment, signed by Thomas Bodley, D. G. Master under W. E. Richardson, Grand Master, and Thomas Todd, Grand Secretary, and the first Bible which lay on the altar, a Catholic Bible placed there by the first Master who was a member of the Catholic Church and the uncle of a Roman Catholic Arch Bishop, are now in possession of the Lodge, treasured among its most valued possessions. The charter has never been arrested, nor has the name of the Lodge or its location been changed during a continuous period of ninety-nine years. The Lodge minutes are complete back to the year 1823. Even during the trying time of the Civil War when most of the members were absent fighting on one side or the other of that great conflict, a member of the Lodge who was never advanced beyond the Entered Apprentice Degree, Thomas S. Grundy, paid all the dues of the absent members to the Grand Lodge during the four years of the war.

The first officers were Raphael Lancaster, Master, John Anderson, S. W., and John Bainbridge, J. W. Throughout its history the lodge has been fortunate in having on its roll as lifelong members, from youth to old age, any of the most prominent and honored names of this community. Major W. B. Booker was an officer for twenty-five years and Grand Junior Warden in 1636.6. D. B. Cosby was Master for seven consecutive terms. Hon. W. H. Hayes, a gallant soldier of the Civil War, Lieutenant Colonel of the 10th Kentucky Cavalry, and afterwards Judge of the United States District Court at Louis-ville, presided over this Lodge as its Master for seven terms. A. G. Bevil was Tyler for twenty-six consecutive years. The names of D. E. and W. B. Spears, father and son, the latter now living, (having be en initiated in 1848), one or the other, have been on this Lodge

calhoun, Sylvester Muratta and the elder Spears are mass of men whose memory we would keep alive, not only because of the esterm in which they were held as citizens of Washington County, out also because of their life-long and unfailing interest and labors in the cause of Massnry and the welfare of Springfield Lodge No. 50, which continued from the days of their early youth in the 1820's and 1830's to their old age within the memory of those who are yet members of the Lodge.

James N. Sannders, the present Grand Master of The Grand Lodge, and for four years Master of Springfield Lodge, is our only honorary member, his Masonic Monitor, dedicated to this lodge by a besutiful inscription on its title page, is a most carefully prepared and intelligent exposition of the monitorial part of the philosophy of Masonry, and we confidently expect to see its general adoption and use by the Masonic Lodges of Kentucky. Springfield Lodge No.50 has been honored by the Grand Lodge of Kentucky by the exaltation of one of its members, Hon. W. C. McChord, to the position of Grand Master. At the 101st Convocation of the Grand Lodge, Grand Master McChord presided over one of the stormy periods of that body's his tory, which arose in connection with the sale of the Old Mesonic Temple at Louisville and the building of the New Masonic. the present home of the Grand Lodge, which he dedicated in 1901. Under his skilful guidance, a situation which threatened to become an unforturate breach between the Grand Lodge and the Board of Directors of the Masonic Widows and Orphans Home was peacefully and harmoniously averted, with the admirable results which have followed.

W. C. McChord's achievements have not been restricted to Masonry. In professional life he has been and is one of the most distinguished lawyers in Kentucky, representing both private and corporation interests. He was the builder and President of the Middle Division of the Cumberland & Ohio Railroad from Bardstown to Springfield, which later became a part of the Louisville & Nashville system, at which time he was made a District Attorney for the L. & N. In public life he represented the county as its County Attorney, its representative in the General Assembly, and its delegate in the convention which framed the present constitution of Kentucky. He was appointed by the Governor Chairman of the Commission to conform the statutory law of the State to the new Constitution, and the report of this Commission was enacted into law by the Legislature of the State.

A list of the honored members of this Lodge would be incomplete without reference to the late lamented E. S. Mayes, whose interest and labors of love in the cause of Masomry in this Lodge and in our neighboring Lodge, Lebanon No. 87, never ceased until his death in 1913. He long filled the important post of Secretary, and set a standard of work in that office which repeatedly received the commendation of the beloved H. B. Grant, Grand Secretary.

Although we are attuated in the midst of a community that is strongly of the Roman Catholic Faith, it has been our good for tune to live without the slightest manifestation of mutual hostility or ill feeling one toward the other. Our first Master was a Catholic, and upon our alter laid a Catholic Bible. This happy condition we attributed largely to the broad and kindly Christian spirit

engendered by the princely Miles Saunders, the father of the present Grand Master, a Presbyterian minister for 35 years in this community and member of this lodge, whose kindy incluence taught how beautiful it is for men and brethren to live together in peace and harmony.

In 1903 the lodge in conjunction with the Chapter, Washington No. 27, erected a handsome temple in which the meetings are hold, and in which we feel a paraonable pride when welcoming our visiting brethren.

John Pope, who came into the lodge under demit from Solemon's Lodge No. 5, was a Presidential elector in 1801; member of Kentucky Lesislature in 1802; United States Sonator 1807-13; Grand Orator of the Grand Lodge 1816; Governor of Arkansas 1829-35.

Judge Emmett Field, for a long number of years Judge of the Louisville Chancery Court, was a member of this ledge from which he carried his membership to one of the Louisville lodges.

- J. L. Wharton, a Hajor in the Union army, and for eighteen years clerk of the Washington Circuit Court, was a member of this lodge.
- C. C. McChord, who was Chairman of the Kentucky Railroad Commission one term by appointment from Governor John Young Brown, and one term by election of the people, and who is now by appointment of the President of the United States a member and Chairman of the Inter State Commerce Commission, is a Past Master of this Lodge.
- T. Boott Mays, the present Collector of Internal Revenue in the Louisville District, is a Past Master of this Lodge.

Past Grand Chaplain R. I. C. Lawson, the pastor of the Springfield Presbyterian Church, is a Past Master of this Lodge.

CLARKE LODGE NO. 51 LOUISVILLE, KY.

The carly his tory of this Lodge can not be found. The frist record book is not in existence.

August, 1822, Edw. Tyler, Jr., from this Todge was elected Grand Junior Warden.

At the meeting held May E, 1825, a committee was appointed to invite our distinguished brother, General Lafayette, and his Masonic smite, to visit the Lodge, said committee to act with a like committee from Abraham No. 8. The committee was composed of R. P. Geist, John Roan, Levi Tyler, William Tompkins and Thomas C. Carahan.

On May 11, the lodge met, forty-three members being present. The object of the meeting was stated by the Master, R. P. Geist, to be for the entertainment of our distinguished brother, General Lafayette. This meeting was attended by all the Masons in this vicinity. During the evening there visited the Lodge over sixty Master Masons, in addition to those above, Indiana, Ohio, New York, Maryland, Rhode Island and Ken body being represented.

John P. Oldham and James McDonnell were appointed by the Master to meet General Layfette and his Masonic friends, and conduct them to the lodge room, the lodge being in readiness to receive them.

In a short time our brothers, General Layfayette and his son, George Washington Lafayette, accompanied by Brother John Roan and the committee, entered the lodge and were introduced to the brethren.

Rev. H. M. Shaw then welcomed the General in an appropriate address, which, together with the General's reply, may be found in the history of this Looge, written by Alexander Evans, and filed

with the records. At the corrlusion of the General's remarks the Lodge was called from labor to partake of refreshments.

In 1826 the Masonic Hall was on the corner of Fifth and Green.

June 19, 1828, Lorenzo Dow, the illustrious and eccentric preacher, visited the lodge. He was made a Mason in Bristol, Rhode Island.

On April 30, 1830, the Lodge laid the corner-stone of the Methodist Associate Church.

In 1842 the Lodge dorsted \$250 for the education of the blind.

One of the brightest lights of this Lodge was Willia Stewart, who was initiated in this Lodge in 1823, and soon became one of its most prominent members, advancing to the rank of Master and then Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Mentucky. He was the principal person in forming the Masonic Board of Finance, created for the purpose of building the Masonic Temple, which was carried into effect.

In 1858 the Lodge had 128 members, including Past Grand Masters Levi Tyler and D. T. Monsarrat.

This Lodge consolidated with Abraham Lodge No. 8, Mt. Moriah Lodge No. 106, and the Lodge of Antiquity No. 113, on December 27, 1886.

MAYSVILLE LODGE NO. 52
MAYSVILLE, MASON CC..KY.

Chartered September 1, 1818, as Philips Lodge and the records of Maysville Lodge No. 26, which became defunct in 1830, were ordered by the Grand Lodge to be turned over to it. Desember 1,1818, the name was changed to Confidence. December 30, 1897, the name

was changed to Magaville. This is one of the strongest and most influential lodges in the State.

Sam P. Browning of this lodge was for a number of years one of the Trustess of the Temple property, and is at the present time one of the Trustess appointed by the Grand Lodge to manage the endowment fund for the higher education and vocational training of the wards of the Home, and as such he is one of the five men who determine who are to be the beneficiaries of this fund, what the training shall be and where given.

WARREN LODGE NO. 53 HARRODSBURG, MERCER CO., KY.

Chartered September 1, 1818, became defunct in 1834. October 14, 1856, the Lodge was re-established and continued until May 21, 1873, when it went out of existence. October 18, 1888, a new charter was granted but the Lodge again became defunct in 1905.

The first Master of this Lodge was Samuel Daviese, a brother of Joseph Hamilton Daviese, who was Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Kontacky in 1811.

Samuel Daviess was a Scotch Irish Presbyterian, and it was he who brought Rev. David Rice into Kentucky as the piones of Fresbyterianism in this State. He was educated at Harrodeburg, Kentucky, became a practicing lawyer of recognized ability. Represented Mercer County in the State Legislature in 1822-24; was elected Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky in 1826. In 1825-29 a member of the State Senate. On September 30, 1856, he died at the age of 83 years.

The resolution passed by the Grand Lodge said of him - "He held many offices of public trust and honor, and always with credit to himself and benefit to the community. He was a good man, and hore himself honorably and creditably, and was an excellent example to all around him. He was remarkable for his great benevolences of charity, well showing forth the softening and kind influences of Mesonry, to which he was devoted until his death."

GREENSBURG, GREEN CO., KY.

Chartered September 1, 1818, became defunct August 1834. Resumed 1839. In 1846-47 Wm. B. Allen Grand Master; 1850-51 J. M. S. McCorkle Grand Master. July 10, 1886 became defunct. October 18, 1888, new charter granted, this was lost or destroyed, and one in lieu thereof issued October 19, 1899.

BATH LODGE No. 55 OWINGSVILLE, BATE CO., KY.

Bath Lodge No. 55 takes its name from the county in which it is located, and was the read August, 1819, under the name of Webb Lodge No. 55, and continued in force until August 1834, when forfeited, John Webb being the first Master. In August, 1845, Maury Lodge No. 140 was chartered with John A. Trumbo, Master. In 1854, by order of the Grand Lodge, the name and number of Maury Lodge was charged to Bath Lodge No. 55. The Jewels used by Bath Lodge and which were first the property of Webb Lodge No. 55, were

made by a milwer-smith named Morrison, of Loxington, My., of silver dollars, in the year 1819, and was concealed and saved during the Civil War by William Daugherty, a mamber of Bath Lodge.

A nice two story frame building, erocted and dedicated in 1893, is the property of this Lodge. Bath Lodge has furnished two Grand Masters, one to the Grand Lodge of Florida and one to the Grand Lodge of Mentacky, James W. Poyd and John A. Rameey. James W. Boyd was initiated in the lodge August 29, 1868, moved to Florida and elected Grand Master. John A. Rameey was initiated in Montgomery No. 23, 1866, passed and raised in the lodge in 1868, was Master of Bath Lodge for a number or years; was Grand Master 1899-1900.

Re died in 1910. Present membership of Bath Lodge is eighty.

BURLINGTON LODGE MO. 56
BURLINGTON, BOONE County.KY.

The stated meetings were held the first Londay in each month.

The records of this Lodge, including the jewels, are now in possession of Eurlington Lodge No. 264.

Butlington Lodge was granted dispensation September 1818, charter the ered at No. 35 and set to work October 26th, 1818, and we take the following from the minutes of the first meeting. "This Lodge was opened for the first time under dispersation issued by Samuel Rughs Moodson, Laster of the Desons of Mentucky with the Dilawing brothers present; A. Depugh W. M., Jno L. Percival S. W., Goo. Austin J. W., Spencer Eunyan Tr., Henry M. Bucker Sec., Benjamine Luboise S. D., Jas. Carlton J. D., and Thos W. Hughes S & T., After the lodge was opened in due form the w.H. gave a Lecture on the first

"degree". At this meeting the potition of ar. Johnson Bradley was received. At the next meeting each brother was ordered to pay to the treasurer \$2.00 as an original fund to enable the loage to pay its expenses and carry out the principles of Masonry in this community. December 19, 1918, the loage held an open meeting in the Court house where Mr. Stephens of Lawrenceburg, Indiana, delivered an address and after the meeting the brothers formed in procession and marched to the Town Tavern where "They partock of an assumptuous dinner". The Grand Loage which was held in the city of Loxington, granted this loage a charter which was dated September 4th 1819. The dws were 25 cents per month and visitors were required to pay the same amount after their first visit.

The regular mostings were held the first Honday in each month at early sandle light.

September 22nd, 1819, the officers were duly installed and the Lodge set to work under its charter. September 1, 1831, the Lodge become defunct. August 26, 1834, the charter was restored. This Lodge held its meetings regularly and from the records we can find no reason why the following motion was adopted. February 24, 1847. "A motion made that we surrender the charter of this Lodge at the next amount convocation of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky". September 2, 1847, the charter was surrendered to and a coepted by the Grand Lodge.

BLOOMFIELD LODGE NO. 57 BLOOMFIELD, NEISON CO., KY.

Granted a dispensation in August 1819, the charter bears the

4 5 6

date of November 28, 1819. Under the disponsation the Lodge was organized, and worked in the house now occupied by Mrs. David Cokendolpher (proporty of M. S. Gore), on Reilroad Avenue. Edmund Guthrie was the first W. M., Henry L. Minor the first S. W., and Spence Minor the first J. W., each memod as such in the charter.

The following are some of the Charter members associated with them: Dr. Samuel Bomiss, Jeptha Duncan, John Suteliff, John Moxley, Dr. Samuel Merifield, James Porter, Hayden Stone, Annanias Baker, Samuel Railey, Isaac Stone, N. G. Wootton, Enoch McKay, Dr. T. H. Wiles and J. M. Lowis.

September 1, 1830, the Charter was forfeited. August, 1832, the records, books and jewels were handed over by the Grand Loage to Loage No. 5. The Charter was restored in 1848.

Enoch H. McKay,	Master.
Hayden L. Stone,	S. #.
Henry Tindle y,	₹. ₩.
Wa. H. Dure en,	Secty.
James Porter,	Treas.
Ammaniae Baker,	s. D.
Samuel Railey,	J. D.
Samuel D. Roberts,	S. & T.

James Porter, Isaac D. Stone, Past Masters.

A two story brick building 58x28 was erected upon a let deeded by Spencer Minor; the ground floor of the building was used for school purposes, the upper story by the Masonic Lodge, and the Sons of Temperance (defunct years ago.)

In 1874 Z. Allis Combs, who at that time was Governor of the

State of Texas, and also Grand Master of that Commonwealth, presented his picture to the Lodge accompanied by a letter expressing the very great pleasure it would afford him to know that his mother lodge would accord it a place on her walls.

The picture was received with pleasure, the letter placed on file, and the secretary instructed to notify him of the action taken.

Gov. Combs was reared on the farm now owned by E. T. Shields, and took his degrees as soon as of mature age- some time in the early 40's, and, together with his father removed from this community to the State of his adoption.

In 1864, the Lodge building was destroyed by fire under the following direumstances.

In the fall of 1864, the school room of the building was occupied by United States Troops under the command of one Capt. Burrell, who converted it into a fort by digging port-holes through the brick wall, from which his troops fired on the bands of Confederate Guerrillas, which were so plentiful in this section at that time.

While the Federal soldiers were compying the school room,

1. C. Thomas, then Secretary of the Lodge, and High Sheriff of
the County, in company with N. G. Wootton, who was then Tyler of
the Lodge, entered the lodge room and removed the well-worn Bible,
the charter, and all the jewels they could hurriedly gather.

After a short occupancy (possibly two months) the Federal troops were withdrawn. The Guerrillas, who were ever camping on the trail of the Federals but just outside of the danger zone, followed close in their wake.

A large body of them under the command of their bravest and most cautious leader, the notorious "Sue Mundy" (Jerome Clark) invaded the town. Mundy first of all inspected the house and grounds, so recently occupied by the Federal troops, and then hurried down to where he saw a colored woman washing in the yard of Mr. McKay's residence, (where Mrs. Young lives now) kicked an old tarrel to pieces, took two or the stawes, and getting a good chunk of fire, started in the direction of Masonic Hall as it was popularly called. Miss Am Rachel McKay, and J. A. Allen, not then a Mason, but since that a Past Master of this Lodge, both of whom were on the most friendly terms with Clark, remonstrated with him, telling him that he was about to do something very rash, and plead with him not to destroy the property of his and his companions Iriends. He replied that he could not afford to let it stami, since it occupied the possition that it did, for it commanded every approach to the town, and besides, the opposing force had converted it into a fort. That fact, he said, core tituted it one of the enemy's strong-holds, and, on that account must be treated as such.

So persistent was Mr. Allen that he used all the resources at his commend to persuade Mundy to stop and think, and not until he was threatened to be hit on the head with hundy's pistol did he desist. And did so then only because he know the desperate character of the man with whom he was dealing.

Miss McKay, however, was not so easily gotten rid of. She said, "You shall not burn the hall". She threw her arms about his neck, and sought to restrain him. He was very pleasant and courteous to her, and looked at her with the same smile that he always were, but

persisted in his effort to be rid of her. With her arms tightly clasping his neck, he dragged her some little distance, when she seeing her efforts were in vain, sank down on the ground crying. Once rid of the resistance offered by the weight of her body he ran up the hill, and deposited his fire brank in a huge pile of strew and hay left by the Federals in the South-west corner under the stairway. Almost immediately both floors were in full flames, and that, too, before many persons were avare of the fact that the Guerrillas had entered the town.

All of the Lodge's early records were thus wiped out.

The Lodge them found a home over the saddlery and harness store of Miles & Consentine, where Clyde Allen's furniture and undertaking establishment now stands. That building was so damaged by water that it was rendered undate. The Lodge, with a small amount of money saved up, and a good credit, erected the present building. Then came a long financial struggle that cannot be appreciated by the present man be ship.

On September 1, 1879, this community was visited by a cloud burst that swept away the atore house of J. A. Terrell, who was then Secretary of the Lodge, and all its records together with about \$\infty\$90.00 of lodge money were lost. Mr. Terrell re-opened for business on Main street, where J. A. Hinkle now conducts a grocery store, and he was continued Secretary until after 1893, during which year his store house, together with four others, were destroyed by fire. The records were again lost by fire.

With reference to the financial struggle above referred to- The Lodgo contracted a heavy debt in erecting the present building, and

found it necessary to borrow considerable money. When the note matured the lodge found itself without money or other financial resources. This muci tion produced a long season of depression, but a few faithful brethren were always in attendame. These conditions prevailed through a number of years, until the lodge finally realized that there must be a radical change, or else it would die a slow but a sure death. They accordingly resolved to free themselves from all indebtedness. All outstanding obligations were summed up, the bretbren put their hands deep down in their . pockete, and by supreme effort, paid every penny. This marke à a change in the loogs which was felt at once. The membership became more cheerful and enthusiastic, and their cheerfulness and enthusiasm attracted the attention of many young men who had grown up during the years of the Ludge's depression. Patitions were received steadily, from that time until the present. and during this period Bloomfield Lodge has enjoyed a season of

The following brethrem are some of those who have served the lodge as w. M. They are, Dr. Samuel Bewiss, a Presbyterian Minister, physicien and farmer; Spencer Minor, a farmer; George Batcheldor, a contractor; John Sutliff, a miller; John Fozley, a farmer; Dr. Sam Merifield, a physician and farmer; Isaac Stone, a farmer; Enoch McKay, a farmer; Dr. B. B. Wootton, a physician; C. Y. Duncan, a carriage builder; Juage Hayten Stone, a farmer; Dr. Josh Gore, physician; Chas. Consentine, a saddler; James Tyler, merchant; J. A. Terrell, a tailor; J. N. McClaskey, a farmer; J. H. Yager,

continued success and happiness, which is seldom equaled by any

but a city lodge.

a grocer; Davis Stone, a farmer; J. W. Foff, a saddler, Dr. R. C. Caldwell, a physician; August Shelbourne, a livery man; Jesse W. Yantis, a grocer; W. P. Haje, a farmer; T. L. Grunder, a farmer; T. G. McClaskey, insurance agent; J. B. Irvine, a farmer; J. A. Allen, a merchant and farmer; S. B. Lander, a Presbyterian Minister, who is the present Grand Chaplain of the Grand Ledge. Many of these have served for several terms, being re-elected at different times.

BENEVOLENT LODGE NO. 58
BLUE SPRING, BOURBON CO., KY.

Granted dispersation by Grand Lodge in November 1819, and charter granted August 28, 1820, which was surremered August 28, 1838, its property was given by the Grand Lodge to Loxington Lodge No. 1 and Daviess Lodge No. 22. In 1843 its charter was restored and the Lodge became defunct October 17, 1893.

ARKANSAS LODGE NO. 59
ARKANSAS POST, ARK.

Chartered August 28, 1820, on August 26, 1822 this Lodge surrendered its charter.

> LINCOLN LODGE NO. 60 STANFORD, LINCOLN CO., KY. BY M. C. GARMAN, MASTER.

This Ledge was organized and set to work as Stanford Lodge U.D.

prior to August 1819, the exact date not ascertainable from the printed records of the Grand Lodge; and the earliest record in possession of the Lodge is a mutilated minute book, from which the records prior to March 4, 1820, have been torn away. The record of that meeting shows the conference of the Fellow Crafts degree upon two candidates who had previously qualified.

August 28, 1820, a charter was granted to the Lodge under the designation of Limoln Lodge No. 60. Herbert King, being the first Master, Francis 3. Heid, the Senior Warden, and Mathias J. Ross, Junior Warden.

One of the charter members of this Lodge was Caleb Wallace, bown in Charlotte County, Virginia, a graduate of Princeton College, M. J. Ordained to the Presbyterian ministry; a man of doep learning and great business capacity; he was a member of the first and second conventions to suggest a separation of Kentucky from Virginia. Upon the separation appointed by Virginia to audit and settle the accounts of Kentucky. He later became a lawyer and served for twenty years as Judge of the District Court of Appeals. He was one of the founders Of Hampden-Sidney College, and of what is now washington & Lee University. He was one of the founders and trustees of Transylvania University at Lexington, Ky., from which sprang the present Center College of Central University at Danville, Kentucky.

The minutes of May 15, 1821, show as a visitor to the Lodge John Cross of No. 9 incient England M. M.

The records of June 1823, disclose the fact that the men who composed the Lodge were not everse to things which were of the earth,

earthy - for on "motion it was resolved that Bro. Land be permitted to occupy the Lodge room to teach a dancing school."

October 13, 1823, it was unanimously agreed to move the Lodge quarters "into the West end of the Court House above stairs and a committee was appointed to move thereto the furniture, tools and jewels!"

The universality of Masonic interest was recognized by the Lodge in striking way when, on August 13, 1824, two of the Craft being on trial for unmasonic conduct, the privilege, both of speech and of the ballot was, by unanimous vote, accorded to the visiting brethren, and by a unanimous vote, of homefolks and visitors, both were suspended.

April 20, 1825, Fountaine T. Fox was initiated into the Lodge he later became Master of the Lodge, a member of the Kentucky
Logislature and Judge of the Circuit Court of the Lincoln, Boyle,
Pulaski &c district.

That the woose was careful in the selection of its membership is ovidenced by the record of December 31, 1825. in the appointment of a "Committee to inquire into the moral carracte" of a petitioner for initiation.

September 5, 1826, the Lodge was opened in ample form by Grand Master Samuel Daviess who delivered a lecture upon the symbolism of the Entered Apprentice degree.

May 14, 1827, the payment of a judgment which had been rendered against a member of the Lodge, and which he was unable to meet, was directed to be paid by the Treasurer out of the Lodge funds.

From May 19, 1827, to November 27, 1836, the Loige records

have been destroyed, but in Jamary, 1837, the record shows the fraternalism of the Craft was undisturbed during this period because the Secretary records the flact that the lodge was elected "In ancient formum marrer, and in piece and harmony."

hall in the upper part of the irrespyterion Church", and perhaps this now environment may have had consthing to do with the passage on October 2, 1837, of a resolution appointing a committee "To inquire and true report make to this lodge, at its next stated musting if any Brother or Brothers have been guilty of any intemperance or disorderly conduct, and that said committee make our specific charges in writing against such as they may does guilty of urmasonic conduct", and this committee made effective investigation, for at the next meeting the committee reports a brother "Guilty of information at divers time and in particular coming into open lodge drunk in violation of the Zentucky laws."

April 18, 1838, Leander M. Cox was initiated a member of this Lodge. He was elected Grand Master of the Grand Lodge in 1843, he later represented the county of his residence in the Hartucky Legislature and his district in the Congress of the United States.

At the stated meeting in November 1839, the Lodge ordered notice to be given twenty maked members of the Lodge "to appear and show sause why they should not be suspended from all the privileges of Masonry for not attending at stated meetings of the Lodge".

December 2, 1839, a committee was appointed to procure a place for future meetings of the Lodge. This committee me ver made

report as disclosed by the minutes, but from the worbal testimeny of old citizens who knew the town and the facts it is learned that this removal was into the third story of a frame building situate on the North side of Main street in the middle of the block West of the Court House Square.

June, 1841. St. John's Day was selebrated with orations delivered by George R. McKee and Fountaine T. Fox and by a funeral sermon from Rev. L. Jones in honor of a Lodge member who had died a month previous. A dinner being served to the Oraft and all in attendance.

In August, 1841, a donation of fifty dollars was made to the Masonia Orphan Asylum then in contemplation by the Grand Louge.

Hovember, 1841, "In consequence of there not being enough balls" a candidate for initiation was admitted upon a viva voce vote.

The idea that our brethren of the early day were men of easy morals is refuted by the rigid standard maintained in this Lodge from which, in November 1842, a brother was "expelled from the privileges of Masonry because of habitual intemperance and gambling with a nigger".

In April. 1845, the Lodge took a perpetual scholarship in Funk Semirary.

June 3, 1845, Thomas Hapier, a volunteer in the United States Army, being called to active service, was given the three degrees of Ancient Craft Masowry upon one and the same day.

Thomas Mapier served as a private in the war with Moxico; was a Captain in John H. Morgan's Brigads of the Confederate Army,

After the Mar he was elected County Judge and later Sheriff of Limels County, and in this capacity was shot to death in attempting to arrest a desperado on the streets of Stanbord.

August 2, 1847, the Craft abandamed their informal ways and passed a resolution providing there should be "no smoking or chewing of tobacco during the work of the Lodge."

August 5, 1848 the Lodge directed its representative to the Grand Lodge to vote against the removal of the Grand Lodge from Loxington.

November 21, 1848, the Lodge buried with Masonic honor Herbert King, the first Master of the Lodge.

December 2, 1848, the use of the Ledge room was tendered to the Stanford Debating Society at its regular place of meeting, and at the same meeting two of the Craft who a few days before on the streets of the town, had engaged in a personal conflict, meeting in the Lodge were ordered by the Master to present themselves at the alter and each to receive the other upon the Five Points of Fellowship, which was done and peace restored. No debating Society open that night.

March 18, 1849, a contract was let for the building of a Masonic Hall to be completed by December 25, 1849.

June 1849, the Lodge voted against a division of the Grand Lodge but declared "If a division shall take place this Lodge is for going to the North."

December 27, 1849, the Lodge moved to the new Lodge room over the store occupied by Shanks & Lytle on the North-west corner of Main and Lancaster streets, opposite the Court House Square, deed

to which was not executed until August 2, 1851.

April 20, 1850, in the new quarters, a resolution was passed requiring "Each brother who chews tobacco to bring with him a spit box to the next regular meeting."

From 1836 to 1871, the most active and benevolent member of the Lodge was Dr. Albert Gallatin Buffman, who was born at Lancaster, Ky., June 6, 1808. He was a man of poliched education and a physician of wide repute. His ready willingness to a swer the call of the suffering poor endeared him to every heart, He was twenty times elected Master of Lincoln Lodge. Year after year he paid the dues of hard pressed delinquent brothers and for a number of years when the Lodge was in hard lines financially, paid the entire Grand Lodge dues out of his own private purse. During the Civil War he was a surgeon in the United States Army with the rank of Captain.

March 20, 1871, when he severed his connection with the Lodge to move to a new home in the West, the Craft called a special meeting to bid him farewell and he concluded his parting address to the Lodge with a prayer to God for its prosperity and for the happiness of each individual member.

Settled in his new home at Feebody, Kansas, he became one of the charter members of the Hasonic lodge scon after started there. By his gentle demeanor and acts of kindness he became a great favorite with the Kaw Indians and was known among them as "Old Doe". July 30, 1891, in the 84th year of his age, he was called to the Lodge on High, and on the day of his burial every business house in the town closed its doors out of love and

respect for him.

May 14, 1852, the Loage was "called from labor to refreshment til Saturday night at the lighting of a candle" and the sum of one dollar and thirty cents was ordered paid for a load of wood.

The boys of the Lodge had music as well as Masonry in their bones, on September 12, 1853, it was ordered "This Lodge donate \$25.00 to the Band of Stanford to enable them to get the necessary instruments".

October 1, 1863, having disposed of the Lodge room, the Lodge quarters were moved to the upstairs of the Court House.

November 5, 1886, a contribution of \$50.00 was made to the Orphan School at Midway, Ky.

January 7, 1856, perhaps in the fever of good resolution for the New Year, the use of the Lodge room was tendered the Sons of Temperance as their place of meeting.

On June 24, 1856, the Lodge celebrated St. John's Day with a procession and a public dinner, and a Masonic oration by "Bro. Lynn, or Danville."

April 6, 1857, the brethren at Scottsville evidently put the men of Lincoln on their mottle; it is on that day recorded "A petition was presented from the Brothren at Scottsville - which was read - duly considered and thrown upon the table."

December 27, 1859, two lots were tought in the Buffalo Cemstery for the benefit of the Lodge.

Grand Lodge to vote for the removal of the Grand lodge to Lexing-

January 7, 1861, a committee was appointed by the loige"to craft resolutions expressive or the sense of the Loige in regard to the state of the Union, and send a copy of same to the Louis-ville Journal and all other papers friendly to the Union."

March 23, 1861, Lodge visited by the Grand Master.
Under a special dispensation granted by the Grand Master, Joseph J.
Landrum was initiated, February 4th., passed February 6th.,
raised February 10th., 1864.

June 6, 1884, "The Lodge was opend in the <u>Interd apprintis</u> degree in ancient form and manner - & the minutes of the previous meeting red & adopted."

St. John's Day of June, 1865, was celebrated with a foast to which all the surrounding lodges were invited.

October 7, 1867, the Lodge authorized its Master to take one life membership in the Masonic Wisows & Orphans Home & Infirmary and November 5, 1868, the Master delivered to the Modge the certificate which was ordered framed and hung in the Lodge room.

March 1, 1869, the Secretary was directed to correspond with the Grand Secretary in regard to obtaining a new charter to replace the one then held which had become mutilated. The mutilated charter was called in October 19, 1869, and a new one issued therefor October 21, 1869, both of which now hang upon the walls of the Loge room.

After the close of the Civil Mar, before the antagonisms engendered by it had been smoothed out, the bitterness of the period was introduced into the Lodge, and there grow in intensity until it manifested itself at the ballot box, to the repeated

exclusion of some of the best men of the community from the Circle of the Craft.

In February, 1870, it was apparent that a spearate lodge organisation must be provided or Lincoln No. 50, would go under, and St. Valentines day of 1870, Lincoln Lodge recommended to the Grand Master the granting of the petition for the establishment of Stanford Lodge No. 492, which was done. The two Lodges held their meetings in the same room; used the same jewels, aprons and furnishings, the Tyler of Lincoln Lodge No. 60 was also the Tyler of Stanford Lodge No. 492. The members of the two Lodges exchanged visits, each Lodge, on frequent occasions, conferred degrees for the other - contributed jointly to the same local charities, and yet were unable to meet at the same ballot box.

October 20, 1876, Stamford Lodge No. 492 surrendored its charter and consolidated with Lincoln No. 60.

January, 1861 the Lodge quarters were sold to W. P. Walton and to by him fitted up as an office in which was published the Incrior Journal.

From December 27, 1881 to November 3, 1884, there is no record upon the minute book of the Lodge, though Grand Lodge returns were made for each year, except 1883, as shown by the printed Grand Lodge Reports.

In 1894, the membership of the Lodge was greatly reduced and its financial strength seriously impaired - by the removal of the Louisville & Nashville Railroad division to a point forty miles further East. The membership had been composed mainly of Railway engineers, conductors and employees. With this change in affairs

a few zealous members continued their efforts - but the others fell away until the loage quarters were moved into an upstairs room 16 feet equare, the rear of the brick building opposite St. Asaph Hotel, and here four men, with occasional additions to their number, tried to keep the loage alive until October 19, 1899, when the charter was recalled.

October 15, 1907, a now sharter was granted to Lincoln Lodge No. 60, and, with new men and young blood the Lodge entered upon a new lease of life. Handsome quarters on the North side of Main street two doors East of Lancaster street and belonging to a different fraternal organization, were moved into, and with every promise of success the Masonic banner was again swung to the breeze.

In December, 1908, as Master was elected J. M. Saunders, a Past Master of Springfield Lodge No. 50; a Representative from Washington County in the Kentucky Legislature; a member of Kentucky State Railroad Commission, under appointment of Governor Brown; author of the Masonie Monitor, which was by the Grand Lodge of Kentucky recommended to the subordinate lodges of the State as "A splendid exposition and interpretation of the lessons and ceremonies presented, and the presentation of them made in the attractive scholarly way that remders the compilation a valuable one for the use of the Craft." He is the present Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky and Chairman of the Grand Lodge Historical Committee.

June 24, 1911, Lincoln Lodge colebrated the anniversary of Bt. John with a monster pionic at toxaed by the Grand Raster, by the children of the Home and by a conceurse of people estimated at from 3500 to 4000, and addressed by Masonic orators from different parts of the State.

Dincoln Lodge bossis that it has the hardsomest set of minutes of any lodge in Kentucky - they are typewritten, fully indexed.

Kept by Dr. T. J. Pennington, prominent in Grand Lodge circles, and his brethren of the local Lodge say the best hodge Secretary in Aontholy.

In 1913, Harvey Helm became a Master Mason in this Lodge - he is the sitting member of Congress from the Highth Congressional District and is serving his sixth consecutive term. He previously represented Lincoln County in the State Legislature and for eight years filled the office of County Attorney.

Another member of Lincoln Lodge who served his countymen in public life was W. H. Miller, now deceased, who was a member of the convention that wrote the present Constitution of Kentucky.

Other members of the -odge were: Thomas H. Shanks, deceased, Captain of Cavalry in the Confederate Army; D. W. Vandeveer, deceased, merchant, breeder of thoroughbred horses and the nominee for Commissioner of Agriculture by the bolting Democratic State Convention held at Lexington, Ky., in 1894; was Master and for years the Treasurer of the Lodge, as was

Thomas W. Varnon, deceased, lawyer, legislator and Judge of the County Court.

A member of this Lodge was Rev. George O. Barnes, deceased, one of the most eloquent pulpit crators of the Presbyterian Church, who in the later years of his life, quitting that communion, as

en independent evengelist attracted wife at tention both in this country and in ingland by his attractive pulpit deliverance.

HART LODGE NO. 61
UICHOLLSVILLE, JESSAMINE CO., KY.

Chartered August 28, 1820, became defunct August 27, 1834.

August 29, 1843, new charter granted which was lestroyed by fire in 1886. October 18, 1888 new charter granted.

AUROBA LUDGE NO. 62
PREDERICKEBURG, WASHINGTON CO., MY.

Clastered August 28, 1820, became defunct August 28, 1825.

LANCASTER LODGE NO. 60 LANCASTER, BARRARD CO., MY.

Chartered August 29, 1820. Charter forfeited August 30, 1836. The property of this Lodge was in 1836 presented by the Grand Lodge to Lancaster Lodge No. 104, which was chartered in August of that year.

COVINGION, KENTON CO., KY.

Chartered August 29, 1820. Charter morreited August 27, 1834, and lodged in the archives of Covington Lodge No. 109.

DOUGHLETT LODGE NO. 68 CARLISLE, WICHOLES CO., MY.

Chartered August 30, 1820, as Nicholas Lodge No. 65. This Lodge hecems defunct September 2, 1835. In 1842 the Lodge was re-instated as Dougherty Lodge No. 65. January 1872, the charter was destroyed by fire and a new one issued October 24, 1873. This was burned in 1884, and new one issued October 22, 1884.

In 1906-7 Samuel R. Veach was Grand Master. The Lodge owns its place of meeting which is handsomely funcished and centrally located. The Masonic spirit is a healthy one, and the lodge is frequently called upon to confer the Masonic degrees in other lodges of this Grand Jurisdiction.

MORGANFIELD, UNION CO., XX.

Morganfield Lodge No. 66 was organized under the dispensation from the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, September 1817, under the name of "Decatur Lodge" with Nm. R. Ashby, F. H. of Lawrence Lodge No. 34 as the first N. M.; Joseph R. Delaney, H. M. Jerusalam Lodge No. 9, as first S. W.; and Joseph H. Davis, M. W. of Jorusalam Lodge No. 9, as first J. W.; being so recorded in dispensation. The officers were installed by Jonathan Caylor, P. M. Abraham Lodge No. 8.

The following members of Lodges were present at this first mosting under dispensation:

Fortunatus F. Delaney as S. W. Pro tem.

James Rolloway. as J. W. Protem.

John G. Finnie,

sa Secy. A Treas.

Jus. Alvey

es Stewart & Tyler.

H. F. Delaney H. A. Jerusalem sodge No. 9.

The first by-laws were insited by the Haster and two wardoms. On the 17th., day of laguet, 1818, the question was put:-Shall this Lodge continue under dispensation or obtain a Charter: and upon a vote being taken it was decided to solicit a continuation of the dispensation.

Karr Hicks was appointed first representative to the Grand Lodge August 8, 1820.

Agreeable to and from the Host Worshipful Grand Longe of Mostucky, Henry Clay, Grand Master, a Charter was granted to Morganfield No. 66, appointing Joshua H. Davis w. M., Gibson B. Taylor, S. W., and Fortunatus Delaney, J. W.

Samuel Casey was sucond representative to the Grand Lodge appointed July 16th, 1821, and the first when working under Charter.

The following brethren were elected and served us Musters of this Lorge from 1817 to 1882:

W. R. Ashbj, elected September 29th, 1817.

Joshus H. Davis, " August 31st, 1820.

Gibson B. Taylor. " June 24th, 1821.

W. D. Sutton. " December 27th, 1821.

Joshua H. Davis, " June 24th, 1822, to Bec. 27, 1626.

W. L. Sutton, " December 27th, 1826.

Joshua H. Davis, " June 24th, 1827. H. D. Basuras, Blected December 27th, 1827. W. L. Sutton. វីប∷ខ 24th. 1828. G. B. Tuylor. December 27th, 1828. W. I. Sutton, June24th. 1829. Samuel Casey, December 27th. 1829 J. R. Delaney. June 24th. 1850. G. F. Taylor, " December 27th, 1830. James W. Finnie, " June 24th, 1831. I. D. Edwards. Lecember 27th, 1651.

From this date there was an interregnum of fifteen years; the cause of which it has been impossible to ascertain.

On October 29th, 1847, the Longe held a communication with Protem of ficers; H. D. Edwards, who had been the last W. M. of the Lodge took the West; Edmund H. Hopkins of Jerusalem No.9 took the East; and H. B. Haty the South.

The Lodge had convered to receive and Let upon a resolution of the Oracl Lodge of Kentucky passed at its Grand Amuel Communication held in the city of Lexington, Ky., on the 30th, day of August, 1847, authorizing all subordimate lodges in its jurisdiction that had ceased working prior to that date to resume work again as regular ledges, provided they did so before the next regular Communication of the Grand Lodge. To all such the Grand Lodge remitted in advance all former dues.

After recording the shove statement of what the Grand Lodge had done in the premises, the Lodge contented itself with simply recommending that all the members attend the next

regular meeting of the Loige and go earnestly to work and earny out the great principles of the Order. And thus the Lodge, after an interregnum of fifteen years, informally organized under the above grant or dispensation of the Grand Lodge; and has continued since without a break until the present time, 1914, under the following Masters of the Lodge:

H. D. Edwards, elected Dec. 2	27, 1847.
G. B. Daylor, " June 2	24, 1848
H. B. Haty, Pec. 2	27, 1848.
A. B. Eaty, " June 2	23, 1849.
J. T. Berry, "Dec. 2	27, 1849.
J. T. Berry. June 2	22, 1850.
J. W. Perry, , Dec. 2	27, 1850.
J. M. Cromwell, "Dec. 2	27, 1851.
J. B. Payne, June 2	84, 1852.
S. D. Delaney, " Dec. 2	27, 1852.
S. D. Delaney, "June 2	27, 1853.
E. B. Eaty, Dec. 2	27, 1853.
J. M. Cromwell, " June 2	M, 1854.
W. H. Wheeler, "Dec. 2	27, 1854.
J. M. Cromwell, e June 2	23, 1855.
J. M. Cromwell. " Dec. 2	27, 1885.
S. D. lolansy, "Dec. 2	27, 1856.
E. B. Haty, " Dec. 2	26, 1857.
Dec. 2	27, 1858.
H. W. Waggener, "Doc. 2	27, 1859.
W. W. wheeler, "Dec. 2	7, 1860.

3. D. Doleney,	Electe d	Dec. 27, 1861.
J. W. Hopgood,	11	Dec. 27, 1862.
S. D. Delancy,		Dec. 27, 1863.
J. S. Geiger,	£¥	Dec. 27, 1864,5-6-7.
Thos. R. Bruce.	EŞ	Dec. 27, 1868.
J. S. Goiger,	FŤ	Dec. 27, 1869-70.
C. R. hobley,	٠.	Dec. 27, 1871.
d. 11. Tüggener,	77	Dec. 27, 1872.
D. A. Buckner,	74	lec. 24, 1873.
J. J. Colger,	¥₹	Ice. 29, 1874-5-6.
1. N. McCormick,	9	Dec. 27, 1877.
J. A. Ford,	- 9	Dec. 27, 1878.
1. N. weCormiek,	T4	Doc. 27, 1879-80-61.
J. A. Fie wds,	f T	Dec. 27, 1882.
G. N. Bowe,	.(€	Pec. 27, 1997-4.
J. J. Blue,	rţ	Dac. 27, 1885.
J. H. Chambers,	· t	Dec. 27, 1686.
A. I. D. Mos.	7 v	Dec. 27, 1887.
1. 0. McCormick,	er e	Dec. 27, 1888.
J. J. Mus,	2	Qec. 27, 1889.
A. H. C. Elica,	7.1	Doc. 27, 1890,1-2-3-4-5.
C. G. Wilker,	**	200. 27, 1896.
T. b. Young, Jr.,	55	Dec. 27, 1897-c.
T. Cimmemond,	if	Ded. 27, 1899.
F. B. viller,	.1	Dec. 27, 1900.
C. W. Cartwright,	ii.	lec. 27, 1 ⁹ 01.
R. R. Orabtras.	şa	Dec. 27, 1962.

W. W. Shornton,	il.eteā	Ioc.	27,	1900.
G. W. Lallroy,	γŧ	Doc.	27,	1904.
l. G. Nomun.	ęş	Dec.	27,	1905.
I. G. Horton,	: .	ప్రభాగ	27,	1906.
J. d. Lee,	इब्	lec.	27,	1907.
T. B. Young, Jr.,	\$ ÷	Deo.	27,	1908.
Robt. S. Lride,	37	Dec.	27,	1909.
ProC w. Gilbort,	**	೨೦೮.	27,	1910.
H. Calcott Berry,	ſτ	200.	27,	1911.
Stephen W. Morton,	³` .	Dec.	27,	1910.
John F. Puckham,	,,	Dec.	27,	1913.

At a regular meeting February 4, 1871, it was moved, ascended and carried that this Lodge take one Life headership stock in the Widows & Orphans Home, being \$100.00; whereupon the brethren present by a Vacription raised as additional \$100.00 to secure another Life headership.

Horganfield Lodge No. 66 has had the honor of giving one Grand Master to to to Grand Lodge of Emitteky, R. H. C. Rhea, who was elected Junior Grand Marden October 1961; Senior Grand Marden October 1962, Leputy Grand Master 1963 and Grand Master Catober 1964.

On Friday wor sing, Narch Efth, 1910, at 1 o'clock, the Masonic Temple & three atomy brick byilding, located or Court Street, was destroyed by fire, entailing a loss of \$10,000.00 with \$5,000.00 insurance. In addition to its Temple the Lodge lost all of its furniture, paraphenalia, pictures, robes etc. The Charter, papers of value and record, minute and account books were saved by being

in the pare. With their reval indomitable mergy the brethres set to work and at this time have have a beautiful two story Temple, complete in all its appointments, erected upon the site of the old Temple.

BRECKINRILGA LODGE NO. 67 HARDINSBURG, BRECKIRRIDGE CO., MY.

Chartered August 28, 1821, forfeited sharter August 27, 1834. Re-instated September, 1840. Since 1848 has onced its own place of meeting.

Guy A. Hardin, of this lodge, is at the present time a member of one of the standing countitiess of the Grand Bodge.

OMEN LODGE NO. 58

PORT WILLIAM, CARROLL CO., MY.

(NOW CARROLLTON, KY.)

Received dispendation August 1820, James Elair being first Buster.

Chartered August 1821.

Sharter surrowlered August 1836.

Its jowels were transferred to Booms Ledge No. 100, and later to Caprollton Ledge No. 124.

This Lodge is one of six whose charters/signed by theb great Kentuckian, Henry Clay, who was our Grand Master from August 1820 to August 1821.

A noted Kentuckian was a member of this Owen Lodge, General

Addition I. Settler, the opent west of the line of Correlation and Lives to be often i wise to part of ago, the content and distribute for live a mesicable of the United States of the Content for a with Jenural Costs Case. He such active in the Content for as one of the content ing garangle, and was also a goat of come note.

J. .. J. Hitchell, an editor and and or of intolligence was a marker and representative of this accept at the Grand Loop in 1921. He was all marks fruit Hastow of our order in Masouri.

TAND 12 DODG2 MO. 09 THOMASH, MALISON 60., AND.

Chartarred Angraid 29, 1822, Total Arranet Angust 27, 1834.

FRANKLIN SANLACHEND DO. 70 - ALMINITH, SINLACH CO., LE.

Than tence ingres (28, 1621, Prifotted Cartor Lepfortor J. 1826.

Musica (Albinio), Va Limpos, Tola So., N.,

Mais Mady and diverse a charter, along by honey flag, thank Maister, sated memorable, 1951, alich fodeg benge byer in 1851, alich fodeg benge byer in 1851.

Jopt: Mor I, Inil, Thomas I. Hart, John M. Juli min R. A. Cibrer, Mic India and propositive to which was referred reterms of subordinate larges, reported "Sirey Years also emails to the

The following of vi, of which, and the Chair the following contract, and avoid the pair; and por consists of the product and is faithful in second mandation. In the a employee to again the faithful the production. In the a employee for of the faithful the product a second mandation and the faithful the

Veryon longs has all of the months from the originalism of the distantiation of the lines had not of the house are imposed, of all done, in 1621, to the property time, and it is to the lite, and one of Veryon's office. See say, read local lasters, the faring the free lasters pointed of the first leaves pointed of the lines were broken the letter records as a softgrand equivate factors if a letter to an interest at the arrival and there are the lasters of the arrival and the lasters are the lasters at the arrival and the lasters are the laster and the laster are a straight the country and the laster are a straight indicate.

AND THE PROBLEM OF MEANING THE PROBLEM THE MEANING THE MEANING MET OF THE PROBLEM OF A PROBLEM OF THE PROBLEM O

Howards 11, 1001, Speck Instead A. Calendria, Cifebrious attribute the series of the s

rest Translater James s. Topper, white Erice put of the

1 3 3

The latest of the companies of the temperate interpret the factor of the first of the companies of the compa

Wisperson as a first the contract of a contract product and the contract product was been applied to the contract product and the contract product and the contract product and the contract of the contract product and the contract product product product product and contract product and contract product pro

nova o popularia. Video de la composició de la composició

Plants in a large of 18, total, whose indicates ingreen by, bell.

The content of section 2. Section 1. The content of the content of the content of the content of section 2. Section 1. The content of the con

For a property of the property

Loving, Jenior Marden, and Marnor L. Underwood, Junior Marden, when the by-laws of the late Bowling Green Lodge No. 73, formerly under charter be for the present adopted as the by-laws for this Lodge. Six potitions were presented at the first meeting. The Grand Lodge of Kentucky on Beptember 2, 1847, adopted the follow-ing resolution: Resolved, That the charter of Bowling Green Lodge No. 73 be restored to this lodge. Sometime about 1853, Din-widdle Lodge No. 269 was instituted in Bowling Green. Charter issued in September, 1853. John B. Grider, First Laster. This lodge became defunct in 1863. John G. Gerard Lodge No. 527 instituted in Bowling Green to Sevente tuted in Bowling Green under dispensation December 28, 1871. Chartered October 24, 1872. This lodge surrendered its charter and composited of the Bowling Green No. 73 in 1882.

Bowling Green Lodge No. 73 orected a monument to Fast baster, Asher I. Graham at a cost of eight hundred dollars. Bowling Green Lodge has furnished one Crand Master, Frank C. Gerard in 1895-6, and thus has Bowling Green Lodge No. 73 continued to dispose Tasonio light and charity for nearly one hundred years.

MAYSDICK LODGL NG. 74 MAYSDICK, MASON Co., MY.

Granted dispensation August 1821. Chartered August 26, 1822. Jasper J. Morris, the first Master. Became defined August 20, 1830.

TROTTLE LODGE NO. 78 BANIBUTON, BAYLTTA CO., MY.

Chartered august 28, 1822. The last return was made in 1828 Last the longe was stricken from the Register in 1820.

MORRISON LODGE NO. 76 ELIZABLIETOWN, HARDIN CO., KY.

Chartered August 26, 1927, because defined in 1851, re-instated in 1841. The charter having been destroyed by fire a special dispensation was granted lugust 28, 1869, under as fority of which its meetings were hold until a new charter was issued Cotober 21, 1869.

This ledge in 1016 reported 195 numbers, and sired its organization its numbershy has irelated mad or was most distinguished mad denotery has ever professed.

Grand Caster. Ho was born at Elizabethtean July 16, 1812, elucated at it. See sphio College, Bardotown, Administ, at Could college, Bardotown, Administrative Bordeted in law at Themsylvania University in 1827. He was compatible times a member of the American Jugislanture, and was its Speaker during the section of 1853-4. We was a profound pobolar, a skillful lawyer, and eloquent orator, a man of the film of social qualities and a Mason without guile.

One of the Casters of this ledge was John L. Helm, twice Governor of Kentucky. He saw in the lower Homes of the Legislature eleven years are in the State Senate six pears. He presided over the Bouse five years, and as lieuterant Severnor over the Senate for two years with one exception, being oftener are longer than any man since the arganization of the State. As President of the Louisville & Mashville Railroad he developed one of the greatest railway systems in the United States. He gave to Morrison Lodge and to the world his distinguished son, Ben Hardin Helm, who as Brigadier Seneral in the Confederate Army, on September 20, 1863, gloriously sw rendered his life while leading the charge of the Tamous Orphan Brigade on the bloody field of Chickamaugus. Father and son - yet brothers they were in Morrison Lodge.

Martin H. Cofer, at one time Master of this longe, was, on April 19, 1860, commissioned by the Fovermor of Kentucky, as Captain of the Hardin lownty light Infantry. In September, 1861, be with many of his company enlisted in the Confederate army, and Captain Cofer was given authority to raise a batallion. He was appointed Jolonel of the Sixth Infantry in September, 1863 and so served until the close of the war. He was recommended for appointment as Brigadier Comeral, but never received a commission.

At the close of the Nar he retarned to Elizabethtown and began life anew as a lawyer. In 1867 he published Cofer's Digest of the Kentucky Reports, the decisions of the Jourt of Appeals. In May 1867, he became Circuit Juage of the Third Judicial District, composed of nine counties, in which office he distinguished himself for courtesy and ability.

At Brandenburg on May 12, 1871, he rendered the first docision from a Rentucky Jour t allowing a negro to tostify against a white

man. The decision coming at a time when the strong public opinion of the State was against it. In 1874 he was elected a Judge of the Court of Appeals, upon which bench be sorved with great distinction. He was Chief Justice of the Court at the time of his death, May 22, 1881. He was a gallant soldier, an able and incorrputible Judge, one of the State's most distinguished lawyers, an humble Christian and a loyal Mason who left behind a name which is an bonor to the Craft, to his family and to the State.

GOLDEN SQUARE LODGE NO. 77 CYNTHIANA, HARRISON CO., KY.

Chartered August 29, 1823, forfeited charter August 29, 1827.

EANGING FORK LODGE NO. 78
LIBERTY, LINCOLN CO., (NOW CASLY CO.,), KY.

Chartered August 31, 1824. August 31, 1848, the name was changed to Jonathan Lodge, became defunct July 10, 1885.

MASHINGTON LODGE NO. 79
NORTH MIDDLETOWN, BOURBON CO., KY.

August 1823, this Lodge was granted dispensation under the name of Crane Lodge U. D. It was chartered as Washington Lodge September 1, 1824. August, 1836, its clurter was forfoited, but restored August 1836. The Lodge became defunct Outober 18, 1866, but charter restored October 24, 1867, from which date it has had

continuous existence. In 1916 it reported a membership of forty six.

AUGUSTA LODCE NO. 80 AUGUSTA, BRACKEN JO., KY.

Was chartered on the 24th day of August 1826. The lodge together with the records was burned in April 1848. The new charter was is sued on August 29, 1849. The records of the lodge, were burned a second time on September 27, 1862, during the battle which took place at Augusta on that date, between Duke's men and the home guards stationed here.

The only records remaining of the interval from 1826 to 1862 being an old ledger containing the names sand accounts, together with the dates of the initiation passing and raising of the members who were received into the order during the periods between these dats. This ledger discloses names of some of the most prominent and leading entirens of those days. Among whom should be mentioned Hon. John Payne, who was Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Mentucky(1832-32), and at that time a member of this lodge. He was initiated an E. A. on December 2, 1825, passed to a F. C. on the 7th, and raised to the Sublime Degree of M. M., on the 10th day of thic same month. He denitted from Augusta Lodge No. 80 on September 25th, 1862, and moved to Brooksville, which town had then become the County Seat. He was clerk of the Bracken County Court for many years.

Augusta Lodge No. 80 was the first to be instituted in Bracken County, and John Payne was the first member from this county to

be elected as Grand Master of the Crend Lodge of Kentucky.

LIVINGSTON LODGE NO. 81 SALAM, LIVINGSTON CO., KY.

Mo. 81, at Salem, Livingston County, Mentucky. The officers
named in the charter being James. A. White, Master, Samuel Ewing,
Senior Warden, Jackson Given, Junior Warden. This Lodge though
designated in its charter as Livingston Lodge No. 81 has always
been carried upon the Grand Lodge roster as Salem Lodge No. 81.
August 27, 1834, this Lodge become defunct. August 28, 1851,
the Grand Lodge of Kentucky passed the following resolution:
"The Grand Master beying revived Salem Lodge No. 81 ordered that
the same be approved, and that Brother H. P. Williams be the Master,
J. W. Williams, Sanior Warden, and Sion Bass, Junior Warden,
until the next election of officers."

This order of revival is not reported by the Grand Master in his annual address but the following indorsement is abund on the back of the aforesaid charter:

"In the Grand Lodge of Ky., Louington, Aug. 28th. A. D. 1851. The Grand Paster hawing received during the rocess the within charter the same was approved and continued in full force to the brethren H. r. Williams as Moster, J. J. Williams, S.A. Sion Base as J. Marden there of until the next election of officers in said lodge.

Witness my hand as Frank Secretary the date above. P. Swigert G. secty".

Thus from 1826 to 1834, and thereafter, a lapse of 17 years, from 1861 to the present time, 1914, the Grand Lodge has kept upon its record the name of a Lodge when no such lodge was ever chartered by it.

The members of this Lodge did not know the name of their own organization until they made an examination of their charter in August, 1914, when preparing a report for this compilation of Masonic lodge history. Its oldest members were then surprised to learn the name of their organization was Livingston and not Lalem Lodge. The name of Livingston Lodge No. 60 as written in the charter is underscored. Aight not this have been an unconscious prophetic protest against the charge of name.

CHINTON LODGE NO. 82 FRINCETON, CLAIMERL CO., KY.

On the 24th., day of June, 1826, J. O. Waster, Thos. H. Bradford, granted Clinton Lodge a dispensation to work as a regular lodge. Appointed Charles Lofland H., Chas. H. Jebb S. J., Alfred Brook, J. J. The Lodge was set to work by Brethren from Russell-ville No. 17, Hopkinsville No. 57 and Livingston C. D.

Lewington, Achtacky, the France lodge convened and on the 19th day of August, 1826, a Charter was granted Clinton lodge No. 82 to work as a legally constituted Ledge. Was not to work as spending ville No. 37 am Livings ton No. 81 - P. M. Chas. Lof land appointed W. H. Chas. H. Webb, J. W., Affred Brock, J. W., Elijah Shephamison, Treasurer, John H. Rackerby, See'ty,

Gustevus Flournoy S. D., Ecward Cassidy J. D., Wm. McGowen S. & T.

house North-east corner of Court Square. The building burned a few years later. Next bedge room in an upper room in a double log house corner Seminary and S. Main etreets. In 1838, the Trustees of the Louge built with the Trustees of the seminary the upper story of a brick building, where now stands the Methodist Episopal Church. In this Louge were wade some notable lasens. Many took the degrees only to demit and form Sister Lodges in adjoining counties, and gained much honor in their respective bodges.

Mr. Marcus I. Tyler petitioned this lodge Jamary 8", 1846.

Initiated Poirtary 7th, passed March 21, rule of April 24th, elected J. W. at semi-annual election June 24th., elected Master at Semi-annual election, December 27th, 1846, again elected Master at Semi-annual election, June 24, 1847, demitted January 1849, was that year committee on uniform work in (3) degrees for First Congressional District.

Was W. Grand Master of Kentucky 1854. He is fondly remembered by some of our old Masons, as being a man of work orful intellect. It is said he could write an important business latter and hold a spirited conversation on a different subject at the same time. His picture now hangs in the Lodge room.

In 1848, John P. Rascoe, was made a Mason. He was one of the best informed workers the Lodge ever had. He was many times Master. Held every office in the Lodge. Laid the corner stone of many of the Public buildings, Rascoe Hall, now Farmersville No. 471, was organized and named for him. Was Grand High Priest

of the State of Kentucky.

There no ver lived a Hason who tried harder to live up to the greatest tenets of our Order "Charity". He was ever the first as well as the last at the bedside of a sick brother or any of his family. When death came it was John P. Rascoe who saw that the last sad rites were properly at tended to. There naver lived a man who devoted so much of his time to the sick and the bereaved as did he.

April 1, 1899, the Supreme Architect removed him to the Colestial Lodge. He was buried with Masonic Honors. The whole community attested their love and reverence for him.

1852, William Garrett, desiring to return to Ireland petitioned this Lodge, April 12th - the rules and by-laws were suspended. He was elected, initiated and passed that night. Raised April 12th, demitted April 14, 1858. The Lodge contracted with the Trustess of the Christian Church and built the Third story over the church on some r of South Main and College Street at a cost of \$2000.00, it was completed and officers publicly installed December 27, 1859.

The Civil Nar placed the Lodge in straightened firancial circumstances. Yet the Lodge never for got the great tenet Charity. Records show they not only assisted the needy at home but at one time sent \$73.50 to the needy witows and orphans of the South. Records show they regularly contributed to the Widows and Orphans Home at Louisville, Kentucky. The Lodge took \$100.00 stock in Masonic Temple at Louisville, Kentucky.

1892 voted a tax for the W. & O. Home. On the morning of

Mr. H. M. Jones as Chairman of Building Committee purchased the (Cameron Corner), North-east corner Court Square, price \$1000.

In March the plans, specifications, price and etc., by The City Lumber Company, were accepted by the Lodge, the structure to cost about \$5000.00. Corner stone laid June 27, 1899 by Most Worshipful Grand Master James 2. Welhelm, November 21, 1901, the Lodge took possession of the new building in size 40 x 70 feet, one room being rented to United States Government for Post Office purposes.

At times the Lodge was heavily embarrassed, but they had faith and confidence that the bread cast upon the waters would return.

March 9, 1696, the Lodge purchased new lost Office fixtures at a cost of \$1500.00 and leased the room and fixtures to the United States Government for a term of ten years. Also rented the other room at a fair price. Later built a room in rear for Enight Templars at a cost of \$1000.00

December 27, 1912, the Treasurer reported the Lodge out of debt and a small belance on hand. Thus the bread that had been cast upon the waters for three fourths of a contury had at last returned many Told, a building worth \$10.000. In all the past years the records show of no assistance asked by this Lodge from any source.

In 1912 was purchased a new electric linters and slides.
Balance of net income went to charity. This Ledge has one of the

most attractive and convenient Lodge rooms and buildings in western Kantucky, the Lodge out of debt with a net income from 3700 to \$800 per annum.

March 1, 1914, the rooms and stairway recarpeted, 250 yards, seats elevated, along the walls. Have 148 loyal members who desire that the entire not income be consted to the worthy needy irrespective of race or creed. The upper mems are now only occupied by the Masonie bodies. Every member is a committee on charity. The lodge never meets in regular or call communications without the Hast asking for report for the needy.

Always at Clinton Loige there hangs a latch string without to welcome a visiting brother, and sufficiently long to be in reach of the hards of the worthy needy.

JEFFERSON LODGE NO. 83 RIDDRETOWN, JESFERSON CO., KY.

Chartered August 29, 1826, and surrendered its charter September 21, 1829.

TYLER LODGE No. 84
JEFFERSONTOWN, JEFFERSON CO., KY.

Chartered August 20, 1826 at Jeffersontown, Jefferson Jounty, Eentwoky, airrendered its charter 1880.

GRANT LODGE NO. 85 WILTHAMEONE, GRAND CO., KY.

On June 5th, 1826, It a mosting of a number of breth; en of the Masonic "Family" held in the Clerk's Office, a chairman and secretary being appointed, it was resolved: "That having the most sincere regard for the noble and ancient institution of Free Masonry" it was therefore recommended to the brethree of Williamstown and vicinity the noccusity of establishing a hadge in this town.

A position and then drafted to the armid Haster for a legal Dispensation - July 5th, 1828, our brathmon met again after having produced their Dispensation and on this day a hame was decided upon, that or "Crant Lodge". On July 22, 1826 Grand Master Thomas F. Bradford installed efficers: Abraham Jonas, a. ii., Decide Eastison, Sr. W. Hubbard B. Smith, Jr. W., Thomas Jilson Treasurer, Wesley Tully, Sr. W. William Vallandigham, Jr. W., and William Brooks, Tylar.

When the lim of the Disputation up hed, feeling that they were not strong mough to ask for a dearter, a continuance of the Disputation was asked for all granted.

After a year of growth the diarter was procured, September 18, 1827, the mass of the Longe being Grant Lodge No. 85.

The Lodge met regularly, the number though small, faithful to hast nie principles did not take of well fring but kept up their endouver to build up a Hasonic Fratemity. Only a few years had elapsed when they had purchased their can building, which was

located where the magnificent Graded School building now themis. In this building they met for years. As the town and vicinity became more thickly settled the Hasenie brothren interested in the educational uplift of the community sacrificed its property on July 26, 1887 to the Board of Education for the creation of the school building and of which will bastown is justly proud.

Abraham Jonas of this lodge was Grand Laster of Kentucky in 1835-34 and afterward became the First Grand Master of Illinois.

October 14, 1909, Stewartsville Lodge 519 was corpolidated with Grant Lodge. Both Lodges were weak in numbers and money but strong in Masonic foith and by steadily pressing forward, the Lodge since that time has been rejuvenated, taking in a number of noble young man tho are much enthused with the work.

The Lodge now meets on the second and fourth Thursdays in each month with a good average of attendance and no lodge in the State has any greater spirit of True Frate mity and concerd in either words or actions, there has Grant Loage No. 85.

DE WITT CLIMTON LODGE NO. 86 STERRS CROSS ROALS (NOW CLIMTONVILLE) BOURHON CO., AY.

Grantoù dispensation 1826. Chartered August 29, 1827, dropped from rolls in 1854, re-instated in 1838, burin à 1899, became defunct October 18, 1900.

LEBANON LODGE NO. 87 LEBANON, MARION CO., MY.

Lobanon Lodge Fo. 87, was granted a charter by the Grand Lodge of Kentwoky August 29, 1815, at Lexington, Joseph G. McClelland being the first Master. This charter was surrendered in 1830 but history restored in 1845. The carly/and records and charter of the lodge were destroyed by fire in 1887 and in October 1887 a duplicate was insued in lieu of the one thus destroyed.

The long charter is signed by Bryan R. Young, Gram Waster, William Hollowey, Deputy Gram Master, W. B. Allen, G. S. W., and I. H. Daviess, G. J. W., and Fhilip Swigert, Gram Secretary.

In this clarter Thomas J. Purdy is named as the first Master of the looks, Benjamin Edmonds the first 3. %. and Edward Mirk the first J. W.

The Purdys were pioneers of Marion County, and at one time owned pretty much all of the land in and about Lebenon. It was a furdy who gave to Labenon the land for educational, church and burial purposes, and the first Master was close kin to the donor.

Benjamin Edmonds, the first 5. W., is well remembered by many of Lebanon's older citizens as one of its bost and most prominent townsmen. And the rugged honesty and unswerving integrity of that austere Paritan character, is represented in his grandsons, members of this lodge, who possess all the virtues of their paternal ancestor smoothed down and softened by twentieth century ideals and development.

The lodge has a membership of 172 and of that number there are, possibly, not exceeding three who know of the time when the

old brick seminary building, long since pulled fown and elecred away, was the home of Lebanon Lodge. The Lebanon Male Seminary was a two story brick building on the Northern outskirts of the town on ground donated by a furdy for educational purposes. The upper story was used by the Masons as a lodge room, but the loage house and its furnishings of that day were very different from those of the present day. The lodge hea only sufficient chairs and of the cheapest kind, to seat the average attendance at lodge and when they had visitors, which was often, the chairs were given to the visitors and the home members would arrange themselves around the walls in a squatting position. On one occasion when Grand Master W. B. Allen visited the lodge riding horseback from his home at Greensburg over thirty miles of the worst mud read in any State, there were gathered many Masons who had ridden over like roads forty or fifty miles to meet their Grand Master. They deserved and occupied the chairs while "home folks" squatted.

Through many years because of fires and other misfortunes
Lebanon Lodge lad a precurious existence, but it has arisen from
its ashes, and is now housed in one of the handsomest and most
elegantly furnished Louge buildings in the whole South. The
Craft is wide awake, fully alive to and in sympathy with every
progressive movement. The membership of this Lodge has always
been drawn from the best blood and the best brains of the community.

J. Proctor Knott, a member of this Lodge, was for years a distinguished member of Congress, and while serving in that capacity delivered the Duluth speech, which made him famous, which was translated into a number of different languages and which is classed at one of the finest specimens of oratorical humors presented to the educated world in the nineteenth century. He was not only a great humorist, but a great scholar, a great lawyer, one of Kentucky's greatest Governors, a most delightful gentleman and a man of broad Masonic learning.

GRIEN RIVER LODGE No. 88
MUNFORDVILLE, HART CO., KY.

This Lodge was granted dispersation in August 1826. Chartered August 1827, became defunct August, 1824. Charter restored in 1847. In 1916 it reported ninety-four members.

GREENUP LODGE NO. 89 GREENUP, GREENUP COUNTY KY.

Oran tod dispensation in 1826. Chartered August 28, 1827. The old charter having become defaced a new one was issued October 21, 1908, and the old one allowed to be retained by the Ledge as a couvenir. In 1916 the Lodge reported 142 members.

J. E. Pollock, past master of this Lodge and cashier of a local bank, has by a number of the Grand Masters of the Grand Lodge of Mantucky been assigned to important duties and committees in the Grand Lodge, in the council of which body he takes high rank

ANDERSON LODGE No. 90 LIMRINGEBURG, ANDERSON CO., KY.

Charto red August 25, 1528, and has always swideneed a healthy hasonic growth. In 1916 its mombership was one hundred and sixteen.

ATHENS LODGE NO. 91
ATHUNS, PAYETTE CO., AY.

When charter granted. In September, 1835, the Lodge became defunct.

WOODSON RODGE NO. 98

Granted dispensation August 1686, as Yellow Bonks Lodge.

1. 7. Barnley being the first Haster. Charter granted August
1829, became defunct, 1834.

FLERITURBUNG LODGE NO. 93 Pharingsbung, Printing Co., My...

Chartered August, 1851. R. W. F. Farris the line Master. Became defunct August 1854.

WARSEN LODGE NO. 94 WARSAW, GALLACTE CO., MY.

Chartered August 1883. John Chew named as the first master, but the Lorde was never occanized.

GOOD FAITH LOLGS NO. 95 ERLANGER, MENTON CO., MY.

On the 8th of April, 1834, A. Jones, Grace Master of the Grand Tolgs of Eartwelty, came to Morence, Hy., and opened Good Faith Louge "V.D." By mutual some aut of the brethmon J. C. Poster was made Paster. The minutes show that from the very beginning the lodge was a very active one. This in a sense is accounted for by the fact that they had a much larger territory to Gram from thum most englodge has today. At that time even Covington and Newport had no Hasonie lodges. Under the date of August 25. 1834, the committee on leages U. D. made the bollowing report to the Brand Lodge. "That Good Waith Lodge U. D. situated at Florence, Boons County, Lentucky, procured a dispensation from the Host Norshipful Grand Haster sime the last Crand Annual Communication, and have paid their dies, made their return, forwarded s copy of by-laws and sent their representative. The by-laws have been examined, which are in accordance with the usages and principles of the Order, and indeed some articles are inserted, which although not very common, your committee is of the opinion that they are very ereditable and proper, and of much importance." The work of this Loage has not been forwarded, and the reason given by the representative is, that it was not known to be necessary. A continuance of the disponsation is prayed for, which your committee deems to be reasonable, and they submit the following resolution:

"Resolved, That the dispensation heretofore granted to Good

"Faith Lodgs, be continued until the next Grand Annual Communicstion, and that George H. Clay be Master, Samuel G. Menzies bo Senior Warden and Ruben L. Bristow, be Junior Worden of said lodge".

The charter was granted by the Grand Lodge on August 21.1835, and the lodge numbered 95. During its entire history the lodge charter has nover been armsted or questioned in anyway.

The minutes show that the representatives to the Crand Lodge were compelled to go to Louisville by stage coach.

On July 10, 1834, this Lodge sont a delegation of members to Cincinnati to march with Lafayette Lodge in honor of our departed friend and brother General Lafayette.

The observation of the two Saint John's days was always observed in a very befitting manner. A minister or orator was procured to deliver an address, after which the members of the Lodge would parade and then have a banquet.

Milton W. Graves potitioned the Lodge on the 23rd., day of June, 1836, was voted on and disched on the 6th day of August of the same year and "indicase of emergency was given all three degrees on November 5th, 1836.

On May 1, 1838, the by-laws were changed to read as follows; "No member in arrears with his dues shall be eligible to hold office, or to vote at the regular election of lodge officers."

On November 4th, 1843, a motion was made and carried that Brother C. C. White be allowed to furnish wood for the lodge for six months for Fifty conts.

On September 23, 1848, this Lodge received a communication from the Grand Secretary of The Grand Lodge saying that, "A caln-

"destine lodge had be an opened at Ripley, Ohio, and warmed the brethren against imposters".

June 4th, 1852, Bros. Menzies and Stuck were summoned before the Lodge charged with unmasonic conduct in not being friendly with each other.

Committees were frequently appointed to adjust personal differences between brothren.

In 1840 this wodge bought a set of Robt. Morrie: Encyclopadias.

This Loage met for many years in the classhool building at Florence, Kentucky, which was made famous by John Uri Loyd in his back "Stringtown on the Fike."

No meetings were held from May, 1865, to March 11, 1866. This was promably due to the Civil Mar.

During the reconstruction period following the Civil War, we find that the brothmen did much to maintain the balance of good fellowship in the community and did their full share in preserving the integrity of its citizenship. Especial mention should be made of Reuben D. Bristow, who was one of the farter members and to whom for his good work and kindly interest was presented by the Lodge a Bible as a taken of the leve and respect of the brethren. A brief memoir of his Fasonic life written by himself is found in the minutes of January 27, 1872.

as a result of the efforts of several carmst brothren of arlanger and by unanimous consent the Lodge was moved to that place in 1898.

COLUMBIA LOIGH NO. 96 COLUMBIA, ADAIR CO., KY.

Having been appointed to write a history of the above mamed Lodge, I find the task difficult from the fact that the old records have either been lost or destroyed, and what I may write is both traditional and from my own knowledge.

The first ledge of Masons organized and put towork in Columbia was instituted more than eighty years ago. Its name was Moore. Lodge No. 98. Who its first Master was I have no way of knowing, for the reason above stated. The Lodge, as I learned, flourished and many men who were made Master Masons in it became prominent in the affairs of Adair County, and also in the affairs of the Commonwealth. The Lodge did not cease to flourish until after the breaking out of the Civil war in 1861.

The country being to me to pieces, many of its members enlisted in the ermy, and the Lodge surrendered its charter and disbarded. When the war closed, a Lodge was again or ganized, the work being done under dispensation until a meeting of the Grand Lodge, at which time a charter was granted, the name of the Lodge being Columbia Lodge Fumber 96. The petitions reasked the Grand Lodge for the old number, which was cheerfully granted.

Since the war the lodge has initiated, passed and raised hundreds of applicants, many of whom are dead, and a large per cent of those living are acattered over the United States.

A member of this Lodge is James Garnett, who was Grand Master of the Grand Lodge 1905-6, served the Commonwealth of Acatucky as its Attorney General, and who is now one of the five trustees

appointed by the Grand Lodge to hundle the endorment hand for higher education of our juvenile wards, to select the temeficiaries of the fund and to direct the expanditure thereof.

BODIEY LODGE NO. 97

This looks was set to work under a dispensation in August 1855. August 50, 1836, it was granted a charter and continued under the jurisdiction of the drawd Looks of Aestroky until 1844, from it was dismissed to the Grand Looks of Hiltmois, becoming No. 1 on the Hilinois negister.

COMM LODGE NO. 95, HIND AT MANAGER, CHRISTIAN CO., NY.

Oranted dispersation 1835; chartered 1836; became defanct Cotober 20, 1850. This Lodge was made in honor of sust Grand Master Comen.

DOVAIL LODGE NO. 99
BARGHTUNN, TERSON CO., MY.

Destroyed ingret 50, 1856. Benjamin Door being the First Dester. Charter carrowdered in 1665, re-instaled 1889. October 23, 1874, upon potition presented by John D. Michieffe, a nonter of the ledge, the number was shanged from ninety nine to ninety win, the numerical designation of the original lodge at parastown.

BOOME LODGE BO. 100 PRINCEURS, BOOME SO., MY.

Received dispossation and not to work in August 1836. Chartered August 29, 1837 and because defunct September 1, 1884.

In 1850 a dispensation was granted to a ledge at this place move as Bon Franklin Rolps V. D., and to which was granted August 29, 1850, the old charter of Boone Lodge No. 188.

The jewels used by Owen Lodge No. 68 at rort Milliam were granted to Boone Lodge by the Grand Lodge, and when this Lodge became defunct these jewels were in 1886, given to Carrollton Lodge No. 184, which had been organized August 29, 1844.

FLAT HOCK LODGE NO. 101 FLAT HOCK, BOURBON COUNTY MY.

Flat Book lodge No. 101 of Flat Rock, Bearbon County, now hit the Rock, was the stered Rugust 29, 1857; was under dispensation for two years. George Breckinsidge was the first Master, Sanford Poston, Senior Mardon, and Lewis F. Forter, Junior Mardon. The records are silent as to other officers and members. In 1858 there was no seturn printed and no original of the Leage is found in archives of Grand Lodge. In 1859 Copyge Breckinsidge was elected Grand Laster. His promotion having be an accessive and regular. The return of that year was, Officers: W. S. Roberts on, Master; M. M. Stewart, Senior Mardon; J. P. Skillman, Junior Warden; J. G. Boyd, Secretary; Goorge Brockinsidge, Treasurer; E. Terry, Senior Deacon; Harvey T. Wilson, Junior Deacon;

D. Smally, Stewart and Tyler, and Raster Hasons: J. J. Walker, J. Robbins, P. T. Fisher, H. M. Haddox, H. M. Letton, D. J. Hester, H. Moore, Lewis Wilson and Harvey T. Hazelrigg. No return in 1840.

The return of 1841 contains the names of only seven bruthron. chartered in August 1857, under dispensation for two years. Surrendered her sharter September 1, 1841. Such is the brief outline, disautrous and limentable, of Flat Rock No. 101. It died in infancy, loss than four years of existence. Within that brief span, less time than the average Lodge becomes efficient in working order, there went forth from her tyled recesses three Grand Masters - two of Ametucky and the third from the neighboring jurisdiction of Indiana. "Whom the Gods love die carly". May not the maxim be applied to institutions as well as individuals? If so, was there ever greater illustration of its truth? As to where Breckingidge became a Mason the record is silent. His father removed from Augusta County, Visginia and settled near Paris. Acutucky in 1787, whom bis son was five years of age. Jome years later the son became a resident of this precinct oming and occupying the fam known as the Captain Feter Bramlett farm. It is a striking coincidenes that this form should have been the property and recidence successively of George Breckinninge and W. F. Bramlett, the former a charter member and first Haster of the ill fated Flat Rock No. 101, and the latter a charter member and first Muster of Hope Loage No. 246, eleven years later.

The former lesing his forture in the great financial depression of 1840, the other his life as a Confederate of ficer at the battle

"The last analysis of liberty is the bloca of a patriot." Brackinridge was strictly a representative man in all the walks of life,
unimpeachable in character, of versatile reading and accomplishments, in no particular did he dim the lustre of a famous name or
prove recreat to his worthy Virginia origin. He was elected
Grand haster of the Grand Lodge of Aentucky in 1839, and the year
following laid the corner stone of the old Hasonic Temple at
Louisville. He lived the life of a devoted Hason and died in
Mashington County in 1869.

Harvey T. Wilson was entered, passed and raised in 1839 at Flat Rock Loage No. 101. He became Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Eentucky in 1859-60 and offered the year before the resolution changing the meeting of Grand Loage from Lexington to Louisville, corsequently was the Cirat Grand Master to preside over Grand Lodge at the Masonic Temple at Louisville, the corner stone of which had been laid by the first Master of Flat Rock Looge No. 101, the Grand Master of 1840. A heautiful incident of historic interest occurred during the admiristration of Wilson in the visit of a delegation of brothron from the Stata of Indians, bearing with them a trophy of war, the sword of Joseph Hamilton Daviess, wo me by him when killed at the battle of Tippecance, the colonel of a Mentucky regiment, in the dar of 1812, under General Harrison, at thich time he was grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Mentucky. The sword was formally presented by Harvey Hazelrigg who first sow lesenic light with in the year that greated Harvey Wilson at Flat Rock No. 101.

order of Grand Lodge this historic sword was placed for safe keeping in a bank woult in the city. After the lapse of years Wilson re-appeared at Grand Lodge and made inquiry about the sword, not a single official or delegate know anything about it, whereupon Wilson offered a resolution, resiting the order of placing it in some city bank woult and requested the appointment of a coumittee to make diligent search for it, and when found, to be placed in keeping of the Grand Tyler, with instructions to wear it in tyling the sessions of the Grand Lodge. The resolution passed and the sword for turn toly resoluted.

The time of Daviese for all time as a lawyer is assured and his prosecution at frankfort of Laron Burr for high trauson, in 1801, with Henry Clay in defense stands out as one of the most brilliant forensic efforts ever heard in the Courts of Aentucky. As an intellectual combat it is without parallel in the history of the Commonwealth.

The third product in the line of Grand Masters of Flat Rock
Lodge No. 101 was Harvey G. Hazelrigg, born near Sharpsburg, Bath
County, in the spring of 1840, was made a Master Mason at Flat
Rock Lodge No. 101 and soon thereafter removed to Boone County,
Indiana, and died a member of Boone Lodge No. 9, Lebanon, Indiana.
He was Grand Master for the years 1865-66-67. Hervey Hazelrigg was
no ordinary man, affable in manner fluent in speech, brilliant
in oratory, as a Whig in his native County of Bath, aspiring to
a sect in the Legislative ascembly, he was triumphantly shocked in
the face of a majority or four hundred in opposition party. In
his materials as representative of

his county are senatorial district. The great financial depression of 1840, continued for seven years, proved disastrous to individual fortunes of the members of that wook Loage No. 101.

EQUALITY LODGE NO. 102 EQUALITY, ILL.

Obsertered August 29, 1857, dismissed to the Frank Rodge of Illinois August 31, 1842.

MORRISON LODGE NO. 108 DANVILLE, BOYNE GO., MY.

Granted charter August 2, 1837. Abner 0. Cunningham the first faster, became deducet in 1854.

MANCASTER NO. 104 LANCASTER, GARRARD COUNTY, MY.

Chartered August 29, 1828, its charter was arrested October 24, 1869. The charter itself being lost October 24, 1873, a charter bearing the same number was insued to a lodge organized than in October 1873 which became defunct in 1890. October 19, 1892, a charter bearing the same number was is and to the present Lodge at the place.

H. R. Hernden, of this Lodge, was by the Grand Master appointed to the Grand Lodge Committee on Appeals.

MURRAY LOUGE NO. 105 MURRAY, CALLOWAY CO., MY.

Murray Lodge No. 105 were chartered August 29th, 1838, umer the name of Wadowboro Lodge No. 105, and was located at wadesboro, Calloway County, Montocky, then the metropolis of western Acateeky, and the County Deat of Calloway County. It was the first lodge organized west of the Tennessee river.

The first officers of the Lodge Jere, Huthan Bownan, Master, R. E. Rowland, Sr. Jeréen, R. H. Williams, Jr. Warnen, W. W. Williams, Secretary and its charter members were, Mathan Bownan, J. Williams, R. H. Williams, R. L. Rowland, M. E. Brewer, T. C. Thompson, D. W. Pitt, M. Williams, John Irvan, George Miller, Thomas McMirath, G. J. Linn, Edw. Curd, Daniel Mathewson.

month, and it continued to meet and work at Wadesburo until June 1840, when the Ledge was suspended, and remained so until the year 1844, when by action of the Smark Ledge the charter was restored, the mane of the Ledge changed from Sadesburo No. 105 to Durray Ledge No. 105, and the place of meeting changed to Durray, Calloway County, Hentucky. The change of location was brought about by a change of the County Seat which was originally at Wadesburo was removed to Purray, Ky., and the Ledge under the rectoration of its Charter was also removed to Eurray, and has since that time (1844) regularly held its meetings at this place and for the past fifty years has occupied the same hall.

The original charter of the Bodge (which is now 77 years old)

was written on parchment with a goose quill pen, now occupies a prominent place in the present Lodge room, and is in an excellent state of preservation.

The officers of the lodge after the restoration of its charter and removal to Murray, were Mathen Bowman, Master, John Whitnel, Sr. J. R. E. Rowland Jr. Warden, J. Wathem, Secretary, Thomas A. Bruce, Treas., Thomas McElrath, Sr. D., R. C. Bibb, Jr. D., and William L. Allen, Tyler.

The above maded of ficers were publicly installed by Reputy Grand Master Thomas M. Scaes, and a public banquet was given by the Lodge at the principal Tavern of the town to the vibiting brethren, their wives and daughters. The brethren present on this occasion were F. Ezell, B. C. Thompson, J. L. Shelly, M. Bowman, R. A. Williams, G. P. Linm, J. T. Elliott, T. J. Pitt, E. Curd, Am. A. Rogers, Morgan Williams, Thomas McElrath. The visiting brethren were G. W. Craig, J. Watham, Thomas A. Bruce, John Whitnell, Lavid Shitnell, R. C. Bibb, and others.

The Lodge was not to work the 27th., day of December, 1844, and appointed the Saturday before the Fourth Honday in each month as the day for its regular stated meetings, and it continued to meet on this day until October 1849, when the By-laws were changed so as to meet on the Fourth londay night instead of the Saturday before the Fourth londay, and this was the regular time for meeting until again changed in 1850 to the Saturday before the Fourth londay in each month, and was later changed to meet on 5, turday before the full moon in each month, and continues to meet on this date.

The following members have served as Masters am secretaries of this Loage since its organization:

1939, Nathan Borman, Master	a. a. alliams, Secretary
1840 to 1844 Lodge suspende	She may derive the the contract of the the degree of the the contract of the the contract of t
1844, Mathan Bowman, Master	J. Wathen,
1845, Nathan Bowman, "	j. I. Shelly,
1846, Rathan Bowman,	. A. A. Curā,
1847, 1. E. Curd, "	J. T. Alliott,
1848, Edw. L. Beruggs, "	C. A. Duncan,
1849, Edw. L. Boruggs, "	C. A. Duncan, "
1850, John Pinner, "	– 0. 0. 000bg, π
1851, James Lumnight, "	s. B. Irvan,
1852, Wm. H. Diuguiā, "	Deriel Hathewson, "
1858, Edw. D. Beruggs, "	r. M. Ellison, "
1854, Wm. H. Diuguid, "	s. 5. Allison, "
1855, D. W. Padgitt, "	Ft 18 91
1826, Jas. Meknight, "	£2 14 74
ard. so for the as slow. by the	published anmal records.

MT. HORIAH HODGE NO. 106 LOUISVILLE, JEFFERSON CO., MY.

Mt. Moriah Loige Under Dispensation was organized January 21, 1859, by wm. Tarmehill and James Rice. Jr., on the proxy from the Grand Master, Derrick Warner.

The direct officers appointed were:

James F. Wellby, Worshipful Paster; William A. Kerr,

Senior Marden, Isaac Cromie, Junior Marden, Thomas J. Reed, Treasurer, James B. Ogden, Secretary, Samuel Hyman, Senior Deacon, John M. Gutter, Junior Deacon, S. Dickinson, Chaplain, A. D. Earich, Stewart and Tyler.

The officers were installed by the proxy.

By consent of Abraham Lodge No. 8 and Louisville Royal Arch Chapter, the lodge met in Masonie Hall, Fifth and Oreen streets.

At a meeting held August 21, 1829, the Master informed the Lodge that he had produced from the Grand Lodge a charter, under the name of "Mt. Moriah Lodge Fo. 106", and called the meeting for the purpose of installing the officers appointed by the Grand Lodge. William 3. Filcher, Master of Clarke Lodge No. 51, as proxy of the Grand Master (George Breckenridge), then proceeded to install the officers.

On December 27, 1839, Mt. Moriah joined the other lodges, and repaired to the M. D. Church, where william Holman delivered an address. On the same day an invitation was received from the Louisville Legion, to join them in achebrating the Land of February. At this mosting the following officers were named: Thomas J. Joby, worshipful Taster, Churles Tilden, Benies warden, Tavid T. T. Parnate, Annior Marden, Issue Gromie, Secretary, David T. Mardin, Greasurer, James Achurnie, Senior Decon, William Merry, Junior Decon, John Sebastian, Stewart and Lylor.
This is the Great set on officers regularly elected by this lodge. Consolidated with numbers 8, 61, ppf 113.

NELSON TODAY NO. 107 LEXINGTON, FAYETTE CO., MY.

Trantod disponsation August 22, 1889, chartered August 27, 1889. Compolidated with Davieso Mo. 22 to Davieso a Melbon. September 2, 1882. Start to Edving No. 22.

TARROP DODAN NO. 108 NARDIN, GALLATIN CO., AN.

Organised lugar t 1838, as amous Rodge to 1., greated observer as themor todge lugart 27, 1858. In 1916 reported to 1855 mine members.

00.10000 LL091 MG. 109

COVINGTON, KENTON CO., KE.

Covington, Mentucky, November 24, 1838, the Grand Longe was opened in due form agreeably to appointment to install the officers of Covington Longe under dispensation. Present were James J. Arnold, John B. Casey, James W. Clarkson, Alexander Connelly, Moses V. Grant, Japtha J. Kendrick, Andrew Ross, Wm. D. Scott, James D. Steward, W. W. Southgate and Wm. Wade.

"The Grand Lodge was then opened with tem

J. J. Kendrick, G. Master pro tem) Jas.G. rnold, D.G.S. Warden pro

Wm. D. Scott, S. G. do do) Jas.D. Stewart, D.G.J. do do

The officers of Covington Loage were then installed in ancient form:

```
Wm.W.Southgate, W. Master;

Jas. G. Arnold, S. Worden;

Jas. D. Stewart, J. Warden;

Moses V. Grant, Sec'y;

Alex. Connelly, Treasurer;

Mm. Nade, Senior Deacon;

John B. Casey, Junior do;

Andrew Ross, Tyler.
```

The Grand Lodge was closed and Covington Lodge opened on the E. A. Degree and Committee on by-laws appointed who submitted a report. Meetings were recorded as being held under dispensation until July 25, 1839, after which date no such mention is made and the first election of officers was held December 27, 1839.

After the outbreak of the Civil War meeting must have been infrequently held- the last receipt signed by Treasurer Wm. Hay was for \$8.50, dated February 14, 1862, and the last minutes of that period are those of a called meeting for the election of officers and payment of dues held December 28, 1863.

some time in 1864, the charter, jewels and records were surrendered. On February 19, 1867, at a meeting of Masons held in Masonic Hall "it was agreed to be expedient to form a new lodge to be called Covington Lodge", and that the following be recommended as first officers, Jas. A. Agelston, Master; Henry Kellar, Senior Warden and James M. Blackburn, J. Warden, and a petition signed by twenty brethren was addressed to Isaac T. Martin, Grand Master.

Meetings were held and in the minutes of an adjourned meeting held October 15, 1867, appears a copy of a petition addressed to the Grand Lodge for restoration of charter, jewels, books and papers of Old Covington Lodge, 109. The petition was recommended by Col. Clay and Golden Rule Lodges and was returned by the Grand Lodge with power and authority to carry on the work with J. A.

Egelston, Master, H. Keller, S. W., and J. M. Blackburn, J. W.

On November 25, 1867, Grand Master Fitch installed the following named brethren as officers of Coving ton Lodge:

James A. Egelston, Master;) Samuel Reed, Secretary protem; Henry Keller, Senior Warden;) G. W. Lyon, Senior Deacon; James M.Blackburn, Junior Warden;) J.P.McGinnety, Junior Deacon; J. S. Turrer, Treasurer;) W. H. Estep, Tyler.

Since that date the lodge has fared well and now has a membership of over three hundred and twenty-five.

WARREN LODGE NO. 110 LEESBURG, HARRISON CO., KY.

Chartered August 7, 1839. In 1880 it surremered its charter.

SOMERSET LODGE NO. 111 SOMERSET, PULASKI CO., KY.

Granted dispensation priot to August 1627, which was continued from year to year until 1832, when it was surrendered - no charter ever being granted. A dispensation was later granted and September 1, 1840, a charter was granted to Pulaski Lodge No. 111. In 1853 this Lodge was consolidated with Curá Lodge No. 175 under the designation of Some rest Lodge No. 111. In 1908 Virgil Smith of this Lodge was made Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky. This is one of the strong lodges of the State.

FLEMING LODGE NO. 112 FLEMINGSBURG, FLEMING CO., KY.

Fleming Lodge No. 112, Flemingsburg, Kentucky was chartered September 1, 1840. The charter was signed by Abner Cunningham then Grand Master of the State of Kentucky, at which time he appointed Thomas Throop, Worshipful Master; W. S. Robinson, Senior Warden and N. P. Hall, Junior Warden.

The Charter members of this Lodge, when chartered, numbered twenty-five, composed of the best and foremost citizens of Fleming County, many of them having been members of St. John Lodge No. 11, which had become defunct. The records of this old Lodge are most of them lost, however there are records to show that it was in existence in 1819. The records of Fleming Lodge No. 112, for the first fifteen years being lost it is impossible to give the early history of this lodge. The oldest records the Lodge has date from 1855.

This Loge has firmished to the State two Grand Masters - H. T. Wilson and Elisha S. Fitch. Grand Master Fitch had the distinction of being the only Grand Master of the State of Kentucky who was ever re-elected to succeed himself. While acting as Grand Master he laid the corner stone of the Masonic Widow's and Orphan's Home in Louisville, Mentucky, and also dedicated the building one year later.

The Lodge is in a healthy condition, gradually growing, now having 107 members. The Lodge owns its own home property, worth about \$10,000, and is preparing in the near future to raze the old building and erect a new four story temple.

L. M. Cox, who was Grand Master in 1843-44 and Harvey T. Wilson, Grand Master 1859-60, each at one time held their membership in this Lodge.

ANTIQUITY LODGE NO. 113 LOUISVILLE, JEFFERSON CO., KY.

Received dispensation July 3, 1840. Chartered September 1, 1840. Forfeited Charter 1842. Re-instated 1847, forfeited Charter 1861. Re-instated 1865. Forfeited Charter 1866.

The history of this Lodge reminds one of the antiquated joke of the railroad engineer who tersely telegraphed his troubles and his triumphs to department headquarters in these words, "Off again - gone again - Donnegain."

OTTOWA LODGE NO. 114
OTTOWA, ILLINOIS.

Granted a dispensation December 19, 1839. Chartered September 1, 1840. In 1841 dismissed to the Grand Longe of Illinois.

HANCOCK LODGE NO. 115
HAWESVILLE, HANCOCK CO., KY.

Granted dispensation May 28, 1840. Chartered September 1, 1840. In 1916 reported a membership of eighty one.

MINERVA LODGE NO. 118 MINERVA, MASON COUNTY, KY.

Received a dispensation August 10, 1840. Chartered August 31, 1841, became defunct October 3, 1890.

October 8, 1891, which Lodge become defunct February 2, 1897.

SHARPSBURG LODGE NO. 117 SHARPSBURG, BATH CO., KY.

Received a dispensation February 5, 1841. Chartered August 31, 1841, became defunct in 1882.

BIG SPRING LODGE NO. 118 BIG SPRING, MEADE CO., KY.

Granted dispensation January 12, 1841. Chartered September 1, 1841. The Lodge owned the building in which its meetings were held, and owing to laxness in the collection of dues it was compelled August 30, 1848, to surrender its charter. In 1852 the charter was restored. In 1880 the Lodge is omitted from the Reports of the Grand Lodge and no further mention is found of it.

WAYNE LODGE NO. 119
MONTICELLO, WAYNE CO., KY.

Granted a dispensation April 5, 1841. Chartered August 31, 1841. Charter lost and new one issued without fee in August 1849.

Charter surrendered October 20, 1864.

MILLS POINT LODGE NO. 120 HICKMAN, FULTON CO., KY.

Given a dispensation May 15, 1841. Chartered September 1, 1841. Surrendered its charter August 18, 1866.

CADIZ LODGE NO. 121 CADIZ, TRIGG CO., KY.

Cadiz Lodge, No. 121, was granted a dispensation March 8th,1841; and granted a Charter September the 9th, 1841. William DeGraffenreid was designated in the Charter as Master; Mathew Mayes, Senior Warden, and Joel Wilson, Junior Warden. The Charter members were, William DeGraffenreid, Mathew Mayes, Joel Wilson, Collins D. Bradley, James E. Thompson, Richard K. Tyler, Thomas B. Redd, William H. Martin, Stanley Thomas, James Wilson, John S. Fisher and F. H. Ragon. The Charter members were mostly from Cowan Lodge, No. 96, then located at LaFayette, Aentucky, but which beceme defunct October 20, 1859.

The Charter was lost and a new Charter was granted August the 30th, 1843. A part of the time during the Civil War, the Lodge ceased to work, as the Union soldiers were quartered in the Lodge room. And for the years of 1861, 1862, and 1864 there were no reports from this Lodge to the Grand Lodge of Aentucky. With the exception of the years mentioned during the Civil War, and for a few years in the decade from 1880 to 1890, when the Lodge was maintained principally through the efforts of John D. Shaw, this

Lodge has been prosperous small active in Masonic work. The Lodge has for a long time owned its own home, it being housed in a substantial brick building on Jefferson Street.

During its existence, the Loage has had among its members, men of prominence in all the walks of life.

Marcus M. Tyler was Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Sentucky in 1852.

Henry Burnett was long a member of Congress from this District and afterwards a member of the Confederate Senate.

Collins D. Bradley and Thomas C. Dabney, were both Circuit Judges of this District when the District embraced many more counties than it does now.

Henry R. Lawrence was Speaker of the Kentucky House of Representatives and is now a member of the Board of Prison Commissioners.

The Lodge now has a membership of ninety two Masons and one Fellow Craft Mason. It now has among its members one of the oldest Masons of the State, Allison W. Thomas, born September 14, 1825, and made a Master Mason July 1849; although 89 years old, he is still an active member of this Lodge.

HARRISON LODGE NO. 122
BRANDENBURG, MEADE CO., KY.

Granted dispensation August 1841. Chartered August 30, 1842. Membership in 1916, reported as one hundred and eight.

BRADFORD LODGE NO. 123 INDEPENDENCE, KENTON COUNTY, KY.

Granted dispensation October 2, 1841. Chartered August 30, 1842. This Charter having been lost a new one was granted August 31, 1853. The Lodge in 1916 reported twenty-nine members.

PITMAN LODGE NO. 124 CAMPBELLSVILLE, TAYLOR CO., KY.

Granted dispensation January 4, 1842. Chartered August 30, 1842, became defunct October 22, 1896. In 1898 the Lodge was revived and given back the surrendered Charter. In 1916 this Lodge reported one hundred and twenty-one members in which year John N. Turner, Past Master, was designated by the Grand Master as Chairman of the Grand Lodge Committee on By-laws.

ST. JOHN'S LODGE NO. 125 SALVISA, MERCER CO., KY.

Granted dispensation in August, 1841. Chartered August 30, 1842. Charter misplaced in 1855 and new one issued August 30, of that year. In 1895, the Lodge room and properties were burned and the Lodge was moved to Kirkwood, Mercer County. October 16, 1895, a new charter was granted in place of the one destroyed. In 1901 the Lodge was taken back to Salvisa.

LIBERTY LODGE NO. 126 NEW LIBERTY, OWEN CO., KY.

Granted dispensation August, 1842. Chartered August 29, 1843. Alex McRigg the first Master. Became defunct October 18, 1856.

PADUCAH LODGE NO. 127
PADUCAH, MCCRACKEN CO., KY.

First meeting of this Lodge under dispensation was held March 30, 1843. It was chartered August 29, 1843. The Lodge was named, as was the city, for the Indian Chief who is buried there. This Lodge in 1916 reported a membership of two hundred and fourteen.

OWEN LODGE NO. 128
OWENTON, OWEN CO., KY.

Owen Lodge No. 126 was chartered august 29, 1843. Thomas A.

Berrymin being the first Master. The Lodge was twice destroyed

The Lodge was twice destroyed

The first Master. The Lodge was twice destroyed was twice destroyed.

December 18, 1867, sixteen of the Master Masons who had belonged to this Lodge met and agreed upon M. J. Williams to form an organization and ask for a new Charter. This was done and the Charter granted October 22, 1868, and a Lodge building erected upon a lot given the Lodge by Villiam Berry, upon the condition that his son George Berry, should be buried on the lot, a monument erected at his grave and the same to be for ever protected from vandalism. October 16, 1893, this building was burned cown and the Charter destroyed by the fire. October 28, 1893, a new charter in lieu

thereof was issued, but the Lodge being financially unable to replace the building and comply with the stipulated condition under which title to the lot was held, entered into an arrangement with the order of I. O. O. F. under which they erected a building with suitable apartments for the Masonic Lodge, and entirely separate apartments in which to hold their own meetings, the Masonic Lodge being given perpetual use of their apartments, relieved of rent and charge for up we ep of the building.

John D. McClure, Past Master of this Lodge, was Grand High Friest of the Grand Chapter of Kentucky R. A. M. in 1854.

> SARKER LODGE NO. 129 West Point, Hardin Co., ky.

Chartered August 29, 1843. In 1916 reported 137 members.

OWENSBORO LODGE NO. 130
OWENSBORO, DAVIESS CO., KY.

This Lodge was chartered August 29, 1845. The first Master of the Lodge was Hiram Abiff Hunter. This Lodge in 1916 reported a membership of four hundred and ninety-three and in the list appear the names of two Past Grand Masters - Thomas Stevenson Pettit, and William Whitlock Clarke, both of whom are active participants in all Grand Lodge discussions.

Thomas S. Pettit was born in Frankfort, Aentucky, December, 1843; for a time edited a newspaper in Owensboro, has served as Clerk of the Kentucky House of Representatives, and as reading Clerk of the

lower House of Congress. He was a member, from Daviess County, of the Convention which wrote the present Constitution of Kentucky. During the existence of the Populist Party he was its candidate for Governor of Kentucky.

Wm. M. Clarke, was born in New Orleans, January 20, 1851.

He practiced law in Hopkins ville, centucky, until 1893, when he became Chief Deputy U. S. Collector of Internal Revenue in the Second District serving four years. Since which time he has been engaged un bus iness pursuits at Owensboro. For a long number of years he has been, and still is, in charge of the Foreign Correspondence of the Grand Lodge.

HICKMAN LODGE NO. 131 CLINTON, HICKMAN CO., KY.

Chartered August 29, 1843. October 17, 1901, the old Charter being defaced was given the Lodge as a souvenir and a new one issued. this was destroyed by fire March 20, 1908, and a new one in its stead issued October 21, 1908. In 1916 it reported a membership of seventy-three.

B. R. YOUNG LODGE NO. 132 HODGENVILLE, LARUE CO., KY.

This Lodge was chartered on the #8th day of August, 1844, A.D. A. L. 5844, with Wm L. Morris, W. M., Stephen W. D. Stone, S. W., and Wm. Robertson, J. W. The Charter was signed by Grand Master, Bryant R. Young, for whom the Lodge was mamed. Bryant R. Young

was a Hardin County man and the charter was signed at Grand Lodge in Lexington, Kentucky.

The Lodge existed, thriving and losing a trength alternately, and appears neber to have owned its hall, until in the 90's.

For some years prior to this date the Lodge seems to have suffered from designing members and the indifference of its real friends until it was almost on the point of losing its charter, was unable to meet its financial obligations or to command the respect of the community, necessary to its rehabilitation.

To add to its desperate straits about this time the old County Seminary Building, on Hill Street, in the upper story of which the Lodge had held its meetings, burned down. It was not rebuilt but was transferred to the Hodgenville Common School District, the lodge having no interest in the title. This left the lodge without a home.

For some time a little band of the Craft had been striving to promote Masonic virtue, eliminate from the control of the official business of the lodge that indifference to public opinion which had so long prevented the lodge from enjoying the repute that was its due, and to re-instate it in its proper place in the Masonic world. Their efforts were at this time successful and the lodge passed under their official direction.

Immediately a new era began. Faithful Masons, of whom we name, Wm. Miller, and Jasper Muir, Jr., bankers, Ben T. Hargan, Circuit Clerk, Murray R. Hubbard, attorney at law, G. D. Smock, physician and druggist, E. B. Ludwick and H. C. Priest, Illinois Central Railway employees, S. D. Gibbons, and J. R. Redmon, business men

of the town, secured by their personal efforts and means a lot on which was a building. This was converted into a hall and suitably furnished. These men then organized and incorporated a Masonic Hall Company which took over and held the property until January 27, 1897, when it was conveyed to the Trustees of the Lodge and has ever since been a comfortable and commodious home of the Craft.

The gavel used by this Lodge is of wood cut from the estate of Mt. Vernon, Virginia, the home of George Washington, and from the Lincoln Farm in LaRue County, Kentucky, the birthplace of Abraham Lincoln. The mallet being from the former and the handle from the latter. This much prized emblem of authority was a gift to the Lodge by E. B. Ludwick, presented at a stated meeting on the 24th., day of March, 1894.

A. P. Johnson, one of the oldest living Masons in Achtucky, is a member of this Lodge. He was made a Mason in this Lodge on the 8th., day of September, 1849, and has been a loyal member in good standing continuously since that date. Sixty-five years a Mason without a charge against him as a man or a brother. He was Post Master at this place for a number of years and was a faithful and efficient public servant.

The Lodge recently, at least for a short time, enjoyed the distinction of numbering among its members the youngest Mason in the State. Cadet Robert L. Milliams, of the United States Army, who was graduated from West Point in the class of 1915. Cadet Williams had Christmas leave to visit home, and on St. John's day December 1913, was initiated on the day he became 21 years of age.

His father, Charles Williams, acting Master, by special request, conferred the degree.

Some of the many members of this Longe who have served in public of fice are name a below:

Philip A. Taylor, who is the present Junior Warden, served a term, as postmater, just ended.

A. ... Pickerill is now serving his second consecutive term as County Junge.

Stepher W. D. Stone, for a number of years immediately arter this county. Lakue, was created served as county court clork.

#. A. Robinson, has just finished a term of service in this office lasting twelve years.

D. M. Gore, as circuit clerk, is serving his third consecutive term. Bis predecessor in this office, Son W. Hurgen, served for three corsecutive terms.

John M. Davie, many years served as deputy and high shoriff, and die a in 1914, and there was elected Therefor, in 1915, and die a in 1914, shortly after his induction into office.

2. a. hush, now of Wlizebothtown, My., was one of the first County Superintents of John Cla, serving one fund.

Search wiles, size served in this capacity in the carly history of the county.

In later years deorge Tolbert Saddle served for two sousseutive terms in this office from 1901 to 1909. Before his election to this office he taught for eight consecutive years in the public schools, and since his dervice in public office ended he has been principal of the Graded and High Schools at Bonora, sentucky.

Some of the members who have represented the County in the lower House of the Kantucky Lagislature are: Dr. Jesse Rodman, Hon. Joseph B. Read, Samuel E. Sanders, Hon. O. C. Letty, and Hon. Thomas Potest.

Hon. Who H. Hamilton, one of the early set there, served the county as both deputy and high she riff, later represented it in the lower fouse of the General Assembly and was county court clork for about twenty four years, in that capacity at the time of his death in 1895.

John J. Gore, served us county clark one torm in the carly his tory of the county, later as county attorney and superintendent of Schools.

Judge James 4. Slaughter, now of Nolin, Kontucky, served as Sounty Judge and later one term as County Attorney.

Judge George W. Thurman, served the county as founty Attorney one term and then was County Judge for twenty-four consecutive years.

The Hon. W. B. Read served in the lower House of the General Assembly one term, one term in the upper House and then was elected to and served two consecutive terms in the lower Honse of Congress, from 1873 to 1877.

Hon. Jacob B. Sallee, served in the lower House of the Kantucky General Assembly one term and was during the War of the Rebellion first Lieutenant 26th., Kentucky Volunteers.

Hom. D. 1. Thurman, was elected to the lower House of the General Assembly and served one term during the life of the Know Nothing Party, being elected as the nominee of that party and defoating

the Hon. W. B. Read, the Democratic nominee. He is ninety-four years of age and remarkably well preserved.

Fon. T. A. Robertson, served one term in the lower Novae of the Aentucky Cone rol Assembly, one term in the upper House. Served as County Attorney one term, one term as Commonwealth Attorney in this Judicial District, and was elected to Congress from the Fourth District in 1982, and served two consecutive terms from 1683 to 1887.

Hon. D. b. Smith, served in the espacity of Superintendent of Schools one term. County Attorney one term. Was elected to the lawer louse of the Canaral Assembly and served during the session of 1881-2. Was elected to the State Senate from this the 18th Senatorial District, was re-elected to that office, serving two senatorial District, was re-elected to that office, serving two senatorial terms from 1885 to 1893.

D. E. Smith was nominated by the Lemocrats for Congress in 1898, in the convention at Alizabethtown, Lentwey, which hasted three weeks, being nominated on the 1000th ballot. He was elected and served five consecutive terms, from March 1897 to March 1907.

George F. Burba, who still holds his membership with this Lodge, was for many years the successful editor of the Dayton Daily Hews, of Dayton, Ohio. When Hon. James Cox was elected to Congress Burba was made his private secretary and when Cox was elected Governor of the State of Ohio Burba was retained as his private secretary.

O. h. Mather is one of the heading lawyers of Larme county. He has for many years been a momber of the State Bar Association and in 1810 was Vice bresident of that organization for this Judicial District. He served in the Mar Department at Washington, D. C., in the expacity of clerk from December 1889, to July, 1899, where he

was known for proficiency. While in that city he completed the law course at Columbia University.

Charles Williams, a lawyer, and member of the Kentucky State Bar Association, and has served one term as County Attorney. He was a Democratic elector for the Fourth Congressional District in 1908.

CLOVERPORT HODGE NO. 188 CLOVERPORT, BRECKINGIDGE CO., KY.

Chartered August 29, 1844. This Charter was lost or destroyed in 1853, and a new one granted September 1st, of that year. This was destroyed by fire in 1901 and another issued October 17th., of that year. In 1916 its membership was one hundred and twenty-seven.

CARROLLTON LODGE MO. 154 CARROLLTON, CARROLL CO., KY.

From 1820 to 1836 a Masonia Lodge had existed at Carrollton (formedly Port William), called Owen Lodge 68, an account of which is given where the head of Owen Lodge 68.

In 1844 the present Lodge at Carrollton was chartered under the name of Carrollton Lodge No. 134, and has had a continuous existence during that time. Its first laster was Joseph Myrick.

In 1885 a few enthusiastic Masons provided a suitable Lodge room on Third street in Carrollton which has been owned and occupied by the Lodge ever since that time.

Its first Master was Joseph Myrick.

In 1855 a few enthusiastic Masons provided a suitable lodge room on Third street in Corrollton Aniv has been owned and occupied by the lodge ever since that time.

The property was conveyed to the lodge by Frederick Caswell, an Anglishmen related to the Royal family of England, and who enjoyed a handsome amulty. The recited consideration was one dollar and other considerations, including a life membership in the lodge to Caswell, the deed being made to Am. H. Vanpelt, R. A. Fastarson and Henry Crittenden, as Trustees.

Until Lout the year 1900 the lodge was to owner of only the second story of the building but then jurchased the active building and grounds and is still the owner thereof.

In later years Caswell moved to Ohio and no member of his - Tamily now remains in the vicinity of Carrollton.

A. J. Masterson was a prominent lawyer in Carrollton and was an honored citizen and master. Us served as Master of the lodge oftener than any other member of it and was an active racon for about sixty years. We departed this life at Carrollton in January 1904, at the age of eighty-eight years. His son Milliam J. Masterson, has been an honored member of this lodge for over twenty years. During the greater part of the time he has been in the united States Consular service, station at Adam, Arabia: Batoum, Museic: Marput, Turkey, Indian of Durban, South Africa

Termy Prittenden, another of the Trustees, was a Joung Lawyer, member of this lodge and was a member of the illustrious Crittenden famil, or New Meky. He participated in a number of filibus tering

expeditions to free Cube; was taken prisoner and afterwards whot. It was required of prisoners that they should kneed on such occasions. He refused, saying, "As a Membrushian I kneed to God but not to man", and was shot openiing.

in the spring of 1860, Carrollton seems through a committee consisting of Dr. E. R. Saylor, John Bene and Theodore Carrence, sought to stor the mining tide of Civil war by taking a vote on the "Trit tenden Compromise". By the use of circulars and personal effort a good vote was brought out with only two votes east against it.

This lodge is one in which our present Deputy Frend Master,

7. S. winclow, were initiated, passed and raised and aberein he
has held nembership for the post twenty-three years. The Lodge
raturally takes pride in the fact that it has been able to produce
a much whom the Masons throughout this Grand Jurisdiction have
doesed worthy to perform the duties of such an important office.

DIGNIES VALUE: ECDOM NO. 186 NAMEDRI, CAMPBALL CO., MY.

Charte red laguet 29, 1844. Larrende red in 1850.

HARION LODGE NO. 136 BARDIVADAVIDAM, HARION CO., NY.

Chartered August 19, 1844. In 1857 the charter and jewele of the longs were stolen and a new charter was incomed October 15, 1857. In 1907 this the residence and another was issued Cotober 15, 1807.

INVINI LUDGA NO. 187 INVINA, ASTIAL CO., NY.

Invine Louge was instituted under dispensation in the latter part of 1845 or in Modernly part of 1844, the frank Ledge records do not show, under the name of Latill Bodge; its first officers were Robert Clark, Faster; Rulph Marris, S. ...; and A. A. Curtis, Jr. ..., these three together with Andrew Level, Robert B. Inack, Guerge Duch, Francis Justan and Librard P. atocktor were the Chapter monlers of this Loope.

On August 89, 1864, this looks was granted a Charter was the name of Irvine Hodge No. 187, and alth the sale of their as under the Disponsation.

The Lodge was held at livine, Latili Joynty, Harterly, with its jurisdiction extending more than an bardred wiles East and Louth. On the west Richmond Louge No. 25 was the charact and on the Forth Mt. Sterling Lodge No. 25 was the mearest.

Irvine Ledge seems to have Mourished from the time its charter was granted and gut he red into its fold many of the heat and noblest man lithin its jurisdiction.

Of the Lodge nembership at the close of the Civil Nar but two was now living, Laward Conroy, of Irvine and A. A. Pigg, of Rich-

Thrise Lodge had upon its rolls during the earlier years of its extatence many mon of size reputation in the affairs of life and nonly who hold positions of honor and trust, among them were John E. Richell, John J. LeGuire, S. L. Richest ser, J. L. Rapel, S. L. Barness, R. A. Smith, Oliver Crawford, Robert Riddell, H. B.

Miseman, A. I. Fowell, Dr. Ansil Daviel, J. C. Grubbs, Green B. Kelly, Rev. Stephen Foland, and Arch Snowden, Sr., all of thom are long dince dead.

While there is no record in evidence showing that Irvine Lodge made any report to the Grand Lodge in the years 1862-5- and 4, the Lodge continued to meet in regular communication during those years; and in 1865 and all the years the realter to the present time yearly reports were made; but losing many of its members during the War by death, domit and suspension for non-payment of dues, the membership become small, the Longs involved in debt and its members became lukewarm and shor all of the Dodge property. to get her with its records and accounts, were destroyed by fire in July, 1901, the Loiso almost gave up in despair; but a few mights after the fire the Easter, R. J. Smith, Jr., called a mesting of the members of the Locge to meet at a school house maar by the site of the old Hall, and a few of the faithful responded and renewed their faith in, Ind love for, the Urder and its teaching am pleaged their united support and a nergy to rehabilitate the Lodge pay off its debt. Those vows were faithfully kept and before the meeting of the Grand Lodge October 1902, this Lodge was out of debt, had gotten rid of all its "dead timber". Simes that time Trvine Lodge has prospered in every respect and though its membership has been small it has within the last few years, dispensed to its distressed worthy trothers, their willows and orphans almost \$1,000.

The Lodge now has sixty four members in good standing, most of whom are live, wide awake Masons; has several hundred dollars in its treasury and while at the present time in rented quarters

has now under corsideration plans for the securement of a home of its own.

SHITHLAND LODGE NO. 138 SHITHLAND, LIVINGSTON COURTY, KY.

Chartered August 89, 1844. In 1916 had twenty-one members.

SPRING HILL BODGE NO. 139 CRAS ORCHARD, DINCOLN CO.. KY.

Stanted a dispensation June 15, 1840. Ferdinand Frederici ramed as Master. The dispensation was by accident lost or dostroyed and was renewed by the Grand Access in August 1843. August 29, 1844, a charter was granted, C. Curson being the first Master. In March 1845, the Loage room was burned and the Charter destroyed by the fire. August 26, 1845 the Charter was renewed. October 18, 1866, the Loage became defunct.

See Wo. 452 and 636.

PAINT LICH LODGE NO. 140
PAINT LICK, GARRARD CO., MY.

Chartered August 28, 1845, became defunct October 18, 1888. Charter restored 1889. In 1902 the ledge room and charter destroyed by fire and a new one was is sued October 21, 1908.

HAURY LODGE NO. 141 OMINGSVINGE, BATH CO., KY.

Granted a dispensation 1845. Chartered August 28, 1845. In 1854, the Grand Lodge changed the name and number of this Bodge to Bath Lodge No. 55 and gave to it the property of Webb Lodge No. 55, which was observed August 31, 1819, and which had become defunct August 27, 1834.

BLANDVILLE LODGE JO. 142 BLANDVILLE, BALLARD COUNTY, KY.

Granted a dispensation 1845. Chartered August 28, 1845, became defunct July 10, 1886.

MADISONVILLE LOLGE NO. 143 MADISONVILLE, HOPKING COUNTY, MY.

Chartered August 28, 1845. One of the Masters of this Lodge was L. D. Mockersmith, who conceived and carried out the plans, which enabled Gen. John B. Mongan, as a prisoner of war, to effect his escape from the Ohio penitentiary. He died in April, 1915, at the age of eighty-two, a devout Christian man, himself the builder of two Methodist churches.

H. W. Holoman, who was Grand Master in 1894-95, is a member of this Lodge.

¢

SEVERGIN LODGE U. D. A PRAYELLING LODGE.

In 1846 William Holloway, Grand Master, granted dispensation to this Lodge to be attached to the Regiment of Infantry Volunteers from mentucky, on their Herch to Mexico. On Coptember 2, 1846, b. dingste, S. Lympson and G. Gates, committee on Lodges under dispensation, reported "Your committee have also had under their consideration the potition of B. Will Spurgin and others, praying for a centimus tion of a Dispensation to Spurgin Lodge now in the Republic of Mexico, and recommend the adoption of the following resolution:

Resolved, that it is inempodsent to continue the dispensation of Spurgin Lodge."

What the action of the Frank Lodge was does not uppour in the published proceedings.

Merce Cords vo. 144 * Cordon, Haurelt Cordon, Ky.

A charter was granted to this old and continuous working Lodge, september 2, 1846, dated at Lixing war. Hortucky, where the Grand Lodge than met. This historic document hongs in the Lodge room, is well preserved not withstanding its sixty eight years of age, and bears the signatures of milliam Holloway, Grand Laster, A. B. Allen, D.J.M., A. H. Daviess, J.J., Charles Wilden, J.G.A., and Thil swigert, Grand Secretary. The three principal of dicers maned in G. Sharter to conduct the affairs of the mea Lodge, are J. V. L.

Helice, Laster, John D. Brown, Senior Warten, George Lagior, Junior warden. The Ledge took its name, not from its first Master, but from his father, the grandfather of J. C. Makee, who is recognized at the present repository of Masonic information in this Lodge, William Touston McKee, an old Virginia Mason, born in Rockbridge county, Virginia, in 1771. His mother's maiden name was Houston, on sunt of the noted dam Houston, Writed states Constor. Governor of the State of Convesses, here of San Jacinto, President of the Toxas Aspublic, and afterwards Covernor of the State. The Howaton McKee's demit now hange in the hall of ekse Lodge, and iz From Staunton Lodge (Va), No. 13, and is dated Petrusy 25,1805, and signed by Jacob Kinney, Master, R. H. Reclonachen, S. ... Charles dege, Junior Mardem, and Vincent Topp, decretary. McKee Lodge has been constantly at tork since its organization, even through the Civil Aur. Of the membership whose fidelity held it together during that stormy period, there remains, only one, William Lovelsee, the others having long sime gone to their reward.

McKee Lodge is still very much alive. The best evidence of the work it has done is to be seen in the number of children that have gone out from her, among which may be named, Barbourville, Pleasant Hill, Robinson Creck, Hawk Creek, Lily, John Pitman and Manchester.

Individually it has sent out into the various avocations of life, some of the best men in Rentacky.

In 1895 the Loige built its own hall, a two story structure on Broadway, which it afterwards sold and creeted a brick building

on Main street, a fine piece of property, worth about ten thousand dollars, owned jointly by McKee Lodge. London Chapter, London Council and London Commandery.

Mellos Lodge furnished to the Grand Lodge of Kontucky its present Crand Decretary and Past Grand Master, Dave Jackson.

> TRINBLE LODGE NO. 145 ORAYSON, OWRTER CO., KY.

Chartered September 2, 1846, made for John Trimble its first Master, who died April 18, 1846, while the Lodge acts lubering under dispersation: the first Master of the Lodge after the Charter was granted was Barkin Dawson. The early records of the Lodge were destroyed during the Civil War. The only one of the early records remaining being that of Lpril 17, 1850, relative to the burid of James A. Womack, one of the Charter members of the Lodge.

April 12, 1852, J. R. Botts was made an entered apprentice, and under a special dispensation from the Grand Ladge was made a Master Mason May 2, 1852. The visiting brothron from foreign Lodges were:

R. Apperson, at the time Grand Haster of the State, and L. H. Cox, of Flemingsburg No. 112; James M. Nesbitt, Mo. 141; Laban T. Moore, No. 196, B. D. Lacey, No. 117; Wyatt Weeden, No. 119; Thomas F. Hazelrigg, No. 123.

J. R. Botts was elected Master in 1855 and during the troubled times between 1861 am 1865, did more than any one other brother in preserving the records and Charter of the Lodge. His memory will be kept green by the members of Trimble Lodge.

MAYFILLD GRAVES CO.,KY.

Cranted a dispensation 1846. Chartered September 2, 1846. Surrendered charter August 1854.

MP. ZION LODGE NO. 147
LOUISVILLE, JEFFERSON CO., KY.

Realizing that as there were many Germans in Louisville and that it would be beneficial and gracable to the many who during the forties turned their way to the Falls Cities, a number of prominent Germans, Mester Lasons of the few Ledges then in Louisville, met at various times and discussed the advisability of organizing a ledge in which they could talk their mother tongue and finally applied for a dispensation.

On May 29, 1846, a dispensation was received from William Hollowey, Grand Master of the Grand Mange of Aentucky.

The Lodge was among the first to place a beautiful window, representing Moses carrying the tablets containing the Conformandments, in the Chapel of the Home. The window was dedicated as a memorial to Mt. Zion Lodge on Surviey, December 18, 1987, and a large number of numbers, their families and friends were present at the dedicatory carvies.

Among its members, at all times, have been men who stood high in the educational and business life of the city. The first Master, Philip Tomppert, was elected Mayor of the city in the early fifties and was noted for his homest administration. During his

term as Mayor, for some reason, he was impeached, but took his case to the Court of Appeals and was re-instated as Mayor.

Hany of the prominent Hasons and citizens of today are sons of some of its former members.

At the It. John's Day picnics given in former years at Control Park, the members of this John's members on prominent committees and since the organization of the Smint John's Day League have been represented in same.

In a very resent edition of the Hasonic Home Journal there appeared an item, "Thirty Years Ago", in which mention was made that at the St. John's Day Ficnic of that year Mt. Zion Looge took in the most meney at its booth.

About four years after the organization of the modge there appeared to be much dissension among the members and the then Grand Master of the Grand Medge of Mentucky appointed a committee to look into the affairs, which were later successfully shoped to the satisfaction of all concerned and peace and harmony provided assuin.

As the years rolled by the membership increased, not so much in number but in quality, and great progress was made. Mowever, in the past tem years the language became a serious factor. Imigration of the sturdy Jerman had taken its course westward and few landed in this direction. It became necessary to use the anglish language, especially as far as the work in the degrees and in lesturing was conserved. Then opain, the older members did not abtend the mostings as often as they had in their younger days, as it became a problem.

In Lay of 1918, a resolution was passed that the minutes which had be retofore been kept in seman, be kept in inglish, and all work done in inglish, all ough if a candidate and apply for initiation in German, the degrees to be conferred in that larguage.

lit. Dion Lodge has a number of old numbers; the oldest, Fred Behmidt, initiated August 14, 1660, passed Nevember 27, 1860, raised to the aubline degree of a baster Mason May 18, 1862.

Mr. Schmidt is still active, being the farst empior of the Courier Journal and adjournal a law years are the fiftieth anniversary as a estrict of that paper, and is abill attending to his daties every norming.

In Pay 1912 to and prosent of by the Indra with a hundsome level in remondrance of his fiftism continuously us a Master flason and a rember of To. 21on Indgs.

Fred Burkholder, Goods Lang, dottlich Lager, and John Schmidt lack but a real grame of haring been hanter Masons of Mt. Sica wage for half a sectory, and a manber of others have toke manbers for over forty years.

Interpolate has been obstabled, and more cotive and it present a degree team is being organized; carothal attention is given to the work and the members are visiting by the major the work.

The dembers of Mt. Zion Lodge at this time are particularly proud of one of its numbers. Tred J. Drewler, the is the honored treatent of the Board of Directors of the Hasenic Widows and Orphans Home.

The lodge met for many years in the old lesonic Temple at

Fourth and Jefferson streets, than later in incession Hall on First and Harket streets, and since the completion of the present Masonic Temple meets in the "Blue Room" of said building every second and fourth wednesday.

The Lodge has st process two landred and two renters.

PROVIDENCE, MESSEER OU., NY.

Chartered September 2, 1846, became defenct October 19, 1892.

Lodge of sime wine and cumber chartered October 17, 1894, which had a numbership of eighty sive in 1916.

SUBLERAND LODGE TO. 149
SUREFULLE, CURBERLAND COUNTY, TY.

Haceived a dispensation from the Doppty Grand Haster in the absence of the Grand Haster from the Linte in 1846. Chartered Leptember 2, 1846, became definet October 78, 1866.

CRITTANDER LODGE MO. 150 CRITTANDEM, GRANT COUNTY, NY.

Charter disponsation 1846. Chartered September 2, 1846. Charter by Dedwar rechartered October 24, 1867, and dropped from the Grand Lodge rolls in 1874.

LA FAYLTER LODGE SO. 151 LA PLYETTE, CHRISTIAN CO., KY.

This Lodge was chartered September 2, 1846, Benjamin J. Hudson, Haster, Y. B. Jatson, Sonior Warden, and H. F. Grant, Junior Warden. Nothing unusual has marked the progress of this order.

In 1899 the lodge pulled down the old frame building that had long served as a Hall, and on the site proceed a two story brick building at a cost of nearly 34,500.

The Lodge has a membership of sixty eight.

ALAMANDRIA LODGE NO. 152 ALEMANDRIA, GAMPBALL CO., MY.

The first mosting of Alexandria Lodge No. 152 V. D. F and A. M., was held at Alexandria, mentucky, on the 20th, day of September A. D. 1846, with Deputy Grand Master H. H. Mayo in the East, who at that meeting installed their first Master, B. D. Beall.

The Dispensation was granted upon petition of Joseph A. Frim, E. r. Dameron, Thomas Sattoc, B. D. Beall, James M. Molyneau, David L. Carney, Louis Massey, A. a. Johnson, H. B. Rachford, and C. M. Deccursey.

The Charter was greated on the 2nd., day of September, 1847 are is signed by Grand Hester W. D. Allen.

This looke on the 27th., day of December, 1847, made its first doration for charitable purposes, and if that meeting set a precedent the lodge is still endeavoring to carry out, as far

back as 1852 this Lodge at its regular election had elected a Charity Committee.

At a regular meeting of the Lodge on the 25rd., day of Jume, 1888, the Lodge voted to change its place of meeting to Persimmon Grove Kane Feut Office, a distance of five miles. But there seemed to be dispatisfaction among the Graft, for the records show that a meeting was hold at the Court House in Alexandria on the 18th., day of October 1888.

An attempt was made to reconsider the Letton of the Lodge in changing the place of medding, but the motion to rescind the action of the Lodge was lost.

The ment regular Communication was hold at Persimmon Grove on May 11, 1889, there being no mosting elsewhere except the one held in the Court House June 23, 1888.

J. J. Stevens, then Secretary, densited the use of his Hell in Persimmon Grove for one year.

The Lodge was moved back to Alexandria on January 1, 1909.

The Lodge calebrated John Poda's Fiftieth Lasonia Anniversary as a member the reof, January 16, 1915, at his home in Alexandria, Aontucky.

HOLLOWAY LODGE. NO. 155 SHERBURNE, FLEWING CO., KY.

Chartored September 2, 1847, became defunct Catober 21,1875. This Lodge has furnished one Grand Master to the Grand Lodge of Kontucky in the person of Harvey T. Milson, who in 1888 was elected to succeed Rob Morris.

Harvey Thomas Wilson was born at Flat Rock, Bourbon county, kentucky, December 29, 1817, (where his grandfather had settled), died becember 25, 1898, and was buried with Masonic honors. A daily newspaper celled him "one of the most entertaining, original, and unique characters in Mantucky". His grandfather, Henry Wilson, came to Bentucky from Pauquier county, Virginia(1774) and accompanied Clark's expedition to Ohio to quell an Indian outbreak. They are seed the Ohio at the nouth of Micking river (where Covington is), and built a block house at the mouth of Deer creek, being the first house built in Ciminnati. Lowis Wilson, father of Harvey 7., married Sally Ann Thomas (1815).

In 1853-55 Harvey T. wilson represented Floming county in the Logislature, and introduced the bill appropriating \$10,000 for the iron fance that was put around the Capitol buildings. He was made a Mason in Flat Rock Lodge 101, June 30, 1859. Es became Master of Bodges 117 and 153, Grand Master (1859) and Grand High Priest(1855).

Toward the latter part of his life he become almost helpless and hobbled about on crutches. In boyhood he met with Simon Kenton, a friend of his family, and was one of the best informed men of his day on the early history of the "Dark and Bloody Ground".

BROOKSVILLE LODGE MO. 154
BROOKSVILLE, BRACKEN CO., KY.

Chartered September S, 1847. In 1916 reported a membership of one hundred. To this Ladge belonged James William Stanton, who was elected Grand Waster in 1895.

James william Stanton was born at Dover, in Hason County, Ky., May 27, 1835; and in his father's shop loarmed the trade of the blackmith. In 1856 he moved to Brooksville, where in 1857, he became a deputy and worked for two years in the offices of the County and Circuit Court Clerk. For eight years he was County surveyor, for thirty years Master County for eighteen years. Treasurer of the Sinking Fund of the County for eighteen years. Trustee of the Jury Fund from 1866 to the close of his laifs. In addition to those activities he conducted the County newspaper, conducted the Correspondence Report of the County managerer, and to a Masonic library of great when he was recognized as one of the most valuable citizens of his community, and of the most scalous workers in the obmach (Petholist). On once 27, 1902, his useful lifts was decase.

BULLITY TOPOR NO. 155 SHIPPERGLAVILLE, NULLIANT CO., KY.

its mostings have been fold in many places.

The first resting place was on Hain street in a two story brick residence then own a by live. _______ Diske, now own a suppose occupied by Fra. Latite Securison. The second recting place was in the hall or second spary of the Gla Maptist Church which about where the sea Baptist Church now stands. The third meeting place was over the court room in the old Court bouse on the public square. The tourth meeting place was buck again in the second abony or the old Baptist Church. During the Civil war the Union

oplais no took possession of this building and used it was a hospital. altering it war, much for that purpose, and officeward montons of the hodge remodeled and put it in each it on again for helps two. The Louge onned the upper story of this building and one half interest in the lot on whis' it stood. The church bought the lodge's interest in the lot, the building also term down and the materials sold and the proceeds divided between the church and the Jodge. About this time the lodge wis not meet for several years and then held a few meetings again in the old Court House before moving to the next and fifth place of meeting in a building on the N. H. Corner of Hain and Mater of motifies in the South-east corner of that is not R. 1. Proutner's yard. This building was moved to the let now exact by Frontman Brothers on Second struct and continued after removal to be used as the leage 's m sting place until it burned form in 1894, the charter and lodge formitude being caved. The sixth meeting place was on the second floor of Troutman Brothers brick store building, and The seventh meeting place was in the present brick public school building, and the eighth in loose means reconfly weated by the loage in Troutman Brotherd! warchouse on the South West correr of Decoma street and Doctor's Alley. The next and present me eting place is in the new Ton Thousand Dollar Masonia Tomple property on the sorner of Main and Railroad, or Fourth, streets.

The present home is one of the best in any town of ten times the size of Shapherdsville, and is a source of pleasure and pride to every mamber of the order.

The first Master of Bullitt Lodge was the Rev. George L. Rogers,

a Mathadist minister. He was a man of around force of character, and were a pious, Son-corving, man-holping, apostal man. He furmed, raises at oak, dealt in many bings, was a bluehouith and marchant, are died to the age of ninety nine years and about seven menths, flow the affects of burns received by falling into the fire place in his or a room.

how. George J. Miles we the Singt Bonion warden of Enlist Longe. Later on he was the bunder of Miles Bodge, No. 341, of Eullitt County. He was a fire man, rich in service to God and man, are useful to all about him. His work are influence all much for the cause of Masonry in his day.

Through a line which destroyed the Hasenic hedge room in 1894, the records from 1847 to becomber 20, 1856, have been lost, and the manes of many sembers of that period can not now be given. The manes of the first faster, denier and fraidr agreeds are written on the charter, and at that precious instrument was saved, we know the news of the first three officers. No one can be found who know or knows crything about the first Junior Marden. The mans, Thes. C. Johnson, is written on the charter, but we can go be first by.

Our first record begins with a meeting hold becomber 20, 1856, and at that time, who I. Collow, was laston. He was a memberat, a business man of fine Utility, and did much for the community in every way. He did his part in belying to build up the community. The namewood to Disposer, whose is died some years ago.

imong the promine manbers of this house may be near wordd the following.

Dr. Heary J. Raifus was a leading physician and divises of his day.

Thil Lee, perhaps the most brilliant man over born in Bullitt County, was for years Commonwealth's attorney in this Decicial district. He was a fine lawyer, great crator and braye soldier, and was the popular idea of the masses in his day. Harrying in Louisville to make that city his home, and disc there also years ago.

withits Carpenter, native of Bullitt County, decated Haster of the Loigo might times. County Judgo, Sheriff, Chairman of his party's county committee, le ding former, stock desler, wood parder and ferryman. Useful man in every may. Set a gun to hill a burglar, was shot by it himself out died at an advanced age.

pr. Reary C. Brist, bonn and reared in Bullitt County, and one of the most talented man of his day. Fine physician, closely related to Henry Crist, the heroic Indian flighter.

Moyd Friddle, for many terms Tyler of the Lodge, will a very popular man in his day. Was elected Jailer of Bullitt County, Ly. He was a most loyal Pason, rarely ever sisses a moting and well a model of charity.

west, Preips, theriff of Bullitt County, County Judge and prominent politician. Large Jamer, stock reiser on a took trader, and man of hig of fairs. In his day one of the most useful man in the county.

world was Lorenza Foaglam. The was popular, loveble and assuring. A lamilord of renown, a merchant, a man of resources,

both merical and financial; a Mason of undisputed logalty, he work a leading part in lodge, manicipal, political and social matters in his day.

Semuel I. Brooks, a farmer; member of the Orphan Brigade, a good man. Was the most popular man in his community. Died a few years ago from the effects of a cancer which afflicted him for years.

Henry Tranklin Troutman was a mon of prodorful energy.

He brought his energy into the loags; he took it into business;

it was a part of the man, as inseparable from him as his limbs.

For forty years he was a leading member of Hullitt hange. For three terms he was elected Master, and in addition, held many other places. He was a fine business man, a great mendent,

loyal to the friends and forgiving toward his energies. He was an entraordinary are unusual man, forceful, intellectual to an high degree, always at work and always do not for his people.

Samuel M. Dimmons was bor. And record in Bullitt County, edusated in the public scheels, in the advoces of Germany and other
foreign countries, was consular as eat in Natice for years, represembled a Texas district in the Legislature, and before going
West was County Attorney of Bullitt County. He is a brilliant man,
Thro crater, good ariter and bright conversationalist. Being a consecrated Christian, he gives much from his ample forture to
charity, and is doing much good with his money.

Lovi Hagrador was a good man, The in business and at all times ready to serve his Rod, his ledge and fellowner. He was the father of twenty-one children.

Warren Unith, furner, touder, movebant and the rift of Spirit; occumin, and one of the best liked non-in the county.

Dr. David L. Bates was born in Jaffe esem Commty, but some to Bullitt in his yours manhood and become one of the loading man of his day. A fire physician and one of the best men is the world, he had the largest personal following of any men is the county.

When he died more poor and succept prople attended his summal that over absence a sen on any similar or vasion. To here you remark that over a self browns a later power and poor. His of exity must boundloss.

dams Castell, a power in Billitt Contay polities. A fammer, County ludge, magistrave, dice laminess was and good vitizen.

U. Clup Domman, for many years dealer of Bullion founty has one or the leading man of the sparty.

The section of their property, are were norm-beartos, elemitable man, the gave to the needy. For lives and then at Belcont, when he was buried his grave use appropried by poor people show he had helped.

A. I. Hays was, in theps, one of the brightest Masors who over belonged to Bellitt Deeps. To has leater of the Deign for five terms. For theless yours he was dimensial class on Tullitt County; for a was now he was formty there is the Bullier Circuit Count, and for one goar was formty thems. In 1905, he was elected funge of the Bullitt County Court. For many years he was cashier of the Loughes Bank. To has a lawyer of thility.

Charles F. Prouther, for many years he was cashier of the

Bullist County Beak. He to now yest Haster at Shepherdaville.

J. A. Mail, for many years clock of the Bullitt County Court and Master Commissioner of the Bullitt Circuit Court.

W. J. Weller, bord in Loaches, finished his education at state College, became Superinterment of schools and leter on became a lawyer.

Scarci L. Hernbeck was born and reared in Bullitt Conty. In his early life he was a famer, fruit grower and contractor. In the and he tween the States, he was a montes of the exphan Brigads. He has To britaer of the splandid sow Couple.

per James Woodford Dates, is a Bullitt Commitair and Few lived there all his life. He is the only sen of Dr. I. N. Bates, who died in 1897. Dr. Bates received his education in the public schools and at shellywille, and the Louisville Training School. We took the prescribe course at one of the mountaville Dedical Colleges and onteres upon the practice of medicine with his father in 1896. He has a fire practice and is a encourable physician. Dr. Bates is a member of the school Board and takes great interest in the educational cause. He is a public spirited, useful of tizer. Under the present Jame Louve administration to is one of the Committee having supervision over the Dasonic Home at Louisville and at Dhelbyville.

4. 2. Tilden, for three terms was Clark of Bullitt County. He was born in Louisville, and was educated the rooms in Proces. His father was local Paster of Sentucky, and was Jecretary of the Frank Ledge. No is a bright and valued measure of the Couft.

Jants W. Crosn was born in the Lullitt's Lick country, is a

Turner and lumbo man, has been Jailer of Bullitt County.

Linisay Ridgway, County Clerk, ex-Superinterdent of County Schools, graduate of Lynnland College, and the law department of Mantas by University at Louisville, school teacher and ex-bank clark, is one of the mainstays of the ledge.

Harry H. Combs, twice elected Master of Bullitt Lodge, and Master during the trying times incident to the building of the new Temple, is Caphier of the Bullitt County Bank, statistical sceretary of the Lutheran Synod, and one of the real live wires of Masenry.

James Fletcher Combs, educated at Contre College, lawyer, Master Commissioner of the Bullitt Circuit Court, Sunday School teacher, Samer and stock raiser.

J. R. Zimmerman was born near Fineastle, Virginia, December 8, 1867, come to Les tacky in May, 1869. Licensed to practice law in December 1893. Elected to Legislature in 1969, from Bullitto and Spencer, and to Acotocky Schate from Bullitto, Grayson and Mardin Counties in 1913. Was made a Mason in 1913.

HARTFORD LODGE NO. 155 TERTFORD, ORIO COUNTY, MY.

Received a disponsation in 1847. Chartered September 2,1847, boosns defunct July 10, 1886.

LOVELACEVILLE LODGE NO. 157
LOVELACEVILLE, BALLARD COUKTY, MY.

Chartered September 2, 1847. Reported eighteen members in 1916.

BADFORD HOLGE NO. 158 BEDFORD, TRIBBLE CO., MY.

Chartered September 2, 1847. The charterwas lost by mutilation and a rew one issued in lieu thereof October 12, 1875.

To this wodge belongs Jidgo Robert P. Pask, who was Armid Laster 1896-07, a prominent member of the Louisville Bar and one of the most attractive orators in sectualty. And Oug 15-1989.

COVINGION, REMTOR CO., MY.

Observed September 2, 1847, and march for Col. Horry Clay who was killed at the builtle of Buena Vista.

This Lodge reports a manharship of four hundred and einty three.

DAVOTION GODGE NO. 180 BARINGTON, FRYETIE CO., NY.

This Leage was organized mostly by rembers of other local leages and sojourning Masons, for the purpose of getting in a number of old members who had ismitted or lost their interest in the existing looges.

They sorked under a dispensation prior to september 1847, when it was chartered September 2, 1847, Oliver Anderson being the first Master.

The Todge redused to take part in the unveiling of a monument to John C. Breekinriège giving as excuse that the time was the short.

WINGATE TODGE NO. 161 STRESORVILLE, SHELBY CO., KY.

Henry Lingate, was grantod a dispensation by Grant Master J. B.
Allen and was set to work by George W. Johnson, as his proxy,
July 1, 1847, with H. B. Oliver as Master; W. E. Powers, S. W.,
M. G. Alexander, J. W., L. H. Bryan, Transurer, Thomas Smith, Jr.,
Secretary, Harvey Shanks, S. D., B. H. Grapster, J. D., H. Burnett,
Tyler.

The Longe h d a rapid growth and was granted a charter September 1, 1847. Often as many as twenty petitions were received at a mosting, and from its numbership were formed Philip Swigert No. 218, at Fisherville, My., Alk Creek, No. 465, at alk Creek, My., and a lodge at Boston, now defunct.

all the Object members are long since dead save one, Rev. ... 1. Powers, she has the distinction of being the cident affiliated Mason in Eastwoly.

Mr. Powers was initiated in Nortitude Lodge No. 47, at La-Grange, Anthony, in June, 1845, went into the organization of Wingate Lodge in July, 1847, and was the first elected Master after the Lodge received its Obserter. Even now, despite advanced age of ninety years, he is a sealous preacher of righteousness and an ard mit and entimainstic Mason.

Wings to Lodge and presented a copy of the Holy Sible, the Great light of Masonry, by Past Grand Master Homry Wings to in 1847, which has been in constant use up to the present time and is still in good condition. The present mambership of the

Modga is for hy-four.

ADELAND LODGE NO. 102 MT. VERTOR, ROSKOADTED CO., MY.

Received a dispensation in 1847. Chartered September 2,1847. The ledge having failed to make returns to the translation for four consecutive years its Charter was arrested October 16, 1857.

MOBILET TURNS HODGE TO. 163 FLAFORT, CAMPBULL CO., MY.

Sobert Burns Lodge No. 165, was added to the Moster of the Grant Lodge of Amitaky on the 19th, day of April, 1048, under Dispensedion by W. F. Mayo and H. L. Hoos, who were successed to institute the lodge, who performed the delegated duty by opening a Lodge of Paster Tasons and installing W. L. Viller, Morshipful Master; G. Tarrer, Dr. Harden; J. Placoust, Sr., Jarden; H. B. Master; G. Tarrer, Dr. Harden; J. Comac, Treasurer; F. L. Thompson, Lr. Lesdon; Maste Laggeriage, Sr. Leader. The Lodge open for Musicess, J. M. Pall, Learpertor, vasidance and place of business. Man, or J. Calcust, ago thirty there years, was recommended by J. A. Millor as the first applicant for membership by initiation.

The Long and granted its Charter on the 18th, may of october, 1818, and its officers publicly installed in the Hethodist Church of the city by the following Masons acting as installing officers, Grand Master, Jacob Graff, of Obio, H. J. Mayo, Grand Sr. Morden; Moore, Grand Sr. Marden. Troubthe record it would

appear that is strictest economy was required to maintain an existence, as charity began with the ledge and a record of relief appears in the very early meetings, though the amounts are small in comparison with the relief of today.

Four todies not in the same room, and a stove becoming necessary to keep it arm, each heap contributed to its purchase. I till for examples for Light is a frequent entry upon to records of the acage. As receipts of the evening the anomato paid in by the fract were 70, 50, 60, 25 and 10 cants. The acto room was not patiafactory, a committee was appointed to act with a similar committee to fit up the unto room, and the committee reported the cost to be \$14.00, the bar bodies bearing the expense.

At divers times the bodge endeavored to form an alliance with Licking Valley, but failed in the attempt. The record shows differences existed, and committees were appointed to settle them, some being very warn at times, so the early days were not different from today. From Robert Eurns No. 165, Newport Lodge 258 has developed, also from Robert Burns and Newport Dodge have aprung Henry Barnes 607, and Fort Thomas No. 868.

The mambarahir of this Lodge at this time (1914) is three hundred and forty-eight.

TAYLOR LODGE NO. 164 BERRY, HARRISON CO., MY.

Chartered August 21, 1848, at Colemansville, in 1875 lodge moved to Berry. Charter was destroyed by fire December 22, 1897.

A new one isomed Cetober 19, 1898.

Reports a membership of forty-eight.

WASTFORT LODGE NO. 165 WESTFORT, OLDHAU CO., MY.

Received a dispensation in 1848. Chartered August 51, 1848. Charter was burned Locumber 9, 1859, and a new charter granted it Cotober 18, 1860. October 20, 1897 the Lodge became definet.

MACH TAYLOR LODGE NO. 166 MIDDVILLE, CHARLE CO., MY.

Chartered August 21, 1846. Charter surremered in 1854. The Lodge was maded for President Taylor though he was not a Free Mason.

JOPPA LONGE NO. 167
LDDYVILLE, LYON COUNTY, KY.

In 1647, a petition was presented to the then Gmark Master, James H. Davis, for the establishment at the Tempessee Rolling Works of a loage of Free and Accepted Masons. The Tempessee Rolling Works was located in what was their Caldwell County, Kontucky, but in a partion of that county that has since been separated and constitutes Lyon County, Kentucky. The petition was signed by the following maned potitioners, viz; Daniel Hillman; W. T. Paul; Daniel Cunningham; W. W. Allis; D. Taylor; P. F. Bail; William Redd, Jr; William H. Dobbs; J. B. Goodrich; Simeon

Looment; and M. O. Gray.

The Grand Master appointed to act as his promy in establishing, and installing the officers of, the new longe, James G. Weller, of Clinton Lodge No. 82. On the 12th, day of November, 1847, weller appeared at the Tempasses Rolling Norks, and appointed the following officers to assist him, viz: R. K. Tyler, S.W., Codice Lodge No. 121, Thomas Groker, J. W., Smithland Lodge No. 138, William Merbin, Tr., Codice Lodge No. 121, Ira Ellis, Sec., Codice Lodge No. 121, David F. Connoy, S. D., Smithland Lodge No. 138, James Dunbar, J. D., Smithland Lodge No. 138,

Aftor an elequent address delivered by the presiding of ficer, the following were duly installed officers of Joppa Lodge Mo.167, viz: Daniel Hillman, W.M.; D. Taylor, B. W.; N. O. Gray, J. W.; W. D. Paul, Socy.; George W. Hillman, Treas.; Bimson Leonard, B.L.; Laniel Curningham, J. D.; J. B. Goodrich, J. and T. The Lodge was then oleood in due form, peace and harmony prevailing. The hour was oin o'clock L. M.

Upon this same day, the 13th., November, 1947, Joppa Rodge held its first stated meeting, and received the petition for initiation of A. W. Cooper. The meetings were continued to be held at the Connessee Rolling Norks until September 15th, 1888, when it was moved to Risgah Church, in Lyon County. Its meetings were held at this church until October 19, 1895, at which time the lodge was moved to Eddyville, Lyon County, where it has since continued, meeting with good process. At its first meeting in its now location eleven potitions for initiation were received

which by a strange coincidence was the same number which forty eight years before had retifience the Grand Lodge for the establishment of the Rodge; at this moting also there was conferred upon three candidates the Entered Apprentice Logres. The Lodge has continued to theirs and prosper through those years, and at present has a membership of seventy one Haster hasens, and five Entered Apprentice. The wedge owns its own hall are has at all times been successful, peace and hermony having prevailed throughout the meanly sixty seven years of its existance.

The precent of fields of the Bodge are, n. 2. Molloy, n. 1.;

J. H. Edecris, S. A.; H. E. Colomen, J. a.; H. A. Otley, Jr., See;

A. H. Cunmins, Treas.; F. F. Travis, B. D.; E. B. Prince, J. D.;

A. Luckett, Tyler.

CASETVILLE, UNION CO., MY.

Uhrsterst Ingust II, 1848, becaus definet May 8, 1908.

CLIMAN HOLDL HO. 169
TA CRANCE, OLDERA CO., MY.

Churtered Ampist 27, 1848. This Acdge moved its place of meeting several times and in 1879 sarrendered its churtor.

MINNUTE LONGLING. 170 MINNUTE CARAIDAD CO., NY.

From ted a Supercution in 1847. Chartered august 21, 1848.

Burned Lesember Me. 1900, became defunct October 7, 1901.

MO. 171.

To charter of This number was ever granted.

ROBLETS HOLDS FO. 172 SULTON, FULTON CO., MY.

Chartored August 31, 1848 at Policiana, My. Moved to Pullen, Lontucky, in 1888, to saw a laimmet October 19, 1893, restored December 1893.

COMMENS ACREE NO. 173

Chartered August J, 1848. Old Charter last was now one incurci in lieu theorest Cotober 2, 1869. School becase defined June 2, 1864.

GOOD BANDARITAN HODDO MOR 174 hawanoon, canacan co., hr.

Received a Dispensation prior to August, 1848. Charters: August, 1848. Samuel L. Sabellough Tring first Master. Augusted Charter 1888.

June lubra ID. 175

Charterst August 51, 1848. S. S. Button to First Haster.

Deprocher 1, 1888 it conscitéates als related houge no. 111, and

under the conscitéation s'a blendet longes became mount au somme

det Longe No. 111.

OAROAD LUDGE, Mo. 276

Thun terral August 28, 1949. Reports a monte relig of troub; four.

JILLSON BLEEVOLLUT LODGA FO. 147 FRANKLIN, BELLSON CO., MM.

A polition busine for original and filed with Charles Tiled.

W. Count Dater the Chart leage of heaterky, by the billowing numbers Master Mesons, residing in Franklir are simpson county, to-wit: John C. Ledrony, Sanford Luncan, James harris. Misajah C. Rodard, John Day, Thomas S. Mahin, Deverly 1. Clark, a. h. Lope, Robert Bryan, Dahish W. and the and Jones W. Moore, "praying that they be an Derized to arguine and proceed to wash as a Lodge, are being recommended by Bowling Green Lodge No. 72%. Trace Mester Charles Tilen, on the day, ear of January, 1849, is such such Dispensation and are palar constituted Loage of Free and accepted ancient York Dasons in the total of Frenklin, County of Simpson and Salte

aforeseid to be lesigned and known by florese and ciple of Simpton Benevelert Lodge under dispersation", -- and wating them with power an authority to open and hold a Lodge of Lintered Appropries. Follow Crafts are Master Lasens, and the sin to confer upon Northy applies the the several day rest aforestia, etc". And appointed Sinford Durean, J. M., Meajah Rowland, S. Wi, and Thomas S. Mahin, J. M. On same date, Junary 2, 1849, the M. Grand Master, Charles Tilden, appointed A. M. Graham, John C. McCreary and Charles Hodges, or either one of them, as his proxy, to assemble the brothers constituting Singson Bency clearly and Charles for Transdim, County of Singson and State of Mantacky to Torganize the Lodge, install the officers and set the same regularly to work according to ancient form and usage.

Robert Bryan, ---- Tyler. John C. McCreary and Sanford Dancan.

The Collewing officers were installed: Samford Durban, w.H., M. C. Rowland, S. W., Thomas S. Hahin, J. A., James J. Moore, Treasurer, John C. Petreary, Secretary, James Pastis, S. D., Robert Bryan, J. D., Samuel R. Hope, S. & Cyler.

At the stated meeting held Poirtary 10, 1849, the potitions of Henry J. Durean, 3. W. Durean and Wm. Bughlett were presented and referred to appropriate committee.

At the regular meeting held harch 10, 1849, G. N. Duncar, and wm. H. Hughlett were only elected and made intered Apprentice Hasons.

On the 27th, of August, A. D., 1849, A. L. 5849, the Grand Lodge of Mentucky, sitting in the city of Lorington, issued its charter, by which the beage was Authorized to continue its work under the rare of Dimpson Benevolent Lodge No. 177 F. 2. N., the charter being signed by the Following Ch. no officers: Charley Tilden, Juni laster, John D. McClure, Deputy Grand Raster, J. M. McNorkle, Sen. Grand Warden, Charles C. Wintermith, Jr. Grand Warden, Thilip Swigert, Grand Secretary.

while the Lodge worked under disponsation there ten initiatious.

At the most ing of the Lodge held December 20, 1849, 3. Dure an was re-elected Master of the Lodge for the next ensuing twelve menths. December 27, 1850, John C. Fedreary was elected Master. December 27, 1851, John C. Recreary was re-elected Master. From the meeting of the Lodge held November 12, 1852, to the meeting half September 14, 1878, all records partaining to the proceedings.

of the Lodge were destroyed by fine.

At this mosting the following officers were gresent: C. J. Milliken, A. M., J. M. Adsit, S. A., J. A. Ahitesides, J. A., D. A. Sanders, Treasurer, J. B. Montague, Secretary, P. V. Mayes, S. D. pro tem, R. B. Harris, J. D. pro tem, A. J. Harris, S. V. T.

During the latter part of the sixtics and up to 1875 were the most prosperous years of the Loage. The membership of the Loage in 1871 numbers one hundred and sixty five, the present membership of one hundred and nine.

TOURNIUS DONGE NO. 178

Given dispensation September 5, 1848. Granted charter August 29, 1849, burned Harsh 15, 1865, granted a new starter October 18, 1866, became defunct July 10, 1886.

ADAMS FORA LODGE NO. 179 ADAMS FORM, LARVE CO., KY.

Chartered Ingust 29, 1849, hurred 1850, rochartered Ostober 21, 1860, became defunct October 29, 1876.

EALT RIVER ROLDS TO. 180

LP. WASHINGTON, RUBLITT CO., MY.

This Lodge was organized under dispensation, Saturday, October 14, 1848, by Charles Tilden, the Grand Waster of the Grand Lodge of Ecology, Samuel Griffifth, S. J., Jacob Oven, J. J., J. D. 2.

Petcock, Coe'y, Joseph Houdh, Treas., Charles T. Hillis, J. D., R. F. Field, J. D., Ames Inforson, J. A T.

The loage was chartored August 29, 1849.

BARINGOUR TOLOR NO. 181 BARINGON, MAILON CO., MY.

Charter of Luguet Es, 1849. Surrendered Thurter October 1857.

ALAMSVI..., TODA CO., MY.

Chartered Lugust 29, 1849, became defined Cotober 18, 1888.

ELDISON ITEME NO. 163 HIRESVILES, MADISON CO., MY.

At the Annual communication in August, 1898, the dispensation was reversed for a pour. Allow E. act to ruon, the Caster under dispensation, was a famor and a high type of the old such loved country quatheran. He died man polary upo, leaving no descendents.

In Ingust, 1860, the returns to the laund Lodge Grovel eight on members, the of dem has been initiated while the being a was working was or altrophation. At this mosting the aborter was granted und william G. Northonery and said as the Arst Heater. He was a fine type of the period, being an old school physician. He was a way popular nam, a good public speaker and wich great intorest in politice of ter the wer. He also as intense Thion man and a great Ropublican. The reports of the Grand Longe show that Madison Rodge has failed only once froming its emistence to rake returns and that a sin 1662. A comber of furilies smote as Toly, Cotton, How, Ross, were on the carly sester of the Longe and are still represented among its members. The Longe's original charter, together with all its early minutes, were destroyed by fire about twenty years ago. We find that it has had only twenty one preside over it as Master, some of whom served for many years.

The most distinguished member of Madison Lodge, Masonically was Lawson Shearer, and his name and fate recalls a sad story.

He was elected Deputy Inital Master of the Inital Madge August, 1865, one was the mean spring basely associated by a bard of negro soldiers at his own home. It was but one of the many switch tragedies incident to the divil Mar. He was cover married.

This leage's past record is one that augurs well for the future.

Located in a rich agricultural country, among an hospitable, generous people, it will extinue to dispense true Masonic light and proves theseing to all who werthilly sock its fellowship.

Its day of meeting has mover been changed, being row as it was in the beginning, on Saturday before the first full moon in each month.

HUSTORVILLE, EIRCOIM CO., NA.

Chartered Cotober 29, 1849. This Object having been detaced a new one was insued Cotober 3, 1890, and the Lodge allowed to keep the cld one as a relic.

The Longs owns its place of moding, which is a homsome two story brick building on Pain street and in the centur of the town. Not infrequently this Loogo gathers its numbership and their friends for banquet cocasions which are served in each abundance and with such excellence as has established for the mon of this Looge the regulation of having as wived the best housekeepers in Mat is one of the best counties in Aentwicky.

Disabley 2. Disphers on, East Master of this Lodge, under the present administration is Grand Bursuivant of the Cramb Lodge.

RULLLY LODGE NO. 185 RULLLY, MCCLEAR CO., NY.

Charter is owed October 18, 1865, we can defunct October 23, 1867.

MIVERIORE BODGE NO. 186 BIVERSONE, ECOLAIN COUNTY, MY.

Chartered August 19, 1849.

MOUNTAIN BULBL NO. 189 TARBOUR VILLE, EMUSI CO. AY.

Mountain longe is the oldest longe in Bastern Longe Longe it was organized in the your 1848, and worked under a dispendation from the draw Longe of Londonky until Lugust E9, 1849, at which time it was granted a charter from the Grant Longe of Londonky.

and fourth Morday in each month as the regular mosting dates, and this has mover been changed. The charter is signed by Charles Tilden, Grand Master. The same charter is now hanging in the lodge mome. The first officers of Mountain Hodge No. 187 word as follows: B. A. Anderson, Master, Bilas Moodean, Schior Warden; A. H. Hubbard, Junior Acres. (Silas Moodean later became Governor of Misseuri.

Ballinger. It is now in the possession of the Secretary, framed and numbered "1". (Sellinger was the county Court Clerk of Enough County.) His potition was on a comit from Nekas badge No. 144, London, and the committee on this potition was as follows: B. B. Allen, F. G. Brazford and T. L. Banghman.

The ledge met for some time in the eld Court house, and then from place to place, ever etoric and a web other places as they could precure. The charter, which are course from place to place, together with the records, was many times subjected to fire. Nost of the records are still in the archives of the

loose, and are written with goose-quill pens. The rement from 1850 to the present time may be seen at any time.

The records will show that more than 1,000 have been maked to the subline degree of a Master Mason in this longe, and the remains of the members of this longe lie in the besom of every state in the Trion; some sleep in the waters of the deep, and some on foreign lands.

This lodge has given the Craft one Grand Waster in the person of James Dimon Plack, the present Wientenant Covernor of Kentucky, also the present Grand Jenior Warden of the Grand Rodge of Kentucky, in the person of William Corson Black.

This Lodge has an eight thousand dollar plant free of cent and a membership of one hundred and fifty seven.

CONCORD LODGE NO. 188
NEW CONCORD, CARROWAY GO., RY.

Chartered August 29, 1849, became defanct October 7, 1895.

SIMPSON HODGE TO. 189 NEW CASTLE, HEMRY CO., MY.

Chartered August 29, 1849.

SUMANUM BOLGU NO. 190 EUTTAWA, EYON CO., KY.

Sumance Rodge No. 190 was organized April 15, 1848, at Eddyville, Lyon County, then Saldwell County, with Am. C. Foel as first Master.

The charter was presented to the looge by Marcus M. Tylor, Past Master of Oadic Looge No. 121.

wm. C. Noel, who was elected first Haster of the -odge was a well known physician, and very prominent in that county.

Marcus M. Tyler demitted from the Ledge at Cadiz, and joined duwance Ludge in 1950.

In 1854 Lyon County was formed and Mr. Tyler was appointed county Clerk. Afterwards he was elected to that office without opposition, and served until his death in 1858. He was a very popular and influential man, had many friends, and has beloved by all who knew him. He was elected Grand Master in 1854 and held the office with credit to himself, and honor to the fratermity.

In 1867 a committee was appointed to solicit funds from the Grand Lodge to erect a pointable monument to his memory. The Grand Lodge failed to do po, but in 1885, the members of Sumance Lodge erected a monument to his memory in the semetery on the hill in Eddyville.

Many prominent men, and men well known in the history of western Kontucky, were manbage of this Lodge, among these were such men as h. M. Soth and Thomas Sobb, brothers of Robert Cobb, who organized the colebrated Cobb's Buttery during the Civil War.

p. M. Lyon, a member of this leege, sat a comban of one of the preminent pioneer facilities of acstern dentuckly, and Lyon Joursty was ramed for their landly.

Frederick Skinner, who for many years was County Judge, and

one of the wealthiest men of the County, also did much for the enume of Tasomry, and especially for Suvenes Loogs. In 1853 he advanced the money to build a nice lodge room over the Nethodist Church in Eddyville. The Loigs putt him a part of this morey, and in 1863, a few years before his death, he called for the notes amounting to over \$300.00, cancelled them, and presented them to the loigs. Wish he loved, thus pseuding to them their besutiful home. In died in 1893.

This Tolgo has bee many prominent visitors. Among those was aresident James 4. Folk, and at his leath Summas Lodge passed the following resolution:

"Eddiville, My. July 14, 1849. Surance Lodge U. D. met this evening being alled mosting. On motion the following preamble and vesseluis one were adopted. Shereas it had pleased the Limighty Architect of the Universe, in his mission to conove from our midst our much beloved frother somes M. Folk, therefore by it resolved, that the mombers of this being attend in popposession, on actualsy the 14th., inst., and that the Mev. R. Berri D.D., be requested to preach a functual seamon on the occasion. It is further resolved, that we deeply sympathics with his tamily under the sad dispensation of Providence. He is further resolved that the sad dispensation of Providence. He is further resolved that the sade weet the usual badge of nonwing for the opace of thirty cars, and the capy of finis resolutions be forwarded to the family of the decreased. Resolved that those proceedings to published in the Proplet Brees printed at Copking title, and in the Tork Tolio printed at Vachville, and signed by the Josephyful

Topotor and Oceanstory.

John to Camlett, Seen. Pro. Fom. J.C. Docl, D. "

Lodge to kuttawa, a chort dictable along, and impast 10, 1080, the first mosting and held at Muttawa. By Sois nowe Immanor heap lodge he has no home in addyvible, which afterwards als made by Joppe Lodge Mo. 167. After coming to hottowa, summer lodge hell bor mostings in a ranted ball mottl 1910, when through the oriented of the Master, A. A. Abittington, comisted by the brethren, a besutiful Mall was built, which the redge now evergies.

The lidge has eleven rust hasters deno, and ten living, and a membership of eighty-five.

through all the viciositudes of the Civil Jan, has always encouvered to be true to all the principles of our behaved order, and is perhaps stronger and more active than ever to fore in her history.

LANIS DOLUM MO. 101 ENOUGOVILLA, JANUARSON CO., NY.

Sounded Happensation prior to 1849 as st. John's Bodge W. D. at Portland, Ty. Angust 88, 1850, it was shartered as wells lodge Wo. 191, and manoid in honor feet at fowin, Smard Master. The lawge has at He present time a sambered ip of six hundred and sixty seven.

Mikhayin loude No. 190 Mikhayin inglik Od., Kis

Charterof August AS, 1880, becaus defenct July 10, 1886.

PARMY HUDSON TODGE NO. 198 NIDELLEUWN, JEFFERSON CO., MY.

Chartered August 28, 1850, becam defense July 10, 1886.

BUTTLE TOLDL NO. 194
BITTS FORES, STILLING CO., RM.

Clartered August 28, 1850, becamb defract July 10, 1886.

LPPLESON CODDA NO. 105 LOVISA, DAWRLEDA CO., MY.

Chartered Ampest 28, 1880. Propost membership one hundred and thirty-thros.

SARDIS MODOM NO. 198 SARDIS, MADON CO., MY.

Orantered August 28, 1850. Prosent manbership fifty-three.

BRYANTSVILLE, GARRARD GO., MY.

Chartered Laguet 28, 1850. In 1863 to a Lodge properties and charter were burned by Breggs Long. A new charter was granted

October 21, 1865, and continued until Gotober 18, 1888, when the Rodge became defunct.

MAYO MODEL TO. 198 CALIFORNIA, CAMPBALL CO., MY.

Mayo Lodge was organized August 28th., 1850 by col. Najo, of Fowport, Kertucky, Master of Fowport lodge. The first meeting place was upstairs over James Foung's store, at Belmont, Kentucky. James McGrone was the first Master, Dr. James Mollymeaux, Lenior warden, and Gibson Limons, Junior warden, The Lodge was moved from Belmont, kentucky to Beach Grove about 1856, where they built a hall over the school house, meeting regular once a menth until 1868, there were no more meetings until Bovember 23, 1865, when A. C. Dick returned from the War, he went to the ballend found all of the records had been destroyed. A. C. Dicken then borroad money, paid the Grand Bodge tax, and called together am. A. Horin and Feter Daniel and started the lodge again. Mr. Dicken was afterwards made an honorary member for his services.

On Follmary 27, 1896, the lodge was moved to California, Lentucky, where the Lodge has a nice hall and a membership of sixty members, at present.

MARKURBABLE BODGA MO. 199

JUDY (MONIGORERY 2.0. HOUTE 5) MONIGORERY CO., KY.

Chartered Apgret 28, 1850, burned 1866. New charter is sued

HODEL LODGE MO. 200 HOSCOM, HICKHEN CO., MM.

Dranted Dispensation prior to August, 1880, on Solomon's Lodge W. D. Chartered August 29, 1850 as Neville Lodge No. 2, the two names were each of them in honor of Solomon Neville, an influential Mason who helped to make up the organization. In 1855 the mass and obanged to Model Ledge No. 200. In 1894 the lodge building and burned but the charter rescued.

In August, 1830, Hoscow Lodge U. D., was instituted at this place with Joseph Berry as Master, but no charter was ever asked for and the organization went ont of existence.

MAGNOLIA NODGE NO. 201 MAGNVILLA, MASHITY TOP COUNTY, MY.

A charter was granted to Regnolia Lodge Fo. 201 on the 20th., day of August, 1850. The first stated meeting was held september 18, 1850.

The following officers were appointed by the Orand Lodge:

Daniel J. Mitchell, W. M., Francis B. Mitchell, B. W., and Bolomon

Harman, J. W. The charter being granted by John D. McClure, Grand

Master of the Crack -cope of New Decky. The Mirst Treasurer was

M. T. Mitchell, the first Decretary John V. Buith. The first

petition reserved, and the first degree to be conferred by this

lodge, was on Milton Bushy, the by special dispensation reserved

the three degrees of Ancien's Craft Maseury on one and the sale day.

The Lodge bought its present site in the year 1079. The

Lodge has always held its stated meetings on Triday night on or before every full mean. The Louge owns the building, valued at shout three thousand collars. The building was erected in 1913.

> MALDON LOUGH NO. 202 PISKEURG, KENTON CO., KY.

Chartered luguet 19, 1850, the officers runed halve H. D. Sammers, Master, Gilbert Booth, Series ameion, Adolphus Sagers, Junior Marden, and the place of meeting Malton, Boone County, Men tacky. In 1856 the lodge were noved to Fiskburg. Became defunct Outuber, 1885.

> GOOTT RODGE NO. 203 igiriging ground, Reeds co., My.

Chartered August 29, 1850, became defunct October 9, 1891.

BLTHEL LOUGH NO. 204

TRAMTON, TODD CO., MY.

Driginal Charters given August 29,1850
Chartored Cetoter 22, 1868. Officers ramed in charter: Thomas A. Maduire, Master, Sarmol P. Bierry, Senior Larden, 3. S. Hatler, Junios Jasden.

In 1868 the Jodge lost its properties and electer by fire October 22, 1668 a new charter was is such in lieu of the one destrojet. The hedge comples a ronted laige room, helds morthly modings, and for the convenience of its membership which is in the country, the modinguare on Fonday night on or before

full moon.

BLATON ROLDS NO. 205 BLATON, MARSHADO CO., MY.

Chartered August 33, 1050. Jurrendered its clarts of 1070.

ARRITY WILTH TO. 200 ARRITY, WHITTON OCCUPY, WY.

This lodge was emploised in the pear 1849, granted a charter from the Grand Lodge of Monthsky at its regular convention held at lowing term. Monthsky, on the 20th, day of August, 1650, A. E. 5850.

The Read Master appoints and commissioned as his promy, Thomas T. Librarder, has master of Sunter and Redge To. 149, to assemble the brothmen in the town of Library and State of Len-tucky, to install the officers and set the Smalt regulariy to serk under the Ameiclistian of the Osmal Loky, of Mastucky of the Tree and Receptal York Right Masens.

Thomas L. Branlett was installed as Mastan, Saunel Rong, senior Maries, John F. Mider, staids war was, Am. Brante't, treasturen, Marie Bell Maley, Downster, Willen Misso, Senior Downer, & M. Ordes; Junior Leacen and Mire Toring, Stausré aud Tylon.

the undid once borght a row place haden let on the Direct-back on an of Theory with myon it from the same of Theory with myon it.

Trill a remmodiant Talls.

The machery in appearance in the constant of t

Probe'd, Youngs, Trairs, Lavalle, 2000s, Johnsyn, Wrights, Liskons, Hopkins, Ryans, Handorks, Lollega, Northetts, Lollies, Handorks, Lollega, Northetts, Lollies, Earlikes within the borders of that Issomic Jamiscle than For the Morett tem generally was infiltence and growth of this wedge was landly exactly exactled by any in any of the normalin counties of norther y.

Daring the War nearly the Stole come was branch, but the reads alvays a bank in difference any probect the caserie Todge brild-lag.

The responds of the Coope Jan that for sixty-form years there has been no change in the time or place of recting, save for short paried in the proper of 1915, while the new thicing was being exected upon the same site, which is a buldsome structure furnished with the modern conveniences, emiting there form themselve millers.

The flest Muster of the enge, Thomas L. Brazilett, was, in 1832, leadron with the sovermorphip of Meditschy.

Daniel Bull Manoy, the Circle Buerstary, after going to Tural was Pondred by the Legislature of Yexas with Lesent in the Chire & Diulius Beat in the Chire &

Col. wm. Maskins, who was first Colonel of the lath., Ken-tucky Infantry, N. S. A., Vol., was a member of this Reage.

Albany lodge has had, and still has, some very while ministers of the gospel, to-lit, Boy. Bullinger Aright, in his day a power for the course of Christ, he was identified with the Emptist Church. Rev. A. Bertram, a Daptistminister of great influence is at present a member of the Lodge, he has to en twice elected to the State Logislature.

CLERKYOND LODGE MO. 207 CLERKYOND, GEROLLD CO., KI.

Chartered August 19, 1800. The old charter having been defaced was on Catobar 21, 1875, given the lodge as so wentr and a new one is sued therefor.

dralan nobil no. 200

Therefore August 29, 1880. On April 3, 1901, this looke was burned in the observe destroyed. October 17, 1901, a new charter was issued in lime thereof.

FARVEY MADULKE LUDIL TO. 209 PERRYVILIE, POYLL CO., MY.

Enton to Amput, 1850, Wis lower was let to work as Maguire Louge V. D. It was chartered Angust 29, 1850, as Harrey Magnire Lodge No. 209.

Confederate and Tederal armies the latelle at that place between Confederate and Tederal armies the leader mem, furniture and observe were destroyed by fire. Cotober 21, 1863, a new elember was insuch, which was destroyed by fire Cotober 22, 1899. October 18, 1800, another charter was insuch under which the leage is now at work with a semberal is of fifty six.

TAYLOASVILLE, SELECTE CO., MY.

Under a dispensation granted January 18, 1851, Daylorsville

Lodge was organized with the following of Swors: J. B. Com, Master, Thomas Mirck, Serior Marten, R. D. Blair, Junior Marten, F. F. Morrell, Secretary, Jacob Boswell, Tyler.

On the 17th., or the Mollowing September a charter was granted and Taylorsville Lodge No. 210 instituted by James Young, Proxy of Frand Master J. M. S. Heforkle, with the following at its of ficers: Joe E. Cox, Master, Thomas Mirch, Senior Master, B. D. Blair, Junior Marden, Joseph M. Shaw, Benior Doncon, T. L. Burnett, Junior Doncon Fro tem, Robert Hiver, Jeerstary, M. M. Bee, Traust, war, R. Conner, Tyler.

Lith an average membership of between thirty and forty the ledge has had an uninterrupted course of usefullness through these years and to the present date. North is regularly and systematically carried on.

During the period of the Civil war many acts of kindness and charity were shown brother lasons who happened to be in need of friendship and assistance. The perty into rests of her own members were protected during those troublesome days by reason of the Masenie tie.

when the newments was direct started for the establishment of a home for widows and exphans, Leige No. 210 gave the sum of \$500.00 toward the establishment of " is Institution, and has always given liberally to every worthy cause.

MINTERSTICH HOLGE MO. 211 GARMATASVILLE, MEADE CO., MY.

Observed August 27, 1851. This lodge in the early poses of its existence was in quite a flouristing condition - it made its own lodge recen, a fease house that cost about \$1200.00, but hasonic interest was allowed to die out and the lodge became defunct July 10, 1886.

STEPREMSBURG RODGE NO. 212 FRANKLIN CROSS ROADS, HANDIN CO., MY.

This Lodge was organised under dispensation at Stephensburg, Lardin County, April 12, 1851. The officers being installed by Deputy Franc Baster C. G. Lintersmith, and Am. H. Dunavan, of Horrison Lodge Fo. 26.

The folgo was not to nork under murtue deptember 8, 1851, by the Grand Master, Charles G. Wintersmith.

July 26, 1990 the Lodge was moved to Trunklin Gross Roads.

Carren Lawson the present Tyler has surved in that capacity
for twenty-four years.

PROCTOR NODGA NO. 215
BARTTYVIDUA, DAA NOUTEY, KY.

Froctor Lodge No. 213, was chartered by the Grand Lodge of Kontucky (at Lordington, Ky.), on the 27th, May of August, 1881, and was leasted in the town of Proctor, Gusley County, Ambucky, the Charter being signed by the following Grand Officero:

J. J. McCorkle, Grand Haster, Charles S. Jintersmith, Leputy Grand Haster, Thomas Lond, Grand Benior Marden, Thomas Tood, Grand Junior warden, Phil Swigert, Grand Secretary.

Some years afterward the location was changed from Proctor to beattyville, its present location.

First Master, John G. CoGnive, first Senior Sanden, William G. McGuire, first Junior Marion, Pryse Pryse.

On the 6th. Say of Tehrnery, 1892, the word Hall and all the reserves up to that data some destroyed by fire, except the Charter Sigh was saved; and direct but time the wedge has been occupying a restal hall, a building furth has been charted, however, looking forward to the erection of a Masonic Hall in the very mar future.

FAIRVILM LODGE NO. 214 PAIRVILM, CHRISTIAN CO., MY.

In the first minute book of Pairview Louge No. 214, we that the following:

The the Grand Haster of the Grave Longe of the Green and Lecopted and Incient Hasene of the State of Maritis IV, I hereby conatitude and appoint Brookers Jumes 7. Clarks and Willia Houses and
I. ". Hellinsweeth, P. Mis, or others of them by growy for me, and
in m. name, to curimble the brothers were tibuting Tainview Longe
N. D. in the team of Tainview, Todd county, and attack effects to engage, as fully

"as south do myself were I propert presonally, horoty retifying and southering the same.

In testimony berein, I have herometo set my hand and scal, the 7th day of summary, A. D. 1851. S. S. SeCorchie, Stand Caster".

February 20, 1881, Pairviel Solge No. 216, who Let to sork in "due and avoient form", with the Following officers: Am. Lackey, Valter, James Littell, S. W., S. L. Buy, G. S., L. Cabiness, Locretary, J. G. Sigher, S. D., L. L. Heiman, J. D., L. Selivan, J. Selivan, J

At the mosting of the posite Andre in Cotolog of that pearl, the House has granted a charter and given the House Rise.

In 1854, Dr. I. J. Stuert, the was initiated in Repkinsville To. SV in 1888, the second on any control from that lenge. Dr. stuart is the easily living member who we shows at the time of the institution of Pairview Longe, but he demitted in 1876 when the fraudilistys put an account at of one collar on each marker for the widows and Orphana Home, as who nearly fisty members, the work out at the same time from the same cause, rather than contribute such a "actor for the benefit of the faithman all alcows of seconds brothers. A great many same back in letter gorra, but a good number of these were eventually suspended for non regreent of dues, and only one worker is in good standing now as in 1877.

The ledge has had a hard time to keep its "hout above water", for its membership was a number of times reduced to the constitutional minimum, and had it not be as for each members as A. R.

Brewer, also also the Talter for over a desche, James J. Simed, and henry T. Fumphrey, all he have "wrapped the dropery of their couch about them and his dear to pleasant droman", it would have been compelled to give up the sharter, for they kept the dues of delinquent merbers said, and often, with only a quorum, they would meet and adjourn in order to hold their charter. Even at the present time it has a hard row to hoe as its members are "scattered to the form winds of the cartin", one being in Oklahoma, conther in Elkton, and arother in the "Purchase", mother in South Obristian, with only shough markers are at a decrease to constitute a quorum. The present of ficers are decreased, in the constitute a quorum. The present of ficers are decreased, in the former former, John dilliams healing, Sonior derdon, J. Harion Harmed, Junior Tarion, T. L. Wade, sonior Leason, R. L. Milliam, Junior Descon, Clarence B. Brewer, Becretary, C. H. Brown, Treasurer, Thomas E. Goesn, Steward am Tyler.

This begge surrendered its cortor april 02, 1916.

NEW HAVEN MODEL NO. 215 NEW HAVEN, MEESON CO., MY.

Distansation granter this Leage prior to August, 1880. It was renewed August, 1880. Charles was granted August 27, 1881, which in 1862, was identroyed as one of the incidents of wer. A now Tarter was issued October 18, 1885.

NAPORION TOLOR NO. 216 NAPORION (DIENLOR N.O. P.F.D. 1) GALLATIN CO., KY.

Received dispensation prior to August 1851. Chartered August 27, 1851.

GORDONSVILLE, LOGAN DO., MY.

Chertored August 27, 1851. Hoperts twenty-three members.

PAILIF SWIGHRY LODGE NO. 216 FISHERVILLE, JEFFLESON CO., NY.

Chartered August 27, 1851.

UNION DODGL NO. 219
UNIONTOWN, UNION CO., MY.

The first record made by this hodge, saly 27, 1850, reads as follows:

Lodge of Meritacky anthorizing and assembling the Ancient York
Hacene of this term and vicinity and for F. M. Henry B. Baty
directed the following brothmen mut: - W. B. Baty, P. L.; I. T.
Berry, F. F., H. D. Bewards, F. M. At the same meeting
was that opened on Masters degree with the following brothmen
present: B. H. Berry, D. S. Brocks, Am. J. Kidd, Jas. J. Berry,

Jno. J. Berry. Wm. Hightmoster, who was appointed under dispensetion, was ten installed Master. The by-laws of Morganfield Lodge, No. 66 were adopted "except such parts at may relate to mane, place and time of mesting". The third Friday of each menth was adipted us the time of mesting. The next meeting was held on August 16, 1850, and B. F. Berry, B. J., Jelemen Sizemore, J. W., wm. Hidd, J. D., Thos. Ingram, doe'y and Trees. All being named under dispersation, serve installed in their respective offices, the other efficers were, as the minutes of ow, "unavoided ly detained". Five potitions were presented for rembered ip, as believe M. Suyan, A. J. Haeris, Isaac Wilson, J. B. Churgon, Jas. B. Molohon.

The observer is deted August 27, 1851, Design ton, Mentucky, showing the Pollowing Frewl Lodge officers: J. M. MeCorkle, Grand Master; Charles J. ..interemith, Doputy Smill Haster; Thomas ware, Om all Senior Harden, Thomas Todd, Smill Juston Warton, Philip Swigert, Trunk Booretary, and was printed by Hodges, Todd and Bruett, printers.

The Collowing meeting under there was held vetober 3, 1851, and the following officers were installed: Im. Tightnester, Master, B. C. Berry, Senior Warden, N. Taym, Junior warden, J. J. Mich, Junior Doncen, James Greenfield, Jeuretary and Treasurer.

On June 4, 1852, an account of \$20.50 for jewels was allowed and those are still in use. They were stolen by a regro politic during the mar and were offered to a druggist, who was a Mason, in Vincennes, Indiana, who questioned the magnetic and learned from

where the law come. The Grappist them wrote to the Secretary of Union Lodge, No. 219, and returned the jowells.

DE MOSS CODOL NO. 220 DE MOSSVIILE, PENDLETON CO., KY.

Do Nous Longe No. 220 was organized at Gradey Orach on Lesember 21, 1850, under dispensation from the Grand Rodge with eight members. The following were chosen the first officers: C. F. Violet, J. N., 7. D. Pulling, J. J., J. L. Belew, J. J., Auron Thrasher, Dec'y, L. Cornelius, Trees., R. NeNay, J. D., P. Hulling, J. D., am. Boner, Spier.

The first regular necting of the Todge and held Jeswery 18, 1851, at since time there were reserved to potitions of Mathew Dulling, a. Absender, atephan Pulling, and Andrew J. Hidwell. Of these Andrew J. Kidwell, is still libring out to a regular of tends to at the Andrew J. Sidwell, is still libring out to a regular of tends to at the Andrew Solge meetings, in the bissed loss than fifty meetings in a period of sinty-wire gours.

The large and or whited two or a direct Celator 18, 1857, will a marke of the standards.

In 1855, the looks wored from The Lay Crook to 4 Look, No.incky, (no. Builer), while a way hall are boing excepted to the town
of large willies in application, 1865, and built and completed and
accepted and ventions the excession place of the looks of a fatty page.

The 1915, that old hall was sold to the A. T. M. A. To., the L med are up to date the ting places or watch in which the regular semantications of the lodge and held

COLMITT OF HIS IDEAL FO. LAR.

Inumbed a single whatfor to 1849, were and in 1850, Gaustonia August 27, 1951, Worker Guinnet Notoles o, 1888,

> AMAGN Loudin Too mid Trankfolding plantfolding 101 400, KIS

out on Bodgo Mo. Lub, T. - L. M., Roud of it Pulson th, I thate ton word, the Bodgo Most of the Bodgo

Master J. M. S. McCorkle, March 7, 1851, upon the petition of J. I. Kudnall, Reuben McCarty, Alfred Moore, A. R. Northrup, A. F. Monroe, Henry Bird, Samuel Mack and A. B. Hustler, and thereunder commission was given Rev. W. H. Forsythe and Thomas Ware to assemble the brethren comprising said Lodge, and organize the Lodge under dispensation, which was done on April 3, 1851, at Falmouth, Ky., and irs talled James I. Hudnall, Master, A. R. Northrup, Senior Warden, L. F. Monroe, Junior Warden, Reuben McCarty, Secretary, Samuel Mack, Treasurer, and Henry Bird, Tyler.

The Lodge worked under dispensation until August 27, 1851, when a Charter was granted to Orion Lodge No. 222, which was organized September 12, 1851, by Thomas Ware, then Senior Grand Warden, as proxy of Grand Master McCorkle, who installed the following officers:

J. I. Hudnall, Master, A. R. Northrup, Senior Warden, A. F. Monroe, Junior Warden, S. Th. Houser, Secretary, Samuel Mack, Treasurer, and

John E. Records, Senior Deacon. At this meeting F. W. Minturn was duly elected and initiated as an Entered Apprentice, and he is at this time an honored member of this Lodge, and the only person now living that was associated with Orion Lodge at the beginning, and now its oldest member in point of years of life.

The Holy Bible used by the Lodge at its institution was presented by the ladies of the community who felt an interest in its members and the welfare of Masonry.

The Lodge has continued to be active in labor to the present, the membership at this time consists of sixty-nine Master Masons, two Fellowcrafts and three Entered opprentices.

COMPASS LODGE NO. 223 LOUISVILLE, JEFFERSON CO., KY.

At a meeting of Master Masons held at the Masonic Hall in the City of Louisville, State of Mentucky, June 26, 1851, present: Pre's: Nicholson Fury, E. S. Craig, W. A. Hauser, Isaac Griffin, Harry Hudson, T. B. Johnson and others.

Harry Hudson by authority of the Grand Master took the chair, and by his request, T. B. Johnson and H. S. Thomas acted as Wardens, and Fred. Webber, as Secretary.

A dispensation was then read by the Secretary authorizing the members named therein to form a Lodge.

It read as Follows: - In the name and by the authority of the Grand Longe of Kentucky.

To all whom it may come, Greeting. Whereas a potition has been presented to the undersigned Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of

Kentucky by Bros. E. S. Craig, Isaac Griffin, W. A. Hauser, Nicholson Fury, Fred. Webber, John M. Farrar and William Cromey. Brethren of the society of ancient York Free and Accepted Masons residing in the town of Louisville and its vicinity County of Jefferson, and state aforesaid, praying that they be authorized to organize and proceed to work as a Lodge and being recommended by Mt. Moriah Lodge No. 106 and it appearing to be for the benefit of the craft in general as well as for the aforesaid brethren that their prayer should be granted:

Be it known that by virtue of the power in me vested, I do hereby authorize and empower our worthy Bros. aforesaid to form. open and hold a regular constituted Lodge of Free and accepted encient York Masons in the town of Louisville. County of Jefferson. and state afor esaid, to be designated and known by the name and style Compass Lodge No. 223 under dispensation, the reby enjoining it upon all, true and regular Constituted lodges of Free and Accepted ancient York Masons. To respect am acknowledge them as such, and vesting them with power and authority to open and hold a lodge of Entered apprentices, Fellow Crafts and Master Masons, and thereby to confer upon worthy applicants the several degrees aforesaid, to receive members, to make and establish by-laws, rules and regulations as they may deem expedient for their good government, not inconsistent with the Constitution, Rules and Regulations of the Grand Lodge aforesaid and not otherwise. I hereby appoint Bro. E. S. Craig, Master, Isaac Griffin, Senior Warden, William A. Hauser, Junior Warden, of said lodge, hereby commanding and requesting the said Master, Wardens and Brethren to keep a faithful record of their

proceeding from time to time as they occur so far as they should be committed to writing, to correspond with the Grand Lodge aforesaid at their next annual Grand Communication to be held at Masonic Hall in Lexington, on the last Monday in August next, until which time this Dispensation shall continue in force and no longer. And lastly, the Master Wardens and Brethren aforesaid, do by accepted he reof solemnly engage strictly to conform to all of the foregoing requisitions and commands, and at all times acknowledge themselves subordimate to, and recognize the Jurisdiction of the Grand Lodge aforesaid, in testimony whereof I have hereunto my name am caused the seal of the Grand Lodge to be affixed. Attesting by the Grand Secretary this the 19th., day of June, 1851, A. L. 5851.

(s) John S. McCorkel, Grand Haster.

(s) Fhilip Swigert, Gram Secretary.

When the foregoing had been read, Past Master Harry Hudson proceeded to install the following officers: - E. S. Craig, W.Master, Issac Griffin, S. Werden, W. A. Hauser, J. Warden, Fred Webber, Secretary, William Cromey, Treasurer, J. M. Farrar, S. Deacon, N. Furey, J. Deacon.

On Lugust 30, 1851, the Charter of this Lodge was received and Secretary appointed a committee to procure a frame for the same.

On September 10, 1851, J. J. Simpson, J. E. Robinson, W. E. Robinson and Ham Deinneg received the H. M. Degree. They be imported the first to receive the H. M. Degree after the Charter was granted.

WILLIS STEW_RT LODGE NO. 224
LOUISVILLE, JEFFERSON CO., KY.

Granted dispensation as Stewart Lodge U. D. Chartered August 27, 1851. Reports two hundred and forty-five members.

YORK LODGE NO. 225
HOPKINSVILLE, CHRISTILN CO., KY.

Granted dispensation 1849, renewed August 1850. Chartered August 27, 1851. December 23, 1857, by joint request this Lodge was merged into Hopkirs ville Lodge No. 37.

MITCHELL LODGE NO. 226. KEENE, JESSAMINE CO., KY.

Chartered August 27, 1851, became defunct July 10, 1886.

MUBLENBURG LODGE NO. 227 SOUTH CARROLLTON, MUHLENBURG CO., KY.

Granted dispensation 1849, renewed 1850. Chartered Augus t 27, 1851, became defunct October 20, 1864.

BEWLEYVILLE LODGE NO. 228
BEWLEYVILLE, BRECKINRIDGE CO., KY.

Chartered August 28, 1851. Burned June 1866. New charter granted October 18, 1866. Burned March 1907, new charter issued October 15, 1907. Reports sixty-seven members.

Meafee Lodge No. 229 CORNISHVILLE, MERCER CO., KY.

This Lodge was chartered august 25, 1851. William Driskill the first Master, John R. Duman, first Senior Warden, John W. Eastern, first Junior Warden, all three of them long since dead.

In July, 1913, the Lodge building with all of its records and properties were destroyed by fire. At the meeting of the Grand Lodge the following October a new charter was issued in lieu of the one destroyed, and with new furniture and supplies the Lodge is actively at work.

The present Master, who has many times served the Lodge in this capacity, is S. P. Debaum, eighty-three years of age, and made a Mason in this Lodge in 1854. He still retains his Masonic interest and is loved and honored by all the men of the Lodge.

JAMES MOORE LODGE NO. 250
PEE DEE, CHRISTIAN CO., KY.

James Moore Lodge, No. 230, was organized and set to work under the name of Moore Lodge U. D., in 1850. On pril the 10th., of that year, Gram Master John D. McClure appointed James Moore, A. H. Phelps and J. F. Buckner, or either of them, to install the officers, and set the Lodge to work; at the house of R. S. McReynolds, on May 10, 1850, Deputy Grama Master, James Moore, met the following brothers at the above named place: F. H. Trice, George P. Street, Gano Henry, J. J. Dupey, W. H. Dupey and J. C. Prewitt, and organized the Lodge, installing the following officers: F. H. Trice,

W. K., Goorgo P. Street, J. W., Camo Henry, Sec., A. C. Coffee, J.D. F. Snow, J. D. At that time R. S. FoReynolds was not a Hason, but at that meeting his petition for numbership by initiation, with that of his brother, Oliver, was presented by F. H. Tries. May 11. (the Loage having been called from labor to refreshment until 3 P. J. W. o next day.), the following officers were installed. James Wallace, J. W., and James R. Carloss, Tres. Same Manny presented the positions of J. C. Whithook and D. M. Turner, for initiation.

At the read stated neeting, June 7, and 8th, h. s. Herejmolds and r. C. whithrow were initiated, passed, and respective and and pensation from the Sund Taster.

August 21, 1880, a committee composed of deorge a. Street, R. S. McRognolds and Jano Henry were appointed to contract for the building of a Mascuic Mall over a burch being built at that time, near Street's Achool Moves. At its dedication the latter part of 1881, this building was christened Concord Church. The Masons moved into this hall early in the year 1882. The Longe increased in membership rapidly. At every stated meeting pathtions were received, and frequent on lot meetings were held to be the work.

September 2, 1852, a Charter was granted by the Grand Lodge. On September 24, 1852, the wedge was duly organized, and set to work and set to Thanter and name of James Moore Lodge Io. 230

Out of the Civil Jur. During the periods of 1861 to 1866, the meetings were irregular, and little work was core; many of them members lost interest in this ledge, and it was found difficult to revive interest in Masonry at this place. During the summer of 1865

of thursh was built at Pee Dee, Christian County, on the Hopkinsville and Linton read, shout five allos from Concord. The flow
brethren who had remained loyal, and had striven to keep up an
interest during the Civil strife, that had proved at disastrious,
thought a change of location might be best for the bedge. Consequently, they contracted for and had built a very substantial Hall
over the Church at les Dee, which Hall is still used by them as a
meeting place.

higher grade than Jures Moore from its organization. It is interesting to the later generations to look over the register of this Loige, and see the names of prestically all the good and substantial citizens she lived within a radius of ton or twolve wiles of it enrolled among its membership.

After moving from Joheo of to Pee Dee, the Lodge prospered and die good work for many years; but the scythe of time and the creation or other lodges in the sammunity reduced its runks until today the membership is weak in runbars but strong in Masonic flith and practice.

Pest Grand Sastor N. W. Charke was made a New of this Dolge, receiving the Masters degree July 10, 1881.

BLAR WALTEN MOUSEN TO. 25% HORSE CLYE, HART CO., MY.

Chartered September 2, 1882, and set to work in a rouse of its own couting about \$500 and situate in the village, which refere

the arrival of the white man had been bruin's ecoling ground, which fact gave the name to the satisfier eat. The Hall was dedicable by Past Haster A. B. Lilen.

In 1866 the fodge was moved to Dorse Dave and now reports a membership of eighty-one.

DYCCABURG HOUGH NO. 252 DYCCABURG, CARRELLAR OU., IN.

Eyercharg Thigs and organized which is dispensation of July 26, 1851, and to property a dispers by the Table weige of decircky on September the Srie, 1853. The That dispets for grants if it the Lyensham Enge for 772, and degree by Tables 7. Listenessis, 1991 Newton, and Thomas (sing, Espain State Hauten, else) by Thomas 1. Accept, Sr. Aren South Common to a serious of the death State of Sanda Common to a serious of the Sanda Common, established the Sanda Common, established the Sanda Common to a serious of the Sanda Common, established the Sanda Common Common, established the Sanda Common, establish

The Mast of the estimates and the state of the lower of the lower of the Alberta (1905) and the Alberta (1906) and

ుకు కారు కొరువడ్ కైనాలో కొత్తుంది. మండలుకే అంటే పాట్ల మండేపైన ఉందిన కారుకోవడి కొరువుత్వవే ఎంది కారి పాలచిన మూర్పు కారం కారం కార్వాన్స్ కార్స్ మార్పు కార్క్ కార్క్ కారుకోవడి ప్రామెక్స్ ఎంది కార్స్ మర్మమైన సంస్థాత్వి మీమకోన్ను ప్రశ్నము నివారకు కారుకోవడిన ప్రామెక్స్ కారుకోవడిన మైబాబ్స్ కేస్స్ ఎందికే సంస్థాత్వము నీట్ ఎందికో మీమకోషడ్ మీమటిస్తాడిన

Checkers Tourism with the sum of the special projection to be proposed in a profit of all the second of the second

responding the color of the colors of the colors.

The disaft Hardin Hall acquirely at Levelung by Theoghther Cooksey in the month of woverder, 1807, and a with the wongo had granted the dispectation. The old installant the stand inch a interstity the old process from the that amoretic the process from all the first months of the level, together will the chi sword and working tools that were welless on that all the forest ingreaty be found in the archives of the Longe as anto hit there are ingreaty be found in the

Theoders Vesier, D. C. Lampbell, J. H. Olifton, Over Bosz, and A. R. Olifton were so in have been faithful and levelse machers of this leage for more than forty years, and have always been value; and officient corkers of the Auge, starting as 445 Saul of older winds, hear and shoulders above their mellowners.

The present (asonic fall at Eyensburg and erected in the year of 1904, by the younger facond ore since that time fall be an equipped with a new set of working tools and had come a good work. The loage had a membership of twenty-one members, owns its own hall and had no delits whaterer against it. If meets regularly on auturday night on or before the fall meets of such menth.

CLAY CITY, DOLLER COPYTY, IX.

Right Lagic lodge for 202 was organized March 14, 1861, water the number of Red River Iron works League for 232 in rewell County, where they dity now stands.

The soler has set to work by A. Apperson, acting as promy of

Junes S. McCorkle, (bur Grand baster of Auntholy, John Yosir, J. M., Junes F. McLas, J. M., M. A. Deshon, See'y. All the above aunca bustless were from Hantgomery Rolps No. 28.

The following brothman composed the new longe and officers:

W. A. Lawell, Jures G. Broughton, S. ..., Samuel Williams, J. ...,

David R. McKinney, Sector, Samuel T. Vanahn, Orace., Robert Taurey,

S. D., Josish J. Vanahn, D. D., Elijah Vanahn, Orler.

George A. Rush, Late of Ainchaster Ludge No. 20, was also present at this menting.

This wodge was moved from rowell lownty, category, to bog Lick, sleek, Clark County, Apatucky, John 23, 1888. Here's from Bog Lick, Emittely, to present location in 1870. On pecember the 28th., 1870, the lodge was burned down with all its contents, only having sat their ours, which was the day before, being the 27th.

In 1870 the present Hall was built and on the Serd., day of Lepterbor, 1871, the mane of the sought as changed from Red Fiver Iron works bedge to Right Ingle, its present mane.

The Lodge and Sodiented on the 23-d., day of September, 1871, by R. w. Charles Legister, the Cause Paster of the Greek Ledge of Lontroky. Since the organization of the Lodge it has had thirty-three Masters, of this number sixteen are still living.

TOLIV RODGE FO. 234
FOLIV, MARDIE CO., MY.

In ptul disponsation 1850, renewed August 1851. The stered Japischer S. 1862. Lord secting place shanged 1863. Lordenber, 1872 Lodge wood burred. In 1884 charter destroyed, February S, 1889 Lodge

became Cefunet.

HALLTON DULGA YO. 288 CATLITICHUNG, BOLD CO., NO.

Granted dispensation prior to August 1861, which at the meeting of the Grand Lodge in 1861, was renowed. The Lodge was chartered beginned 2, 1862. In 1878, this charter, with the building owned by the Lodge, was destroyed by thee. October 20, 1878 a new charter was granted it. This lodge has a nombership of one building and forty-two and is one of the most influential lodges in that section of Manteldy.

Judge Labon T. Decrett, a rest Master of this Longe, has always taken prominent part in the councils of the Grand Longe where his opinions have always had great reight. He was selected by the Grand Master as one of the Brand Wedge Commission to determine the manner and place of celebration to be held in commemoration of the Bi-centennial of organized Masenry, and he was one of the five the mide the celebration at Orah Orchard Jame 23, 1917, in honor of that event, one of the most imposing Masonie delebrations ever held in the State.

LATTOMPILED DOTOR TO. 256
LATTOMPILED, GRAYDON CO., MY.

Oranted Sispensation prior to August 1851. Chartered September 2, 1852, the officers being publically installed by Grand Mauter Charles C. Lintersaith. The present membership is sighty-seven.

HARVLY MASON BODGE NO. 257 DURGIN, GRAVLE CO., MY.

The Lodge bone the mass of one of its clumber members.

ADAIRVILLE TODAD NO. 238 ADAIRVILLE, LOGAT CO., MY.

Monk September 2, 1882, under the following of Figers: dev. Thomas G. Secch, Laster, D. D. Handy, E. W., B. F. Furt, J. W., L. D. House, Jee'y, H. M. Sheckellora, Press., Edmund Eury, A. D., Joseph B. Paisley, J. D., Sterling Bavis, Atemara & Tyler. The following composed the Luster Masons of this wedge in 1852, J. M. Jones, J. C. Hickman, A. Burr, H. R. Drury, J. E. Mongan, L. D. Anith, Jm. M. S. Sterk, J. J. Hrwin, B. W. Campbell, J. J. Lewry, R. M. Menderson, Rev. Mm. B. Marris, C. J. Scieley. The last maked being an Antewed Apprentice. The Lodge became defunct in 1904, September 28th.

Forember 15, 1971, the present Ledge with the old mamber was set to sook by John 3. Orndorff, Just Orndo autor. The following compact the officers, 2.3. 2000, Master, J. 2. Drowden, 3.2., John 2. Massall, J. D., C. M. Jmith, Tyler, S. C. Berson, Treas., C. D. Helean, Decly. The original potitioners are as tollers, C. J. Posey, J. 2. dilbert, J. S. Angles, J. M. Mussell, J. H. Smith, J. G. Traughber, E. D. Bensen, G. T. Rush, J. L. Executing, G. M. Aplean, H. T. Morrow.

The lodge as they thirty-cover combine who are loyal to the

support of the League. The Ledge rents its mosting place, which is ever the Peoples Sank and a very nice one it is. The wedge is out of doot and has a nice little bank account, it is in a klowriching word ition. The members of No. 258 feel groud of the condition and growth on their Exage and justily so.

ST. GEORGE LODGE NO. 259 LOTELVILLE, JETTLESON CO., MY.

15. Goorge Lodge, V. D., was instituted at Massais Pall on the let., Sar of October, 1861, and having been granted a disposant on by the Mest Mouchipital Grand Master C. C. Sintersmith, was get to work by Past Grand Master Charles Dilden, applicable by Jacob Oren, L. L., and Manny D. Gray, J. M.

The first officers appointed were as believe: w. G. Booker, s.L., G. C. Pord, S. S., Gorre Starky, J. J., Georre Bonsarrut, J. D., wolf: Junuale, J. D., John Tardin, Son'y, D. C. Crung, Grass., L. D. Chrich, Cyler.

The section of the Proxide Depth with requiring the Maganisation and approxidely for New Addition to the control of the Proxide by for New Addition to the control of the proximation of the proximation of the Addition of the Addition of the Additional of the Additi

By the deleter granted in. Riddell see appoints a laster, C. H. Try, S. a., and S. L. Pross, J. W. At the first regular

oleotion of alliness told on December 28, 1852, Notic Jamacle was elected tables, 0. H. Wry, 3. N., and 2. Noung, J. N.

The period immediately following the greated of the chartes was marked by a last of interest upon the part of the markers which was not only manifested by vant of the working apinit, but it also made it recognize at quite comber of its comby mostings to call cupo of all at the tit on we the finite that the authorization was discouraging, that the firencial condition was distrobeing, and the the prosperity and even to very existence of the large has dependent upon the engreption of these inflatuor fullure would result. At writing times, it became mechanism for to individual members to make personal confributions to the logic 80 that it could be dinarced in the enfective domaition. It was even discussed as to weather or not the Charter destil be at mendered and the Lodge discontinued, but after strong and vigorous dehates, it was decided to continue to Douge and try to ingreve its corditions. This wise coursel ్కి కేట్ క్రాంగుల్లుంతే కుంటే అడుకోస్త కాముకోంతకాని కీటర్ తీందని చూపల్ని వేరానికోనికి మంది. violities in the propert exalities of the Louge.

later the first fearycars of its existence, the affairs of the ladge scenation to take on now life and prospered. The comparable increased sapidly, the working spirit can instilled by efficers expectally spite, enthusian was aroused, and in a few years the hedge became one of the strongest and most prominent factors in Tabenic affairs in the State as well as in the Sity.

when the question were completed as to the advisability of building a Passair Completate Pourth and Jefferson Streets in the City of Revisville, the Acigs of proved of the plan and left its aid and efforts and endoavors to the fraternity to see the plan consummated, and even went so far as to berrow itself the sum of Fifteen Hundred (\$1,500.00) Dollars to be located for the heastit of a Masonic Temple and after the cale of the First Masonic Temple and the present one, this lodge bought liberally of the bonds of the sew building.

When called upon to ausist in the organization of the Masonie Widow's 8 Orphan's Home, it was one of the Mast to come forward, not only with advice and co-operation, but also with strong Thansial sid, and we find that the numbers ountributes liberally and participated in the many bazaare, theatrical onto stainments and various means used and approved by the Masons to raise funds for this building, of which we are now so justly proud.

The Lodge participated at the laying of the economistens of the Home, and at various times during the erection of the building when funds became searce, and were badly needed, subscribed for additional life numbered ips.

One of the west settine numbers upon the Rossi of Directors of the Tome and who afterwards served as bresident was Past Master Jacob F. Seller, she readined upon the Doard until the time of the Couth or February 2, 1903. This lodge has directed three providents and a secretary to the St. John's Day Heague, which has no stratuted to the Hone and other Masonic Charlities. One of its members has also served as President of the Insanic Board of Eclief, and is today one of its most realous and enthusiastic weekers.

The information gathered from the records makes it evident that

and officers worked its way to a sound fibered condition, thereby making itself capable of sontributing largely and liberally to various charities. Whomever the occusion arose as demanded it was over ready to do its chare in relieving others. At the time of the yellow fever epideric in the south, the first in Chicago, the certiquake in San Francisco and other satastrophes, the contributions of this house feweres the relief of the various calamities were prompt and generous.

The amorage attendance of St. Coorge's Logs in proportion to its numbership at the present to perhaps not surpassed by any longs in the State, more especially at the conference of the Masters degree, when the empacity of the Blue Room in the new Masters is usually taxed to everthoody.

The officers, assisted by the Degree Gesm lave gained a State will reputation for the exemplification of the Pasters degree.

and have been called upon by many ladges to confer this degree for form.

The younger members can always be depended upon to carry their share of the work and labor of the longe; they are given an opportunity to assist in conferring my and ell the degrees. As an enable of the anthusiasm and proficiency shown, one of the members at the age of twenty-five as acting factor, assisted by his brother aged twenty-seven, as esting senior beacon, raised to the authors degree of a laster mason their Sather, aged sixty-one. This unusual occurrence demonstrates the kind of material of which the first factor of material of which

The Goorge Lodge No. 289, while now one of the class in the state, having borne with the other certify league the equat of maintaining the lightly of the basonic Tratematy, apreading Drotherly love and truth, teaching and standing for truly Reserie principles in the Sity and State, down yearly a steady increase and a natural groath and is today in a prosperous and floweighing condition, being, as always, read; and willing to assist and atd in any truly Daschie undertaking.

ST. LERY'S LODGE NO. 240 COMCOND, MENTS CO., AY.

Columber 18, 1877, reports a membership of fifty.

TYLLE DOMENTO. 241 DOMENTALD, JEFFURDOT DO., IT.

This Indge was results the Saytander S. 1982, and has more a laborate of Town Tyler, sast Grand Matter, she was related by the semple of Tenieralle in this applicat, angulates, making that a This India sayta is 1884.

In Townsher, left, a dispusation was granted to uplet hadge U. D., which was mostly composed of the definet large of this name. October 27, 1800, a Charter was practed restoring the old manacular receipt and the receipt and the transfer. On Setober 20, 1800, the colgo wont tables are the number has blue one of the found define register.

CLIPTON NODEL FO. 240 CLIPTON, ORIGO DOL, NY.

Captor Tear To. 212, Sometries of further, Dulys County, New Hooling, and a part of in the entrans of 1773, though the indicated the of Cara, the gaes, at their , and the property of the contract of the contract of Charles and the common for the first term of the first series of the common of the com with the contract of the contr The Grand Lodge in August 1852, when the first charter was granted with Lemuel Sills, W. M. Kinchen Battoe, S. W., W. L. Frique, J. Z., with 10% of what, worldships . To what the beauties) with gracions Scienced, which also will grantad forbatar Silvin. It is not man himown నిధారం కుండి మండల్ల నిడ్స్ కేశ్రీ మాంచుకోవుంద్ర కేంద్ర రాంత్రి మాడ్లు తని కేంద్ర రాంత్రి sape, at were this a view due thinks up over he village setted associated teath of LACO.CO, which proceeds as a medial guidade from name, yours. In Jarrany, 1879, this insiding als counterput by Tire legaliter will 601 the records and Irrations of the Inego. At the Trunk Rolys, Detaber 21, 1379, a row elarth a rea granted. On Schole / 20, same suc is med by July Ries, Thord Nauton, Sm. C. Mailert, G. S. W., C. L. Frances, G. S. W., and Disam Budgett, 7. Describery, although the fall wing of the obs. Lafeyvite N. Wellis. A. M., Jansa A. Markey, a. A., Grinden T. Bridges, T. ... ಈ ನಡೆಸಲ್ಲಿ ನೀಡುವುದು ಸಂಪರ್ಧಿಗಳು ಕ್ರಾಂತಿ ಕ್ರಾಂತಿ ಮುಖ್ಯವಾಗಿ ಮಾಡಿಯ ಸಂಪರ್ಧಿಕ್ಕಿ ಕ್ರಾಂತಿ ಸಂಪರ್ಧಿಕ್ಕಿ ಕ್ರಾಂತಿ ಕ್ರಾಂತಿ At interests the second of an authoriting places while 1890, which it is ordina institution such arresend by a piterm. This will that the the Reage had cultur hou shie to air a hall.

simps the destination of their logic war in 1990, they have been

meeting in a norm over the store of Mr. .. F. Sugue.

Justical Long of his how several gloomy periods during its emistence, yet it how ever been found roudy to dispense its of the pity to the oxfort of the whility. If has a life membership in the widow's and Sephen's Home, had had two orphores and one often in Home since its organization. It has had the fore konor of rading many good Masons. Among the Basi Masters now descaped and worthy of surface are Lemmal Sills, Alfred M. Wallace, We. Hartin, Joseph R. Jummer, Robert W. Mise, Chilor C. Buidges, ... D. Langester, James Battoe, M. 1. Thomphing.

BLIFG. DOUGL TO. 243 PARIS, BOURBON CO., EY.

Chartered deptember 2, 1852. Henry R. Orr, being the comet Capter 19, 1852.

GALLAVILLA 10001 50. 244 GREARVILLA, MURKENBURG CO., MY.

Chartered September 2, 1882, became definet Cotoler 50, 1864.

GRALEVELLA, REMELIEURO CO., MY.

Chartered Cotober 19, 1884. Reports a number ship of one hundred and thirteen.

CARDIA LOURL NO. 200 BIUL NICH MICHOLAS CO., MY.

Carroll Bolge, situated at Pitchell's Hills, Blue Lick, Kentucky, builds the Lost Office, was chartered Soptember S, 185%, and continuate until January S, 1880, when it surremers its charter.

ROLD GOLDA NO. 246 TITUL ROLE, ROURFOR CO., N.S.

Thurster members of Hope Lodge Mo. 246: Bramlett, J. Haster; A. Roby, Series durden; M. P. Letton, Jamios Herder; M. D. Legne, Beardtary; Jeseph Gibson, Cremburger; John C. Miller, Senior Descon, Term. J. Jilson, Junior Lecens; James Bonell, Stoward & Cyler, A. D. Jan. 30, 1852.

The first is about the constitue of an interference of a site of a second and constituents. The constituent is about the fact of a second for the first is a least of a second for the fact of a site of a second for the fact of a site of a second for the fact of a second for the fact of a site of a second for the fact of a second for a second for the fact of a second for the fact of a second for the fact of a second for a second for the fact of a second for a second for the fact of a second for a second for a second for a second fact of a second fact of a second for a second for a second for a second fact of a second

in the Siperement every leaderie charity.

John years ago a regrescentative of Meye Dodge at the Track Rodge, alogic harded - without one word of encouragement of not of approval from any brother, attempted the tash of remaining the mileage paid delegates to Trans Rodge, and secured a reduction of one condicate say. This in the appropriate ascents to quite a sum annually, a saving to the Mess or the basis ton of 20000 manbers, over \$12000.00 yearly. On present membership 40000 - doubled. Past Grass Master beathers pronounced this two only instance of reduction of mileage rates on record in secret societies.

That how Longs To. 101 defunct had her opposentatives in the gallories of the Grand Hasters. Hope Lodge, her excession, has impressed horself upon the legislation of its brand Dodge with no representative in Grand Lodge stations.

The most distinguished name borne on we rolls of membership of Rojo dedge is 7 at af w. J. Bramblett, charter namber and the first Paster. He was entered, pushed and reduced at languarty Lodge No. 86 in 1647. Trops a Pascrio compact we have a brief setimate of his degrates and influence, "prompt and consection, taking an active part in all decisabilities profibed to lodge interests." His death was presentance or his lasonic life out too brief the prominence. Sarky in his carser he showed great formers an issuable to the militia casories of the lay. He was an officer in the Hexican war. Easily in 1661 then in her man apparent that the opposing acctions of our common mentally were entermined on dibritting their differences to exhittement of war, Captain Bramblett at the

hand of his empony became an integral part in the organization of the Bourth Regiment of Infantry Pryham Brigade of the Bouthern Bennessee Army. This Brigade of infantry Schiered the west brill-limit record of my similar organization in either Lymy - Borth or Lorth.

Capture Bromblett was a military gamins. The consequest will demonstrate the efficiention. Thilst in eams on the Forthern porder of Talmouse in 1868 it was the nightly eastern of the efficient to discuss and or line the future acquaign of the empty to which they wave attached and knowled the meet buffle for the supremoty of the Jante. Opinions were marious and divergent. Captain.

Bromblett alone was acquable of ordinates the future empaign of the amy by additioning - to held this divergent must field a vocunte it. Some orthodism your strangth beyond its southern before all somewhere on that him the round bettle will be fought - those three navigable mixes and the considers of the Captain the orthodism. The fathle of this finght on the Continue border and before and the orthode the proposition of the constitute.

another incident to the purpose quite for stelling the conignal of a consequent that the trative of his council. The fittle of furthers-bore forget carry in January 1865. The has been highling recurited in the colorate being follows from one of particles. The right white volume for the sem. Breakinging was property to those stone Viver by Change as a term partition on appointe banks. The mean materials are the continual for the bear of the continual continual fields away. Elements in the rear of the continual continual one mile on the semi-

The inside area of the grisse and sight with a very laceny weeklingly ingonetrable mndergeowth. Two end Routhind dy heart భాజుఖీతిందాను. Promitiz entire itriston le est. Pou Paphain Brathists als bla ormour to rete i recommendadames, the problem was chapted was report switchittes. Then can restill force that contain from the costs hat I suspect masy pieces of artillery hills in the dark research or Mious Mills regard, 1 is which Juphain Granblets. Those care prophette arrias. From a painted a stail side of with u more all order from ferm. Hereig to make the wither h. The response came in ringing bones - By compliments to lot. Eragy. Aug Wide to him. I preion the order to although be neduced to ariting. The arition order was soon nowelved wit in an souser the fight was made, the energy erition from their postition when opered from Thous brushy heights fifty pieces of untillery and in forty minates eighteen handret men wert hille sin heundet. Bremblett foll in this Satel thurge builg condid and the iest on the field. Daring the right he was found by the energy and delento a terrorary fill del bosyitud. The Tere-al surreens but here encepted will during to be traditional of all ode at right in the harmon ంటేకకారాగు. ఇద్ కోటకుల గ్రామకుపడుకులు మన్మక్షడాముర్ది, ఉద్దురపున్నింగి కోస్తు కొంటే స్తుంది. of har. One of fear cargele of surey on locating hospital quarters for his own for a woll carnot partial rout hours a distinctly low uncluded for - the Pasonia words of Distress which eithered his attomylom at endo and copairing to the apot inquired "AHo are yous to it am Captair Eramblett of Fourth wontheky Infantry, Lunson's Brigade. Will jou plants untime my mumbs untitell me if the are mortalfy. The Sederal surgeon proved to be a

flacenic brother and of once was in full sympathy with his woomled for, had him taken within the operating tent, had ily exemine t und dressed his wounds. Captain Bramblett was abiff from cold and the loss of blood, the surgoon lumanuly administered a generous measure of whicky, had him placed on a bed of urgemes. cotton with now army blankets on Citefact to providing to rate him comfortable. The a mosen promised bin bulley brother to probe his woulds with the posiphence of a sedical standard the Mirst thing is the morning, factorial departure with the accumumos that he had remisered the host service prosible. Somethic Sorting the carly meming he was put aboard a train on sents for Hashville. dome days after br. Fichlas, the energees, were endered to the city to take darks of a losgital. On allerning the charge among its inmates to discovered his wounded brother of the Newtleriele of Chartreesboro. The hospital was so crouded the citizens of The city ware invited to take the doubters norman to their homes. A Mrs. Luyne, un old friend, for orly from the village of That Book, applied to Captain branklett to take him to her home alere to comil have better diturbion, to responded, MMO, the Mederals laws not a prisoner badly nounded; their buty is to come for me, on' I am not willing to relieve them by terring you. The Jayne insistate. The Cupywin sub immovente. The repaired to the surge in will both appropried at the new or the country solitor. Triber the presention of east, he especiated. The surgern gave him every disention. Down haps after the transfer in Nobello apparent to the matchine eye of the layer that her friend was in a mapid decline, she deturmined to should dot die on Puderal

blankets and in the cot of substituting her own it aroused his abtention. That are you sorking to do Tre. Pages?" "You are going to die Captain Bramblett no I do not want you to die on the blankets." Thake no change now, that have caved my life on the battlefield and I profer to die on them?. A last tribute to his brother in Hammy, surgeon Hicklen. Thus cross over the diver all that was nowth of a. I. Bramblett. first Hamis of Basis of Hope Bodge Ho. 246.

The facto relating to Captain Bramblett from the time he became a wounded prisoner up to his death at Hashville are from the epon of Dr. Ricklan, a Pederal Surgeon from Illinois in an article contributed to the Corfederate Veteran, Dashville, Tana. Hope Lodge now owns are occupies a new hall of brick and metal roof, gas fixtures for light and well furnished, free from Gabt. Her hast returns to Grant Secretary, 1914, shows a numbership of fifty three (55).

SALDONIL LOUSE DO. 247 FRELONIA, CARLUINE COUNTY, MEMPUCHY.

Frederic Reiger's organized value allegensation granted by the Orini Paster of Acatucky, about February 1852. His action was approved by the Grand Reign at Isrington, Dy., at its annual mosting the following September 2, 1852; and the Reign was given the numerical designation of Tredenia Reign Do. 247.

The charter was signed by the bllowing Oracl Ciffeers: Charles C. Wintersmith, Grand Hastor, Thomas ware, Leputy Grand Haster, W. J. Smith, Jurior Crawl Warden, and T. Bargeant (in

whather place the name upgests as we intigued) Trans Secretary . The March of The ere of Precerts Leigs W. D., were, Ruy. .. C. Love, Fustor. J. W. Hamwell, Jonior Larden, ... D. Mirkpatrick, Junior Aurien, B. S. Bubson, Treasurer, B. R. Bush, Lorrobany, Was Laher, Stoward and Oyler, C. B. Johnson, Lenior Joseph, Johnson, Jumier Leagen, Tive of whom were physicians. The first mesting was hold of the residuce of Ir. C. R. Johnson, Turch 6, 1802, along they donned a procession and marched we the Cumbers as subbysomich Shareh in the team of Prodomin. After at a spent address by A. H. Eavis, and J. C. Moller, the officers of the Leigh whee publicly imptilied by J. C. .eller, Deputy for a Ruster, pro tem, after which the Inage returned to T. No Commands westures only party of of a comptions repast prepared for the section by the good with of Dr. Johnson. The long of our incomposated in Pelanday, 1867, under the last of the winto of Heritashy. The third works to by-less of Climber Thire to. 82 with

The acquescripted the by-lens of Clinter Erige To. 82 with the emergine, its the estimate to or Testing after the limit which will be contract for and will a house. A committee now also appointed to contract for and twile a house. For more time mostings were walked very offer.

On Lared St. 1802, the government was randical as fore partial actions of a point a factor of a point. The case can include form one, and or applied to be the respected. The hydrone furting to a congruency applied to a lumar menth to slappe on a secure of the emergency.

April 5th.

includes of the blinding peops when the first willow to fig whater climion No. 82 (18 miles), delem Mo. 81,(18 miles). Danames No. 190, (15 miles), Sudir No. 181, (BC -1108).

The Alice classion of officers we believe as depth in 10, 1852, which resulted so believe: For a security, Treasurer, S. J. John Constitution, Treasurer, S. J. Johnson, Jenior Leeven, J. J. Johnson, Justice Leeven, T. T. Lament and J. J. Jillan, Stownson, J. D. Johnson, Tillan, Johnson, Johns

The modern of the modern control of the man and place as the conditions of the modern of the conditions of the modern of the mod

Mind the facilities have the many of the latter to the facility of the confidence of the facility of the latter to the large tested that they form. The facility resides to refer the conflict. The research the facility resides to refer the conflict. The research the facilities and which is respected. The facilities and which is respected.

On Gotober 8, 10%, Dotot Denato, the dall neiter of the department from a country to made equivalent the same was a feel to the same of the same and a department in

the weshives of the Douge.

The direct color retion of ata deim to Reptist and observed fond Do, 1987. Rev and Panicolph proceded to sermed and color toward Manion Number and all all addresses.

Carriever har 8, 1008 respections of respect were subject to Mir Louth of Lust four master full to Tilon, all the breth of ware orderou to sour the moral tadge of courting for thirty days. To mismbou appear from Fally 7, 1802 to July 77, 1862. Suring thing the the jowets of the antiferry of the week heat. The great of 1861 and 66 were the most prospersor to a Tello రాశంగా ఈ వృధ్యారంతో. - కొంట కొర్యేండ్ కోత్రం మంటుకు కోస్ క్రాంట్స్ ఈ గుర్మాన్నికి ఉన్న కొన్నికి చెప్పుకు చేస్తు Johnson, Musts , promined through three times. In 1968 there were thinty two roofings and A. C. Loro, Haster, presided each time. On November 15, 1871, ract from Newton L. S. Titch and Car eddress to term the Course in behalf of the widow's all orphants Home and Indiamary, to be located in the city of conistills, hertwelry. The Leige voice passes of the two builting from of the cent. On May 18, 1001, the longer returned to endealingte ut. Total the Paptist's day June Mith., which plan use courted out proving the gradus' day Tredoric Dodge ever hod, from flitone bandrud to two thorse and ye oplic to ing prosent to I am the elegrant wild resises Udiversa by the Rev. J. A. Bingban of Bonderson, My., and her. F. J. Tales, of Vicentus, Toligna, of Oliver. The process of which do porded largely upon the antiring afforts of Hev. H. II. Chappell, Tusier, and the absistance of the brothers, with the co-operation of dlinton 82, Pinyhan 356, Liberty 580. Nort all The ledges between Park meen and Princeton on the railwood, also

a mumb or of intend ledges were nepresented.

On May 8, 1914, the Lodge began to consider the propriety of mother celebration of St. John the Daptist's Day Jane 24, 1914.

About twenty-four lodges were invited to perticipate in the festival occasion but few responded. There were three Chauteuques within the bounds and severe drouth in the land, and very little encouragement was expressed by the other ladges. Nevertheless Fredonia Lodge decided to calebrate the day, which plan being extrice out proved to be a good day to more than six hundred people. J. L. Baker, of Frinceton, made an elequent address in the forences. In the aftermoon James F. Fries, of Mariot, Kentucky, preached an excellent permon, followed by an elequent address by J. A. Bennett, of Utica, how tooky. The day was observed by the business men eleming their places of business from 10 L. M. to 4 f. M.

Frederica Lodge, like all others, has had its years of Liversity, and prosperity, barely escaping the relinquishment of its charter in the year of 1887. In the year of 1906, the Rev. D. P. Campbell, J. I. Loyd and C. B. Loyd met, opened the lodge a sufficient number of times to hold the charter, the latter two advancing the money to pay the Grand Lodge dues. Since that time the Lodge has gradually taken on new impetus and at the present time is in a prosperous condition.

born in Know County, Tennessee, March 9, 1798. His father was of Scotch descent though a native of South Caroline. His mother was Irish.

The family started out to find a home in the West, the Sather

lowing his family in Thom Jourty, Tenressee, while he went forward to fird a location; during his absence William C. was born. Shortly afterwards they came to wentucky and settled on the Lonaldson Fork of Tradevater river (them Christian County), now Coldwell, County. He was by profession a surveyor. As soon as his family was settled, he started again on his profession. The next year he was surveying on Tradevater giver in Christian County where he was captured and killed by the Harps, rear the Harpo Head Torks of the road. This occurred the day before that notorious band was captured and the leader's head out of the de stuck upon a pole at the forks of the road that bears the name. This was in the year 1799. Thus William C., was left fatherless at the age of one, which a widowed mother to undergo the privations of a frontier life, which afforded little if any advantages for an settestion. He, however, guithe ned from such sources as the country afforded, sufficient knowledge to equip himself with the endentials of surveying, which profession be followed through lifts. He heard the cell of his country, and enlisted as a primate soldior in the War of 1812, and participated in the lattle of Nes Orkens, Junuary 8, 1815.

Le was married twice; the first time in 1817, second time 1838. By the two mives he had seventeen children.

He moved from Membucky to Tennessee, during the year 1821, and lived near Trenton, Gibson County, Tennessee. Although at that time there were no organized counties in that pert of Tennessee. He moved to Tipton County during the year 1836. The next year, 1837, he moved to Pincy Fork Camp Ground (then in Livingston County), now Crittenden County, Membucky. During the year 1844 he moved to

Caldwell Jornty, where he resided up to the date of his docth which occurred April 18, 1872.

He professed religion during the year 1828, and united with the Cumbe main breakytery of the Jumbs Main Preskyterian Church as a case feate for the help ministry and also ordained to the full mork of the dishistry in 1825, solving the church faithfully with he heard the call "come up higher".

He was initiated, passed and raised in Paris Longe No. 65, of Paris. Tennessee, in 1827. Paris being fifty five miles from his residence, he was compelled to ride that distance to receive his lectures. Soon after reactiving the degrees he defled for a demit and assisted in organizing a lodge in Trenton, Gibson, County, Tennessee. After removing to Galdwell County, Kentucky, he accusted in organizing Tredomic Lodge No. 847 and was its first Master, which position he held at several different times.

on April 2, 1852, he was made a free marker of this lodge on account of boding a Manister of the boding a

ASIMTORUMO MODDAMOO. MAS

Chartoned September 2, 1852 and set to work at wahbyshung.
In 1960 the looke had poved to Catem in the same decrey and las-

21.8

MARKA 1010A NG. 240 DAMBBALADURE, DEFINE CO., 21.

Heary Lodge No. 549 was organized in 1051 with No. L. Davies first Naster, br. F. J. Yager, Jupier sames. Lodge weem was destroyed by whre in 1698, to gether with all records, charter and paraphernalia. Now sharter granted summ year, with No. L. Chilien, Master. The League has continued to make regularly since and is not in a prosperous condition.

#1%A %GDGL 50. 350 WLWTOWN, 20012 00., WY.

Chartomed September 2, 1852. Dabne; Cains do Birst Master. Became defunct October 21, 1861.

> GRADYVILLE LUDGE NO. 251 ORADYVILLE, ADAIR CO., MY.

Thanke red August CO, 1860. Cotober AS, 1868, the Dage was moved to Miltown. October 21, 1895, moved back to Gradyville. Charter turned in 1871 and rea one is mod.

C. S. HOFFHAM NOBOL NO. 252 MLRO, HOPKING CO., NY.

0. 3. Hoffman Lodge Fo. 202, now organized as Roffmanville Lodge To. 255, at Hoffmanville, whout two and a half miles North of Nebo, on the Monganfield post, in the year 185%, and worked under And the second of the second o

The contract of the contract o

The state of the s

the restrong to be stilly 15, 1671, at the conservation of the

Andeleg, to divide a way of the local to the filter than a factor in the second of the

The fitting of the first of the property of the confidence of the property of the fitting of the

The 1871 of a large large and will be given and all the large larg

CLEAD OF TO TO TO, SEC

PARADOR LEADER OF A PARADOR DESCRIPTION OF A LOSS AND A STATE AND

ప్రకల్పోవాడు. అని స్టాప్ కాటా కొన్నారు. అను అను మాట్లా కొన్నారు. మూర్పులోని కొన్నారు. మాక్షామ్మాన్స్టార్క్ కాట్

> Fural colon Folloga Farallana, frantactor boll, fig.

Chartonol Angust Ol, 1880, in 60 1870, folder define to October 1870.

FULL TELLED NOTICE TO BETTER 111.

Charte to angree 5th, Robert Title 1 dies of an oarly day once bed a probable to the property and the transfer of the common and the angree to the region of the first transfer to the resident probable of the resident transfer to the resident transfer transfer to the resident transfer transfer to

Expression that simple such the disaster was to an include a property of the p

Expression to be a substitute of the substitu

ngani ngalawan na sale Jilikama pambalawan salesa sina

The properties are also been accounted as the control of the contr

in de la companya del companya de la companya del companya de la companya del companya de la companya de la companya del companya de la compa

The Proof of the Community of the Community of the respect to the Community of the Communit

The first of the complete of the contract of t

The control of the control of the state of the control of the cont

1. Los miteración, della, el prodeto descutación montre el compositione de la composit

10101 1010 1 1010 1 1010 100 , tector, i. T. Bacy, wing, is it was in , leading, it was in , i. ...

Lander Johnson , it is not in , i. ... it is not cons, it was in , i. ...

Lander Johnson, it is not in , it is not play the in, if , i was not in the ...

Lander For the Mail Laties of error in the protection of the constant in the ...

Lander For the Mail Laties of error in the ... The ...

ా కొన్నారు. మండ్ర్ క్రామం కార్ కోరించారు. కోటువులు ఆ కొన్నివిందు. కో కొండు, మరికుకోకాడి - నిరిమైం తన్ తుడు కొనుట్ అన్ను కర్వాణా , తమను ప్రస్తున్నని కోక్స్ ముందు నెందుకో - మహైకే కైనార్ కే అక్టిందు మరిశ్రం కాయాని

THE THEFT IN DIE 130. 207

The standard of the main of the standard of th

EXCELSIOR LODGE NO. 258 LOUISVILLE, JEFFERSON CO., KY.

autina assa, kajamus autino <mark>od</mark> sesullo despet to autonomico depe sa Tanta della.

> MANAGERICA TOTAL TOTAL SAME MANAGERICA (MINAMATERIA) MINAMATERIA

The minimum in the state of the

Land to a Lagrantia Like State . They are the short action to the second

Charles of Legelt DR, 180. T. T. L. Legel White himself, been a wiftent to 1855. Temperature to the source of the temperature, 1860.

Heral Time of the Tolke.

Edward, Telephonical on., a.

Find at 177 Taking T., 200, 200 and 200 and 200 and 200 and 100 and 100 and 200 and 20

The factors of the control of the co

non, court tooks the sea and, chart, constitut help, and

7 (1771 | 1777 | 1271 | 1794 | 26 7 (1277 | 27) | 12771 | 26., | 7.

Library 25, 1989, months of tolers by 2001, for a consistency of the c

 A control of the property of the in the state of the contribution by the contribution of the contri and the first of the common of the common of the first part of the common of the commo and the state of t Burgarian (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) (19 and the second of the second o المراجع المراجع المراجع والمراجع والمنازي المنطوب والمناهد المحاط المراجع والمناط المراجع والمناط المراجع والمناط والمناط والمراجع والمناط وال rent de gritiske i trott for toller op de gritiske belle belle trott belle bestellt be out that the figure of our set and a subsection of the first production of the set of th our resolution of the contract of the experience with a Barbary course we have is a finite composition of the composition of the a_{ij} . In the composition a_{ij} هروي الله في المن الله الوقية في الهيد هذا المنظم وعليك المنظم na kalaban dan Maraka, malam merapatan di dibin menganjan di kemalah di kecamatan di kemalah di kecamatan di k

Sion in this own, I had the ter

Times 7000, 1000 The Police of the Color

ingtonito en periodito. Ty Enformational Association (Capitelly Rouge of the official Asympton (1777)

المراجع المساوية الم

Light At Late, not not a Secretary of the order of the state of the second Line of the se

The second was the first two seconds of the first seconds of the second second

្រុលប្រទេសស្ថិត ពោយ ប្រាស្មាន ២៦៩០០ ខែ ១៩៦០ ខែ ១៩៦០ ខែ ១៩៦០ ប្រាស់ នេះ ១០ ប្រាស់ **ខេន**្ត ពេលប្រាស់ ខេ<mark>ន្ត ពី</mark>ពីទីស្ត

which the control of the control of

with the Toke The Report of Diving the Control of Marie of Control of Lands and the Control of Cont

The companies of the co

Andrew Communication of the Co

Augustica populario est, 1988. Esta in the tolerand of the constant of the con

e de la companio del companio de la companio della companio della

There is a spice them i, lett, bused for william in the glass, lett and find the formal series are small to be a series of the still of the glass of the still of the series of the seri

Bow in Silve, wanter or, or.

The defended applied for the first of the control of the total of the control of

المراقع الم

The force of the t>0 , and t=0 . The second of the t=0 , and t=0 .

Manuschotta (Manuschitz) 2001 Manuschotta (Manuschitz) 2004

Michibal Garage and the application of the following states of the second of the secon

TWO EASTED TO THE SYNC TOT WATTOUT (TOTAL OF) IN A

The second angular stylens and the metal of the second sec

on Market de Logers (E., Le Sa, E., Loger e General Section (E.). The Section of the Section (E.). The Section of the Section (E.). The Section (E.)

The second secon

Toward Congo to 20%, The Care Common Control, Common of the Common South Common of the Care Care Common Com

The control of the co

the control of the co

The first of the form, and the first of the

Language for a left 4, the control of the form that the transformation of the control of the con

o monorales de la compositión de locales em mediantes de la compositión de la compositión de la compositión de Tompositión de la compositión del compositión de la compositión

The production of the control of the

Let 10 the be a second of the second of the

To see the control of t

and the state of the second of

in the Anton to took and the second of the s

Taum I not be interested to the following the second second to the second second to the second second to the second second to the second secon

Taut - Louge Tau Stricture in this today gode - Louis education - Louis Stricture -

TENNER CONTRACTOR TO SERVICE TO A TRACTOR OF THE SERVICE TO A TRACTOR OF THE SERVICE TO A SERVIC

and the state of t

(22) 222 (222) (2232) (2332) (

The matter of the control of the con

The state of the s

in Leading to a garalog or singly proper than help the black the for and markets, in a single through a constant

The second contracting the second contracting

This will be the transfer of the constant of t

The second second of the second secon

A second of a first second of the second of t

ر بر برای این کستان شد کا کستان شده کا کستان در در کا کا کستان در در کا کستان در در کا کستان در در کا کستان در

The part of the market on April a, the second to be a Angele 12, to be for a Large 12 and 13 and 13

o Artohar Ma, Massi, to Massimo o Ameriko Michelle Lilter est partua. Day in Minight was in 18 februari Novice o Emmassimonia on .

> PARTINI NAMED DO 200 PROFER LARIO, DE ATOM DO , MI

The first ingress of December 1. In the second to the second of the second seco

The Section of Edition The Alfaboration of the Section of the Sect

The Tuel, for Tienter and <u>lest</u> and the above tiented Satebor El, 1987.

ACCIDING DATES, NO. 100. NO.

The street in put 21, 2004. Note that Tourse the companion of the first constitution and the constitutions.

There, we can take the control of the control of govern the control, where the control of the co

CONTRACT WILLIAM TO MALE CONTRACT.

London Composition and Composition of the Composition of the

and the first of the company of the INT, will be a limited on the little control of the $\tilde{0}=(-2\pi)$, which is the $\pi_{\phi}=(-2\pi)$, which is $0<2\pi$. The $\pi_{\phi}=(-2\pi)$ is $\pi_{\phi}=(-2\pi)$, which is $\pi_{\phi}=(-2\pi)$ Two the proof of (10.72) , (-10.7) which we have the (2.7) which with (2.7)famous that the state of a supply that our state of the s in and the conservation of the second of e transmission (1990). Lie de la crista en la crista en la companya de la crista esta esta esta en la esta est and the first of the first time of the state of the first time of Salah Cata Caraba Langgaran Barangaran Barangaran Barangaran Barangaran Barangaran Barangaran Barangaran Baran . The first term of the ω_{-1} is the first Σ_{-1} . T with the committee of LaFayette Fire Company in reference to the parchase of their hall and furniture, reported that said company had made a proposition to sell their interest in said property for the sum of \$400.00. On motion the committee was instructed to accept and an object to a graph of the second control of the second contr and the second of the second o $2 + \theta + 1 + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{1}{2}$ x_{i} for x_{i} , x_{i}

The force can calculate the control of the property of the configuration, given and the control of the calculate the control of the calculate the calculate

The contract of an about the wave about the properties of a second contract of a second contract of the second con

As a stacker of this graph or up to prove a formal section of the section of the

as Table Into Chapel as His Esta.

The Boat of the Michael London of London Lon

The modern of the stock offers to the following section of the sec

and the fifty of a fitting of the fitting of the fitting of ongenications as a second of the fitting bank and fitting of the f

-- X. Lesson, madret of the grade and the control of the control

THE STATE OF TEME, A SOLUTION OF BUILDING OF THE MADE, STATESON.

FOR THE WITTEN AND A STANDARD OF THE STATES OF THE STANDARD OF THE STANDARD OF THE STANDARD.

A profit took to a a discussion does not a subject that it is

The control of the control of the constant of the control of the c

The spiral additional the pure within a property of a contact of a continuation of the continuation of the

Callerius III to a securit in a part of action seems accomment of a part of a comment of the security of a comment of a part of a comment of a comme

And the second of the second o and the state of t expenses to the control of the contr and the second of the second o ر باز کا بازی کا می**ند. کا در باز** کا در این کا در این بازی بازی بازی کا در این بازی کا در این کا در این کا در ا المراجع المراج లో అందుకు ముంచాటింది. మందు కుండుకు కుండి కార్స్ కుండి కుం

ing and the control of the control o

As it consists to setting, its To against a, about, cash made the setting of the

All the actions and ling horn algorithms, and the control of all the actions of the desired of the control of t

in 1260 ing silang bir sme is a language from 1881, Two or folders grave and design from the second silanguage silanguage

Turk transfer to the company of the wifts of a word of the treated only a wift of the following and the following the following the following and the following the follow

Law which is early for the policy of the policy of the problem of the policy of the following of the policy of the

The field of the content of an including section of the content of a property of the content of

The Painting of all the Organists of the egy, we are in the surface of the subject, which is a contract man, push down a second of a. It is subject, we see a contract of the subject of t

na 1263 - Maria Mari Maria Mar

en de la composition de la destinación de la composition de la composition de la composition de la composition Barriera de la composition della composition

in the second se

.

and the second of the second o

!

and the second of the second o

والمسادات أستم

en de la composition La composition de la La composition de la

and the second of the second o

The great for a substitution of the second s

north and state of the state of

n de la composition En la composition de la

المان المنظم المنظ

or the solid control of the two or the solid protections of the solid p

in the second of the second of

The second se

العربية والمراجعة المراجعة ال المراجعة ا

Care compared to the property of the property

under the continue of production of the continue of the contin

en de la companya de la comp normal of the second of the first of the second of the sec

endico in incluing the second of the second

in the first of the property of the second of the first o

Microsophia (Space Configuration of the Space Configuration Configuration)
 Space Configuration (Space Configuration Configuration Configuration)
 Space Configuration (Space Configuration Configuration)
 Space Configuration (Space Config

المعادلة العاد الأنسان بيسان السمومية الذات عاد التواعدة الكاراتينية الإراد المعد

and the second of the second o

. .

and the state of the second The state of the second of the

in the control of the

المُولِدُ مِنْ فِي السَّامِينِينَ مِنْ السَّامِينِينَ مِنْ السَّامِينِينَ مِنْ السَّامِينِينَ مِنْ السَّامِينِ والله في الله المنافق المنافق المنافق في المنافق المنافق المنافق المنافق المنافق المنافق المنافق المنافق المن

Figure 1. The second of \mathcal{M}_{i} , \mathcal{M}_{i} and \mathcal{M}_{i} and \mathcal{M}_{i} . The second \mathcal{M}_{i} is the second of \mathcal{M}_{i} . The second of \mathcal{M}_{i} is the second of \mathcal{M}_{i} and \mathcal{M}_{i} is the second of \mathcal{M}_{i} is the

Tollie Market in the College of the

 \mathbb{R}^{n} , which is the second constant of \mathbb{R}^{n} . The second constant is \mathbb{R}^{n}

المحالية ال

and the control of th

المراقع المراقع المراقع المستقل المستقل المراقع المرا

Surplice light purity of the property of the propert

ر المراجع المر المراجع المراجع

القراريان والفرانية المعالم والمعارض والمعارض المعارض المعارض المعارض المعارض المعارض المعارض المعارض المعارض

o de la composition Notation de la composition della composition d

المحادث المحاد المحادث المحاد

As a position to the constant of a second second second control of a second sec

o promoting and the standard page and the standard and the standard and standard an

n de la celata filo de la capitação de la grandiga de la composição de proprieda de la grandia de la grandia d and the second of the second o الرواح والمنظم المنظم المن والمنظم المنظم والمنظم المنظم الم ا من المراجع ا المراجع and the first of the control of the first of العلى المراجع and the second of the second o والرواويون والمعاهدة والمعالية الدائلات المائلات المائلات المائلات المائلات المائلات المائلات المائلات entropy of the control of the contro Note that the state of the control o

.

The solution of the continues of the solution of the continues of the solution of the solution

The left of the second of the left of the left of the second of the seco

LANGE RESERVED TO THE STATE OF THE STATE OF

n de la composition Notation de la composition della composition d

المراجع المراج

and the second of the second o

A SEC 1990 CONTROL OF THE STORY OF THE SECOND STORY OF THE SECOND

The state of the s

Charles and Langer Start of Works

The terms of promited by its A. The L. Distriction of a filter truston.

The L. Thomas for the constant of the

in Nami Venining and seminance and publicated by the March March 1997, and the March 1

TOUGHT NETERING THE CLASSIAN TO COURT OF THE STATE

This is a substitute of the state of a substitution of the substit

The serior of the model of the control of the co

Out to the control of the c

and the second of the second o

. -

The second second control of the second cont

المراجع المراج المراجع المراج

Description of Expressive August 1989 of the Control of the Contro

na de la companya de la co

en de la composition En la composition de la composition de

in the contract of the contrac

In the substitution of a substitution of a substitution of a substitution of the substitution

The second of th

المراقع المراقع المسائل المسابر المسا

THE RELATION OF THE PARTY OF TH

المنظمة المنظ

ion all to but the graph large of the control of th

The boson was a larger of the constant of the

Objective the control of the control o

المنظمية ال

The companies of the co

ా ఎక్కార్ కోట్లు కొంతానైంది. ఎక్కార్లు కేటికి కొట్టికి కోట్లు కోట్లు కూడా కోట్లు కోట్లు కోట్లు కోట్లు ఇక కోట్లు కొట్టుకోంది. కోట్లు కేర్కుడికి అనికి ఎక్కు కూడు కోట్లు కోట్లు కోట్లు కోట్లు తెక్కార్ కొట్టా-కొట్టుకు

o de la companya del companya del companya de la co

noil Indiana, night for him none national, billion nor, not

La telle, for a mount of greath in the form the light of during a company of the company of the

ے اور موجود کے انتہاں کے اور اور اور ان کے انتہاں کی انتہاں کو انتہاں کو انتہاں کو انتہاں کی انتہاں کے انتہاں اور انتہاں کی انتہاں کا انتہاں کا انتہاں کا انتہاں کی انتہاں کی انتہاں کی انتہاں کی انتہاں کی انتہاں کے انتہا

n de la completação de la procesa de la completa d Notacidade la completa de la completa del completa de la completa de la completa del completa de la completa del la completa del la completa de la completa de la completa del la completa de la completa della co

n de la composition La composition de la

n de la composition Transport

en de la composition La composition de la

andre service and the service of the

المعالم المعال المعالم المعالم

en de la companya de la co

n de Alemania (no maio de Carlos de

ا آیا در این است سرد ای سایستون با ساده در است. اوران در این استان در شده کار استان در شده کار در این استان در شده کار در این استان در این استان در این استان

المراقع في الفريد المساومين المستور و الفريد الفريد الفريد الفريد المستور و المستور و

المركز ا

المرابع المرابع المرابع المستنبية المرابع المرابع المرابع المرابع المرابع المرابع المرابع المرابع المرابع المرا المرابع المراب

of which be carried and the following to the solution of the s

ار در در در این از این از این از این از این از استفاده میشد. این از این از

which is the state of the state

المادي ا

in the property of the first property of the configuration of the c

The Brack of Administry, Extragally to the Control of the Administry of

The first section of the section of

್ಟಾರ್ಯದಲ್ಲಿ ಪ್ರತಿ ಮುಂದಿಕ ಮುಂದಿಕ ವಿಜ್ಞಾನಿಕ ಗಾಡಿ ಬೆಂಬಳು ಬರುವುದು ಕರ್ಮವಾಗಿತ್ತು. ಗ್ರಾಮಿ ಎಂಗುರಿಸಿಯುವು ರಂತಿಕಾಗಿ ವಿಜ್ಞಾನಿ ೨೩೪ಗಳ

The proof of the contract of the following decision of the contract of the

ు కుండు కారం మీడుకు మండుకు కుంటుంది. మాట్లుకు ముక్కులు కోరం కోరం కోరం కోటుకు కుంటు మేటుకు కుంటుకు కారుకుండు

on discrete information of programming the second of the s

المنظام المرازي في المؤلم المنازي المنظم المنظم المنازية المنظم المنظم المنظم المنظم المنظم المنظم المنظم المنطقة المنظم Carried La Carried Anna Carried Carrie reserve and the commentation and the comment of the comments o والمنظمة والأنفي المراجع والمنافع والمنافع والمنافع والمنافي والمنافي والمنافع والمنافع والمنافع والمنافع والمن Control to the term of the control o and the second of the second o المنظم BOUNDED THE RESIDENCE OF THE CONTROL WAS A SERVED OF THE CONTROL OF A SERVED of Tomician 1.7 (built Thomas, grown process of the say الاست. العالم المراجع التعليم المنظم المن العالمين البياس الذي المن المناطق العالم العالم المن المناطق المن ال المناطق المناط المنطقة التهاج من المناطق المناطق المناطق المناطق المناطق المنظم المنطق المنطق المنطق المنطق ال Time of the Indiana, and there is the contract of the william to be stated as I the more proceeds that a state of the control of orange extantions of the control of the first of the control of the

The property of the state of th

The control of the control of the test of the second to the second test, in the control of the control of the control of the test, in the control of the con

and the state of t

and the second of the second o

The second of th

States of the content of the property of the content of the conten والواري والمراوية والموافية المراوي والمراوية المواجعة المواجعة المراوية والمراوية والمراوية والمراوية والمراوية والمراج المستري والمراج والمراج والمراجع المراجع المراجع والمراجع Transferred to 124 constitue ay a labor or element of the The lpha The lpha 10 flux filth (5210) budform of the lpha flux for as for filth fig. and grown or mode of the production of the first order and leading through q_{0} for $(1, -q_{0})$ and $(1, -q_{0})$ and $(1, -q_{0})$ for q_{0} q_{0} q_{0} q_{0} q_{0} q_{0} والرواح المراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمستران والمسترا والمستراك والمستراك والمستراك والمستراك والمستراك Giordians of more than its court of the court is the court of the second of the court of the cou wild for the still til but widde to them it is 11 to feet for the story. The armodical control of the state of the st والأراب والمراجع والمنافي والمراجع والمنافع والمنافع والمنافع والمنافع والمنافع والمنافع والمنافع والمنافع والمنافع Define the term of the first was that the acceptance, as the sub-والرابيان المرادي والربية الكرابوك سيسان المرابو المكاليسان المكراك ورواسا فالمكالية esta la la la talta en al cuerto de la della della transferazione della collectione The Mark Control of the Control of t

official subservation of the subservation of t

المعلى العرب العرب العرب العرب العرب العرب المعالية المعالية المعالجين العرب العرب العرب العرب العرب العرب الم العرب العرب المعالجين العرب العر

CROTONA LODGE NO. 339

in value to be to the total of the figure of the following of the production of the best of the figure of the figu

The first of the second of the first of the second of the

ا من من الموقع من من من وقال ما تنظم الدار ومثلًا ما الدار الدار الدار المن الدار الدار الدار الدار الدار الدا المع الحمد المن مثل بالدار والدار الدار الدار

ا الله الله المنظمية المنظمية

المراجع والمستعم المدايد الادد فيتحكم

لأنبي والأناف والمعابية والمحتا بالمحاو المحارمهم

and the second of the second o

المراجع و المستريق المستريق المسترية المسترية المسترية المسترية المسترية المسترية المسترية المسترية المسترية ا

·• · · · · · · ·

The state of the s

The Glades Funcial Lines properties as in this cold of a cold of an expension of the cold of a c

en de la composition La composition de la La composition de la

The supplied the fluid fluid teacher for the first teacher fluid f

the contract of the court of th

Then 1956 by 1927, build the plant of the first of the second of the sec

The second of the seco

in the data for the land in the interest of a control of the land of the

Out of the configuration of the configuration.
And the configuration of the configuration of the configuration.

A Company of the c

Proceedings of the second of t

aling be a substant of the leave of agreement of the main control of the state of t

in Liberia, such an approximation and generators of annual sections of purposes and the contract of the contra

المراجع المراجع المستمال المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المستمال المراجع المستمال المراجع المستمال المراجع المستمال ال

clination of the content of the

and the second of the second o

Themself of the materials to the first of the state of the first of the state of th

The period of the control of the con

المراقع المراق

Alian Tulical magnetic to the present out the complete to the complete to the complete to the complete the co

The second of th

The state of the s

The first content of a content of the content of t

The state of the s

..

PELLVILLE SODOL NO. 357 PELLVILLE, RANCOCK CO., KY.

In the summer of 1857, a dispensation was granted to this Lodge as Sam Winsfield Lodge U. D. October 13, 1858, a Charter was franted it and W. B. Griffin named as the first Parter. The Lodge became definet October 16, 1886.

MAGRORY LOUGH NO. 558
MAGRORY, CAMPBALL CO., MY.

Hewport Loage ower her existence to a cimcumstance which, whom first developed, threatened to bring disaster to the Bratemity in this locality; but like many scening misfortenes, proved a blessing in dispairs.

During the year 1858 at a meeting in the old York Street Hall, Robert Surns Louge 165, has a dispute wrise no to the authority of the Junior Warden to confer the f. C. degree. At the meeting in succession the Paster was absent and the Senior Warden who presided in the Last refused to confer the f. C. degree on the candidate of the evening, who respon the Junior Sarden took his seat in the East and conferred to Legree.

This resulted in a great difference of opinion as to whether the Junior Tardon had pursued the proper course, and had acted within the limits of his authority. The matter finally being referred to the Grand haster of the Grand house of mentucky, who at that time was Tiro Jise, whose accision was favorable to the Junior Warden's action; but this instead of cementing the

parted forces, ha the opposite effect, later resulting in the supporters of the Junior Arden's action withdrawing from their mother Lodge and instituting the organization of this Lodge.

The first meeting was hold in Hayman's Hall, where Am. R. Smith served as first Master, Robert B. McCracken, Senior Warden, Am. R. Lunlap, Junior Warden, and under their administration the Lolge flourished to such an extent that shortly after Robert Burns Louge also came to meet in Hayman's Hall, the two Lodges using the Louge room jointly.

The result of these separate organizations had been very beneficial to the fraternity in Hewport, and is responsible for the present great strength of Hasonry there, as well as the eroction of the Hasonic Temple which the Lodge now occupies.

In this, the diffty-sixth inniversary year of the lodge, it is a matter of great satisfication that its condition is most prosperous, with the lodge ranks being steadily increased by the lacition of good material, which seems to insure the success of Newport Lodge Ro. 556 for the years yet to come.

SUGLA GROVE, EUTLER CO., KY.

Organized October 10, 1858, ha its Charter arrested August 4, 1900.

HLYWOOD LOEGE NO. 260
MLSSOCK, MCCRACKEN CO., MY.

This Looge was set to work under dispensation at 2 0'clock

P. L., on Lugust 21, 1858, with the following officers in charge:
Master, R. J. Minton, Senior Marcen, L. S. Mines, Junior Wardon,
Henry Wiley, Senior Deacon, John W. Colwell, Junior Leacon, J. J.
Kines, Secretary, .. D. rurdom, Treasurer, J. L. Dent, Tyler am
Steward, Colwell Poole. There were initiated at that time as
Entered apprentice rasons Acorge Rudolph, Elijah kudolph ene J. J.
Bumpus.

at the session of the Grand Lodge held at Lexington, Kentucky, on October 15, 1656, the Charter was granted.

The same officers as at the institution of the Lodge were installed then the Lodge received its Charter and set to work. For many years the Lodge did good work the prospered, but for the last ten years but little work has been done, and the Lodge has been and it not not represent, the membership being only thirteen. The Lodge is in rented quarters and changed its place of meeting in 1887, 1889 and 1897.

Host of the records of this Lodge have been lost.

BALTIMORE LODGE NO. 361 BUGG, HICKELN CO., KY.

Chartered October 15, 1858, with its meeting place at Baltimore. In 1876 the Louge was moved to pleasant Valley Church,
Mickman County, but in 1901 moved again to Baltimore.
Reports thirty-two members.

FISKBURG, KLHTON CO., MY.

Chartered October 20, 1859. Reports fifty-two members.

FOLAR STAR LODGE NO. 365 VANCABURG, LEWIS CO., KY.

Chartered October 20, 1859. Reports ninety-three members.

NO. 364

No Charter of this number ever issued.

PYTHACORAS LODG NO. 365 GOSHEN, OLDHAM CO., KY.

Chartered October 20, 1850, became doffunct July 10, 1886.

PLEASANT GROVE LODGE NO. 366 CROSSLAND, CALLOWAY CO., KY.

Chartered October 29, 1859, became defunct February 5, 1685. Its properties were of terwards given to Crossland Lodge No. 642, which was organized in the sime jurisdiction in 1889.

ARA LOIGE NO. 367
MILLERSTOWN, GRAYSON CO., KY.

Chartered October 20, 1859. Reports for ty-one members.

BIBB LODGE NO. 268 NILLER'S CREAK, ESTILL CO., MY.

This Loage is situated at Miller's Creek, Estill County, Ky., about five miles East of Irvine, Ky., the county seat of Estill County.

The Longe was granted a dispensation Lugust 27, 105/, and was set to work a few days the reafter when the following officers were installed, to-wit: S. F. Bown In, Paster, R. L. Sale, Senior Jarden, J. O. Grubbs, Junior Jarden, T. C. Reed, Secretary, Green B. Kelly, Treasurer, J. P. Barris, Senior Descon, Jesse Adams, Junior Beacon, and Cliver Crawford, Steward and Tyler.

All of these have long since passed to their reward.

Lt too time Bibb Lodge was granted a dispensation Irvine Lodge No. 127 was the only Masonic Lodge in Estill County.

Eibb Lodge No. Z68 % s not granted a Charter until October 21, 185%, which was signed by h. L. silson, dr no Paster, hewis Landrum, Deputy Grane Lacter, h. J. Hinton, Grane Semior Carden, Hiram Bassett, Or no Junior Carden, J. h. McCorkle, Grane Secretary. The first of ficers of Bibb under its Charter were, Robert . Sale, Master, J. O. Grubbs, Semior Carden and John 1. Harris, Junior Warden. Under the instruction and influence of these men the Locks are westeng and many bright Masons were produced.

The organization of Stafford Lodge, which is six alles eletant, did much to restrict the growth of this Lodge.

In 1897 the founding of Thucker Lodge No. 710, which is seven miles owny, further reduced this Lodge's field of activity.

The Charter dembers of Bibb Lodes were, Green 3. Helly, S. F. Bown n, John O. Grubbs, John J. Harris, Hereus Thomas, H. V. Harris, American Sale, William Vaughn, Oliver Crawford and Arvin McMonesill.

The Louise is out of debt and owns the building in which its meetings are held.

HINTON LODGL RO. Zos MAYFIELD, BRIVES CO., MY.

hinton Lodge was set to work under dispensation in the spring of 1860, at Spencer's Chapel, M. E. Church, in Graves County. October 16, 1860, the Lodge was granted a Charter and the place of meeting was moved to Mayfield. December 11, 1898 the Lodge Charter and properties were destroyed by fire - and as the Secretary of the Lodge expresses it- "worked under letter until granted a new Charter", which was done October 19, 1880.

ASPILAND LODGE NO. 370 MT. VERNOM, ROCAGASTLE GO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1860, and became defunct in 1886. In 1869 the Grand Jodged turned its properties over to Ashlam Lodge 640, which was in 1869 organized in this jurisdiction.

MIN HILL BONGS NO. SVI MIN ZION, CRITTENDEN CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1860, became defunct October 24, 1889.

Charter restored October 2, 1890. Reports then ty-sight members.

HICO LODGE NO. 572 HICO, CLACCAY CO., MY.

Chartered October 18, 1860, became defunct, October 20, 1897.

TROWELL LODGE TO. 373 SUILLAR SHADM, RETCALME CO., MY.

Trowel Longe No. 575 F. & ... N., of Let culfe County, Kentucky, was organized under dispensation at ar. Loriah Church on the Elst.. day of June 1880. The Longe worked under dispensation until the 18th., cay of Jetober, 1860, when a Charter was granted by the Grine Lodge.

The wooms norked in the hell at hir horizh Church until the ath., and of October, 1873, when moved to the new hell at Summer Shade, and hell the mirst meeting in the new hell on the first asy of Movember, 1873.

AUBURN LODGE NO. 374
AUBURN, LOGAN COUNTY, KY.

Woodville (now Auburn) Lodge, No. 374, Auburn Logan County, Ky., was organized under dispensation some time during the year 1851. Unforturately the minutes of this Lodge, from the time of its organization until the year 1881, have been lost, and as nearly all the Charter members are now dead, it is, therefore, impossible to give anything like an accurate or extensive history of it.

From an old secretary's book, it is found that woodville Lodge collected dues from eight members, the amount of dues paid by each member at that time being one dollar. This collection of dues was on the 27th., of December, 1859, while the Lodge was under dispensation.

During the time this Lodge was working under dispensation it received from initiation, passing and raising about eighteen or twenty members.

On the 18th., day of October, 1860 a Charter was granted to Woodville Lodge Fo. 374 in the town of Woodville, now Ruburn, Kentucky, with George Milliken as first Master, John H. Wood, Senior Warden, James M. Matlock, Junior Warden.

October 18, 1865, the name of the Lodge was changed from Woodville Lodge, Woodville, Ky., to Luburn Lodge, Auburn, Ky., to accord with the changed name of the town.

had its ebbs and flows of membership, and at times has been perilously near the point of having to surrender her Charter, but fortunately there were always a few faithful ones on her roster to enable her to tide over the critical periods and get a new lease of life.

While Auburn has had thrifty larges of other orders, that flourished for a few years, and passed out of existence, locally, the Masons of the town and community have kept the fire burning on their alter, even though at times it smoldered.

Of late years auburn Lodge has had a steady and healthful growth, and has been taking in some as good young blood as could be found on the habitable globe. Affiliating with the Lodge

are some of the worthies who were members in its early days, seasoned coldiers of the Craft, who still display enthusiasm and loyalty
for the order that should put some of the younger brethren to
shame.

Auburn Bodge, 374, is strong, bouyant and hopeful, with brave and worthy sons who kneel about her alter and are loyal to her every interest.

THOMAS C. CACIL LODGE NO. 575 PIKEVILLE, PIKE CO., KY.

Thomas C. Cecil Lodge No. 375, was chartered October 16, 1860, by Grand Master H. T. Wilson. John M. Rice was the first Master, John W. Mamert, the first Senior Warden, and Lewis C. Dils, the first Junior Warden.

The minutes prior to the 15th., day of December, 1861, have been cut from the book. On the margin of the leaves cut, the dates that remain show some of the minutes to have been as early as 1855, while the first few leaves cut have incomplete dates. The first minutes preserved, show Thomas C. Cecil the only member not an officer present. This extract is from these minutes:

"On motion of Bro. John W. amment the reading of the records of the previous meeting were dispensed the same having been destroyed."

The second record of minutes is duted February 7, 1802, when the petitions of James namilton, Hibbart Williamson, Solomon H. Damron and R. T. Burns were received."

The next meeting was a call communication February 26, 1862, to attend the funeral of J. White Reynolds. This meeting was

evicently during an encampment of the Union forces at Fikeville as indicated by these brethren present: C. F. Snodgrass, Co. I 40th., Reg. O. V. U. S. ., James H. Hayworth, Co. B 40th., Reg. O. V. U. S. A., both of H.rveysburg Lodge Fo. 31£; ... Robins Sutler, 22nd Ky. Reg., Trowell Lodge Fo. 132, Jackson, O. 1); Isaiah Fenfrock, Band 40th Ohio, Versailles Lodge Fo. 290; Enos Hoover, Band 40th Ohio Versailles Lodge No. 290; O. C. Bowles 40th Reg. O., Madison Lodge No. 221; 3. 3. Allen, 40th O., Dlive Branch Lodge 241; H. E. HeClure and A. .. Knupp, both of 40th O., and Union City Lodge No. 270; F. S.(?) Reed 1st O., Cavulry Stanton Mansas Fo. 4; C. 3. Mawa, 42nd O., Sulivan O. No. 313; Richard B. David, 42nd O. Columbians No. 134; J. A. Manper, 40th O Harmon No. 129; F. McGinnis, 40th O., Versailles No. 290; Chas. Nevens, 22nd Ly., Greenup L. No. 89; D. F. Stepherson, Surgeon 22nd., Ky., Joone City, My and Ford Sand 42nd Ohio.

The Loops can claim among its members many who have achieved success. It has had its noted lawyers; as burns, Connolly, Auxier, and Parsons; its noted doctors, at Gray, Frightsnan, Stallard and Thompson; its civic officials, its master machanics, and in every line of business hen too many to list in this brief account. One has but to glance at the Grand Lodge's report to find among its present two bundred, men of the highest worth who are zeal-ously laboring that the great principles of our order may be realized in the hart and life of our citizenship.

The Lodge building is situated on Front street in the town of Fikeville. Here, many of the manor born, as well as many who came to this growing section from a distance find on the Friday

night before each full moon, a sacred retreat from the turmoils of a strenuous life, and get that fellow feeling which after all makes life worth while. The hall has lately been enlarged and improved until it is now one of the nost beautiful and commodious hodge rooms in the State.

F. A. Moore, a member of this Lodge died in 1907 in the Philippine Islands and his dead body was shipped home for burial by the Basonic Board of Relief of the Philippines. This exhibition of fraternal spirit beyond the Pacific most strongly impressed the members of this Lodge with the truth of the statement that Hasonry is a world wide and not a local institution.

FALL CITY LONGE NO. 576
LOUISVILLE, JEFFERSON COUNTY, MY.

Chartered October 18, 1860. This Lodge has a membership of nearly four hundred.

In 1907, when the city government of Louisville was a reprocent to the Commonwellth, Governor Beckham chose two men from this Loage to bring order out of worse than Chaos. Judge Admiolph Blain whom he appointed Judge of the City Court, and Robert A. Bingham as Layor. They cleared up the city and demonstrated the fact that men who are in earnest can make a city clean and keep it clean. They aid it.

EAIJAH UPTON LODGE NO. 377 GREEN CASTLE, WARREN CO..KY. 2, 1881. July 10, 1886, it surremered to the inevitable amsurremered its Chrter.

HELOM LODGE NO. 378

JEFFERSON CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1860, was burned in 1861. Surrendered its Charter Pebruary 23, 1886.

MONSERRAT LODGE NO. 379
BRUSHY FORK CHURCH, DAVIESS CO., KY.

Chartered October 16, 1860, at Cedur Grove, Helen County, Mentucky. October 23, 1874, moved to Brushy Fork Church, Daviess County.

REMIANCE LODGE NO. 380 KEYSBURG, LOCAN COUNTY, KY.

Charte red October 18, 1860, became defunct October, 1885.

PAINTSVILLE, JOHNSON CO., KY.

Chartered October 16, 1860. Reports a membership of one hundred and twenty.

FARMINGTON LODGE NO. 382
FARMINGTON, GRAVES COUNTY, KY.

Chartered October 18, 1860. The Charter was destroyed or lost

June 27, 1865, and a new one in lieu the reof issued October 18, 1865. All of the earlier records of this Lodge have been allowed to become lost.

Thomas L. Smith, the last survivor among the Charter members died October 21, 1911.

The Bodge has a present membership of fifty, owns a building in the center of the public square in which its meetings are held. Has an average attendance of a cost eighteen, and there are five men in the Louge who can correctly confer all the degrees of ancient Craft Masonry.

CANNONSBURG, BOYD COUNTY, KY.

Lodge dertered October 18, 1860. Owned its Ladge quarters over a church until 1890, when it moved into rented house. The Lodge became strained in its finances. The members began taking out denits, interest lagged, the burdon of debt increased and the Charter was surrendered in 1915.

OLIVE BRANCH LODGE TO. 384
FALLS OF ROUGE, GRAYSOF CO., MY.

Chartered October 25, 1861, became defunct July 10, 1886.

CAIRO LODGE NO. 385 CAIRO, MENDARSON CO., AY.

Chartered October 25, 1861. Reports thirty-one members.

FOR LODGE NO. 386

DOVER. MASON CO., KY.

Under dispensation from May 29, 1860, to October 26, 1861. It this time Charter was obtained with ten mombers. First officers, F. J. Long, Master, C. J. Fox, Senior Warden, J. McDonald, Junior Warden. Life membership certificate in the Widowns and Orphans Home was issued on October 18, 1870, and arain, October 19, 1881.

So named for Arthur Pox, a compatriot of Simon Monton, and whose life size oil portrait and hard pointed satin apron are preserved by the Loage. First meetings were held in the school building, on the cost of the paraphenalis, (\$1.25.00) was secured by note to the first laster, F. w. Long.

The Lodge now owns suilding, nicely furnished - nice bank balance, forty active members - work almost every meeting night and Harmony and Emulation prevail. J. J. Hallillan was the efficient secretary for fourteen years.

The Charter members were: F. J. Long, Haster, C. J. Fox, Senior Warden, James meDonald, Junior Larden, Chris Hiles, Treas- were, Arthur Fox, Tecretary, Thomas L. Curran, Senior Leacon, James McMillan, Junior Deacon, Loraham Vesch, Steward and Tyler, Silas M. Johnson, James Henry Anderson.

CARRSVILLE LODGE NO. 387
CHRRSVILLE, LIVINGSTON CO., MY.

Chartered October 25, 1861. Defunct October 18, 1888.

RIO VERDE LODGE NO. 586 GILEED CHURCH, BIRT CO., MY.

Chartered October 22, 1862. Charter arrested 1878. Restored 1879, became defunct October 20, 1880.

JOHN J. DEVIESS LODGE FO. 389
MASOUVILLE, PRVIESS GO., MY.

Join J. Daviess Locke To. 389 was or manized in 1861 with C. T. Noel, Fey ton Moberly, C. D. Jeckson, W. H. Congers, B. T. Dawson, Capt. N. J. Taylor and John W. Cashbrook, as Charter mentabers. Feyton Moberly was first Master. The Lodge has met regularly ever since its organization. Feace and harmony have always prevailed and much good work his been done. The Lodge at this time is growing and is now stronger than for many years. But one Charter member survives - B. T. Dawson. O. I. Mazelrig, Master, and Linkus Jackson, Secretary.

BORDLEY, UNION CO., AY.

Chartered October 21, 1863. Report Wirty-six mambers.

GASPER, LOGAN CO., KY.

Gasper River Loage To. 391, or Gasper, Logan County, Rentucky, chartered by The Franci Loage of Lontucky on the 21st., asy of

October 1808, with the following officers in charge, C. Butcherson, Master, William Dinwiddie, Senior Varden, and T. E. S. Proctor, Junior Warden.

The Lodge owns a spacious hull consisting of the entire upper floor over Gasper River Seminary, situated near Gasper River in a beautiful shang grove.

The Lodge is in a progressive committion both financially and fraternally and looks to the future confident of success.

MINTONVILLE LODGL NO. 392 LINTONVILLE, CASEY CO., AY.

Organized October 11, 1860, by McDowell Fogle, rroxy of the Grand Master. Officers installed were: O. Denham, Master, J. J. Wesley, "cnior Marden, J. R. Blevins, Junior Marden, L. T. Carson, Secretary, J. Stewart, Treasurer, D. L. Riggins, Senior Deacon, Henry Davenport, Junior Deacon, M. G. McClure, Steward and Tyler.

The Lodge was under dispensation from October 11, 1860, until October 21, 1863, when a Charter was granted.

Grand Haster Louis Lindrum visited this wodge June 8, 1861, for work on that date, by which J. T. Tesley was raised and 0. Osborne was initiated, passed and raised, that the Lodge might have complete instruction in the work of the blue lodge degrees - on the following day Grand Master Landrum lectured on the Haster's degree.

This Loage, being organized at the Deginning of the Civil

Mar, continued through what period, seldom missing a monthly meeting an very frequently had work in all the degrees.

The first Masonic Hall of this Lodge was over the Christian church at Mintonville, My., but that becoming delapidated, was abundoned by both the church and lodge, when the lodge secured the upper room of Tyler Jasper's store for a hall in the year 1901, but later secured the right and built an adequate hall over the L. Church of Mintonville, in the year 1904.

The Lodge has, to the limit of its ability, contributed freely to the relief of people in digtress, and has secured benefits for three wards in the Masonic Widows and Orphans Fome of Louisville, Ky.

WEST MCCRACKEN LODGE NO. 393 WEST MCCRACKEN, MCCRACKEN CO., MY.

Charterea October 21, 1863, became defunct 1879.

DEVER LODGE NO. 594
ROLLING FORK LEETING HOUSE, CASEY CO., KY.

Chartered October 21, 1803. Surrendered July 10, 1886.

HIRAH BASSETT LODGE NO. 395 LHWISBURG, HASON GO., RY.

Chartered October 19, 1864, became defunct Harch IV, 1905. The Loane is dead but the man for whom it was named still lives in the memory of Mantucky Hasons and will forever be there enshrined.

DAMVILLE BOYER CO., LY.

Chartered October 19, 1864. October 19, 1871, it surrendered its separate Charter and consolidated with Franklin Lodge No. 28 in the same jurisdiction.

ASPEN GROVE LOIGE NO.397
PHACE GROVE, PENDERTON CO., EY.

Aspen Grove Lodge No. 597, was granted dispensation October 19, 1864; was granted Charter 1868. Rented an upstairs room in the Aspen Grove Saminary and held its meetings there until the Lodge hall was built in 1872. The building was dedicated by Grand Haster Charles Eginton.

Solomon G. Ware, deceased, father of Past Grand Haster Orie S. Ware, was made a Mason in this Lodge.

for Hasomy and their zeul me fidelity for their wage held the organization together and tided it over the darkest days in its his tory. In recognition of these services, and the love and somi-ration in which they were held by the younger brethren, the Hodge passed a resolution a few years ago, giving them all the rights, and privileges of the wodge, and relinquished their dues so long as they should live.

DICK BERNES LODGE NO.398 CAVE SPRING, CHRISTIAN CO., MY.

The caren tree. 14 1804, he came defunct getoper ly, 1893.

BAMCH CROVE BODGE NO. 399 BLECH GROVE CHURCH, GREEN CO., MY.

Chartered October 18, 1863. Loage property and Charter burned 1881. New Charter is sued October 20, 1801.

LOUISVILL LODGL MO.400

والرائد وواورا كالمحاصلات معكان ومتاث المعتقالات

A Second Community of the community of t

The state of the s

en en la companya de la companya del companya de la companya del companya de la c

and the first time of the state of the state

em in various de la companya de la La persona de la companya de la comp en de la composition La composition de la ₹250 to the contractor of th kan kan na dina naka di kacamatan kalangan kan dina hara kan na dina kana kan na kana kan na kana na kana na b the control of the trade of the control of the control of the Albahan territorial territorials. and the control of th ر المعلق الم والمعلق والمعلق المعلق الم Day You will be the first the care of the property of the first the first party of the و کے بیمان کو جاتا ہے کہ کا ان کی کا ان کی ان ان ان کی ان کی ان کی کی ان کی کو بھی ان کی کی ان کی کی گرفت گیا and the state of randa arang menganggan penganggan penganggan penganggan penganggan penganggan penganggan penganggan beranggan Penganggan penganggan penganggan penganggan penganggan penganggan penganggan penganggan penganggan penganggan

 $(x,y) = (x^2 + y^2 + y^2) + (y^2 + y^2 +$

The state of the s

en in the fighting of the figure energy and an energy of the might be a single of the single of the

The provided of the provided of the control of the

2. If the general of the Law Countries is lower than a countries of a countries of a countries of the countries.

Two for the term of the residence of the form of the form the material form, and the form of the form of the form, and the form of the for

The constitution of the state of the state of the constitution of the state of the

The confidence of the control of the

The state of the second of the

The same of the control of the contr

"silk stocking" and a second of the second o

. . . .

The second of th

endrough out to be a first of the form, and the second of the contract of the and the second of the control of the Marketing and the first constitution of the difference of the $(\omega^* \Delta_{\sigma})_{\sigma} \omega_{\sigma} = (\omega_{\sigma}^* \Delta_{\sigma})_{\sigma} \otimes (\omega_{\sigma}^* \Delta_{\sigma})_{\sigma$ and something the exact coupy with the particular and the figure of the court to the and a great with the first the contract of the the which has been also that in the second of the second of the first terms of the second of the second of the and the figure of the group of the contract of the first of the control of the cont and some of the control of the contr

en de la companya de la comp A way is taken a sound with a sound and the way of the sound of the so en de la composition Notation de la composition de la compo to builtatu tik bili kati lik tili bulka tili bulka kati i jiyake ili lili libi. Hi to protect the control of the contro

The state of the s

ndunus, ir minimala meneralah bermulah meneralah bermulah bermulah bermulah bermulah bermulah bermulah bermulah Bilanggan permulah bermulah b

·...

.

.

-

closely together the men of its membership who live in widely separated parts on a great on busy city.

BRIGHTS BURG HOLDE FO. 401
BLEFOR, ELESHAEL CO., KY.

briensburg Lodge Ho. 401, was granted a Chirton on October 18, 1865, and the records only show the following as its first officers: Allison ... Thomas, Master, John R. Wilson, Senior Winden, and S. ... whitnel, Junior Warden. The Lodge rinst ment and was set to work in the second story of the village school building at which place it has continued to neet to the present time, the Lodge having seen the owner of the building and lot for many years.

The woode heats regularly on Saturday aftermoon on or before the full moon in each month and has never had any other time of heating. The Chirter numbers were: Allison J. Thomas, John L. Ailson, John J. Mitnel, John Brien, Jam Graham, Ben F. Thomas, Rufus M. Thomas, Herodith C. Archer, Ambrose J. Buford, Alijah Bowernan, C. Yancey Sailey, James - Chandler, John F. Deepwest, Bluford Lees, John M. Byke, W. J. Dycus, Tilson Astes, Harvey Thowars, T. T. Grubbs, Joseph G. Howard, John J. Howard, M. B. G. kinsolving, Elisha D. Butger, Fink Mckinney, Calvin McGee, Wash houndtree, Felix Statun, ... B. Walters, Rabe Myatt, Elisha Buter.

membership fell to eight, but after a short time it took on new life and has had a slow but continued growth up to the present time, and now has a membership of twenty-eight. It does not have among its membership any of the charter members, but has one member, George W. Slaughter, who has been a Mason fifty years.

while the Loage has never had a Grand Loage officer or a member prominent in state affairs, its membership has embraced some of the most prominent citizens and officials of the county. Its aim has ever been the advancement of Masonry and the betterment of the community in which it is Located, and it has been the means of much good among its members and among the people of the county. It is the oldest Loage in Marshall County.

SHEARER LODGE NO. 402 BRIDGEPORT, FRANKLIN CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1865. May 15, 1880, burned. July 10. 1886 became defunct.

PLEASANT VALLEY LODGE NO. 403
PLEASANT VALLEY CHURCH, HENDARSON CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1965, became defunct October 14, 1895.

UNION GROVE BODGE NO. 404
UNION GROVE CHURCH, WARREN CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1865. Moved to Rockfield, Warren County, in 1868, became defunct October 9, 1891.

SULLIVAN HODGE NO. 405 COMIN'S CROSS ROADS, TODD CO., MY.

Chartered October 18, 1865. Moved to Guthrie in 1872, became defunct October 1887.

STEPHENSFORT LODGE NO. 406 STEPHENSPORT, BRECKINRIDGE CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1865. Reports thirty members.

EAST McCRACKIN LODGE NO. 407
LEBANON CHURCH, McCRACKEN CO., KY.

Chartered October 17, 1866, became defunct October 19, 1892.

LYNNVILLE, GRAVES CO., MY.

Chartered October 17, 1060, became defunct October 18, 1886.

M. J. WILLIAMS LODGE NO. 409
NEW LIBERTY, OWEN CO., KY.

Chartered October 17, 1866, became defunct October 3, 1890.

FLEASUREVILLE LODGE NO. 410 NORTH PLHASUREVILLE, HENRY CO., KY.

Pleasureville Lodge, U. D., was granted dispensation to hold meetings at North cleasureville, Ky., and was set to work by M. J. Williams, Grand Master and J. M. McCorkle, Grand Secretary, on the 23rd., day of May 1866. The Lodge was instituted June 16, 1866, by Dr. D. H. Porter, Grand Haster, by proxy. Officers appointed to perform the deremonies of inauguration were as follows; D. N. Porter, Gram Haster, by Froxy; W. F. Beard, Senior Jarden; J. F. Reese, Junior Jarden; J. H. Clubb, Grand Breasurer, R. T. Oliver, Grand Secretary; W. B. Wilson, Grand Senior Deacon; Sales Brannaman, Grand Junior Deacon; Thomas C. Ireland, Grand Tyler, J. J. Reese, Grand Harshall. In addition to the above mentioned of ficers the following Master Masons were present: John L. Hill, John I. Clarke, G. H. Hill, P. H. List, Im. Shivel, Joe T. Hiles, Newto J. Moore, John D. Gardner, James Adams, R. M. Smith, J. T. Ladd, Wm. Magrader, Wm. Maddox, Ben J. Williams, W. .. Clubb and We A. Woodfield, of L. P. Reese Lodge.

After the officers were appointed and the visiting brothers were counted the Loage then formed in procession and marched to the Church where Dr. Porter delivered an impressive lecture to the Craft and all who were present. After the lecture the Masons returned to the hall where the following officers were elected: John L. Hill, Master, James T. Miles, Senior Marden, Spencer Claxon, Junior Warden, John S. Clarke, Treasurer, P. H. List, Becretary, George M. Hill, Senior Deacon, N. J. Moore, Junior Deacon, T. O. Ireland, Tyler, Pro Tem.

Pleasureville Lodge met in its first regular communication
June 25, 1866, and received three petitions for initiation and two
by demit. The Lodge continued to work under dispensation until
October 17, 1866, and on this date was given a Charter and the
mame "Pleasureville Lodge No. 410. The Lodge continued to work
very successfully for a good long time, but owing to some losses
and other things got in bad shape and August 26, 1893, had to
surremer her Charter to the Gram Lodge, but this being very
unsatisfactory to the members who loved Hasonry, a new interest
was taken and they were re-organized December 27, 1894, and met
in call meeting at wm. Evans' little of ficers were elected:
Wm. Shivel, Master, Jerre Knight, Senior Warden, R. J. Underwood,
Junior warden, A. M. Edwards, Secretary, S. W. Mays, Treasurer,
Wm. Evans, Tyler.

Since this time the Loage has been very prosperous, having grown from nine Charter members until it now has fifty-seven members in good condition and all of the fifty-seven are mon who appreciate the order and are trying to make the Loage worthy of its profession.

Pleasureville Loage has a furnished room at the Masonic Widows and Orphans Home, and has one widow there, Mrs. Sarah Claxton.

EAST OWEN LODGE NO. 411 LUBBY'S MILLS, OWEN CO., KY.

Chartered October 17, 1866. The Charter having been destroyed by accident a new one was issued October 19, 1870. The Lodge

became cofunct October 18, 1901.

CUBA LOIGE NO. 412 CUBA, GRIVES CO., XY.

Chartered October 17, 1866, became defunct July 31, 1885.

CUMBERSHID LODGE NO. 413
BURKESVILLE, CULBERSHID CO., KY.

Chartered October 17, 1866. Reports ninety-seven members.

F. F. REESE LODGL NO. 414
FRANKLINTON, HANRY CO., MY.

Charteren October 18, 1866, surrendered its Charter Harch, 1887.

MUHLENBURG LODGE NO. 415
SOUTH CARROLLTON, MUHLENBURG CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866, became defunct July 11, 1898.

LONG VIEW LODGE MO. 416
LONG VIEW, CHRISTIAN CO., MY.

Long View Lodge No. 416, was organized October 18, 1866, and became defunct May 14, 1904.

This Lodge gave to Kentucky one of its most distinguished citizens, and to the institution of Freemasonry one of the most

illustrious Grand Hesters of the Grand Lodge of Mentucky - James A. Mckenzie.

James A. McKenzie graduated from Center College, at Lauville, kentucky, with the class of 1857, the largest ever graduated from that Institution.

As the Representative of his district in the National Congress he introduced and secured the passage of the bill putting quinine upon the free list, which resulted in reducing the price of that drug to the consumer from \$5.00 and ounce to 50 cents, and ever after caused the author of this law to be known throughout the State and Mation as "quinine Jim McKenzie."

As a delegate to the Mational Convention at Chicago which nominated Grover Cleveland for the Presidency of the United States, he made the speech seconding the nomination of his first cousin A. J. Stevenson for the Vice Presidency, in what was at the time declared to be the handsomest cration delivered in that convention, and which was greeted with a thundering applause accorded to no other speaker there.

He was a great orator, a finished scholar, a pure patriot.

His last public service to his country was that of United States

Minister to Peru. He was Franc Haster of the Franc Houge of

Kentucky 1891-92. On June 25, 1904 he departed this life, holding

the love, respect and admiration of all who had ever come in personal contact with him.

THREE SPRINGS LODGE NO. 417
THREE SPRINGS, BARREN CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1666. The Lodge meetings were held over the church in the woods about four hundred yards distant from the store.

About 1671, a man named Jim Smith who was on unfriendly terms with Julius R. Curl, the Master of this Modge, rode up to the Lodge room when the Craft were assembled for a meeting and called Curl to him - then he arewered Smith presented his rifle - but Curl drew his pistol and shot him dead before he could fire. The case never went to a jury. The Loage was not opened that day. The Loage became defunct July 10, 1886.

CAVE CITY LODGE NO. 418
CAVE CITY, BARREN COUNTY, KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866. The Lodge was burned in January 1870. October 19, 1870 a new Charter was issued in lieu of the one destroyed by fire. In 1888 its Charter and properties were again burned and the Lodge became defunct.

TAMPICO LODGO NO. 419 CAND VALUSY, ADAIR CO., KY.

Charter was granted to Tampico Loage, No. 419, on the 18th., day of October, 1866, signed by U. J. "illiams, Grand Haster, I. T. Martin, Deputy Grand Haster, Charles Eiginton, Senior Grand Warden,

E. E. Pitch, Junior Grand Jarden, and I. H. S. McCorkle, Grand Secretary.

The Charter named H. Allen, first Master, George Ewing, Senior darden, and J. A. Benard, Junior Jarden.

The Lodge was organized under dispensation on the 7th., day of April, 1866, with the following brethren in charge: D. B. Moore, Master, R. E. Geeter, Senior Marden, O. F. Marshall, Junior Warden, J. M. Allen, Secretary, John A. Johnston, Treasurer, R. T. Hodges, Senior Deacon, John M. Fawlkner, Junior Deacon, and A. Lindsey, Steward and Tyler. The following brethren were elected and imstalled to take the different stations in said Lodge on that day: J. M. Allen, Master, George Ewing, Senior Marden, M. M. Benard, Junior Marden, G. C. Cundiff, Secretary, J. Ailshire, Treasurer, John M. Faulkner, Senior Deacon, John ... Johnston, Junior Deacon, and ... Lindsay, Steward and Tyler.

By dispersation of Grand Haster James Garnett this modge was authorized to change its meeting place from Tampico, Taylor County, to Cane Valley, Adair County, and the same was approved by the Grand Locge on the 17th., day of October, 1906.

John A. Johnston, who now lives at Tampico, Kentucky, and whose hair shows the frost of many years, is the only Charter member who survives.

BEAVER DAM LODGE NO. 420
BEAVER DAM, OHIO CO., KY.

Prior to October, 1866, dispensation was granted to Cromwell Lodge at Cromwell, Kentucky, and Charter granted to Cromwell Lodge No. 420 October 18, 1866. October 21, 1896, the name of the

Lodge was changed and the Lodge moved to Beaver Dam, nine miles away.

The meetings were at first held in a room, ten by twelve feet, over a store, but the Craft were soon in a house of their own erected at a cost of \$3,000, which was soon after burned down. Another house was built and this swept away by a tornado, but the men of this Lodge were not the kind to succumb to discouragement; they were men born and raised in sight of the old beavers dam, and they set to "work like beavers" and so on had another home of their own. The Lodge has a membership of seventy-two, out of debt and doing fine work.

CONSCLATION LODGE NO. 421 ERA, CHRISTIAN CO., MY.

The Obserter to Consolation Lodge No. 421, F. & /. N., was granted October 18, 1866. The Charter numbers were Dr. J. L. McCord, Master, P. F. Rogers, Senior Marden, Samuel Doss, Junior Marden. About the time of the organization of the Lodge there was a church house erected which was maked Consolation. The little band of Hasons took advantage of the opportunity and built a hall over the church house which was used until the year 1903, at that time the house becoming old and dilapidated and the membership having run down to eleven, and the church having discontinued holding services in the house, the Lodge moved to a small village called Era, about one and a half miles South of the old church.

Meetings at Era were held in the parlor of A. J. Fuller for

twelve months until a new hall was built. Eaving B. F. Fuller as their leader and Haster at that time, and he being a carpenter and ready and willing to work, the Lodge was soon put under its own roof. The building, worth about \$700.00, is owned by the Lodge free of debt.

None of the members of Consolation Lodge has held any high official positions, but quite a number are leaders in Hasonry in the communities where they are known.

B. F. Fuller was made a Lason in L. L. Cox Lodge No. 327, but in 1892 moved his membership to Consolation. He has served as Master of this Lodge twelve times in the last twenty years. He was the leader in building the new hall and deserves great credit for his zeal and energy in making the Lodge what it is today.

HZBBARDSVILLE LODGE NO. 422 HZBBARDSVILLE, HENDERSON CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866, became defunct July 10, 1886.

MASON CREEK LODGE NO. 423 BEACH GROVE, McLEAN COUNTY.KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866, at Pasons Creek. Burned January 15, 1867. Ner Charter granted October 24, 1867. In 1869 moved to Beech Grove. The Lodge owns the building in which its meetings are held.

CLSHY LODGE NO. 424 PHIL. CASEY CO., KY.

Casey Loage began under a dispensation granted October 8, 1891. The nine men who organized am started the work were, in the main, former members of old Casey Loage No. 424, which was chartered October 18, 1866, and which surrendered its Charter and became officially dead July 10, 1886.

of the nine who organized what is now Casey Lodge No. 424 only one Charter member is still affiliated with the Lodge. One was suspended, three have demitted, and four have gone to join the Celestial Lodge on High.

The first meeting U. D., was held Hovember 2, 1891, and since that date there has been admitted to membership by initiation or by petition and denit, eighty-one.

This Lowne began work under dispensation in a rented hall over a store one mile East of Phil, Ky., but soon built a hall over a church a mile North of Phil, and began holding its meetings in the new hall in 1892. The Locge is out of debt, the hall and furniture are kept insured, and the building kept painted and in good repair.

Farmony has prevailed throughout the life of the Rodge as evidenced by the fact that charges have mover been preferred except for non-payment of dues and only seven cases of that in twenty-three years.

During its existence this Lodge has elected twelve of its members as Master. Of these Past Masters four are dead, two have demitted.

BOONEVILLE LODGE NO. 425
BOONEVILLE, OWSLEY CO., MY.

Chartered October 18, 1866. Reports twenty-five members.

CURDSVILLE, DAVILLS CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1865, moved to Union Grove October, 1874, became confunct October 18, 1886.

MARSHALL LODGE NO. 427
PORT HOYAL, HANRY CO., MY.

Granten dispensation es Port Royal Lodge, chartered October 18, 1866, as Larshall Lodge No. 427, became defunct October 3,1890.

CURDSVILLE LODGE NO. 428
CURDSVILLE, MERCER CO., KY.

Chartered October, 1866, became defunct October 19, 1868.

CHAYVILLAGE, SHEEBY CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866, became defunct October 22, 1884.

T. N. NASH LODGE NO. 430 GRAVEL SWITCH, MARION CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866, at Station Point, Boyle County,

moved to Gravel Switch June 5, 1907.

MONTICELLO LODGE NO. 431
HONTIGELLO, MKYNE CO., MY.

Chartered October 18, 1866. Old Charter destroyed and now one is sued October 21, 1869.

CRAB ORCHARD LODGE NO. 432 CRAB ORCHARD, LINCOLN CO., NY.

Charter granted October 18, 1866, signed by M. J. Williams, Grand Master, Charles Eginton, Grand Senior Warden, Elisha M. Pitch, Grand Junior Warden, J. M. S. McCorkle, Grand Secretary.

James McAlister was the first Mester, George M. James, the Benior Marden, John P. Thorel the Junior Warden. The Loage became defunct in 1883.

(See Nos, 139 and 656.)

CHAPLIN LODGE NO. 423 CHAPLIN, NEESON CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1865, became defunct March 2, 1861.

OARLAND LODGE NO. 434 O.KLAND CHURCH, MARSHALL CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866. Parch 2, 1881, its Charter and properties destroyed by fire and the Lodge became defunct.

SOUTHVILLE, SHELBY CO., MY.

Chartered October 18, 1866, became defunct July 10, 1886.

J. R. BRANNAM LODGE NO. 436 PRILPOT, DAVIESS CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, at Clark's School House. In 1909 moved to Thilpot.

O. D. HENDERSON LODGE NO. 437 STATION CAIP, MSCILE CO., KY.

Granted dispensation as Red Lick Lodge U. D. Chartered October 24, 1867. Charter destroyed by rats and new one is sued October 20, 1881. Reports twenty-nine members.

READYVILLE LODGE NO. 438
ROUND HILL, BUTLER CO., MY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, at Reedyville, Butler County, moved to Round Hill, in 1884. Reports Tifty-nine members.

ELDORADO LODGE NO. 439
McAFEE, MERCER CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, became defunct October 17, 1877.

SYMPSONIA GRAVES CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, became defunct July 10, 1866.

FAIRFIELD LOUGE NO. 441
PAIRFIELD, MELSON CO., MY.

Fairfield Lodge U. D., was organized under dispensation granted October 18, 1866, by the Grand Haster of Mentucky, I. T. Martin. His action was approved by the Grand Lodge at its annual meeting the Hollowing October, whereupon a Charter was issued to the Lodge under date of October 24, 1867, designating it Fairfield Lodge No. 441.

The petitioners who asked permission to work as a Lodge under dispensation were, Harrison Wells, Ben Miller, John T. Miller, John Rogan, D. F. Stallard, Y. F. Wells, John S. Hughes, D. T. Wells, Pitts Stallard, D. B. Jigginton, Thomas P. Bryent, T. J. Wells, and Chris. Ludwick.

The officers under dispensation and named in the Charter were; Harrison Wells, Haster, Ben Miller, Senior warden, John T. Hiller, Junior warden, and on December 27, 1867, Harrison Wells and Ben Miller were re-elected Master and Senior warden, respectively.

Ben Miller is the only one of the original members now living.

He having retained a continuous membership during the entire existence of the Lodge.

During the first few years of its existence this Lodge gained in membership very fast, but during the period between 1875 and

faithful as both murse and doctor and won great favor with the Cincinnati doctors, as well as with the sick and wounded. of these joined together and aided him in finishing his medical education. He then began the practice at East Union, Kentucky. Not being able to buy a horse of his own, he borrowed one, and soon won the confidence of the people and built up a large dientage, thus exemplifying the adage "Where there is a will, there is a way". It was while practicing medicine at East Union that he effected the organization and secured the Charter of the Lodge. He spent the remainder of his life in Micholas County, serving for a number of years as County Health Officer, and also had the honor of representing the counties of Micholas and Robertson in the Hentucky Legislature. Although beginning his career so poor, at his death he left his widow and four children a good estate. The oldest son bears the full name of his father and is a young Past Haster of Lougherty Lodge No. 65 of Carlisle, Kentucky.

This wodge has been visited by two Grand Masters during their years of administration. Grand Master Samuel K. Veatch visited the Lodge July 22, 1907, and conferred the Masters Degree on present Senior Deacon, A. C. Kearns. Grand Master Joseph H. Ewalt visited the wodge on June 21, 1913, and conferred the Masters Degree on the present Secretary, J. E. Berry.

FORD LODGE NO. 444
FORD, CLARAS CO., MY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, as Four Mile No. 444. October 9, 1891, name changed to Ford. January 29, 1914, Charter arrested

for non-payment of aues.

ATHENS LODGE RO. 445
ATHENS, FAYETTE CO., XY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, became defunct October 21, 1887.

SHORT CREEK LODGE NO. 446 SHORT CREEK, GRAYSON CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867. The Lodge properties and Charter burned in 1879 and a new Charter issued october 22, 1880. The Charter was arrested in 1886.

CORYDON LODGE NO. 447
CORYDON, RENDERSON CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, became defunct July 10, 1886.

LANDRUM LODGE NO. 448
WINGO, GREVES CO., KY.

of James D. Landrum, Past Grand Haster. The meetings were held in rented quarters until 1890, in which year the Lodge acquired title to a two story frame building 40x80 feet, the second story of which is used for Lodge purposes and the ground floor leased to a tenant. This Lodge weak in numbers, reporting a membership of thirty-five in 1915, evidences a strong Masonic spirit. In

Masonry, and in the State, the Freeholder is the real bone and sinew of the organization.

PLAIN CITY LODGE NO. 449
PADUCAH, MCCHACKEN CO., MY.

Chartered October 24, 1867. Reports two hundred and seventy six members. James A. Wilhelm, a member of this Lodge was elected Grand Master in 1898.

MYSTIC THE LODGE NO. 450 SALOMA, TAYLOR CO., MY.

Chartered October 24, 1867.

BETHLEHER LODGE NO. 451
BETHLEHER ACCEPTAGE CALDWELL CO., MY.

Chartered October 24, 1867. Destroyed by cyclone 1878, became defunct July 10, 1886.

WESLEY LODGE NO. 452

Chartered October 24, 1867, became defunct July 10, 1866.

SHILOH LO.G. NO. 453 GROVA CENTER, UNION CO., KY.

Chartered Cotober 24, 1867 at Shiloh peeting House, moved to

Grove Center 1893.

DANILL BOONL LODGE NO. 454 FORTOWN, EMDISON CO., KY.

Daniel Boone Lodge No. 454 was the outgrowth of the desire of Benjamin T. Gentry to erect on or near the site of the "Old Fort at Boonesborough" a Lodgo to bear the mame of mentucky's most illustrious pioneer, and to preserve if pæsible through it some of the tradition and history connected with that famous spot. Mr. Centry was a member and Fast Master of Richmond Lodge as well as a Royal Arch Mason and member of Webb Commandery. These indicate his love for the Order, especially when it is remembered that he lived twelve miles from Richmond. Ho secured the requisite number of names and was aren ted permission to work U. D. Grand Master designated so his broxy Fast Grand Haster Milliam Holloway or George Sam Roberts, the Haster of Richmond Lodge, to act as his proxy and set the Lage to work. The first named was unable to be present so the pleasant work rell to the lot of G. Sam Roberts. He, on the mirst day of hay, 1867, drove to Boonesborough in company with Ad. J. Tumer, afterward Grand Haster, Ambrose J. Dudley and R. D. Davis, all members of Richmond Bodge No. 25, to obey and carry out the instructions of the France Master. The ir first meeting was held in the upper room of the a store belonging to John Stevens. The Collowing brethren were installed: Ben T. Gentry, Master, A. T. Chenault, Senior Warden. William Bennett, Junior Warden, John Stevens, Treasurer, Chilton A. Lisle, Secretary, Theodore R. Lisle, Benior Deacon, William

became defunct October 18, 1901.

CUBA, GRAVES CO., XY.

Chartered October 17, 1866, became defunct July 31, 1885.

CUMBERLAND LODGE NO. 413
BURKESVILLE, CULBERLAND CO., KY.

Chartered October 17, 1866. Reports ninety-seven members.

T. F. REESE LODGE NO. 414
FRANKLINTON, HENRY CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866, surrendered its Charter March, 1887.

MUHLENBURG LODGE NO. 415
SOUTH CARROLLTON, MUHLENBURG CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866, became defunct July 11, 1898.

LONG VIEW LODGE NO. 416 LONG VIEW, CHRISTIAN CO., KY.

Long View Lodge No. 416, was organized October 18, 1866, and became defunct May 14, 1904.

This Lodge gave to Kentucky one of its most distinguished citizens, and to the institution of Freemasonry one of the most

illustrious Grand Masters of the Grand Lodge of Mentucky - James A. McKenzie.

James A. McKenzie graduated from Center College, at Lanville, Kentucky, with the class of 1857, the largest ever graduated from that Institution.

As the Representative of his district in the National Congress he introduced and secured the passage of the bill putting quinine upon the free list, which resulted in reducing the price of that drug to the consumer from \$5.00 an ownce to 50 cents, and ever after caused the author of this law to be known throughout the State and Nation as "quinine Jim McKenzie."

As a delegate to the National Convention at Chicago which nominated Grover Cleveland for the Presidency of the United States, he made the speech seconding the nomination of his first cousin A. B. Stevenson for the Vice Presidency, in what was at the time declared to be the handsomest oration delivered in that convention, and which was greated with a thundering applause accorded to no other speaker there.

He was a great orator, a finished scholar, a pure patriot.

His last public service to his country was that of United States

Minister to Peru. He was Grand Master of the Grand Loage of

Kemtucky 1891-92. On June 25, 1904 he departed this life, holding

the love, respect and admiration of all who had ever come in personel contact with him.

THREE SPRINGS LODGE NO. 417
THREE SPRINGS, BARREN CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1966. The Lodge meetings were held over the church in the woods about four hundred yards distant from the store.

About 1871, a man named Jim Smith who was on unfriendly terms with Julius R. Curl, the Master of this Lodge, rode up to the Lodge room when the Craft were assembled for a meeting and called Curl to him - when he arswered Smith presented his rifle - but Curl drew his pistol and shot him dead before he could fire. The case never went to a jury. The Lodge was not opened that day. The Lodge became defunct July 10, 1886.

CAVE CITY LODGE NO. 418
CAVE CITY, BARREN COUNTY. KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866. The Lodge was burned in January 1870. October 19, 1870 a new Charter was issued in lieu of the one destroyed by fire. In 1888 its Charter and properties were again burned and the Lodge became defunct.

TAMPICO LODGA NO. 419 CANA VALLEY, ADAIR CO., KY.

Charter was granted to Tampico Lodge, No. 419, on the 18th., day of October, 1866, signed by U. J. "illiams, Gram Master, I. T. Martin, Deputy Grand Master, Charles Eginton, Senior Grand Warden,

E. S. Fitch, Junior Grand Warden, and I. M. S. McCorkle, Grand Secretary.

The Charter named H. Allen, first Master, George Ewing, Senior Warden, and W. W. Benard, Junior Warden.

The Lodge was organized under dispensation on the 7th., day of April, 1866, with the following brethren in charge: D. B. Moore, Master, R. E. Geeter, Senior Warden, O. P. Marshall, Junior Warden, J. H. Allen, Secretary, John A. Johnston, Treasurer, R. T. Hodges, Senior Deacon, John W. Faulkner, Junior Deacon, and A. Lindsey. Steward and Tyler. The following brethren were elected and installed to take the different stations in said Lodge on that day: J. H. Allen, Master, George Ewing, Senior Warden, W. W. Benard, Junior Warden, G. C. Cundiff, Secretary, J. Ailshire, Treasurer, John W. Faulkner, Senior Deacon, John A. Johnston, Junior Deacon, and L. Lindsay, Steward am Tyler.

By dispensation of Grand Master James Garnett this Lodge was authorized to change its meeting place from Tampico, Taylor County, to Cane Valley, Adair County, and the same was approved by the Grand Locge on the 17th., day of October, 1906.

John A. Johnston, who now lives at Tampico, Kentucky, and whose hair shows the frost of many years, is the only Charter member who survives.

BEAVER DAM LODGE NO. 420 BEAVER DAM, OHIO CO., KY.

Prior to October, 1866, dispensation was granted to Cromwell Lodge at Cromwell, Kentucky, and Charter granted to Cromwell Lodge No. 420 October 18, 1866. October 21, 1896, the name of the

Lodge was changed and the Bodge moved to Beaver Dam, nine miles away.

The meetings were at first held in a room, ten by twelve feet, over a store, but the Craft were soon in a house of their own erected at a cost of \$3,000, which was so on after burned down. Another house was built and this swept away by a tornado, but the men of this Lodge were not the kind to succumb to discouragement; they were men born and raised in sight of the old beavers dam, and they set to "work like beavers" and so on had another home of their own. The Lodge has a membership of seventy-two, out of debt and doing fine work.

CONSOLATION LODGE NO. 421 ERA. CHRISTIAN CO., MY.

The Charter to Consolation Lodge No. 421, F. & A. M., was granted October 16, 1866. The Charter members were Dr. J. E. McCord, Master, P. F. Rogers, Senior Warden, Samuel Doss, Junior Warden. About the time of the organization of the Lodge there was a church house erected which was named Consolation. The little band of Masons took advantage of the opportunity and built a hall over the church house which was used until the year 1903, at that time the house becoming old and dilapidated and the membership having run down to eleven, and the church having discontinued holding services in the house, the Lodge moved to a small village called Era, about one and a half miles South of the old church.

Meetings at Era were held in the parlor of #. J. Fuller for

twelve months until a new hall was built. Having B. F. Fuller as their leader and Master at that time, and he being a carpenter and ready and willing to work, the Lodge was soon put under its own roof. The building, worth about \$700.00, is owned by the Lodge free of debt.

None of the members of Consolation Lodge has held any high official positions, but quite a number are leaders in Masonry in the communities where they are known.

B. F. Fuller was made a Mason in L. M. Cox Lodge No. 327, but in 1892 moved his membership to Consolation. He has served as Master of this Lodge twelve times in the last twenty years. He was the leader in building the new hall and deserves great credit for his zeal and energy in making the Lodge what it is today.

HIBBARDSVILLE LODGE NO. 422
HIBBARDSVILLE, HENDERSON CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866, became defunct July 10, 1886.

MASON CREEK LODGE NO. 423
BEECH GROVE, McLEAN COUNTY.KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866, at Masons Creek. Burned January 15, 1867. Ner Charter granted October 24, 1867. In 1869 moved to Beach Grove. The Lodge owns the building in which its meetings are held.

PHIL, CASEY CO., KY.

Casey Lodge began under a dispensation granted October 8, 1891. The nine men who organized and started the work were, in the main, former members of old Casey Lodge No. 424, which was chartered October 18, 1866, and which surrendered its Charter and became officially dead July 10, 1886.

Of the nine who organized what is now Casey Lodge No. 424 only one Charter member is still affiliated with the Lodge. One was suspended, three have demitted, and four have gone to join the Celestial Lodge on High.

The first meeting U. D., was held November 2, 1891, and since that date there has been admitted to membership by initiation or by petition and demit, eighty-one.

This Logic began work under dispensation in a rented hall over a store one mile East of Phil, Ky., but soon built a hall over a church a mile North of Phil, and began holding its meetings in the new hall in 1892. The Lodge is out of debt, the hall and furniture are kept insured, and the building kept painted and in good repair.

Harmony has prevailed throughout the life of the Lodge as evidenced by the fact that charges have never been preferred except for non-payment of dues and only seven cases of that in twenty-three years.

During its existence this Lodge has elected twelve of its members as Master. Of these Past Masters four are dead, two have demitted.

BOONEVILLE LODGE NO. 425
BOONEVILLE, OWSLEY CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866. Reports twenty-five members.

PANTHER CREEK LODGE NO. 426 CURDSVILLE, DAVIESS CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866, moved to Union Grove October, 1874, became defunct October 18, 1888.

MARSHALL LODGE NO. 427
PORT ROYAL, HENRY CO., KY.

Grænted dispensation as Fort Royal Lodge, chartered October 18, 1866, as Marshall Lodge No. 427, became defunct October 3,1890.

CURDSVILLE LODGE NO. 428
CURDSVILLE, MERCER CO., KY.

Chartered October, 1866, became defunct October 19, 1868.

THOMAS TODD LODGE NO. 429 CLAYVILLAGE, SHELBY CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866, became defunct October 22, 1884.

T. W. WASH LODGE NO. 430 GRAVEL SWITCH, MARION CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866, at Station Point, Boyle County,

moved to Gravel Switch June 5, 1907.

MONTICELLO LODGE NO. 431
MONTICELLO, WAYNE CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866. Old Charter destroyed and now one is sued October 21, 1869.

CRAB ORCHARD LODGE NO. 432 CRAB ORCHARD, LINCOLN CO., KY.

Charter granted October 18, 1866, signed by M. J. Williams, Grand Master, Charles Eginton, Grand Senior Warden, Elisha H. Fitch, Grand Junior Warden, J. M. S. McCorkle, Grand Secretary.

James McAlister was the first Master, George W. James, the Senior Warden, John P. Thorel the Junior Warden. The Loage became defunct in 1883.

(See Nos, 139 and 656.)

CHAPLIN LODGE NO. 433 CHAPLIN, NELSON CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1865, became defunct March 2, 1881.

OAKLAND LODGE NO. 434
O.KLAND CHURCH, MARSHALL CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866. March 2, 1881, its Charter and properties destroyed by fire and the Lodge became defunct.

SOUTHVILLE LODG: NO. 435 SOUTHVILLE, SHELBY CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1866, became defunct July 10, 1886.

J. H. BRANHAM LODGE NO. 436 PHILPOT, DAVIESS CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, at Clark's School House. In 1909 moved to Fhilpot.

O. D. HENDERSON LODGE NO. 437 STATION CAMP, ASTILL CO., KY.

Granted dispensation as Red Lick Lodge U. D. Chartered October 24, 1867. Charter destroyed by rats and new one is sued October 20, 1881. Reports twenty-nine members.

READYVILLE LODGE NO. 438
ROUND HILL, BUTLER CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, at Reedyville, Butler County, moved to Round Hill, in 1884. Reports fifty-nine members.

ELDORADO LODGE NO. 439
McAFEE, MERCER CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, became defunct October 17, 1877.

SYMPSOMIA, GRAVES CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, became defunct July 10, 1866.

FAIRFIELD LODGE NO. 441
FAIRFIELD, NELSON CO., KY.

Fairfield Lodge U. D., was organized under dispensation granted October 18, 1866, by the Grand Master of Mentucky, I. T. Martin. His action was approved by the Grand Lodge at its annual meeting the following October, whereupon a Charter was issued to the Lodge under date of October 24, 1867, designating it Fairfield Lodge No. 441.

The petitioners who asked permission to work as a Lodge under dispensation were, Harrison Wells, Ben Miller, John T. Miller, John Rogan, D. P. Stallard, Y. P. Wells, John S. Hughes, D. T. Wells, Pitts Stallard, D. B. Wigginton, Thomas P. Bryant, P. M. Wells, and Chris. Ludwick.

The officers under dispensation and named in the Charter were; Harrison Wells, Master, Ben Miller, Senior Warden, John T. Miller, Junior Warden, and on December 27, 1867, Harrison Wells and Ben Miller were re-elected Master and Senior Warden, respectively.

Ben Miller is the only one of the original members now living.

He having retained a continuous membership during the entire existence of the Lodge.

During the first few years of its existence this Lodge gained in membership very fast, but during the period between 1875 and

faithful as both murse and doctor and won great favor with the Cincinnati doctors, as well as with the sick and wounded. of these joined together and aided him in finishing his medical education. He then began the practice at East Union, Kentucky. Not being able to buy a horse of his own, he borrowed one, and soon won the confidence of the people and built up a large dientage, thus exemplifying the adage "Where there is a will, there is a way". It was while practicing medicine at East Union that he effected the organization and secured the Charter of the Lodge. He spent the remainder of his life in Nicholas County, serving for a number of years as County Health Officer, and also had the honor of representing the count is of Micholas and Robertson in the Kentucky Legislature. Although beginning his career so poor, at his death he left his widow and four children a good estate. The oldest son bears the full name of his father and is a young Past Master of Dougherty Loage No. 65 of Carlisle, Kentucky.

This wodge has been visited by two Grand Masters during their years of administration. Grand Master Samuel K. Veatch visited the Lodge July 22, 1907, and conferred the Masters Degree on present Sanior Deacon, A. C. Kearns. Grand Master Joseph H. Ewalt visited the wodge on June 21, 1913, and conferred the Masters Degree on the present Secretary. J. M. Berry.

FORD LODGE NO. 444
FORD, CLARKE CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, as Four Mile No. 444. October 9, 1891, name changed to Ford. January 29, 1914, Charter arrested

for non-payment of aues.

ATHENS LODGE NO. 445
ATHENS, FAYETTE CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, became defunct October 21, 1887.

SHORT CREEK LODGE NO. 446 SHORT CREEK, GRAYSON CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867. The Lodge properties and Charter burned in 1879 and a new Charter issued October 22, 1880. The Charter was arrested in 1886.

CORYDON LODGE NO. 447
CORYDON, HENDERSON CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, became defunct July 10, 1886.

LANDRUM LODGE NO. 448 WINGO, GRAVES CO., KY.

of James D. Landrum, Fast Grand Master. The meetings were held in rented quarters until 1890, in which year the Lodge acquired title to a two story frame building 40x80 feet, the second story of which is used for Lodge purposes and the ground floor leased to a tenant. This Lodge weak in numbers, reporting a membership of thirty-five in 1915, evidences a strong Masonic spirit. In

Masonry, as in the State, the Freeholder is the real bone and sinew of the organization.

PLAIN CITY LODGE NO. 449
PADUCAH, MCCRACKEN CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867. Reports two hundred and seventy six members. James E. Wilhelm, a member of this lodge was elected Grand Master in 1898.

MYSTIC THE LODGE NO. 450 SALOMA, TAYLOR CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867.

BETHLEHEM LODGE MO. 451
BETHLEHEM ACADEMY, CALEMELE GO., MY.

Chartered October 24, 1867. Destroyed by cyclone 1878, became defunct July 10, 1886.

WESLEY LODGE NO. 452 WESLEY, HICKMAN CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, became defunct July 10, 1886.

SHILOH LOEGE NO. 453 GROVE CENTER, UNION CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867 at Shiloh Meeting House, moved to

Grove Center 1893.

DANIEL BOONS LODGE NO. 454
FOXTOWN, MADISON CO., KY.

Daniel Boone Lodge No. 454 was the outgrowth of the desire of Benjamin T. Gentry to erect on or near the site of the "Old Fort at Boonesborough" a Loage to bear the mame of mentucky's most illustrious pioneer, and to preserve if possible through it some of the tradition and history connected with that famous spot. Mr. Gentry was a member and Past Master of Richmond Lodge as well as a Royal Arch Mason and member of Mebb Commandery. These indicate his love for the Order, especially when it is remembered that he lived twelve miles from Richmond. He secured the requisite number of names and was granted permission to work 0. D. Grand Master designated as his proxy Past Grand Master William Holloway or George Sam Roberts, the Master of Richmond Lodge, to act as his proxy and set the budge to work. The first named was unable to be present so the pleasant work fell to the lot of G. Sam Roberts. He, on the first day of May, 1867, drove to Boonesborough in company with Ad. W. Tumer, afterward Grand Haster, Ambrose J. Dudley and R. D. Davis, all members of Richmond Lodge No. 25, to obey and carry out the instructions of the Grand Master. Their first meeting was held in the upper room of the a store belonging to John Stevens. The Tollowing brethren were installed: Ben T. Gentry, Master, A. T. Chenault, Senior Warden, William Bennett, Junior Warden, John Stevens, Treasurer, Chilton A. Lisle, Secretary, Theodore K. Lisle, Sonior Deacon, William

:

McCowan, Junior Deacon, J. V. Stevens, Steward and Tyler.

There were present also Henry Lisle, Valentine Stephens, Harvey Cobb and Absolom Shearer. These comprised the Charter membership. The third Saturday of each month was the day selected for the regular meeting. The first months of the Lodge were very presperous. Dr. George W. Evans was the first man initiated after the Lodge began work May, 1867. A Charter was granted by the Grand Lodge the following October (1867). The same of ficers were retained at the annual election, with one or two changes. Christopher D. Chenault who had come into the Lodge, was elected Secretary. As long as Messrs. Gentry and John Stevens lived the Lodge remained at Boonesborough and prospered, but with the death of these two brothren it was deemed best to remove the Lodge to Foxtown, a more convenient point for many of its members. Authority to do this was granted by the Gram Master, B. G. Witt, February 25, 1886. Here the Lodge owns comfortable quarters, but the spirit of those who founded it seems to have passed and for the past ten years it has shown a steady decline in its membership. The real purposes for which it was founded have never been realized. William Bennett to a large degree followed the spirit of Gentry and since his death Sanford Oldham has done more than his part to keep it alive, serving as Master nineteen years. An old and historic Bible printed in Scotland more than 120 years ago is one of the relics of this Lodge. The reports of the Grand Lodge disclose the following names of those who have served as Masters: Ben T. Gentry, 4. T. Chenault, Theodore K. Lisle, Sanford Oldham, A. S. Hampton, Presley Smith, William Bennett, Presley Batterton, C. W. Langford,

D. P. Black, E. P. Million.

It is the hope of all that Daniel Boone Lodge will continue, and there is no good reason why it should not. Located centrally, in the midst of a beautiful and fertile country, with ample jurisdiction and a fine citizenship, it seemingly has all the adventages a Lodge could desire to achieve success, but without the true Masonic spirit of service revives its doom is inevitable.

WALTON'S CREEK LODGE NO. 455 WALTON'S CREEK, OHIO CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, became defunct 1881.

EARROD'S CREEK LODGE NO. 456
HARROD'S CREEK, JEFFERSON CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, became defunct October 20, 1899. November 8, 1899, re-instated and old Charter returned. Reports sixty-five members.

JOHN T. CRANDELL LODGE NO. 457
ANTIOCH CHURCH, MUHLENBERG CO. KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867. Returns twenty-three members.

CARTER LODGE NO. 458
MASON, GRANT CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, with meeting place mear Stringtown,

Grant Co., Ky. In 1871, moved to Cordova, Grant County. In 1882, moved to Mason, Grant County. May 6, 1903, became defunct.

I. T. MARTIN LODGE NO. 459
SADIEVILLE, SCOTT CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867, at Mount Olivet Church, moved 1868 to Sadieville. Burned 1896 and new Charter issued October 21, 1896.

PERSEVERANCE LODGE NO. 460 SMITHFIELD, HENRY CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867. July 10, 1886, the Lodge properties and Charter were burned and Perseverance was extinguished.

MILTON LODGE BO. 461
MILTON. TRILBLE CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867. Reports forty-two members.

NEW SALEM, SILESON CO., KY.

New Salem Lodge No. 462, located at New Salem in Simpton County, nine miles East of Franklin and one half mile West of Gold City, received its Charter October 24, 1867, with the following officers: W. E. Arnold, Master, James D. Keys, Senior Warden, S. B. Hendricks, Junior Warden.

The Lodge increased in numbers till 1875, when it reported sixty two members. About this time, there was dissension among the brethren in reference to the proposed assessment of one dollar per member for five years for the benefit of the Widows and Orphans Home. On account of this, the membership was reduced within a few years to the low ebb of twenty.

Since that time, the growth has been steady, there being forty members at the last annual report.

The jurisdictional territory has been reduced by the formation of New Roe Looge in Allen County, and Neel Hodge in Warren County.

The Lodge has sustained a reputation for correct work and for peace and harmony of its membership.

KING LODGE NO. 463

LOCATED AT THE RESIDENCE OF C. C. BRYANT CALLOWAY CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1867. In 1871 moved to Little Rock Church.

COX LODGE NO. 464

CAMPTON, WOLFE CO., KY.

Chartered October 22, 1868, am set to work with the following officers: Robert C. Day, Master, George J. Cox, Senior Marden, James M. Oliver, Junior Tarden, John T. Hazelrigg, Treasurer, A. Porter, Lacey, Secretary, C. C. Hanks, Tyler.

In 1892, on December 29, 1905, and again in January 1910, this Lodge had its records and property destroyed by fire. Alexander

Drake is(1914) the present Master of the Lodge and its oldest living member.

The Loage owns a comfortable building in which its meetings are held and has a membership of seventy-five, who are mostly young men and men of middle age, active and emthusiastic.

EVERGREEN LODGE NO. 465
SALEM CHURCH, GRAVES CO., KY.

Organized as Salem Lodge U. D. Chartered October 22, 1868, became defunct March 16, 1886.

Wm. H. WINSTRAD LODGE NO. 466 PLEASANT GROVE, DAVIDSS CO., KY.

About five miles West of the city of Owensboro on the Owensboro and Wenderson Road, Wm M. Winstead U. D., which was constituted and the hall dedicated September 28, 1867, by J. H. Brannon of Owensboro Loage 130, proxy of Grand Master.

In October, 1867, the Charter was granted and the Lodge set to work with E. S. Fitch, Grand Master; Charles Eginton, Deputy Grand Master, V. H. Jones, Grand Senior Warden, and H. B. Jones, Grand Junior Warden, officiating.

DIXON LODGE NO. 467 DIXON, WEBSTER CO., KY.

Chartered October 22, 1868, sur rendered Charter March 19, 1917.

STONEWALL LODGE NO. 468 LORETTA, MARION CO., KY.

Chartered October 22, 1868. Lodge died for want of Masonic interest, becoming defunct in 1876.

ESTILL LODGE NO. 469 SPOUT SPRINGS, ESTILL CO., KY.

Chartered October 22, 1868, at a meeting place mear the house of woseph P. Wright in Estill County.

KEYSTONE LODGE NO. 470
PLEASURY MORE, OTHER CO., KY.

Chartered October 22, 1868. The present membership is eighteen, most all of whom are old men. W. H. Lowdenback is the only surviving Charter member.

FARMERSVILLE LODGE NO. 471
FARMERSVILLE, CALDWELL CO., KY.

October 16, 1868, under dispensation Roscoe Lodge U. D., was organized at Boech Grove, Kentucky. John P. Roscoe acting as proxy for the Grand Haster.

The following constituted the membership of the Lodge:

F. J. Sullivan, Master, Logardo, Tenn., No. 237; R. C. Towery, Benior Warden, Alabama; W. H. Hobbs, Junior Marden, Clinton No. 282;

J. Q. A. Barnes, Treasurer, Clinton No. 82; W. R. McChesney, No. 44

Mo., Joel Beckner, Senior Deacon, No. 82; L. A. Crowell, Junior Deacon, No. 82; J. E. Roberts, Tyler No. 82; J. C. Asher, No. 82. October 20, 1868 a Charter was granted to Roscoe Ledge No. 471. November, 1891, the Lodge was moved to Farmersville and October 16, 1894, the name of the Lodge was changed from Roscoe No. 471 to Farmersville Fo. 471.

The following is list of surviving Charter members, viz: F. J. Sullivan, Princeton.

W. H. Jones,

W. H. Hobby, " R. R. #1

ea. R. McChesney, " " " "

W. G. SIMPSON LODGE NO. 472
MONTEREY, OWEN CO., KY.

Chartered October 22, 1868.

JOH MILIS LODGE NO. 473
BELL RUN CHURCH, OHIO CO., KY.

Chartered October 22, 1868.

FRIENDSHIP LODGE NO. 474
IRVINE'S STORE, RUSSELL CO., KY.

Chartered October 22, 1868, became defunct October 18, 1888.

BRATTON MILLS LODGE NO. 475
BRATTON, ROBERTSON CO., KY.

Bratton Mills Lodge No. 475, was organized in 1867 under dispensation granted by Grand Master E. S. Fitch. Its Charter was granted October 22, 1868.

Though small numerically, and weak financially this Lodge gave \$500 towards the Masonic Widows and Orphans Home, and undying testimony of their Masonic zeal and earnestness.

On February 27, 1901, the Lodge hall and everything in it except the Lodge seal was destroyed by fire, but the Craft got busy and rebuilt the hall and the Grand Lodge granted another Charter retaining the old name and number.

MILFORD LODGE NO. 476
MILFORD, BRACKEN CO., KY.

Chartered October 21, 1869, burned April 12, 1889. New Charter issued October 24, 1889, became defunct October 19, 1892.

CANEY FORK LODGE NO. 477
CONCORD CHURCH (TOWNSVILLE) BUTLER CO., KY.

Chartered October 21, 1869, at Caney Fork, Academy, Butler Co., moved to Conford Church in 1871, became defunct August 4, 1900.

SAMUEL REED LODGE NO. 478
LUDEOW, KENTON CO., KY.

Chartered October 21, 1869.

ROBERT MALLORY LODGE NO. 479
BALLARDSVILLE, OLDHAM CO., MY.

Chartered October 21, 1869, became defunct September 15, 1884.

STAR LODGE NO. 480
ROUGH AND READY, ANDERSON CO., KY.

Chartered October 21, 1869, became defunct October 3, 1890.

PALESTINE LODGE NO. 481
MELBER, McCRACKEN CO., KY.

On November 21, 1869, a Lodge of Master Masons was opened under dispensation granted to them in Ballard county, Kentucky, at or near Palestine Church, at which meeting Palestine Lodge U. D., was organized. At this meeting the first officers were installed into office as follows: J. M. Davis, Master, Malachi McColpin, Senior Warden, O. O. Jones, Junior Werden, William Wilson, Treasurer, R. W. Shelbourne, Secretary, A. J. Heath, Senior Deacon, T. B. McColpin, Junior Deacon, Ben T. Wilson, Tyler. Date of meeting was fixed for the Thursday before the full moon in each month at sun set.

Records of December 9, 1869, show officers installed by R. W. Shelbourne by commission of the Craft Master of Kentucky under Charter granted under date of October 21, 1869.

At a meeting of the Lodge on December 18, 1869, there were received three petitions for membership, one candidate was passed, and one was raised.

The records throughout the first year show work in the degrees at almost every meeting.

On March 30, 1871, the date of meeting was changed to the third Saturday of each month at two o'clock P. M.

The records show the following dorations to the widows and Orphans Home: September 21, 1872, \$10.00; January 18, 1873, \$50.75; June 20, 1874, \$25.00; October 16, 1875, \$10.00; October 19, 1889, \$10.00.

Record of February 19, 1876 shows the Lodge received a certificate of life membership in the Widows and Orphans Home of Kentucky.

On May 21, 1892, the Lodge voted to raise the Home assessment from fifty cents to one dollar per member, the vote being unanimous with fifteen members voting.

On April 20, 1895, the Lodge voted to pay \$10.00 per year for five successive years to the Home for Infirm and Destitute Masons of Kentucky, which amount was paid in full on August 15, 1903.

On April 18, 1899, the Lodge voted to remove their meeting place from Palestine Church, Ballard County (now Carlisle county) to Melber, McCracken county, Kentucky, which permission was granted by the Grand Master.

The first meeting of the Lodge at Melber was on April 21,1900. On February 17, 1906, the Lodge voted to take one life membership in the Old Masons' Home of Kentucky, which was paid for in full by five successive yearly installments of \$10.00 each.

On April 20, 1907, the Lodge voted a free will donation of \$10.50 to the Old Masons' Home or tentucky, this being a fifty cent

per capite on the membership.

On August 21, 1909 the Lodge voted to pay a per capita assessment of twenty-five cents for each member to the Old Masons Home of Kentucky.

This modge has been a means of much good to the community in which it has existed and has numbered among its members a great many of the most influential men of the community.

Although in numbers its membership has always been small the communications have been regular, and the work exceptionally good for a small lodge.

PARMERS, ROWAN CO., KY.

Chartered October 21, 1869, at Morehead, Rowan County, Ky. In 1873 moved to present location.

MONUMENT LODGE NO. 483
ASBURY CHAPEL, DAVIESS CO., KY.

Chartered October 21, 1869, became defunct September 8, 1890.

PARKERSVILLE LODGE NO. 484
LAMASCO, LYON CO., KY.

Parkersville Lodge No. 484, at Lamasco, Lyon County, Kentucky, formerly known as Parkersville, was organized under dispensation by John McLin as Froxy for the Grand Master, one year later,

October 21, 1869, a Charter was granted.

Robert Parker was the first Master, and is at this time the oldest member of the Loage, being in his 89th., year (1914). He was made a Mason in Joppa Loage, Tennessee, in 1846, and has been an active Mason since that time, having served in every office of the Loage. Other aged members of the Loage, whose devotion to Masonry renders them worthy of special mention are, John P. Oliver, Martin Johnson, and J. J. Chambers.

The Lodge is in a very prosperous condition, has fifty members, owns a comfortable hall for its place of meeting, and the Craft manifest a Masonic interest that augurs well for the future.

ELK CREEK LODGE NO. 485 ELK CREEK, SPENCER CO., KY.

The history of Elk Creek Loage began October 21, 1869, when H. E. Stout, E. B. Shafar, J. H. Boston, J. P. Beard, J. T. Dale, S. R. Norman, J. D. Veech, A. L. Buckner, D. L. Bennett and Isaac Carithers petitioned the Grand Lodge of Kentucky for a Charter. Their petition was recommended by Taylorsville No. 210. Grand Master Charles Eginton appointed H. H. Stout, Master, E. B. Shafar, Senior Warden and J. M. Boston, Junior Warden.

The first meeting was held November 2, 1869, with the regular of ficers of Taylorsville No. 210 officiating.

Elk Creek No. 485 was granted a Charter October 19, 1870.

During the year after November 2, 1869, and until 1886, the membership gradually graw, but for the next twelve years it went down
a little fister than it graw, but in 1898 began to grow until today

the Lodge has forty-six Master Masons and two Entered Apprentices.

All of the Charter members are dead.

In 1870 Elk Creek Lodge hall was built and paid for end since that date the Lodge has never been in debt.

RISING STAR LODGE NO. 486
HISEVILLE, BARREN CO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1870, became defunct October 18, 1888.

J. C. WHITLOCK LODGE NO. 487
LOCUST GROVE, TRIGG CO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1870. In 1892 moved to Gracey, Christian County. October 19, 1898, became defunct.

ARGUS LODGE NO. 488
ST. JOHN'S CHURCH, GRAVES CO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1870, became defunct July 10, 1886.

HAZELWOOD LODGE NO. 489
BARLOW, BALLARD CO., MY.

Granted dispensation as Charles S. Harshall Lodge. Chartered October 19, 1870 as Hazelwood Lodge No. 489. Returns fifty-nine members.

WILLIAMSBURG LODGE NO. 490 WILLIAMSBURG, WHITLEY CO., KY.

On the 8th., day of March, 1870, Charles Eginton, Grand Master of the Grand Loage of Aentucky, granted a dispensation for the establishment of a Loage at Williamsburg, Whitley County, to be called Eginton Loage U. D. William C. Rose, still living in Jellico, was the first Master. With him was associated eight other Master Masons. A Charter was granted to Eginton Loage No. 490, October 19, 1870, at which time the number had grown to twenty-seven. At this time Williamsburg was only a village of a few hundred but the Loage record shows that practically all of the business and professional men of the county were affiliated with this Loage.

The first meetings were held in the old Court House, later a Lodge room was built over the public school room, where it continued to meet for many years. As the town grew the brethren demanded better quarters and a new brick lodge room was built over a business house. The Lodge continued to grow and in 1916 it was decided to build a modern and commodious Masonic Temple upon a lot which it had acquired on Main Street near the public square.

After the Loage determined to build and had appointed all its committees, a new matter came up which greatly strengthened the Lodge. October 18, 1877, Boston Lodge No. 593 had been constituted at Boston, Kentucky, formerly a prosperous farming village and educational center. With the building of the railroad into Jellico it became the center of population and business interests and Boston

Lodge No. 593 was moved to Jellico, Kentucky. That made two lodges in Jellico. One on Kentucky side and one on Tennessee side close together. Boston Rodge No. 593 am Aginton Rodge No. 490 took up the question of consclidating, and on the 20th., day of March, 1916, in the presence of one of the largest gatherings of Masons ever assembled in the Lodge room Grand Master T. J. Adams consolidated the lodges under the name of Williamsburg Rodge No. 490 and all of the officers of Eginton Lodge were re-elected as officers of the new Rodge. The consolidated Rodge let the contract for the Hasonic temple to cost about fifteen thousand dollars, and on the 18th., day of September, 1916, the Grand Master, T. J. Adams, laid the corner stone of the new Temple. This Temple has a commodious, and up to date lodge room.

SIEVERS LODGE NO. 491 FANBUSH, PULASKI CO., KY.

Sievers Lodge W. D., was organized at its hall at Mt. Pisgah, now Fanbush, Pulaski County, Kentucky, on the 13th., day of July, 1870, by J. T. desley, Froxy for Grand Master. Obediah Denham was named as Master for said Lodge in the dispensation; E. T. Molan, Senior warden, I. J. Brown, Junior warden, Daniel Tartar, Treasurer, C. J. Sievers, Secretary, Silas Tartar, Senior Deacon, D. M. Rainwater, Junior Deacon, Ivy Tartar, Steward and Tyler. The Lodge has been at work continually from the day of its organization to the present time.

C. C. Gossett, who was initiated November 1870, has not missed a meeting of the Lodge for thirty-five years and for many

years was Master.

None of the Charter members are now living. L. B. Weddle who has been a member thirty-three years, has continuously held the office of Secretary of the Lodge. A. F. Wilson has been a member twenty-four years and is Junior Warden. These are the oldest members of the organization. The Lodge is held in the same hall where it was organized.

STANFORD LODGE NO. 492 STANFORD, LINCOLN CO., KY.

Immediately following the close of the Civil War, when the passions and prejudices of that era had not been healed, there were members of Lincoln Lodge No. 60 who allowed the memory of war issues to influence the color of their ballot in the acceptance or rejection of petitions for initiation, to such an unreasonable extent as made it manifest that the welfare of the Masonic institution in the community could be better conserved by the presence of two Masonic lodges rather than by one.

On March 28, 1870, W. Lewis Landrum, as proxy of the Grand Master presided over a meeting of Master Masons held in the hall of Lincoln Lodge No. 60 and, under a dispensation from Charles Eighton, Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky, set them to work as Stanford Lodge U. D.

Upon the organization of this Lodge, Lincoln Lodge No. 60 extended to them the use of its Lodge rooms, its furniture, jewels and equipment, which were accepted, and, by a recorded vote, the Tyler of Lincoln Lodge No. 60 was elected the Tyler of Stanford

Lodge, and upon the records of this new Lodge was placed the following invitation - "Ordered that the members of Lincoln be invited to attend all regular meetings of this Lodge!"

The Lodge was continued under dispensation until October 25, 1870, when it was granted a Charter as Stanford Lodge No. 492.

have been attended by one or more members of Lincoln Lodge No. 60, and not infrequently, in part, officered by them, and both lodges at 11 times used the same room, lights, jowels and equipment. The two Charters hung side by side upon the same wall, the members of the lodges interchanged visits and in 1872 bought a Lodge room and full equipment for their joint use and kept same insured for their mutual protection; in 1873 the two Loages united in bearing equally the burial expense of an unfortunate but worthy brother who had died, and joined in the honor of his Masonic burial; and yet they were unable to use the same ballot box in the selection of men fit for such honor. We who are a half century removed from the bitterness of that period are unable to comprehend the conditions.

August 28, 1875, the question of a conselidation with Lincoln Lodge No. 60 was made a special order of business for the meeting of September 27, 1875; at this meeting the question coming up "Was laid aside for the present" but on Earch 28, 1876, a committee was appointed to act with a like committee from Lincoln Lodge No. 60 to consider the consolidation of the two Lodges and here the records of Stanford Lodge No. 492 close. The records of Lincoln Lodge No. 60 show the adoption of the following resolution at its meeting on

August 6, 1876 - "The question of union of Stanford Rodge No. 492 with this Lodge has been discussed for some years, and the entire membership of this Lodge at one time having expressed a cheerful essent to admitting the members of our sister Lodge to membership with us, and of late the subject being agitated, it was assumed prudent to commit to record our favorable assent to such union, it was therefore resolved - That it is the sense of this Lodge that as our sister Lodge No. 492 A. Y. H., is desirous of surrendering her Charter to the Grand Lodge of Kentucky for the purpose of uniting with this Lodge we therefore cheerfully assent to this arrangement and will assume all the liabilities of 492 provided they turn over to us all their interest in this property and other assets - the Grand Lodge of Kentucky authorizing such a transfer, and ratify such transfer free from the control of the Grand Lodge of Kentucky".

October 20, 1876, the Grand Lodge of Lentucky gave its consent to the merger of the two lodges under these conditions, and on November 15, 1876, the merger was completed by the adoption of the following resolution by Lincoln Lodge No. 60.

"Thereas Stanford Lodge No. 492 has in relinquishment of her Charter, that she might be merged into Lincoln Lodge No. 60, her elder sister, evinced that spirit of fraternal unselfishness characteristic of all good Masons, be it resolved that we sho were the members of Lincoln Lodge No. 60 before this fusion recognize in their action that brotherly love which strengthens the bonds connecting members of the "mystic Tie" and that we extend them most cordial welcome and greeting with a hope that neither word

Enor act may ever remind that we have been other than children of the same fond mother Lincoln Lodge No. 60". The Master of Stanford Lodge No. 492, then formerly turned over the books, papers and belongings to the Master of Lincoln Lodge No. 60. The breach was healed, Stanford Lodge No. 492 was dropped from the Grand Looge register, and on the succeeding day the united Lodge assembled to go to the church and to the grave to bury with Masonic ceremony one of the Craft who had helped to make the union possible. Hallowed sorrow, their first united call; the expression of hallowed hope, their first united act.

JEFTHA LODGE NO. 493
WOLF CREEK, MEADE CO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1870, became defunct October 18, 1888.

BUFORD LODGE NO. 494
MIDWAY, WOODFORD CO., MY.

Chartered October 19, 1870. Reports forty-five members.

LOWER BLUE LICK LODGE NO. 495
BLUE LICK, NICHOLAS CO., KY.

This Lodge was granted dispensation as S. S. Rogers Lodge U.D., and was chartered October 19, 1870, as Lower Blue Lick No. 495, but which has for years been carried upon the Register as Blue Lick No. 495. This Lodge reports a membership of sixty-seven.

NEW PROVIDENCE, CALLOWAY CO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1870, became defunct October 19, 1893.

HALE SPRING LODGE NO. 497
NEW HOPE CHURCH, MARSHALD CO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1870, became defunct October 24, 1889, for non payment of dues, and on same day the dues in arrear were remitted and the Lodge re-instated. The Lodge became defunct 1892.

GLENCOE, GALLATIN CO., KY.

This Loage was chartered October 19, 1870, and its Charter was arrested October 23, 1874.

October 18, 1877, a new Lodge was chartered at this place being the same name and number.

Mirax J. Williams, who as a member of Napoleon Lodge No. 216, was elected Grand Master in 1865, later became a member of this Lodge as one of its Charter members. Of the Charter members of this Lodge in January 1915, Dr. O. B. Yager was the only survivor. This Hodge has a membership of thirty-five.

BARDWELL LODGE NO. 499
BARDWELL, CARLISLE CO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1879 as South Ballard Lodge No. 499.

October 20, 1887 name changed to Bardwell.

ORIENT LODGE NO. 500
HEADQUARTERS, NICHOLAS CO., KY.

Dispensation granted October 17, 1870. Set to work November 19, 1870, by J. P. Ross, Daugherty Lodge No. 65, as proxy for Charles Eginton. Grand Master, installing as first officers: John G. Burries, Master: Nm. J. Kennedy, Senior Warden; Thomas M. Sharp, Junior Warden: Elijah D. Foster, Secretary; Wm. S. Smith, Treasurer; John R. Taylor, Senior Deacon: John S. Hillock, Junior Deacon: B. W. S. Lowe, Tyler. Members: John W. Sharp, Hosea M. Bell. J. B. Taylor, G. C. Smith, J. A. Taylor. The Bodge has always occupied a rented hall, their hall furnishings, charter, records etc.. destroyed by fire December 24, 1892. In answer to telegram to Grand Secretary Grant, Grand Master J. Speed Smith, is sued dispensation of date December 24, 1892, making as first officers: S. R. Fisher, Master: W. O. Wilson, Senior Warden: J. R. Lowe, Junior Warden: M. D. L. Burries, Treasurer: A. A. Rossell, Secretary; J. R. Long, Senior Deacon: J. A. Smith, Junior Deacon; J. E. Bryson and S. L. Harvey, Stewards: J. W. Taylor, Tyler.

A new Charter with old number and name was granted October 17, 1893.

TEXAS LODGE NO. 501
TEXAS, WASHINGTON GO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1871. The officers named in the Charter were: G. A. McCroskey, Master: William A. Power, Senior

Warden; John T. Barker, Junior Warden.

The first officers chosen by the Lodge were: E. S. Mayes, Secretary; John Pope, Treasurer; William Hundley, Senior Deacon; Thomas O. Wilson, Junior Deacon; Thomas C. Rinehart, Steward and Tylor.

In 1888 the modge properties and Charter were burned. October 24, 1889, a new Charter was is sued. The Lodge became defunct in 1897.

E. S. Mayes, one of the Charter members of this Lodge, was later for years the Secretary of Springfield Lodge No. 50, and one of the most exact who ever kept the records in a Masonic Lodge. He was an elder in the Springfield Presbyterian church and as such frequently represented the same in the Church Courts of the State in which bodies he was recognized as a prudent counselor, a fearless representative, and one of the influential members of the body. He died in 1912, beloved and respected by all who knew him.

R. L. Purdom, a minister of the Baptist Church, and a Past Master of this Loage, was one of the most influential and useful citizens of the County.

A. S. Loventhal, a Hebrew, who came from Warren Lodge No. 53, was at one time Master of this Lodge. He was a school teacher in the village, a man of charming personality, of finished education who did much for the betterment of the community, he died some years ago in one of the Southern States.

DUNCAN RODGE NO. 502
DUNCANSVILLE, HERCHR CO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1871, became defunct October 18, 1888.

Charter restored by the Grand Louge in 1889. Lodge became defunct September 7, 1895.

GOSHEN LODGE NO. 603
BETHANY CLURCH, WARRAN CO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1871, at Bays Fork Church, Morren County, in 1891 moved to Bethany Church.

GLENDALE, HARDIN CO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1871. Charter and properties burned July 10, 1886 and Lodge became defunct.

BLAVER LODGE NO. 505 FRENCHBURGH, MENEREE CO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1871.

ELLWINNING LODGE NO. 506 13TH, & MARKET STREETS, LOUISVILLE, JEFFERSON CO., KY.

Organized February 22, 1871, eleven Charter members. First meeting was held in Hall North-east corner 17th., and Hain streets,

moved from there to Fall City Hall, 12th., and Market street, where cyclone of March 27, 1890, destroyed all furnishings, etc.; fortunately it happened on the night that this Loage was not holding session,— during the rebuilding of Fall City Hall occupied temporary quarters at the old Masonic Temple, also old Odd Fellows Temple in Library Hall, Telephone Hall, Lewis Loage Hall (old Market house 26th., snd Fortland Ave.), after return to Fall City Hall to remain there two years, then moved to present location where Loage has been ever since. Present membership two hundred and eighty-five, no Charter members living.

When the Masonic Home Journal was established by the Board of Trustees of the Masonic Widows & Orphans Home, March 20, 1883, George R. Middleton, Past Master of Kilwinning Lodge No. 506, was chosen to organize and manage the plant.

MISFAH LODGE NO. 507 HAZEL GREEN, WOLFE CO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1871

BOSTWICK LODGE NO. 508
BUTLER, PENDLETON CO., KY.

Named in honor of Henry Bostwick, then Grand Master of Kentucky. Instituted under dispensation June 15, 1871. Charter granted October 19, 1871. Lodge held for a few months in an upper room over general store of R. F. Shaw, a Charter member. In 1872 was built a church with hall above by Masons and Good Templars. Good Templars abandoned long ago. The churches have all built

their own houses and the Hasons will soon be the complete owners of the building, which has been kept in good repair. The membership is largely made up of transient men, railroad confuctors, engineers, firemen, mail clerks etc. Two of the members of this loage have served in the Legislature, one in the State Senate.

SLICO LODGE NO. 509
PENDLETON, HANKY CO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1871. October 20, 1876, moved from Sligo, Henry County, to rendleton, Henry County. July 10, 1886, became defunct.

ELIZAVILLE LODGE NO. 510
ELIZAVILLE, FLEMING CO., KY.

Organized as Corner Stone Loage U. D. Chartered as Elizaville Loage No. 510, October 19, 1871. October 19, 1899, became defunct.

VALLEY LODGE NO. 511
ORELL, JEFFERSON CO., KY.

In the early part of the year 1871, G. M. Hiles, Robert H. Stonestreet, Tyns Dodge, and Ben G. Kendall, and a few Masons living in the same district felt strongly the med of a Masonic Lodge in their community. They had no hall but gathered at the residence of the different brothers and petitioned the Grand Lodge of Mentucky to grant them dispensation to organize a Lodge to be

known as Valley Lodge U. D., the same being recommended by Falls City Lodge No. 376 of Louis ville.

The Grami Master, Charles Eginton, granted a dispensation and on August 25, 1871, W. E. Woodruff, Grand Junior Warden, and J. M. S. McCorkle, Grand Secretary, set the Lodge to work with the following brethren present. R. C. Mathews, Samuel Hillman, A. C. Modges, H. S. Burkhart, C. L. Martin, J. F. Davidson, H. M. Hirshfield, G. W. Miles, R. H. Stonestreet, John F. Mc Montgomery, Rev. D. Spurrier, L. Dodge, Richard Stinson, Ben J. Mendall and J. T. Monroe. W. E. Woodruff as proxy for the Grand Master appointed G. W. Miles to be the first Master, Robert H. Stonestreet, Senior Warden and John F. Montgomery, Junior Warden.

October 18, 1871, Valley Lodge was granted a Charter, by the Grand Lodge, to be known as Valley Lodge No. 511 F. & A. M., and W. E. Woodruff under commission installed the officers.

The first few meetings were held at Ben G. Kendall's residence near Hussey's Mill, the Craft in the meanwhile working to secure a piece of property upon which they might erect a hall. Not having a hall, however, did not prevent activity, for on September 4th., the petitions of G. W. Archer, O. N. Fisher and J. B. Alexander were presented, and the three were elected the 2nd., of the following month, to take the Entered Apprentice Degree. They secured a piece of ground and built a Lodge Room which was dedicated by Mr. Woodruff on March 5, 1872. This Hall was erected near Hussey's Mills, Jefferson County, Kentucky, and was to be the home of Valley Lodge until about 1881, when it moved to the present site, Crell, Jefferson County, Ky.

The Lodge was more or less prosperous from the date of its Charter until December 27, 1876, growing financially and adding steadily to its roll of membership. Beginning with the year 1877 very little was done for the next four years, the Lodge being in a dormant state. At the election in December, 1880, a live set of officers were placed in the chairs and immediately the Lodge took on new life. James A. Sanders, the Master, seemed to have been a live wire and with the aid of A. P. Steel, Ellis Mitchell, and several other prominent members of Miles Lodge, rejuvenated the Lodge, bringing in new members and adding materially to the treasury. This good work was kept up until December 27, It seemed to have been customary for Masters to succeed themselves for several years, whether this was due to lack of material, or to the confidence and love of the Craft for the Masters, is difficult to decide. We find such men as G. W. Miles, R. H. Stonestreet, Ben J. Kendall, John B. Alexander amd J. A. Sanders, serving the Lodge in the most efficient manner during their several long terms.

In 1880, F. R. Simcoe, the present Master, was initiated, passed and raised, and from that date until the present time has taken a very active part in Masonry. He has taken a deep interest in his own Lodge, filling practically every office at some time or other and always having the good of the order at heart. He, with a few other faithful brothers, have kept the Lodge on its feet through several periods of depression.

One of the most prominent and active members is Dr. S. S. Foss, who was initiated, passed and raised in 1896 in Valley Lodge.

He took an unusually active part from the time of his initiation: filled the subordinate offices creditably and while Junior Warden acted as Master during the illness of the Master, J. B. Alexander, who seldom at tended the Lodge. About this time the Lodge was going through a period of depression but with the zeal and fidelity of Doctor Foss, who was elected Master December 27, 1905, and assisted by several Past Masters and enthusiastic Masons of Louisville, namely, Past Grand Master John W. Cowles, of Louisville 400. J. R. Shrader, of Shibboleth 750, William Frohmiller of Excelsion 258, George I. Pope, Shibboleth 750, J. P. Downs, Shibboleth 750. Past Grand Master D. J. Gray. Ike T. Woodson of Daylight 760. Charles Gipe Tyler, J. T. Adams, Grand Senior Jarden, Mock of Abraham 8, and Cockrell of Robinson Lodge 206, Valley Lodge was pulled out of a pit snd placed in a flourishing condition. Doe tor Foss served as Master for three years and instilled the Lodge with his enthusiasm. In 1913 he demitted from Valley Lodge, leaving it one of the most prosperous and active Lodges in Kentucky. He had brought the membership from 15 to 90 during his term of office. He demitted to aid in the organizing of Plumb Lodge U. D. For the past two years ha has served as Haster of Plumb Lodge 862.

Valley Lodge has continued its prosperity up to the present time increasing its membership to such an extent that it now finds it necessary to enlarge its quarters. The members have definitely decided to build a new half, which they intend to be a monument to the Craft. In 1912 there were 15 candidates initiated, passed and raised and the present year bids fair to surpass last year's record.

GAINESVILLE LODGE NO. 512 GAINESVILLE, ALLEN CO., KY.

Chartered October 19, 1871, the average yearly membership is about thirty.

The Lodge is out of debt and owns the building in which the meetings are held.

MT. CARLEL LODGE NO. 513
MT. CARLEL, FLEMING CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1872.

ASH LODGE NO. 514

VAN BUREN, ANDERSON CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1872, became defunct October 18, 1888.

H. A. I'. HENDERSON LODGE NO. 515 BLTHLEHER, KONROL CO., MY.

Chartered October 24, 1872.

BRANDING LODGA NO. 516 RUGBY, ADAIR CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1872.

ROCKY EILL LODGE NO. 517 GAME, BARREN CO., KY.

Rocky Hill Lodge No. 517 met for the first time under dispensation November 3, 1871, at Rocky Hill, with V. H. Jones as Froxy for the Grand Master, the Bllowing brethren present: C. H. Wheeler, H. G. Martin, C. F. Spillman, Harvey Doty, J. M. Hackney, H. F. Parker, Thomas Young and M. M. Settle, and the following visiting brethren; R. S. Heiskell, of Jefferson Lodge No. 340, State of Indiana, J. F. Muntford, Elijah Milliams, and M. H. Edmunds, of Allen Lodge No. 24, Glasgow, My. The following brethren were publicly installed into office: C. H. Wheeler, Master; B. G. Martin, Senior Marden; C. F. Spillman, Junior Marden; Harvey Doty, Trease urer; J. M. Hackney, Secretary; H. F. Parker, Senior Descon, Thos. Young, Junior Descon; and M. A. Settle, Steward and Tyler.

The by-laws of Allen Lodge No. 24 were unanimously adopted for the present government of this Lodge, but at a regular meeting on December 2, 1871, some changes were made as to the time of meeting and the wages to be paid the Tyler, putting his salary at \$15.00 per year, payable quarterly, and fixing the time of meeting the first and third Saturday in each month at 6 o'clock P. M.

November 16, 1872, the Lodge was set to work under a Charter, V. H. Jones, again acting as proxy for the Grand Master.

While working under dispensation fifteen condidates were initiated, most all of whom became useful members of the Fraternity. E. G. Martin often acted as Master in the absence of C. M. Wheeler, the Master, who did not attend very regularly, and he was elected to the place on December 27, 1872, and served as Master one year.

He was succeeded in 1873 by C. F. Spillman who served only one year. In December 1875, H. G. Martin was elected Master and was re-elected and served continuously until December, 1906, a period of thirty-one years. He was a faithful and devoted member of the Baptist Church, and a Mason in the full sense of the term. He seldom failed to attend his Loge meetings the he lived some miles away on his farm and had to cross Barren River to get to Rocky Hill. He took an active interest both in religious and political affairs, and had great influence for good in the community. He raised a large family who became prominent citizens. He died at a ripe old age, and was sadly missed by a host of friends and admirers.

- J. A. Snoddy was elected his successor as Master in 1906, and has filled that position to the present time.
- J. W. Hackney was the first Secretary of the Lodge and served as such for several years, other brethren filling the place for short periods of time until 1881, at which time T. G. Page, was elected and served as Secretary until December 1910, a period of twenty-nine years. He is one of the claest, having joined the Lodge while working under dispensation, and is still a regular attendant at its meetings. He moved to Glasgow some years ago, but still holds membership in Rocky Bill Lodge.
- W. P. Devasier was elected Treasurer in 1896 and has filled that position to the present time.

In 1873, the Lodge, in partnership with the School District erected at we story building at Rocky Hill, the lower story is used for the Public School and the Masonic Hall is above.

On Saturday September 27, 1873, the new Lodge building was

dedicated. It was a great day in Rocky Hill(Now changed in name by Post Office Department to Game). A public dinner was given, and an immense crowd of people present, who were entertained with some eloquent addresses by visiting brethren.

This was at one time a strong and enthusiastic country Lodge but in later years the interest has waned and the membership decreased to less than twenty.

FOUNTAIN POWDER MILLS LODGE NO. 518
POWDER MILLS, HART CO., KY.

Chartered October 21, 1872, became defunct October 29, 1893.

STEWARTSVILLE LODGE NO. 519 STEWARTSVILLE, GRANT CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1872, burned in 1891. On October 8, 1891, a new Charter granted. became defunct 1910. Constituted with Grant # 55 10-18-1911

HARRISONVILLE LODGE NO. 520
HARRISONVILLE, SHELBY CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1872, became defunct March 20, 1909.

GREAN HILL LODGE NO. 521 BOLTSFORK, BOYD CO., KY.

This Loage was organized under dispensation November 23, 1871, by demitted members from Cannonsburg Loage No. 383, and worked under dispensation until the next Grand Loage, when a Charter was

granted. The Lodge is in a thrifty condition with a presentmembership of about seventy.

GLEUVILLE LODGE NO. 522

GLENVILLE (FOST OFFICE LIVIA) MCCLAIN CO., KY.

Chenville Lodge No. 522 was organized at Glenville September 2, 1872, there having already be on erected a hall for the occupation of the Lodge.

Pursuant to a call of J. H. Jackson of Lodge No. 310 and S. B. Robertson of Lodge No. 379, Grand Master E. B. Jones appointed the above mamed brethren as proxies to organize and set the Lodge to work under dispensation, with the following Charter members: J. H. Jackson, L. C. Tichenor, J. L. Iglehart, J. H. Baird, Ed. Goodwin, George Osborn, Gip T. Ayer, C. M. Ruby, D. D. Robertson, T. K. Lashbrocks, F. M. Iglehart, George W. Nation.

Glenville Lodge worked under dispensation until first Grand Lodge met at which time their Charter was granted, dated October 4, 1872.

The Lodge adopted the by-laws of Owensboro Lodge until a committee composed of L. C. Tichenor, J. H. Baird, Jr., C. H. Ruby, J. H. Jackson, John Goodwin could draft a set for its government.

On September 18, 1891, the Lodge surrendered its Charter and the following year re-organized and went to work Under Dispensation. In the year 1893, it was re-instated and went to work with nine members under the original Charter, under which it still works.

The hall was destroyed by fire about the year 1894, the records being lost the exact date cannot be ascertained, and was rebuilt at once.

The present membership of thirty-eight is in a prosperous working condition.

ORPHANS PRILIND LODGE NO. 523
MT. CARLEL CHURCH, HOPKINS CO., MY.

Granted dispensation as Mt. Cormel Lodge U. D. Chartered October 24, 1872.

CLAYVILLE LODGE NO. 524 CLAYVILLE, JEBSTER CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1872, became defunct Hereh 1888.

Platia Lodge No. 525

HELD AT

BETHLEHEM CHURCH, GRAVES CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1872, became defunct July 10, 1886.

PARILEYSVILLE LODGE NO. 526 MT. PISGAH, WAYNE CO.. KY.

Parmleysville Lodge No. 526 was established December 16,1871 under dispensation. The Lodge worked under dispensation until October 1872, having received and passed eleven candidates.

The first regular communication under the Charter was on the 14th., day of December 1872.

There are only three of the Charter members of the Lodge now living, viz: Henry M. Sandusky, of Kellogg, Iowa, Sandusky Burnett, of Frazer, Kentucky and H. T. Hurt, who still resides at Mt. Pisgah, Ky., having screed to Lodge as Master for over twenty years, and is still an active worked notwithstanding he is above seventy years of age.

JOHN. C. GERRARD LODGE NO. 527
BOWLING GREAN, MARREN CO., KY.

Became defunct in 1882.

GLENSFORK LODGE FO. 528 GLENVILLE, ADAIR CO., MY.

Glensfork Lodge No. 528 was organized under dispensation in Glenville, Adair County, Kentucky, on December 6, 1871, by H. H. Rhorer, of Columbia Lodge No. 96, who had been appointed for that purpose by Grand Master Bassett.

The Following were the Charter members: J. A. Helsay, J. K. A. Strange, J. F. Morris, J. B. Montgomery, J. O. Murrell, W. A. Strange, A. C. A. Strange and R. B. Gwinn, none of whom are now living.

The Charter members of this Lodge were not men of wealth but they were men of moderate means who loved Free Hasorry for the moral and civilizing effect it has always had in communities where

lodges have been established, and this lodge has been principally made up of like material for over forty years.

years one of the leading physicians of this county. He was an earnest Christian and a devoted Mason, very popular among the people and wielded a great influence in behalf of his lodge.

H. M. Walkup, who was the first person initiated after the formation of this Lodge, took great interest in Free Masonry from the start.

He is still living, has served twelve years as Master, and is considered the best posted Mason in the Lodge.

Mathew Taylor, at the time of the Lodge's organization was an officer in Columbia Lodge No. 96 but later became a member of this Lodge. He served ten years as Master and six years as secretary. He also served his County twelve years as Superintendent of Common Schools. He may be truthfully called the father of Adair County's Common Schools. He is still living but old age and feeble health have not marred his interest in Masonry.

The Lodge has owned its hall from the beginning. For a number of years it occupied an upper story of a store house on the same lot where the Lodge building not stands. Later the store room was converted into a church, which was some years later purchased by the Lodge. In 1905 the old Lodge building was torn down and there was erected in its place the best Lodge building owned by any Lodge in Adair County. In erecting the new hall the Lodge contracted a considerable debt, but at the next annual election, W. A. Garnett, though a young Mason was elected Master and owing to his financial ability, within two years the Lodge was freed from

debt and had money in its treasury.

The Loage has always been efficient in conferring degrees, and has been repeatedly called upon to confer degrees in Lodges in Adair and adjoining counties. In 1892 when the defunct Columbia Lodge No. 96 was re-instated the officers of Glensfork Lodge were called upon to put that Lodge to work. The Lodge now has only twenty-one members but they constitute that many of the best citizens of Adair County and the Masonic spirit pervades them all. Consolidated with Columbia Qio on 7-13-1999

ROWE LODGE NO. 529
FLOYDSBURGH, OLDHAL CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1872, became defunct July 10, 1886.

OTTER CREEK LODGE NO. 530 OTTER CREEK CHURCH, WAYNE CO., KY.

chartered October 24, 1872.

ASHLOR LODGE NO. 531 SALYERSVILLE, MAGOFFIN CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1872, became defunct May 2, 1902. (See Salyersville Lodge No. 769.)

ESOTERIC LODGE NO. 532
FRANKFORT, FRANKLIN CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1873. January 7, 1891 it surremered

its Charter and consolidated with Hiram Lodge No. 4 in the same city.

LAIRSVILLE LODGE NO. 533 LAIRSVILLE, RUBSELL CO., KY.

Lairsville Lodge U. D., was organized on the 24th., day of October, 1872, the ceremonies being in charge of S. P. Collins of Russell Lodge No. 284, proxy for the Grand Master. Charter was granted October 24, 1873. All the Charter members are dead, except John Ballenger, Shelby C. Stokes and J. M. Smith, the last being the only one still a member of this Lodge, he having served as Master two or more years and as Secretary for thirty years or more.

The original Charter having gotten defeced by a gun shot was carried to the Grand Lodge and exchanged for a new one on the 16th., day of October, 1895

PINEVILLE, BELL CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1873, was burned out and became defunct October 25, 1889.

PLEASANT HILL LODGE NO. 535 MeWHORTER, LAUREL CO., KY.

Pleasant Hill Lodge No. 555 was organized under dispensation

on Honday, Becember 2, 1872, at Pleasant Hill, Clay County, Ky. The Lodge worked under dispensation until October 1893, when it was given a Charter, dated October 24, 1873.

The Lodge was set to work by John Pitmam of McKee Lodge No. 144 as proxy of the Grand Haster under the name of Fleasant Hill Lodge No. 535.

During the year 1887 the Lodge was removed from Pleasant Hill, Clay County, to McWhorter, Laurel County, Kentucky, where it owns a comfortable Lodge room.

CASEY CREEK LODGE NO. 536 CASEY CREEK, ADAIR CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1873.

NORTH BALLARD LODGE NO. 537 BANDANA, BALLARD CO., KY.

A dispensation was granted by order of the Grand Lodge, on October 24, 1872, with A. A. Shelby as Master, R. B. Ogden, as Senior Marden, and L. F. Hodges, as Junior Marden, to meet in North Ballard, in Ballard County near Ogden's Landing, on the Ohio River, and was organized the following month in the residence of Wm. Holman, On October 24, 1873, it was granted a Charter, and in the same year built a hall over the Presbyterian Church, at Ogden, about one mile east of Holman's residence, and worked in this hall until August 1699, when they moved to Bandana, in new hall over school building, a distance of two and one-half miles

South, and in 1913, sold the hall to county high school and bought hall over bank building in Bandana, where it is now located.

This Lodge has initiated since its organization, 144 members, and received on demits from other lodges 21 members, total membership during the whole time 165. Number of members died during the whole time, 46; members demitted to other lodges 27; members suspended for non-payment of dues, 22; members expelled during this time, 9; total number of members died, domitted, suspended and expelled, 104, leaving the present membership 61.

Total number of fast hasters during the thole time, 24.

A. M. Shelby, the first haster, is still living and is in good standing and a member of this Lodge, and has served as Master five terms.

SEBREE, WEBSTER CO., MY.

Chartered October 24, 1873. Burned September 3, 1897. Hew Charter is sued October 20, 1897. Charter destroyed 1898, new one is sued October 19, 1898.

MOLURE LODGE NO. 539
ROCKY HILD STATION, EDMONSON CO., MY.

Chartered October 24, 1873. Burned April 7, 1877. New Charter granted October 18, 1877, burned 1894. New Charter granted October 17, 1894.

NORTH BEND LODGE NO. 540 FRANCISVILLE, BOONE CO., KY.

North Bend Lodge No. 540 was organized October 1872, with the following members: Cyrus Riddell, Master, J. C. Derrill, Senior Warden; C. W. Riley, Junior Warden; Walter Goodridge, Treasurer; James T. Grubbs, Secretary; J. H. Scothorn, Senior Deacon; J. H. Henderson, Junior Deacon; Allen Goodridge, Steward and Tyler; Wesley Quick and W. H. Harrison.

All of the above mamed persons were numbers of Burlington Lodge No. 264, except ... H. Harrison.

North Bend Lodge was very prosperous at one time, but later moved her Charter to Bullittsville, Boone County, Kentucky, and lost her Charter in November 1886.

HANSON LODGE NO. 541
HANSON, HOPKING CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1873, became defunct July 10, 1886.

FITCH MUNGER LODGE NO. 542 SHROUT'S STORE, NICHOLAS CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1875. Moved to Willow Valley, December, 1878. became defunct ectober 19, 1898.

CALVERT CITY LODGE NO. 543 CALVERT CITY, HARSHALL CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1873.

BELLEVIEW LODGE NO. 544
MCVILLE, (GRANT F. O.) BOONE CO. KY.

Belleview Lodge was organized chiefly through the efforts of Elijah Ryle, who was a member of Boone Union Lodge No. 304, and who became the first Master of Belleview Lodge.

The Locke was set to work under a dispensation on June 27,1874, by Past Master J. M. Black of Hamilton Lodge No. 354, as Proxy of the Grand Master, with the following Charter members: Elijah Ryle, Master; J. T. Marsholl, Sonior Marden; Joshua Rice, Junior Warden; R. L. Aylor, Treasurer; J. W. Rice, Secretary: O. J. Ryle, Senior Deacon; M. S. Rice, Junior Deacon, and T. J. Stephens, Tyler. Three of these Charter members are still living but are now members of other lodges.

A Charter was granted October 23, 1874. Since the Lodge was organized there have been fifty-four initiations and seventeen admitted from other Lodges, making a total of seventy-eight who have been members. There have been nine who died, twenty-two demitted, eight suspended and three expelled, the present membership is thirty-six, of which seven have been admitted from other Lodges.

For many years the Lodge met at Belleview where it was organized, but in 1886 it moved to McVille, about one-half mile distant

where it has been located since.

The Lodge owns its home and is in good shape financially. Its representatives in Grant Lodge have always supported all measures for the benefit of the Widows & Orphans Home, although it has never had a beneficiary there.

PILGRIM LODGE NO. 545 SHREWSBERRY, GRAYSON CO., KY.

February 17, 1874, set to work by N. N. Hackley, as the Grand Master's proxy. The Lodge was chartered October 21, 1874. The Craft own the house in which the meetings are held. The membership numbers fifty.

NEW COLUMBUS LODGE NO. 546
NEW COLUMBUS, OWEN COUNTY, KY.

7

Charter granted October 22, 1854. Reports seventeen members to the Grand Lodge in 1915.

BAKERTON LODGE NO. 547
BAKERTON, CULBERLAND CO., KY.

Chartered October 23, 1874, became defunct Hay 13, 1884.

E. W. TURNER LODGE NO. 548
EARLINGTON, HOFRING COUNTY, KY.

October 24, 1873, the Grand Lodge of Kentucky granted a

dispensation to Turner Lodge U. D., taking its beme from Gram Master E. J. Turner, who served in that capacity October 1872 to October 1873.

The following appear as members under dispensation, the first three being named as Master, Senior and Junior Warden in that order; Louis Weber, W. C. Baldwin, Daniel W. Umstead, Benjamin Robinson, Simeon Roberts, J. H. Trathen, H. H. Brasher, Jr., John McKinnell, Wm. C. Umstead, Edward Lawrence and Joseph R. Taylor.

The infant lodge rapidly increased in numbers both by initiation and affiliation, so that on October 23, 1874, the Grand Lodge granted a Charter to E. W. Turner Lodge No. 548 with the following as officers: Louis Weber, Master; Thomas D. Walker, Senior Warden; and Daniel W. Umstead, Junior Warden. This Charter bears the signature of Thomas J. Picket, Grand Master and J. H. S. McCorkle, Grand Secretary. Louis Weber, the Lodge's first Master died on November 6, 1875, and was buried in Oakwood Cemetery, Earlington.

In October 1876, fire destroyed the Masonic Hall with all its contents and the Looge was without a home until 1881, when what is now known as the "Old Masonic Hall" was erected on Clark St. This was the Looge's home until 1901, when it moved into the third story of the new Temple Theatre Building, whore it now works.

E. N. Turner Lodge No. 548 is strong and vigorous, made so by the untiring efforts of its members, among whom may be especially mentioned Past Hasters N. A. Toombs and C. A. Woolfolk. Their constant presence and helpful co-operation have endeared them to

Craft, and their knowledge of Masonry and the character of their work have "spread their fame" far beyond the confines of this Lodge's jurisdiction.

Among the Lodge's cherished possessions is the certificate of Life Hembership in the Masonic Widows and Orphans Home and Infirmary. This is dated October 19, 1881, and bears the signatures of Thomas L. Jefferson, President, and M. B. Grant, Secretary.

RENICK LODGE NO. 549

DRIPPING SPRINGS, MATCALFE CO., KY.

Chartered October 23, 1874. Reports fourteen members.

EZEL MORGAN CO., KY.

Ezel Lodge under dispensation was set to work by W. T. Havens, of Highland Lodge No. 311, Harch 13, 1874.

A. B. Rickell served as Grand Fursuivant of the Grand Hodge of Kentucky one year, being the only Grand officer Ezel Lodge ever had among its members.

of the Lentucky Legislature. J. M. Fieratt served one term in the State Senate and Joseph C. Lykins and Asa B. Fieratt one term each in the Aentucky Legislature. The present State Senator Charles D. Arnett, was made a Mason in Ezel Loage and is still a member in good standing. John S. Nickell has the honor of serving the Loage longer as Secretary than any other member of it, and was one of seventeen secretaries who was placed on the honor

roll for sending in a perfect report to the Grand Secretary. He is the only Charter member now holding membership in the Lodge, the others being dead or demitted.

B. P. Davis has served one term as Mayor of Ezel and five terms as Police Judge; was four years State Secretary of Kentucky Farmers Alliance, and three years Clerk of Mt. Zion Baptist Association.

PULASKI LODGE NO. 551 CAIN'S STORE, PULASKI CO., KY.

Chartered October 22, 1874. Charter forfeited October 19, 1892. Restored May 16, 1893. Became defunct July 6, 1896.

LITTLE BARREN LODGE NO. 552

November 8, 1873, a dispensation was granted for the organization of a Masonic lodge at Balem Church, Green County, Mentucky, and William Adair was made the proxy of the Orand Master to install the orficers and set the Lodge to work. October 23, 1874, the Lodge was granted a Charter and assigned the number 552. #. F. Gorin was the first Master, J. M. Middleton, Senior Marden; M. D. Montgomery, Junior Warden, G. T. Wilcoxson, Treasurer; M. M. Lasley, Secretary; J. M. Mitchum, Senior Meacon, J. M. Mitchum, Junior Deacon; These seven constituted the Charter members of the Lodge. Of these ** A. Masley and J. M. Mitchum are the only survivors.

- D. J. Davis filed the first petition for initiation in the Lodge, was received, given the degrees am paid for same by making the furniture of the Lodgo, he being a cabinet maker.
- W. F. Gorin served as Master of the Lodge from the date of its organization to 1876.

At the May meeting 1901 by a vote of 6 to 3 it was resolved to move the Lodge from Salam in Green County to Monroe in Hart County, the requisite permission being obtained the move was made, and the first-meeting of the Lodge in the new hall at the new home was November 14, 1901.

Since its organization the Lodge has received into its mombership ninety-three and of these thirty-seven have withdrawn by demit.

GIBSON LODGE NO. 553

HARLAN (FORMERLY MT. PLEASANT) HARLAN CO., KY.

Chartered October 23, 1874. Charter became lost in 1891, and on October 8th., of that year a new one was issued in lieu thereof. The Lodge became defunct June 1901.

KNOAVILLE LODGE NO. 554
KNOAVILLE, PANDLLTON CO., KY.

Chartered October 23, 1874. January 13, 1876, was burned. October 20, 1876, a new Charter is sued in lieu of one destroyed. The Loage became defunct September 23, 1908.

THOMAS B. GOSSOM LODGE NO. 555 GRIDER SCHOOL HOUSE, WARREN CO., KY.

Chartered October 23, 1874.

ROSINE LODGE NO. 556
ROSINE, OHIO CO., MY.

Chartered October 23, 1874. Burmed November, 1882. New Charter granted October 18, 1883. Burmed 1900. New Charter granted October 18, 1900.

FORKS OF ROUGH LODGE NO. 557
FLEASANT HILL CHURCH (LeDANIELS 2.0.) BRECKINGIDGE CO., KY.

Charte red October 23, 1874, became defunct October 22, 1889.

MT. PLEASANT LODGE NO. 558
MT. PLEASANT, UNION CO., KY.

Chartered October 23, 1874. Lodge property burned in 1884 and Lodge became defunct July 10, 1886.

SHADY GROVE LODGE NO. 559 SHADY GROVE, ORITHHDAN GO., MY.

November 15, 1873, a dispensation was granted authorizing the establishment of a Lodge a Shady Grove. The Lodge was chartered October 23, 1874.

BETHANY LODGE NO. 560 CANLY FORK CHURCH, ONEN CO., KY.

Chartered October 23, 1874.

DERRICK WARNER LODGE NO. 561
PREACHERSVILLE, LINCOLN CO., KY.

This Lodge owns a large two story building, the ground floor of which is used by the Public School. The upstairs rooms are occupied by the Lodge.

STAFFORD LODGE NO. 562 FITCHBURG, ESTILL CO., KY.

Chartered October 22, 1875.

FLAT ROCK LODGL NO. 563 SMITH'S GROVE, WARREN CO., KY.

Flat Rock Loage No. 563, held at Smith's Grove, Warren County, Kentucky, was organized and set to work October 28, 1874, by T. J. Smith, of Sowling Green Loage No. 78 as proxy for Grand Haster Bostwick.

The Loage owns its own building and has at this time a membership of thirty-eight. Only two of its Charter members survive. Dr. George W. White, the first Master who was seventy-five years of age May 14, 1917, and W. W. Elrod, who was the first Senior Warden.

NEW HOPE LODGE NO. 564 ENDEE, OWSLEY CO., KY.

This Lodge was organized March the 27, 1875, with seven Charter members.

In 1913 John B. Bowman, Master, Jake Bowman, Junior Warden, pro tem, Tom Bowman, Senior Marden, pro tem, initiated, passed and raised their father who is now a very active member.

M. V. Berker, the only one of the Charter members surviving, is a very active and interesting member at the age of eighty-five years.

The Lodge has a present membership of eighty-eight.

NOAH'S ARK LODGE NO. 565 LONG RUN, JEFFERSON CO., KY.

Charte red October 22, 1875, and became defunct July 10, 1886.

BRODHEAD LODGE NO. 566
BRODHEAD, ROCKCASTLE CO., KY.

Chartered October 22, 1875.

BARKLEY LODGE NO. 567
GOLDEN POND, TRIGG CO., KY.

Chartered October 22, 1875. Consolidated with No. 575, December 1889.

ELKHORN LODGE NO. 568
ELKHORN, THYLOR CO., KY

Chartered October 22, 1875.

ROWLING WORK LODGE NO. 569 HODGENVILLE, LARUE CD., KY.

Chartered October 20, 1876, at Rolling Fork, Nelson County, moved to Hodgenville, Larue County, in 1878, became defunct October 18, 1888.

BUFFALO, LARUE CO., XY.

A new faithful and determined Masons at Buffalo, Ky., having resolved to secure to themselves the advantage and pleasure of a Masonic Lodge, erected a suitable lodge building and asked the organization of a Lodge under dispensation, which was granted, and the Lodge set to work Parch 10, 1875, by Past Grand Master J. B. Allen.

Of the Charter members now living are Villiam Bayne, J. H. Underwood and J. R. Holland.

The Ledge has now a membership of one hundred and nine. Dr. N. C. Linley has served the Lodge as Laster eleven times.

> HURRICAND LODGE NO. 571 SHERIDAN, CRITTENDEN CO., KY.

Hurricane Lodge No. 571, held at Sheridan, Crittenden County,

Kentucky, on or after full moon in each month, at 2 P. M.

Upon petition of John T. Crandell, Solomon G. Lee, Thomas Flanary, Charles R. Hamilton, John Stalion, James N. Cary, Dempsey B. Stalion, Elijah B. Franklin, Joshua Hamilton and Lit O. Threlkeld, a dispensation was granted by the Grand Haster empowering them to work as a Masonic Lodge, to meet at or near Hurricane Furnace in Crittenden County, Kentucky, to be known as Hurricane Lodge, U. D. Appointing Thomas L. Hunn, of Zion Hill Lodge No. 371, his proxy to set Graft to work, and in accordance with which he duly congregated the Craft on Fovember 25, 1874, and set the Lodge to work and installed the first of ficers.

At first stated communication of Hodge held November 28", 1874, the by-laws governing Bigham Lodge No. 256 were adopted.

The first petition received by the Lodge was that of P. C. Moore, who on December 26, 1874, who duly elected and initiated as A. B. Mason; passed to F. C. degree January 23, 1875; raised to Sublime degree of Master Mason March 27, 1875, being compelled by broken limb to miss February meeting. He has seven times been elected and served as Laster of the Lodge. He is now in his seventy-eighth year but still a faithful worker, regular in attendance.

At Frand Lodge Session of 1875, dispensation was continued for another year. Charter was granted October 20, 1876, under make of Hurricane Lodge No. 571.

November, 1887, the Lodge hall burned, records saved, but Charter and all paraphernalis lost. On December 9, 1887, dispensation granted to continue work.

In January, 1888, the Lodge began holding meetings at Tolu, Crittenden County, Aentucky, and comminued to work by consent of Drand Lodge without Charter until new Charter was issued Cetober 19, 1892. New Charter naming P. C. Moore, Master, J. L. Love, Senior Namaen, and Lorenza A. Weldon, Junior Marden.

on April 6, 1893, permission was granted by Grand Master to move hodge to Sheridan, Crittenden County, Mentucky, at which point it is now held. On removal to Bheridan the Craft confronted with the necessity of building a Lodge room as there was no suitable building in which to hold the meetings. From various causes the membership of the Lodge had diminished to ten members with ten dollars in treasury. Notwithstanding the hardships encountered there was built a Lodge room 20x40 feet over storeroom of ... J. Bebout, and the building is now paid for.

E. B. Franklin, who was Charter member of Lodge is still an active member thereof.

At the meeting of July 1, 1893, A. J. Bebout, F. H. Smithland Lodge, No. 138, was elected to membership in this Lodge. He was initiated February 15, 1873, passed February 21, 1873, raised March 15, 1873. This was by special dispensation of Grand Haster of Illinois, he having taken Degrees in Elizabethtown Lodge. Elizabethtown, Hardin County, Illinois. Since being a member of Hurricane Lodge he has served as Haster of this Lodge fourteen terms.

W. E. CUNNINGHAE LODGE NO. 572 HEDGES, CLARK CO., KY.

This Lodge was named in honor of ... R. Oudningham a prominent physician and enthusiastic Mason who was a leader in the organization of the Lodge, but who died before the Lodge was instituted.

On March 1, 1875, a dispensation was granted by Grand Master Henry Bostwick, and on the 12th., day of March, 1875, this Lodge was formally instituted.

The first officers were: John T. Clark, Haster; John A. Lubank, Senior Warden; Waller L. Huls, Junior Warden; Samuel Rayden, Treasurer; A. ... Clay, Secretary; Minor H. Hisle, Senior Descon; James Hensley, Junior Descon; J. T. Huls, Steward and Tyler.

Since its institution this Lodge has received members as follows: by initiation 85; by demit, 18; Charter members, 18, making a total of 121 members, and lost by death, 30; by demit 45; by suspension, 13, total 88, leaving a present membership of 33.

It has paid over one thousand dollars to the didows and Orphans Home, and the Lodge has at different times had five beneficiaries at the Home.

RED OAK GROVE RODGE NO. 573 OAKVIILE, LOGAN CO., KY.

Chartered October 20, 1876.

SPRING HILL LODGE NO. 574
SPRING HILL, HICKMAN CO., KY.

Granted dispensation in October 1874, chartered October 20, 1876. Charter members, J. D. Grooks, H. H. Porter, R. J. Bugg,, T. C. Byassee, M. L. Evans, H. F. Bugg, S. L. Humphreys, B. P. Berry, J. C. Bugg, M. T. Slayden, G. J. Simpson and K. M. Wyatt.

The Lodge owns its place of meeting, a hall over a church, valued at \$500.00. It is conveniently located in a thriving village surrounded by a prosperous farming community.

LINTON LODGE NO. 575 LINTON, TRIGG COUNTY, KY.

Chartered October 20, 1875. December 1889 consolidated with Berkley Lodge No. 567 at Golden Pond, Trigg County, and the Charter of Linton Lodge No. 575 was then recalled and its number has since been unused upon the Grand Lodge register.

HEPBURN LODGE NO. 576
MARCHNSBURG, ELLIOT CO., KY.

Chartered October 20, 1876.

DE KOVEN LODGE NO. 577
DE KOVEN, UNION CO., KY.

Chartered October 20, 1876.

J. D. HAMILTON LODGE NO. 578 UNION CITY, MADISON CO., KY.

A dispensation for the formation of this Lodge was granted November 13, 1875. It was authorized to meet the second Saturday in each month at 1 F. M., o'clock and for nearly forty years has continued to meet at the same time and place, Union City, Kentucky. The officers who were deignated to act while the Lodge worked under dispensation were afterwards installed as the regular officers after the Charter was granted. They were: Webber H. Sale, Master; M. T. Craig, Senior Marden; M. J. Welden, Junior Warden; Thompson Reen, Treasurer; J. D. Lamilton, Secretary; J. M. Hamilton, Senior Descon; Taylor Milliams, Junior Descon; Dillard Cox, Tyler.

Nearly all the membership came from Waco Lodge No. 238, and at this first meeting the by-laws of that Lodge were adopted for guidance. These men were representative of the best types of the citizenship of their community and the Lodge immediately commanded the respect of all within its jurisdiction. A Charter was granted October 20, 1876. Captain John H. Leathers, who for so many years has been the Treasurer of the Grand Lodge of Aentucky, was the presiding Grand Master, and as such signed this Charter. He still lives honored and loved by the Craft. The incoming Grand Master being unable to be present personally to set the brethren to work under their Charter, designated Dennis Zittle, of Waco Lodge, a fast Master, to act as his proxy and perform that duty. This he, with a number of other brethren, did November 11, 1876. After stating the purpose of the meeting the acting Grand Master proceeded

while working under dispensation. There were about twenty-five brethren present. All who were there on that beautiful autumn day have passed over the river save Taylor Williams, the Junior Deacon, D. G. Berry, Martin Gentry and ... S. Gott. Truly our lives are like the sands in the hour glass, almost imperceptibly, but how rapidly, they pass.

- J. D. Humilton Lodge has had fifteen men preside over it as Masters. Most of these Masters were re-elected because of faithful service.
- J. D. Hamilton, after whom the lodge was named, was made a Mason in Waco wodge No. 338 and had served as its Master. He was from the beginning until his death, August 19, 1908, the controlling spirit in all off its endeavors. He secured the Charter, he was its first Becretary and served as Master ten years. It is today a monument to his memory and as long as his spirit survives among the brethren it will and should live.

The annual elections on St. John's Day are always celebrated in a most delightful way by this Lodge. The wives, daughters and sweethearts gather and a splendid dinner is enjoyed by all. At this dinner impromptu addresses are made by visitors and brethren.

PETERSBURG LODGE NO. 579
FETERSBURG, BOOKE COUNTY.KY.

Chartered October 20, 1876. October 25, 1889 the Charter was arrested, but later restored. The Lodge went out of existence February 11, 1893.

LIBERTY LODGE NO. 580
PRANCIS, CRITTENDEN CO., KY.

Chartered October 20, 1876.

FAVORITE LODGL NO. 581 EWING, FLAMING CO., KY.

Chartered October 20, 1876.

ARLINGTON LODGE NO. 582
ARLINGTON, CARLISLE CO..KY.

Arlington Lodge No. 582, organized June 9, 1874, dispensation granted May 29, 1874.

Dr. John R. Owen, of this Lodge, practiced medicine from March 1868, to his demise, March 6, 1912; was President of the Ballard County Medical Society in 1885, of the Carlisle County Medical Society in 1889 and 1900; was local surgeon of Illinois Central Railroad from about 1878 until his death; served as Postmaster from 1895 to 1897; was a Confederate soldier four years; received the Entered Apprentice and Fellow Craft degrees in an army Lodge in 1865; was raised October 1875; fillsd every of fice in the Eodge with the possible exception of Junior Marden.

DR. Robert T. Hocker, he spracticed medicine since September 1868; was President of the Graves County Medical Society in 1878 and 1879, of the Southwestern Kentucky Medical Association in 1886 and 1887, and of the Carlisle County Medical Society 1889, 1890, 1891; served as Postmaster from 1886 to 1889; has filled all the offices

of the Lodge except Treasurer.

Lenna B. Owen represented Ballard and Carlisle Counties in the Legislature of mentucky 1911-13; was appointed Postmaster 1914.

4. F. BLARD LODGE NO. 583

BAILEY'S MILL (FLAT FORK P.O.) FRANKLIN CO., KY.

Chartered October 20, 1876, became defunct October 19, 1883.

CORINTH LODGE NO. 584 CORINTH, GRANT CO., KY.

Chartered as Ravens Creek Lodge No. 611, October 20, 1876. Consolidated with Corinth Lodge No. 611, took the name and number of Corinth Lodge 584.

Wm. S. FANT LODGE NO. 585 FLEJSANT VALLEY, NICHÓRAS CO., KY.

Chartered October 20, 1676.

Mendia bodge no. 586
LEBAMON JUNCTION, BULLITY CO., MY.

Organized December 3, 1875, as J. D. Wickliffe Loage, U. D., with the following Charter members: Charles B. Tydings, Henry H. Hart, John L. Thompson, J. L. Ricketts, James D. McNeil, James Masden, Hardin Masden, E. S. Dulin, H. h. Crow, Frank Lovelace,

W. S. Crow, George W. Ernest, Luther Marren and J. W. Mount. Dispensation is sued by Grand Master John H. Leathers. Following officers were appointed: Henry H. Hart, Master; John L. Thompson, Senior Marden: J. E. Ricketts, Junior Marden; James Masden, Treasurer; Charles D. Tydings, Secretary; James D. McNeil, Senior Deacon; Luther Marren, Junior Deacon.

During the dispensation the name of the Lodge was changed to McNeil Lodge, and The Grant Lodge of Kentucky at its meeting in 1876, granted Charter in the name of McNeil Lodge No. 586.

Following were the first officers of McNeil Lodge No. 586:

H. H. Hart, Master; J. L. Thompson, Senior Marden; J. E. Ricketts,
Junior Warden; J. Masden, Treasurer; C. B. Tydings, Secretary;

J. D. McNeil, Senior Deacon; W. Mayfield, Junior Deacon; Luther

Warren, Tyler.

The modge has had a very successful career. It built and now owns and occupies one of the handsomest and most completely equipped homes in the State, which is used exclusively as a home for Masonic Lodges.

McNeil Lodge No. 586 has one hundred and fifty-nine members, all of them being among the most earnest and enthusiastic Masons to be found in the State.

DAYSVILLE LODGE NO. 587 DAYSVILLE, TODD CO., KY.

Chartered October 20, 1876. The Lodge was burned and became defunct June 7, 1890.

ROBERT M. OHENS LODGE NO. 588 TOLLSBORO, LEWIS CO., KY.

This Lodge was set to work as Lewis Lodge U. D., and on October 20, 1876, chartered as Robert M. Owens Lodge No. 588. The Lodge became defunct May 18, 1901.

ANDREW JACKSON LODGE NO. 589

JORDAN'S STATION, FURTON CO., KY.

Chartered October 20, 1876, became defunct October 1, 1878. It lacked the endurance of "Old Hickory".

EMULATION LODGE NO. 590 SHARPSVILLE, MASHINGTON CO., MY.

The Lodge was chartered October 20, 1876 at Sharpsville, Ky., with J. A. Litteral as first Master, William C. Case, Senior Warden, and William Litteral, Junior Warden.

John Litteral, the first Master, was succeeded by his father William Litteral, and he in turn by John A. Litteral. They being the only Masters who were ever installed. Winfield S. Colvin was elected Master in 1880 but was never installed.

The Lodge seemed prosperous until the additional assessment of one dollar was voted for the benefit of the Masonic Widows and Orphans Home. Most of the members of the Lodge were opposed to this proposition and the Lodge began to decline. Instead of paying their dues in the ordinary way they began to pay them by drawing on the Lodge funds in the Treasurer's hands and the result was that

the treasury was so on depleted. The members then all demitted except the officers, the Charter was allowed to be eaten by the rats and the Lodge was arrested in 1886

ROBINSON CREEK LODGE NO. 591 BOREING, LAUREL CO., MY.

Chartered ctober 18, 1877.

NEW ROE LODGE NO. 592 NEW ROE, ALLEN CO., KY.

Lodge or ganized under dispensation April 22, 1876, by Samuel B. Hendricks of New Salem Lodge No. 462 as proxy for the Grand Master, who installed the following of ficers: William R. Hendricks, Master; J. C. Hobdy, Senior Warden, R. D. Anthony, Junior Warden, M. C. Hobdy, Treasurer; B. F. Anthony, Secretary; W. W. Hunt, Senior Deacon; G. S. Anthony, Junior Deacon; W. T. Anthony, Steward and Tyler.

October 18, 1877, the Lodge was chartered and has since its organization maintained the Masonic spirit and a membership of about thirty Master Masons.

BOSTON LODGE NO. 593
JELLICO, WHITEEY CO., KY.

Chartered 'ctober 18, 1877. On March 20, 1916, this Lodge and Egint on Lodge No. 490, at Williamsburg, Kentucky, consolidated under the name of Williamsburg Lodge No. 490, with the place of

meeting at Williamsburg, Mentucky.

MIDDLEBURG, CASEY COUNTY, KY.

Marly in the year 1877 the following Master Masons as Charter members were set to work in J. D. Wesley Lodge U. D. Officers:

Joshua T. Wesley, Master; James A. Bryant, Senior Warden; George G. Fair, Junior Warden; Benjamin F. Estes, Treasurer; James C. Williams, Secretary; Rev. John M. Sallee, Senior Leacon; Morgan S. McCaniel, Junior Deacon; Jesse Coffey, Steward and Tyler.

Past Masters Benjamin P. Estes and Joseph T. Wesley, Master Masons Joseph Coffey, James A. Estes, Ephriam J. Godbey, James H. Hall and J. A. Martin.

On October 18, 1877, the Lodge was chartered as Middleburg
Lodge No. 594 with J. T. Wesley, Master, James A. Bryent, Senior
warden and George J. Pair, Junior Warden. About this time a
movement was instituted for the founding of a college at Middleburg, Mentucky. The membership of the Lodge was composed of
schorents of the three churches in the community - Christian,
Mothodist and Baptist - and it was largely due to the influence of
the Masons that the three churches agræd to co-operate in the
erection of the school buildings. The Craftsmen were loyal workers
for the school. They contributed about three thousand dollars to
the building fund. Later the wodge accepted a proposition to
linish up and furnish one room for the privilege of holding
meetings therein. The Lodge completed the room at an expense of
approximately three hundred collars. All was well and both Lodge

and school did a great work for the citizenship of Casey County.
Unforturately, after many years of useful a covice, the school
became so much indebted that the buildings were sold to satisfy the
creditors. The Rasons thereby lost the use of the hall, became
discouraged and finally surrendered their Charter on October 18,1900.
Soon, however, the Rasons resolved to reorganize and continue
their work. They encouraged the organization of the Farmers Deposit
Bank and the erection of a bank buulding with a hall on the second
floor. The structure being completed, they patitioned for a restoration of their Charter, which petition was granted on October
18, 1905. The hodge has met regularly in the hall in the bank
building ever since its Charter was restored.

One of the first things the members of the fraternity did after reorganization was to encourage the organization of a Graded and High School and the purchase of the school property and grounds, which had been sold. This was accomplished in 1908, since which time the school has done splendid work and has been well patronized.

We hesitate to attempt to make the Craftsmen who have done most for the Lodge and for the community. Practically every member has so filled his station in life that the Masonic Praternity is highly respected throughout this section. It has been said that a history of the late Dr. J. T. Mesley would be a history of the Middleburg Lodge. He was first Master and filled that station for marly a quarter of a century. He was always a diligent student of Masonry and ever willing and anxious to impart light to his less informed brothers. He taught by precept and example

the true spirit of Hasonry. He was not only a great Hason but a great citizen and above all a great physicism. He served as counsellor and Vice President of the Aentucky State Hedical Association. He did an extensive practice for an appreciative patronage for almost half a century. He never shut his ear to the call for help. As he lay sick upon his own bed, there came to him a messenger that at the foot of the distant hills a somen's life was in peril - that waters unfordable swept the roads between her and every physicien within reach except himself, and the appeal for help was made to him.

From his own sick chamber he mode out into the blinding storm, traversing, in part, a way over which a horse could not carry him - he waded through mud and water - reached the house of suffering - relieved the distress of the afflicted household and restored the woman well to her family - but forfeited his can like to do it - he quickly succumbed to the exposure.

When his lifeless body was carried to the church house for parting hymn and prayer his bier was bourne between long lines of men and women who with tear stained cheeks had come to pay his memory honor, and as living tribute covered his burial box not only with rare exotic bloom, but with the graceful fermand wild flower native to the hills among which he lived. Such funerals are rarely seen, because such men are rare.

MASONIC WIDOWS AND ORTHANS HOME LODGE NO. 595 TILTON, FLERING CO., MY.

Charte red October 18, 1877, became defunct October 22, 1895.

BREMEN LODGE NO. 596
BREMEN, MUHLENBERG CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1877. Burned June 29, 1889. New Charter is sued October 24, 1889.

HOCKER LODGE TO. 597 RILLYS, MARION.CO., KY.

Chartered October 18, 1877, became defunct October 24, 1889.

JOHN H. LAATHERS LODGE NO. 598
MOUNT ZION, GRANT CO., MY.

Chartered October 18, 1877, became defunct October 18, 1888.

CLIFTY LODGE NO. 599 BIG CLIFTY, GRAYSON CO., KY.

Clifty Loage U. D., was organized at its Loage room in Grayson County, Kentucky, November 4, 1876. Charter was granted this Loage October 1877, and given the number 599. The Loage room was in a hall over Clifty Church, located on the head waters of Clifty Croek, Ky. The Loage was moved to Big Clifty, Ky., its

present site in March 1889. June, 1913, the Loage hall was destroyed by cyclone but was rebuilt the following September and is now clear of all indebtedness.

The Loage has forty members at present and is in good working order.

FORDSVIELD LODGE NO. 600 FORDSVIELD, ONTO CO., MY.

Chartered October 25, 1878. Reports eighty members.

FORD JORG BODGE NO. 601
FORD CREEK ORDROH, J.Casor Co., Ky.

On April 4, 1877, an article of agreement was entered into between rond Creek Church, and a "body" of Free and Accepted Masons" regarding a building, the upper part to be used as a Lodge room, while the lower part of the building was to be used by the church. To this agreement appears the rames of Hiram Gabbard, S. J. Powell and Menry Sheppard, representing the Church and L. P. Settle, H. S. Powell and John Mard, representing the Hasons.

This, it seems, was the beginning of rond Fork Lodge, the first "Masonic body", or ganized in Jackson County, mentucky. Beyond this there, seems to have been very little done until early in the year 1878, when R. M. Farleigh, Grand Master of the Grand Lodge of mentucky, granted a dispensation making H. S. Fowell, I. S. Jones and C. J. rowell as principal of ficers and in April 1878 opened(by proxy) a Lodge of Laster Basons for the purpose of

installing of the ers and "setting Lodge to work."

The first meeting Under Dispensation was held May 4, 1878, the names of H. S. Powell, I. S. Jones, C. J. Powell, C. D. Powell, S. J. Powell, J. N. Culton and the Rev. Elias Moore appearing as Charter members.

At that time this part of the country was very sparsely settled, there being no other lodge for many miles but Pond Fork: Lodge prospered from the first and while it has never been able to report a large number, there are those who received "Light" in this Lodge, not only in all parts of Hentucky, but in many of the western states and Canada.

At the annual communication of The Grand Lodge in 1878 a charter, signed by C. H. Johnson, Grand haster and Hiran Bassett, Grand Secretary, of the Grand Lodge, was granted to Pond Fork Lodge. Since then H. S. Powell, C. J. Powell, P. R. Pennington, Able Fennington, R. .. Byche, J. H. Denham, A. York, Levi Pennington, Pleas Issaes, Geo. J. King, Jerry York and Lee J. Webb, have served as Hasters and C. D. Towell, John B. King, J. H. Denham, J. h. Peters, R. .. Dyche, E. Fennington, A. Issaes, J. M. Farmer, and R. J. Strong, as Secretaries of the Lodge.

At this writing (may, 1914) C. D. Powell, who is now a member of Lancaster Lodge No. 104, is the sole surviving Charter member of Pond Fork Lodge.

HOOD LODGE NO. 602

WATSON, (-LNOWN AS EGYPT CHURCH), ADAIR CO., XY.

Chartered October 25, 1878, became defunct June 13, 1906.

VINE GROVE LODGE NO. 603 VINE GROVE, HARDIN CO., KY.

Chartered October 25, 1878. Reports one hundred and four members.

POOLE HODGE NO. 604
POOLE, MEBSIER CO., KY.

Foole Lodge No. 504, at Poole, Webster County, Wentucky, was first organized under the name of Campbell H. Johnson Lodge No. 604 Pooletown, now Poole. Order of dispensation was issued May 28, 1875, by Campbell H. Johnson, Grand Master, and Riram Bassett, Grand Secretary.

Public installation of the following of ficers took place
June 28, 1875, Campbell H. Johnson, Grand Master, of ficiating:

K. J. McToney, Master; Elijah Melton, Benior Marden; D. H. Crews,
Junior Marden; Elijah Bellars, Treasurer; D. S. Melton, Becretary,

A. J. Thornberry, Benior Descon, M. D. Thornberry, Junior Descon;

W. G. Fawrence, Tyler. These of ficers with the following

brethren constituted the charter members: Dr. J. T. Bethel,

Rev. Elijah Thurman, W. W. Poole, F. M. Norvel, and John Z. Melton.

All these brethren, except K. J. McToney, were members demitted

by sister lodges, Cairo No. 385, and Carlo No. 314.

The membership of Poole Lodge has been composed of the professional men and farmers of Poole and vicinity, and have always lived in the love and friendship of their neighboring lodges. They were held in highest esteem by Campbell H. Johnson, whose name was honored under the first charter. After the expulsion of the lamented brother from verusalem Lodge No. 9, the name of Foole Lodge No. 604 was taken instead on October, 21, 1896. name I. W. Poole Lodge was adopted by the members December 7. 1875, but when the petition came before the Gram Lodge it held that lodges should not take their mane from men; so they struck out the-W. W.-gave the name Poole, also retaining the old number. 604. Although the name Campbell H. Johnson had been aropped and enother taken, so full and complete had been the measure of mutual brother love and esteem that Campbell H. Johnson bequeathed to Vampbell H. Johnson Lodge his Pasonic library, and after his death the same was presented to this lodge in a touching manner by his widow.

There are now sixty-eight members in good standing, nineteen Past Masters, three charter members are still living, only one A. J. Thornberry, is a member.

It is a custom in this modge that when a member dies they shall have his portrait prepared and hung in the hall. There are twenty framed pictures of deceased brethren, each bearing a short Masonic history.

The wodge has always owned its own lodge room. At present they own their hall and a store house beneath. This is a comfortable

frame building 60x24, well equipped and furnished. The furniture is simple but appropriate. The widows and daughters of the Masons hold their Eastern Star meeting in this room and they take great interest in the Blue Lodge and hall. Here with their husbands, fathers, and brothers they are helping to build an influence, cheering, honorable and beneficent.

Poole Lodge has sent to the Masonic Home four wards, the chilaren of the deceased brother, A. C. Dickey, -Nealie, Letcher, Ethel and Willie. The representative to the Grand Lodge usually accompanied by other brethren, and sometimes by their wives and daughters in sisters, have always found pleasure and profit in visiting the Home am acquainting themselves with its meeds and work. On his return to the home Loage the representative, usually the Master, gives an account of the Home, its progress, his experience while there, and other things that have impressed He elso described the me eting of the Grand Lodge, many of its members and their appearance, the doing of the Grand Lodge from the view point of an eye witness, relates his experience as a member sometimes laughable and sometimes pathetic. He takes edvantage of this occasion to tum over to the Lodge whatever remains from the Grand Lodge allowance for mileage and per diem efter paying for the actual expenses for travelling and entertainment.

An unbroken record of the business and transactions of the Lodge is preserved in its minutes and records. Peace and harmony have always prevailed.

J. J. KNAPP LOLGE NO. 605 PLUMLIES LANDING, FLEMING CO., KY.

Chartered October 24, 1879. Reports twenty-four members.

JAKE RICH LODGE NO. 606
BLAINE, LAWRENCE CO., KY.

Master Jake Rice, on Pobruary 14, 1879, under dispensation granted by Thomas S. Pettitt, Grand Master and Hiram Bassett, Grand Secretary, bearing date of December 16, 1878. Petition for dispensation was signed by Dock Moods, John T. Dean, Martin M. Hoore, w. H. Gambill, Charles E. Osborne, T. R. Moore, Jesse H. Moung, Jesse H. Young, Edison Gambill, and Derrescus H. Derrifield. On the day of organization to these were added the masses of Dr. John J. Gambill, Dr. N. C. Rice, H. C. Osborne and James M. Moore.

1. Moore, C. M. Osborne, Jesse M. Young, have all been successful farmers and stock raisers. Each has advocated and assisted in every movement that has materially built up the community in which they lived.

F. k. Moore has been one of Lawrence County's successful lawyers.

F. H. Cambill, who was a Union soldier, became a merchant and farmer. His farm in which he took great pride, was considered the best demonstration farm in the western half of the county.

He was loved am respected by all who knew him.

Edison Cambill for years ran the only grist mill at or near

Blaine, and at his carding mill was prepared the yarn from which the women made the cloth which clad the best dressed men of the county.

Dock Wood, the first Laster, taught school in the county but later sought his fortune in the west.

D. h. Derrifield, after having made a success at farming, settled on the Facific coast.

For many years John J. Gamhill and M. C. Rice (both living now) were the only physicians within reach of this section of the country.

Every school child knows our brother, H. C. Osborne, as one of the men who served as school trustee am as rost Haster at Blaine for a number of years. He kept the rost Office in H. H. Gamhill's store, where he clerked. During the dull season the store room was given to the pupils for a play room. To many a child has he endesred himself by the pleasant things he would do for their entertainment.

- J. H. Sturgill, a minister of the Nethodist Church, and a member of the Lodge, has served one term in the Hentucky Legislature.
- W. G. Moore, a member of this hodge served in the Legislature of 1907.
 - S. A. Burton has served as County Juage.

HENRY BARBLE LODGE NO. 607 DAYTON, CAMPBELL CO., KY.

After several preliminary meetings at different places in

Dayton, Kentucky, for the formation of a Rodge, the following named brethren finally presented their demits to accompany their petition for a dispensation: Henry Burnes, Milliam Hasson, Hiram St. John, William W. Bean, William Binville, John Smith Hoore, William E. Hall, William H. Jones, C. E. Schoolfield, Lewis F. Anschutz, John Mex. Laily, Thomas S. Noble, Charles Lukens Rorer.

The petition was presented to Robert Burns Lodge No. 162, Newport, Aentucky, for action on August 6, 1679.

On motion, it was ordered that a ballot be taken giving permission, which was carried unanimously, with the proviso that the officers satisfy a Committee that they are competent to perform their several duties. Accordingly Charles L. Solar, Robert Aire, Thomas Dixon, L. R. Hawthorn, Robert Claiborne, Robert Fye, and F. S. Cummins were appointed. On Augsut 14, 1879, the petition was presented to New port Lodge No. 358 for permission to form a new Lodge, and after an exemplification of work in the Fellowcraft and Master Mason by the brethren of the new Lodge, it was ordered that the prayer of the petitioners be granted.

The Committee from Robert Burns Loope on August 17th., signed the recommendation which was subsequently sent to Thomas S. Pettit, Grand Master, for action.

At a meeting composed of Henry Bornes, Jm. Rasson, Hiram St. John, Jm. R. Jones, Jm. Linville, L. r. Anschutz, C. L. Aorer and C. R. Schoolfield, held on the 28th., day of August, 1879, in Odd Pellows Hall, then located at 925 Third Eve., Dayton, Ky., Mr. Barmes was, on motion, appointed Chairman, and Er. Schoolfield, Secretary. The Chairman announced that the dispensation had been

granted, empowering them to form, open and hold a regularly constituted Lodge of Free and Accepted Pasons in the City of Dayton, County of Campbell, and State aforesaid, to be designated and known by the name and stule of Henry Barnes Lodge, under dispensation, etc. The dispensation was signed by Thomas S. Fettit, Grand Master, and attested by Hiran Bassett, Grand Secretary.

The Chairman than read the Commission to Henry Bostwick, last Grand Master, of Covington, authorizing him to install the officers of said Lodge and set them to work.

On motion, the Dispensation ϵ as Commission were received and the conditions therein accepted.

The following Committees were then appointed:-

Committee to visit Fast Grand Master Bostwick, Wm. Hasson;

Committee on clothing, jewels, working tools, furniture, etc., Hasson, Dailey, Schoolfield and Barnes:

Committee on Hall, - Linville, Dailey and Rorer;

Committee on by-laws,-Barnes, Hasson and Jones.

The following officers were appointed: Secretary, J. A. Dailey; Treasurer, Wm. Hasson; Senior Deacon, Wm. H. Jones; Junior Deacon, L. P. Anschutz; Stewards, Hiram St. John and Wm. Linville.

On motion the meeting adjourned, to meet in Odd Fellows Hall on Tuesdayevening, September 2nd.

By invitation of the brethren of the Hodges in Newport a meeting was held in Masonic Hall on Monlay evening, September 1, to set the Lodge to work. Past Grand Master Bostwick, of Covington in the East, J. N. Gould, or Newport Lodge in the West, Charles

L. Solar, of Robert Burns Lodge in the South, and J. A. Dailey, Secretary.

The Commission of Past Grand Master Bostwick was then read, also the Dispensation.

The officers named in the Dispensation accepted the conditions and stipulations, and were then installed, Thomas Dixon of Robert Burns Lodge, acting as Larshal. William Linville was installed as Junior Warden.

A Lodge of Master Masons was opened and a vote of thanks extended to Mr. Bostwick, Past Grand Master, for his presence and assistance, and also to the brethren present. The Lodge was then closed, to hold its Mirst stated communication on Tuesday evening September 2nd., in Dayton, Mentucky.

Lat the meeting of September 2nd., a Committee, consisting of Dailey, Linville and Jones, was appointed to comfer with the brethren of Newport Lodges on the limits of jurisdiction. The by-laws were also adopted.

On October 7th., the Forshipful Master was authorized to apply to the Grand Lodge for a Charter.

Then the Grand Looge convened, the Dispensation was referred to the Committee on Lodges under dispensation consisting of Smith M. Hobbs, of Mt. Washington, J. E. Gates, of Owensboro, and J. W. Boyd, of Owingsville. The Committee, after a careful examination of the books, submitted for inspection on the fourth day of the session, Friday morning, October 24th., 1879, recommended that a Charter be granted to Henry Barnes Lodge, U. D., which was

carried unanimously, (an anomaly in the history of a Masonic Lodge being organized about seven weeks). The Committee also recommended that henry Barnes be the first Master, C. B. Schoolfield, the first Senior Warden, and Wm. H. Hall, the first Junior Warden thereof. The Charter was signed by the first Junior Warden thereof. The Charter was signed by Thomas S. Pettit, Frank Master, Jake Rice, Deputy Grank Master, W. La Rue Thomas, Grand Senior Warden, Wm. H. Meffert, Grand Junior Warden and Hiram Bassett, Grand Secretary.

On November 4th., Fast Franc Master Henry Bostwick, set the Looge to work under the Charter, having been commissioned by Jake Rice, Grand Master, to organize the Lodge, install the officers and set the same regularly to work. The Mollowing officers were then installed: Henry Barnes, Master; C. B. Schoolfield, Senior Warden; Am. F. Hall, Lunior Marden; Am. Hasson, Treasurer; John L. Leiley, Becretary; Hiram St. John and Am. Minville, Stewards; J. S. Loore, Tyler, Am. H. Jones, Senior Leacon, A. F. Anschutz, Junior Deacon.

On December 2nd., the Committee on Jurisdiction reported that the following boundary had been agreed upon. The Jurisdiction of this wodge to extend to the center of Taylor Creek and center line of Covert Run Turnpike. The report was received and adopted.

At the stated meeting held December 30th, the committee on the denation of the hely Sible, consisting of Dailey, Schoolfield, and Jones, made the following report, which was received and adopted, and a copy ordered for publication:-

"To the Pair Donors of the Great Lights, the wives of the Charter Members:-

Eith great pleasure Henry Barnes Lodge No. 607, acknowledge the receipt at your hands of an elegant and beautiful copy of the Bible, known Easonically as the Great Light of Easonry. Having been placed upon our alter by fair hands, at the prompting of loving hearts, we hope and believe that it will never cease to sheld the light of Love and Truth, not only upon our labors, but will continue to shine for others long after we shall be called from earthly labor to refreshment. Accept then, the heartfelt thanks of Henry Barnes Lodge No. 607 Free and Accepted Pasons, for your munificent gift."

At the state a meeting, October 25, 1881, a beautiful Masonic picture, representing the letter "3" set in pearls, embroidered by the Square and Compasses in gold and silver leaf, all on a dark background, was presented by Henry Barms from Peter H. Lallance. On motion, the following resolution was adopted:

"RESOLVED: That the tanks of the members of Henry Barnes Lodge No. 607, F. & A. M., of Dayton, Mentucky, are hereby tendered to Bro. Peter H. Lallance, of Miami Lodge No. 46, Cincinnati, Chio, for the appropriate, emblematic and Masonic gift, and that we accept it as a token of Fraternal Love and Goodwill for the prosperity and perpetuity of the Lodge."

The Lodge continued to work in its first location until
the spring of 1863, when it removed to its present quarters at
6th., and Berry. The first candidate to receive the Masters
degree in the new quarters being Edward G. N. Fresise. The Entered
apprentice Degree was first conferred by the Lodge on October 7,

1879, the candidates being Herman J. Goetze, W. C. LeClain, George C. Weimer, and L. D. Aughinbaugh.

In the spring of 1892, a Committee, condisting of J. ... Schuler, r. T. Raighn, O. ... Bird, and Im Skimmer, was appointed to secure a lot for the future quarters, and on May 28th., 1892, secured the lot now owned by the lodge at 6th and Vine Streets, Dayton, My.

directits inctitution, to January 1, 1-14, there have been candidates as follows:

Enterted apprentices, 345. Demitted, 84.

Fellow Crafts, 586. Suspended, 42.

Master Masons, 257. Expelled, 2.

Received on Lemit, 43. Died, 34.

On October 31st., 1882, Charles 1. korer disk, being the first of the Charter members, and ob April 2, 1913, John A. Loore, the last whatter member, also passed away.

been twenty-two different masters of the modge, of who, thirteen are still living. Two of these have denitted, leaving eleven, who still retain their membership. Since its institution, the Lodge has entertained, in addition to other distinguished men, Grand Master Ewalt and Grand Master Mare, also rast fast Grand Masters, Bostwick and Veach.

ST. CHARLES EDDGL NO. 608
FORTCHVILLE, MORRING CO., RY.

This Loge was set to work at St. Charles, Hopkins Jounty.

Kentucky, February 18, 1879. Charter was granted October 24, 1879.

In 1885, this Lodge joined with another fraternal organization in the purchase of a hall in which to hold its meetings.

January, 1915, it petitioned and was granted the right to move its place of meeting to Nortonville, Hopkins County, Hentucky, and since the change of location bringing the Lodge nearer to the homes of the majority of its membership, an interest has been awakened which gives better promise of success.

BAULAH LODGH NO. 609
BAULAH, HORAIMS CO., EY.

Chartered October 24, 1879. Reports seventy-three members.

H. B. GRANT LOLGE NO. 610 ETOILE, BARREN CO., RY.

The first meeting of H. B. Frant Lodge U. B., Was held at Cancy Fork Church, twelve miles South-east of Glasgow, Hentucky, on the fifteenth day of Movember, 1879, for the purpose of organization, with the following Master Hasons present: W. B. Honeycutt, J. T. Botts, E. D. Reden, S. H. Chambers, W. B. Young, J. J. Chambers, J. F. Sherfey, Jacob Peck, E. H. Chambers, R. J. Wilborn, T. S. Irhsley, C. W. Young, H. H. Chambers, R. W. Rughes and J. H. Greer.

C. L. Chism acting as proxy for Grant Haster Jake Rice.

C. L. Chism, of H. A. H. Henderson Hodge No. 575, read the dispensation, which contained the following named Master Hasons: J. B. Honeycutt, B. J. Botts, ... H. reden, J. A. Chambers, Jacob reck,

H. L. Chambers, R. .. Eughes, T. S. Irheley, S. H. Chambers, R. r. Wilborn, J. F. Sherfey, J. R. Lyons, L. H. Button, H. H. Chambers, G. W. Young, ... -- Young, J. H. Greer and W. H. Denham.

... B. Boneyoutt was appointed Linst Master, b. T. Botts, first benior worden and E. D. geden, first bunior warden. The dispensation bone the name and seal of Franci Master Thomas S. Pettit and Grand Becretary, Firam Bassett.

The following being a full list of officers at organization: W. B. Honeyoutt, Laster; B. I. Botts, Sebior Warden; E. D. Pecen, Junior Warden; S. H. Chambers, Treasurer; J. B. Young, Secretary; J. J. Chambers, Senior Beacon; J. F. Sherfey, Junior Beacon; Richard Lech, Cyler.

E. B. Frant Loge worked under dispensation until the following October, when it was granted a Charter, which bore date of October 21, 1880. J. La Rue homas, Grand Master and Minam Bassett. Grand Secretary. J. J. Jones, of Allen Lodge No. 24, was no med as proxy to act for the Grand Lester in setting N. B. Grant Louge to work. The Charter naming .. B. Honeyoutt, Master; s. T. Botts, Lebior Warden; L. D. reden, Junior Warden, and bearing the names of J. La Rue Thomas, Grand Master, J. H. Leifert, Deputy Grand Haster, G. D. Buckner, Grand Semior Warden, A. R. Boon, Grant Junior arden. H. B. Grant Lodge continued to meet at Cancy Fork Church until the summer and Tall of 1885, at which time the Lodge had completed a hall of its own, and on the Sist., day of October, 1885, the wodre was called together for the purpose of dedication. The wrone waster having appointed Prof. 2. ... Elrod, his proxy, at the dedication, he being againted by Judge

a public spirited, God serving man who has never lived among the people of any community that has not been benefitted by his influence, his example am his labor.

WHAVERTON LODGE NO. 827 WHAVERTON, HENDERSON CO., MY.

Charterow October 22, 1885, and became defunct October 19,1898.

DANSON LOUGH NO. 628 DANSON SERINGS, HOPRING CO., MY.

Charte red Votober 21, 1886. Reports one hundred and eleven members.

OLIVE HILL BOLGE NO. 629 OLIVE HILE, GERTER OO., MY.

April 25, 1886, a dispensation was granted to C. C. Brooks, George L. Ross, E. C. wilson, J. H. Courts, F. r. Tabor, A. D. Grahn, J. W. Bubbard and R. J. Esynter, to organize a Hasonic Lodge at Clive Hill, Kentucky, and on May 31, R. D. Davis, holding the proxy of the wrand Laster, instituted a Lodge U. D., with the following officers: C. C. Brooks, Master; George A. Ross, Jenior Warden; E. C. Wilson, Junior Maruen; F. L. Tabor, Jenior Descen; J. A. Courts, Junior Boscon; J. R. Lubbard, Treasurer; A. B. Grahn, Jecretary, E. P. Faynter, Steward and Tyler.

This bodge met limst in a room over Irs. A. a. Blessings

place, removed to more commodious quarters over a vacant store room in East Clive Hill owned by C. h. Sea. On 18th., of Movember, 1886, a regular Charter having been granted the Lodge U. D., R. L. Lavis bearing the proxy of the Grand Easter, instituted the Lodge under the name of Olive Hill Lodge No. 629.

The works continued to meet at above named place, also to grow in numbers until the membership felt that they should own their own building. They bought a two story frame house from D. C. Cline on Scott Street, where they continued to meet at regular stated meetings until 1915. On the 24th., day of June of same year fast Grand Haster Samuel H. Veach of Carlisle, hen tacky, bearing the proxy of the Grand waster laid the cornerstone with appropriate deremonies of the present commoditue brick Temple.

Of the Pharter members of this Lodge there are still living four: C. C. Brooks, the first Master, who is the grand old man of Lasonry in that section of the country. He lives in a nice home on the outskirts of the city and frequently at tends the meetings. L. C. Jilson, who is engaged in the mercantile business lives at Olive Hill. Judge J. N. Lubbard, who has served term as County Attorney, lives at Orayson, Memtucky, the County seat.

K. B. Grahn, the first Becretary owns the Leuisville Fire Brick Company and two brick plants at Trahn on C. a J. Railroad, and lives in Louisville, -entacky.

GURHALS STATION, HEMRY CO., LY.

Garfield hodge Bo. 650 at Turners station, in Henry County, Kentucky, was organized October 21, 1886, and became defunct July 25, 1904.

Mckinger wordt no. 631 Mckinger, bincom 60., my.

Orendorff, dram -easter, on the 21st., day of October, 1885, and on Hovember 25, 1885 the following mater masons met over R. B. Tanner's store in Mckinney and were set to work W. D. by our immented brother, the late h. J. Sandifer, assisted by C. M. Jmith, of Tranklin Lodge Fo. 28, of Deswille, My. J. F. Pocker, F. L. Jare, J. Deniel, J. R. Lavidson, h. B. Tanner, J. J. Carson, J. M. Comey, J. J. Bontgomery and J. J. Carson, the were Charter Lombers. There were also present C. L. Jivens, J. W. Feacock, Mustonville Lodge No. 184, Jm. Rughes, Mountain Lodge No. 181, J. B. Smith, J. B. Smith, J. M. Lalls, of Lindleburg Lodge No. 184 and Dr. Green Moore of Bussell Lodge No. 284.

hr, Sandifer who was duly appointed by the Junior master to set the Craft to work, installed the Edlowing of Micers: J. F. Hocker, Laster; E. M. Ware; Senior Warden; J. L. Baniel, Junior warden; W. M. Bavidson, Secretary; N. H. Tannor, Treasurer; J. J. Cerson, Senior Ecacon; W. M. Coffey, Junior Leacon, W. J. Montgomery, Cyler.

There were two petitions for initiation offered at that meeting, w. A. Plint and wr. J. L. Williams. J. V. Hocker was continued as Master by the Grand Bodge during 1886 and 1887 and on Cetobor 19, 1887, a Charter was granted, J. J. Fopper being Grand Master, and Miram Bassett, Grand Becretary of the Frund Bodge of Mentucky. Of the Charter members, three only purvive, Nev. L. A. Davidson, C. Texisleton, My., L. Mare and J. J. Lontgomery, of weaking.

Those of the Courter manners who have been called from their labors on earth to that delectial longe on high here time and and third to the end, but none more to that the late A. L. Conner who served as frequency of McKinney Lodge from its organization until the day of his leath. On April 21, 1868 the minutes of the regular Communication on that date show the following notation:
"Brother Lanner not present" and the same minute book shows this to have been the first time he had missed a meeting minute the day the Louge was set to work, a period of more than three years. In fact Lr. Tanner will not miss on an everage of more than one meeting a year for the strenty-seven years be perved as treasurer.

I. A. Coffey, mother one of the Charter members who passed sway only a few worths ago, who served the lodge so long and faithfully as learetary, was another one of the highly esteemed and much before Charter members.

All of the of ficers have he me true and officient, of them might be mentioned I. I. Vare and .. I. Tanner. The latter having officially filled every chair in the Lodge, ten years of which he has presided in the Last, and at the last election he was unanimously elected treasurer. I'm. ware, one of the three surviving Charter

members having also filled most all the stations, eight years of which was in the Haster's clair, at the last election, he having declined murther preferrment in favor of younger members.

This loage, like many others, has had its seasons of prosperity and adversity, seretimes flourishing, commatines otherwise, but on the chole the soage should be proved of their efforts in establiabing and maintaining a society of friends are brethren among whom no contention should ever exist out that noble contention, or rather small tion, as to who can best work and best agree.

This Looge has the bonor of having as one of its members, John Hubble, who has been in the Government Service for the past twelve years, having served three years as a non-commissioned ollicer in the Minth United States Regulers, three years in Coast Artillery, six years in the Signal Corps in the different branches thereof. Ir. Hobble was initiated and pussed in this Hodge in 1910 while on a three months furlow with his parents, his furlow having expired been of ter he was bassed to the decree of Pollow The work exas deprived of the pleasure of raising him to the sublime degree of Master Mason, however Mr. hubble was not long attaining to that cagree as he carried arey with him credentials from this hooge showing be was entitled to it and upon his arrival in Manilla, r. I., presenting his credentials to an American Lodge, received the sublime degree of Hastor Lason. - Mr. Hubble is at present in the united States, being at Leavenworth, Mansas, but has recently been assigned as a wireless operator to an important post in Alaska. He has made goodand this Lodge has a right to be proud of him.

This Lodge at present is in a flourishing condition. All of the officers are young and enthusiastic Masons. Cleo Thomas being Master, presides in the Mast with the ability and dignity of a veteran.

WILLOWTOWN HODGE NO. 682 WILLOWTOWN, TAYLOR CO., RY.

Chartered Votober 18, 1887, and became defunct January 16,1901.

AURORA DODGE NO. 635
LOUISVILLE, JEFFERSON CO., KY.

Aurora hodge U. B. now No. 653, was instituted November 3, 1886, and a Charter was granted by the Grand hodge on October 19, 1887. She was constituted on that night by J. J. Hopper than Grand Haster, with the following brothers acting as of Heers: Fast Grand Haster Frank Abnot, Mt. Zion Lodge Fo. 147, acting Sonior/Jarden, H. H. knelkemp, Past Haster Mt. Zion Lodge No. 147 Acting Junior Warden, Wm. Reinneiche Past Master Louis ville Lodge No. 400 Acting Senior Descon, Theo. Davis Past Haster St. George Lodge No. 339 Acting Junior Descon, M. B. Grant Grand Secretary, Rev. R. E. Coleman, Chaplain. About 200 visiting brethren at tended and all or the of Ficers named above acted at the institution of the Lodge except H. B. Grant and Rev. Coleman.

Aurora Lodge was organized as Seman working Lodge and it was an honor to the Jrand Laster J. w. Hopper and a pleasure to the Charter members of Aurora Lodge that the Grand Master instituted

the Lodge in the German Language. Pollowing is the list of Charter members: John Blaes, Fred J. Schaefer, F. Veit, C. J. Leonhard, Chas. Stieglitz, Adolph Kaiser, Louis Simm Sr., Julius Eschman, Christ Frank and G. Henry demitted from Ht. Zion Lodge Pc. 147, J. B. Kraemer and H. Hallbleib demitted from willis Stewart Lodge No. 224, H. B. Fenster and Theo. F. Piller, desitted from Kilwinning Rodge Ro. 506. - Rt. Zion and Willis Stewart Lodges were working at the time in the beman language. The bollowing were appointed as the lothe officers: Easton, John Blaes; Senior Larcon, Incd J. Bohaefer; Junior warden, Fred Veit, Senior Domoon, Adolph Kaiser; Junior Beacon, Louis Simm, Sr., Secretary, C. G. Leonhardt: Treasurer Julius Eschman; Stewards and Tyler, John B. Araemer and Charles 3. Stieglitz. They were installed in one form. first meding of the madge twenty-nine petitions were received of which in due time twenty-seven were elected and two rejected. The Lo. go closed and repaired to the large hall on the second floor of the old Falls City Hall there covers were laid for two hundred The good wives and damphters of the Charter members prepared a sumptous banquet and served the same personally. Everybody present was loud in their praise of the ladies and it was a feast such as only good German housewives can propare. William Reineicke acted an Toastmaster. Grand Hastow . W. Hopper, Grand Secretary C. S. Grant, Grand Chaplain Rev. R. M. Coleman, were among those present.

One non-bership during the first year increased to the number of seventy-eight, slowing that sixty-four were added. In the second year they numbered eighty-nine and the weape grew more are more

every year until Parch 27, 1830, when that terrible cyclone visited the Gity of Louisville, laying waste to numbers of houses, killing many people and playing havor generally. It struck the old Falls City wall and laid the building in ruins, killing Lorty-five people outright and several of the wounded disc soon afterwards from the effects. Four members of Lurous Lodge were killed and two were wounded. The Lodge lost all of her paraphernalia and working tools and was compelled to move to Compass Lodge hall on reflects on St., between fourth and wiith. Compass Lodge in spirit of brotherly love and mindness losned all of their paraphernalis until the Lodge could replace its loss.

Holgo mentings were not very well abtended after that. Ar. Blaces was persuaded to become laster again and was sleeped lecember 27, 1600. The Holgo than moved to the new ralls City Hall and interest was again renewed. Bestings from time have always been well attended and the Bodge has enjoyed prosperity to this day. It must be remembered that the Lodge is a Jerman working Lodge and for that reason it cannot be expected that the membership should be as large as their sister Lodges who work in the English language.

Hovember 7, 1:00, the Lodge colebrated its fifteenth anniversary, or which the lasenic hom fournal gave the following account.

"Aurora Lodge No. 635, N. and A. M., calebrated the fifteenth enniversary of their hodge on Mednesday, November 7, 1900. The Lodge was opened at 7 r. M., by M. Paster Alvin Munderlich, a large delegation of members and visiting brothmen being present.

"repull ditor limbs) Prinks was limbs on the programs. With opening remedia to blance of the ameding in well dissen wholes. Wish sales a song by impose quarteste, equiposed of the brobbers Carl Seek Tirat telor, anom. Best W. Woelle second temor, Select wolf first tube, and Christopher Steams ascent bease. Pext on the progression was also presentation of the Contenuish heige from the limit bodye of Hembroky, also the beingates' beinge, by the vanerable decretary, bro. C. J. Leonhardt, which in teah was received by the ..orshipsellestor, livin nunderlich; then cans another some by the Jurora quartette. The next on the programme was the presentation of the new alter by We comer, Bro. Record Thoban, in a very mean agreet; responded to in receiving the elter by W. H. L. June rlich. Tis part wer the Mower of the programme. Both fire. G. Thoben and the J. 1. underfich did Wesselves evedit. The alter is sold is a mesturgicee and do a great execut to the dehor; it was built at a cost of very nounly a humbred collers. Hent was the dedication of the altar, by .. T. John Blaes; then Bro. Carl Reck sang a beautiful tenor solo. In the wisenes of STO. L. H. Coloman, draw chaptein, and was on the programme for the banediction, Ero. P. I. Isase Welly, Superintendent of our home, filled that part with credi to himself are honor to the fratermity in a sincerc proper.

No. clus a part that has not on the programme. The dorshipful Master, while the loops has still stancing as in prayer, presented Bro. John Blaes, who is the old est rast am called the faither of the looge - for it was through his effects hurora loogs was instituted - with a teautiful roller top writing deak, in honor

"of his 59th birthday, which was November 6th. Brother Black was very much affected, so much so, that he could say but very little, but "thank you, my brethren". Then Bro. C. H. Toelle read a poem he had prepared for Brother Black birthday. Bro. C. Beck presented him with a very fine pair of enamelad leather, shoes. Bro. C. Btunz presented him with a very artistically carved jewel box, made by himself, and Bro. E. Joli presented him with a box full of fine Lavanas; then the loads chosed and sat down to a very elaborate refreshment, prepared by Bro. Jacob Scibert, who can not be excelled as a caterer.

The following brethren responded to the tolets: Our guest, r. i. Bro. Thomas Crawtord, of Robinson Rodge Lo. 266; our sister jurisdiction, by Bro. John J. Hayet, of Jeffersonville; Our Home (M. J. C. O.), by rast Haster Isaac A. Kelly; the brotherhood in our city, by Bro. C. Larren, of 378. Enring the intermission the Aurora Quartette rendered some of their beautiful songs. Some of the brethren gave some comical recitations, and parted with well wishes and God speed to Eurora Rodge. The evening was well spent. The most pleased brother was Past Hester John Blaes. Far he live to see many bir thasys of bimself and Aurora Rodge.

The following grogramme was remiered:

- 1. Broefnungsrede-P. F. Brost Brinke.
- 2. desang-lurora Quartette-Die Brueder C. Beck, C.H. Poelle, F. Holf, and C.Strunz.
- 5. Irresentation der Gentennial Badge-Br. Sec. C. d. Heonhardt.
- 4. Empfeng der Dentennial Badge-Sehr Ehrw. Heister A. Wunderlich.

- "5. desang-murora quartette.
- 6. Fresentation des Altars durch den Geber-Br. George Choben.
- 7. Impfang des Itars-Sehr Ehrw. Meister A. Jundedich.
- 8. Binweihung des Elters-F. H. John Blaes.
- 9. Gesang-Tenor Bolo-Charles Book.
- 10. Schluss der Loge Gebet-Grand Chaplain R. W. Coleman. Fach Sehluss Erfrischung, mit Eurzen Reden, Scherz, und Jesang".

BURNSIBS ECCOUNTS. 684 BURNSIBE, FULLING OC., SY.

Chartered vetobor 16, 1887. Jurrendered Charter August 1894. Revived by Grand Lodge October 1894 and given back old Charter. Charter burned and new one is said October 20, 1909.

CARLYVIEL LODGE TO. 605 CAPLYVIEL, DRAYSON OO., AT.

Orartered October 18, 1888. Reports seventy-seven members.

CRAB ORCHARD LODGE NO. 656 CRAB ORCHARD, DIFFCORE CO., EY.

October 18, 1888, Grab Croberd Hodge U. D., and member a Charter as Irab Croberd Hodge U. 636. Joseph D. retims was named therein as the direct Paster, John A. Cailey as Jenion was feen, William T. Guessins as Jenion arden. The rections were held monthly in a rested house. Povember 19, 1896, the laws moon are all its

proparties were destroyed by fine. October 20, 1697, a new Charter was no need the Lodge in lien of the one destroyed.

The Orall immediately set themselves to work, remindled wheir masonic entimed am, and upon, perhaps, for most desirable lot in the town erected a hard-some two story building - the ground floor on this is used as a store am the second abory for helps purposes. The hodge has a membership of more than iorty, helps its mestings upon the hour ticlomag shift of each month: The average appealance is good and assonic interest cacke.

See Fos. 129 and 402.

JOHNSTELL BODE 10. 657

Et, less, by i. F. Alliams, rast or all laster, Hencoe, we make, acting as promy for we all aster J. Souls Smith. The Eirst of isoms being J. L. Oster, master; william J. Jrasurer; H. T. Joe LeAinsey, Junior Marcon; Joe L. Almos, Treasurer; H. T. Stewart, Jordany; L. V. Boom, Menior Esacon; Jof L. Rernecker, Steich Leacon, J. J. Jones, Tyler.

The League received its Operter October 18, 1888, so Jonesville Louge No. 687, will the same officers who were re-elected Lecember 27, 1889.

buning able to own one or its own. Financially, and as regards made no ip, the mount may be noticed as in a second wealthings,

but each one write to parriems his part of the work in the religi

The numbership is result, services, some live in office states, offices so der every they selded absent the wedge, are others too ak to attend theopt in same instances. This all freese classomerating circumstances the new of this songe have not lost their but he gone on the pash to year doing the best they can to fill aright their place in the great body on Masonry.

REMARKS HOUSE NO. 658

In May, 1888, William V. Ferrin, Thomas W. Blackhart, Thomas C. Mobertson, William W. Pyne, Walter P. Johson, Rev. Ivan H. .ise, Dr. John J. Drake, are Pumphrey Marshell, assembled at the residence of tr. Lervin, southwest corner of thenty-sixth and Dumesmil streets to suchable opinions, of fer suggestions, and bleve Countilabed a post More on a foare of casons, are forwarded in to P. B. Frant, Frank secretary of the water flare of Martroky, who submitten is to they body. On the Lath., way of Jago, 1966, to the Lodge granton state jest vion an ordered that the justicianors be appropriated to open the process to work in a remularly constituted lodge, known by I s make and abyle of Lun lund Louge, Under Listers ation. The Araba Luster, J. Soule amith, conferred the de ress of Lattered approntice, Fellow Graft, and laster lason upon the applicants and appointed the relieding officers: William . Perrin, Faster: Thomas W. Blackbart, Jenior ...rden; Memas J. Robertson, Aurior Warzen.

beld in a room on the second floor of the "Old Lavidson Howse", on Virginia Avenue, between Clive Avenue and Twenty-eighth Street in Farkland. The Hodge was called to order by fast frond Haster, Jobs P. Leathers, proxy of Frank Haster J. Soule Smith, and opened on the Hasters Degree, officered and attended as follows: Fast Grand Haster John H. Zeathers, acting Master of the Leage; Thomas J. Blackhart, Jenior Marken; Thomas G. Hobertson, Junior Marken; walter L. Jumeson, decreasy; William H. Lyne, Frommer; John M. Drake, Temior Mascon; Eunphrey Harshall, Tyler, William H. Ferrin the mode, appointed Easter of the Houge; Rev. Ivan 1. Wise, M. Shaw, on Tallo City Loage, No. 376 of Louisville, and Frank M. Lewis, Of Golden Rule Hodge No. 345 or Covington, Ky.

twise a Lidge of Pres and Recepted amons under dispensation.
The Following officers were installed: william H. Lerrin, Paster;
Thomas ... plackhert, denion warden; Thomas J. Robertson, Junior Warden.

The following officers were than appointed and installed:

Multer T. Johnson, Secretary; Milliam T. Tyne, Treasurer; John

J. Drake, Semior Deacon; Humphrey Harshall, Junior Leacon; and

Trank E. Léwis, of John Rule Loane, Fo. 545, Covington, Hertucky,

(a petitioner for affiliation), acting Tyler. J. H. Shaw, of

Mallo City Doago No. 576, the Actin Claster of Corenomies

proclaimed markland Loage, U. D., instituted according to the

Torms and usages of Lasoury.

In the "Cla Lavidson House" where the Modre was instituted,

George M. Cranford, william B. Date, and william W. Riggs, the first petitioners, were introduced and initiated, in due and ancient form.

chances for success, being poorly equipped for progressive work until it seemed by a losh from Abraham Loage No. 8, the parapher-nalia and outfit necessary for lodge work. At the second stated moeting two petitions for offiliation were received, and the reguler meetings of the hoose were set for the first and third Caturday nights of each month. There really was no third meeting, July 21, 1838, (although a few members put in an appearance) on account of the "Larkland Excursion to Right Bridge", given for the benefit of one of the durches. Fearly every person in the town took adventage of it and went on the outing.

The Charter of the bodge was received on the 16th., of October, 1688. On the 20th., of October the members of the Lodge were obligated in Dixon's Hall, Horth-east conner of Eventy-eighth and Dumesnil streets, by rast Grand Laster John H. Leathers, proxy of the Franc Master, J. Soule smith, of the Grand Moore of Hentucky, and other representatives of the Jrand Lodge.

The Lodge continued to meet in Dixon's Hall after its lease had empired in February 1889. In the meantime te leasing of the Dasonic Hall, then in course of eraction had been arranged, and the data for the dedication set for Hovember 20, 1890. The meetings of the Lodge were changed the second time, instead of the first are third Saturday nights of each month, to the second and fourth Tuesdays.

The Masonic Hall was dedicated Fovember 20, 1690. Pending the dedication, the wedge held a meeting in the Baytist Church just opposite the new full. After the meeting closed, the members formed in procession, marched back to the hall am witnessed the dedicatory ceremonies by the officers of the Grand Lodge. Besides there and the members of markland Lodge, No. 628, there were visitors from other Masonic Lodges, am forty members from the Louisville Commandery No. 1. After the deremonies were completed and the congratulations over, the numbers formed in procession am marched back to the Baptist Church where it opened Looge on the M. M. degree. The Master, William M. Perrin, was present and being somewhat indisposed did not conduct the meeting. William M. Paylor acted Master at the opening of the modge.

The first regular meeting after the dedication of the Masonic Hall, was held there December 9, 1890, Tilliam J. Riggs acting Master. On the 27th., of December, the armual election of officers took place, and Dr. John J. Drake was elected Master of the Lodge for the year 1891. He endeavored to build up the Lodge as the former Laster intended to do, but met with little success. His term of office having expired he was re-elected Master for the year 1892, and strove hard to make his second term a successful one but Tailed. It can be said truly that he was a zealous haster and performed his duties well. Demits occasionally showed up, and delinquencies, and remittances kept the Lodge at a stand-still, or rather on the ragged edge, some of the members ambitious

to hold the Lodge membership together, made arrangements to give literary entertainments for the good of the order at each regular meeting.

In 1891 Masonic interest had flagged to such an extent that the Lodge was on the verge of diabanding.

the first regular election of officers, william B. Rate, one of the first regular election of officers, william B. Rate, one of the first potitioners for muberable in the Looke was elected and tester of the Lodge. We impediately set himself to more to revive the interest of the Craft. We was groupt in attending all moure mostings, and his conduct are bearing comented the brothers more closely together. He made it his only to visit every momber in sickness. These has re-elected and his second term was a most successful one. We was estimized with the more has been accomplished, and declined to take the office for another term. I ricing vote of themes was then externed to him and the following testimonial of his worth spread upon the minutes of the Lodge:

"Brother william Swown Tate, rendered efficient service during the past two years, 1892-94, at laster on the scape, during which time it but aroun from an elect disharded condition to one of strength and prosperity."

Fig successor, "erbord v. Norts, shows thility as master of the Lodge in Lary ways. A short sorg carvice after the mostings was one of the forwards be insucciated, which his much good towards

building up its seabership one so eping Not be interest alive.

In 1899 the lite on A iel the new sarahum lasonic Fall novestance, as purchased the paid for.

William L. Proves, who are elected to the laster's chair by a hardsome majority, exercise the expectation of his friends; he are suche, abort, and steadlast in his propose to set the Lodge prosper; I timeless and permistent husbler for the of. John's Day Resgue, he raised about 19000.00 for Jethasonic Vidowa' and Orphans' Rome in a day and a night.

The membership of the tedge is now ever than bundred.

Efter lasons out of employment and puts them in touch with those who seek employees. The jobless brother is thus helped to help hirself. It is a mobile now and noble now are feing it.

700D0200B B003D TO. 689

Thurtored Setober 24, 1809. Asports twolve norbers.